
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

 
 

August 11, 2020 



Rolling Hills 
 Community Development District 

475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
Phone: 904-940-5850 - Fax: 904-940-5899 

 
 
 
August 4, 2020 
 
Board of Supervisors  
Rolling Hills Community 
Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Rolling Hills Community Development 
District will be held Tuesday, August 11, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. via Zoom. Following is the advance 
agenda for the meeting: 
 
 I. Roll Call 
 II. Audience Comments 
 III. Affidavit of Publication 
 IV. Approval of Minutes of the May 14, 2020 Meeting and July 23, 2020 Special Meeting  
 V. Consideration of Matters Related to Series 2020 Bonds 
  A. Presentation of Supplemental Engineer’s Report 
  B. Presentation of Preliminary Assessment Methodology 
  C. Consideration of Delegation Resolution, 2020-08 
    1. Supplemental Indenture 
    2. Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum 
    3. Bond Purchase Agreement 
    4. Continuing Disclosure Agreement  
 VI. Matters Regarding Phase A Construction Project 
  A. Ratification of Agreement for Construction Services 
  B. Resolution Authorizing Direct Purchase, Resolution 2020-10 
  C. Temporary Construction & Access Easement Agreement 
  D. Consideration of Construction Funding Agreement  
 VII. Public Hearing to Adopt the Revised Rules of Procedure, Resolution 2020-05 
 VIII. Consideration of Contract Renewals 
  A. Proposal from Riverside Management Services for Fiscal Year 2021 
  B. Yellowstone Landscaping 
  C. Lake Maintenance Proposals 
 IX. Public Hearing Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2021 
  A. Consideration of Resolution 2020-06, Relating to the Annual Appropriations and 

Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2021 
  B. Consideration of Resolution 2020-07, Imposing Special Assessments and 

Certifying an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2021 
 X. Consideration of License Agreement with Clay High School Swim Team 
 XI. Presentation Regarding Tennis Programming 



2 

 XII. Other Business 
 XIII. Staff Reports 
  A. Attorney  
  B. Engineer  
  C. Manager – Discussion of Proposed Meeting Schedule for Fiscal Year 2021 and 

Consideration of Resolution 2020-09 
  D. Operations / Amenity Manager - Report 
 XIV. Supervisor’s Requests 
 XV. Audience Comments 
 XVI. Financial Reports 
  A. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 
  B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
  C. Check Register 
XVII. Next Scheduled Meeting: TBD @ 6:00 p.m. at the Rolling Hills Amenity Center 
XVIII. Adjournment 
 
Enclosed for your review and approval is a copy of the minutes from the May 14, 2020 meeting 
and the July 23, 2020 special meeting. 
 
The fifth order of business is consideration of matters related to Series 2020 bonds.  Enclosed for 
your review is a copy of the Preliminary Assessment Methodology, Resolution 2020-08 and the 
Supplemental Indenture.  Other support material will be sent under separate cover. 
 
The sixth order of business is matters regarding Phase A construction project.  Enclosed for your 
review are the items as outlined above.  A copy of the agreement for construction services will 
be sent under separate cover. 
 
The seventh order of business is the public hearing to adopt the Rules of Procedure.  Enclosed 
for your review is a copy of the rules as well as Resolution 2020-05. 
 
The eighth order of business is consideration of contract renewals.  Enclosed for your review is a 
copy of the proposals as outlined above.   
 
The ninth order of business is the public hearing to adopt the budget for Fiscal Year 2021, which 
is enclosed along with a copy of Resolution 2020-06 and Resolution 2020-07. 
 
The tenth order of business is consideration of license agreement with Clay High School, which 
is enclosed for your review. 
 
The eleventh order of busines is presentation of tennis programming.  Any support material will 
be sent under separate cover. 
 
Enclosed under the Manager’s Report is a proposed meeting schedule for Fiscal Year 2021 along 
with a copy of Resolution 2020-09. 
 
Enclosed under the Operations / Amenity Manager’s report is a memorandum. 
 
Enclosed are the financials, assessment receipt schedule and the check register. 
 



3 

The balance of the agenda is routine in nature, and any additional support material will be 
presented and discussed at the meeting.  If you have any questions in the meantime, please feel 
free to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
James Oliver 
James Oliver 
Manager  
 
cc: Katie Buchanan Gabe McKee  
 Keith Hadden     



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



 Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

Agenda 
 
 

Tuesday   
August 11, 2020  
6:00 p.m.  
  
  
 District Website: www.rollinghillscdd.com 
 
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Audience Comments 
 
 III. Affidavit of Publication 
  
 IV. Approval of Minutes of the May 14, 2020 Meeting and July 23, 2020 Special Meeting  
 
 V. Consideration of Matters Related to Series 2020 Bonds 
  A. Presentation of Supplemental Engineer’s Report 
 
  B. Presentation of Preliminary Assessment Methodology 
 
  C. Consideration of Delegation Resolution, 2020-08 
   1. Supplemental Indenture 
 
   2. Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum 
 
   3. Bond Purchase Agreement 
 
   4. Continuing Disclosure Agreement  
 
 VI. Matters Regarding Phase A Construction Project 
  A. Ratification of Agreement for Construction Services 
 
  B. Resolution Authorizing Direct Purchase, Resolution 2020-10 
 
  C. Temporary Construction & Access Easement Agreement 
 
  D. Consideration of Construction Funding Agreement  
 



 VII. Public Hearing to Adopt the Revised Rules of Procedure, Resolution 2020-05 
 
 VIII. Consideration of Contract Renewals 
  A. Proposal from Riverside Management Services for Fiscal Year 2021 
 
  B. Yellowstone Landscaping 
 
  C. Lake Maintenance Proposals 
  
 IX. Public Hearing Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2021 
  A. Consideration of Resolution 2020-06, Relating to the Annual Appropriations and 

Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2021 
 
  B. Consideration of Resolution 2020-07, Imposing Special Assessments and 

Certifying an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2021 
 
 X. Consideration of License Agreement with Clay High School Swim Team 
 
 XI. Presentation Regarding Tennis Programming 
 
 XII. Other Business 
 
 XIII. Staff Reports 
  A. Attorney  
   
  B. Engineer  
  
  C. Manager – Discussion of Proposed Meeting Schedule for Fiscal Year 2021 and 

Consideration of Resolution 2020-09 
 
  D. Operations / Amenity Manager - Report 
 
 XIV. Supervisor’s Requests 
 
 XV. Audience Comments 
 
 XVI. Financial Reports 
  A. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 
 
  B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
 
  C. Check Register 
 
XVII. Next Scheduled Meeting: TBD @ 6:00 p.m. at the Rolling Hills Amenity Center 
 
XVIII. Adjournment 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Firefox 

I of I 

PUBLISHER AFFIDAVIT 
CLAY TODAY 

Published Weekly 
Orange Park, Florida ,,,.. 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF CLAY: 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared 
Jon Cantrell , who on oath says that he is the publisher of the 
"ClaY. Today_'.'. a newspaper published weekly at Orange Park in 
Clay County, Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement 
being a 

NOTICE OF RULE DEVELOPME NT 

in the matter of 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 

LEGAL: 46135 ORDER: 312096 

was published in said newspaper in the issues: 

07/02/2020 

Affiant further says that said "Clay Today" is a newspaper published 
at Orange Park , in said Clay County, Florida , and that the said newspaper 
has heretofore been contin uously published in said Clay County , Florida , 
weekly , and has been entered as Period ical material matter at the post 
office in Orange Park , in said Clay County, Florida , for period of one 
year next proceeding the first publication of the attached copy of 
advertisement; and affiant further says that he has neither paid nor promised 
any person , firm or corporation any discount, rebate , commi ssion or 
refund for the purpose of securing this advertisement for publication in 
the said newspaper . 

Sworn to me and subscribed before me 07/02/2020. 

N~~F~~ 
3515 US HWY 17 Suite A, Fleming s and f t: '.l 

Telephone (904) 264-3200 - FAX (904) 264-3285 
E-Mail: Christie@opcfla .com 

NOTICE OF RULE 
DEVELOPMENT · 

BY THE ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
In accord with Chapte rs 120 and 190, 
Fl or ida Statutes , the Ro lling H ill s 
Co m m uni ty Dev e lopment 
Dist r ict(" Distr ict") hereby gives 
noti ce ofits inte nti on to devel op 
Rules of Proce dure to govern the 
operations oftheD istr ict. 
The Rules ofProcedure will address 
such areas as the Board of 
Supervis or s, officers andvot ing, 
d istrict offices, pu bli c inform at ion 
an d inspec t ion of recor ds,policies, 
public meetings, hear ings and 
workshops , ru lemak.ing proceedings 
andcompetitive purchase including 
procedure under the Cons ultants 
Co m petitiveNegot iation Act, 
procedure regarding auditor 
selection , purchase of insura nce .pre 
-q u alification, construction 
contracts , goods, supplies and mater 
ials , maintenance services , 
contractual serv ices and prote sts 
with respect to proceedings ,as well 
as any otbe r area of the genera l 
operation of the District. 
The purpose andeffect of the Ru les 
of Procedure is to provid e for 
efficie nt and effectiveD istrict 
ope ra tions and to ensure compliance 
with recent changes lo Florida law. 
The legal authority for the adoption 
of theproposed Rules of Procedur e 
inc ludes sections 190 .011(5) , 
190.011( 15)and 190.035, Florida 
Stat utes (2019).The specific laws 
imp lemen ted in the Rules of 
Procedure include , but are 
notlim iled lo, sections 112.08, 
112.3143, 112.31446,112.3145, 119.07, 
119.0701, 189.053, 189.069(2)(a)l 6, 
190.006, 190.007, 190.008,190 011(3), 
190.011(5) , 190.011(15), 190.033 , 
190 . 035, 218.33, 2 18 . 391, 
255.05,255.0518, 255.0525, 255.20, 
286.0105, 286.011, 286.0113, 286.0114, 
287.017,287.055 an d 287.084, Florida 
Statutes(20 19). 
Acopy of the proposed Rules of 
Procedu r e may be obtai ned by 
contacting theDistrict Manager , c/o 
Gover nmental Management Services, 
475 West Town Place .Su ite 114, 
World Golf Village, St. Augustine, 
F lorida 32092, (904) 940-5850. 
Jim Oliver, District Manage r 
Rolling Hills Commu n ity 
Deve lop ment District 
Legal 46135 published July 2, 2020 in 
Clay County's Clay Today newspaper , 

about:blank 

5/19/2020, 10:44 AM 



I of 1 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF CLAY: 

PUB LISHER AFF IDAVIT 
CLAY TODAY 

Published Week ly 
Orange Park, Florida 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared 
Jon Cantrell, who on oath says that he is the publisher of the 
"Clax Today_'.'. a newspaper published weekly at Orange Park in 
Clay County, Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement 
being a 

NOTICE OF RULE MAKING 

in the matter of 

ROLLI NG BIL LS 

LEGAL: 46 136 ORDER: 312097 

was published in said newspaper in the issues: 

07/09/2020 

Affiant further says that said "Clay Today" is a newspaper published 
at Orange Park, in said Clay County, Florida, and that the said newspaper 
has heretofore been continuously published in said Clay County, Florida, 
weekly, and has been entered as Periodical material matter at the post 
office in Orange Park, in said Clay County, Florida, for period of one 
year next proceeding the first publication of the attached copy of 
advertisement; and affiant further says that he has neither paid nor promised 
any person, firm or corporation any discount, rebate, commission or 
refund for the purpose of securing this advertisement for publication in 
the said newspaper. 

s ~;:w ore me 

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FL 

3515 US HWY 17 Suite A, Fleming Island FL 32003 
Telephone (904) 264-3200 • FAX (904) 264-3285 

E-Mnil: Chri stie@o pc fln .eom 

NOTICE OF 
RULEMAKING 

REGARDING THE RULES OF 
PROCEDURE OF THE 

ROLLING HI LLS 
COMMUNITY DEVE LOPMENT 

DIST RICT 
A public hea ring will be co nducted 
by th e Board of Su pervisors or the 
Ro llin g Hi ll s Co mmunit y 
Deve lopme nt Dish'ic t ("Distr ict") on 
August 11, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. It is 
anticipat ed tha t the public hea ring 
will ta ke place at the al the Holling 
Hills Amen ity Center , 3212 Bradley 
Creek Parkw ay, Gree n Cove Springs, 
Florida 32043. In th e eve nt th at th e 
COVID-19 pub lic healt h eme rge ncy 
preve nts the public hea ring from 
occurri ng in•perso n, the Distr ict may 
condu ct the pu blic hea ring by 
te lepho ne or video co nfe renci ng 
communi ca tion s medi a technology 
purs ua nt to governm ental ord ers, 
includ ing but not limited lo 
Exec uti ve Ord e rs 20-52 and 20-69 
iss ued by Gover nor DcSanlis on 
Marc h 9, 2020, and March 20, 2020, 
rcspec livc ly, and any exten sions or 
supp leme nts the reo f, and pur suant 
to Sec t ion 120.54(5)(b)2., F lorida 
Statutes. Infor mation about how th e 
hearing wil l occ ur , assista nce 
conn ec ting to the hea ri ng or 
arranging fur ther acc ommodati ons 
for pa rti cip at ion, may be obtain ed by 
access ing the Distr ict's website al 
www.ro lli ngh ill sc dd .com or by 
contac ting th e office of th e Distri ct 
Ma n ag e r c/o Gove rn m e nt a l 
Manage ment Serv ices LLC North 
Florid a, at (004) 040-5850 or jol ive r 
@grnsnf.com ("Distr ict Manage 1's 
Office"). 
)n accord with Chapters 120 and 190, 
Florid a Stat ut es, the Distr ict hereby 
gives th e publi c notice of its inte nt lo 

adopt its proposed Hules of 
Procedu re. The purp ose and e ffect of 
the pro posed Rules of Procedure is 
to prov ide for effic ie nt and effecti ve 
Distri ct operatio ns and to ensure 
compl ia nce with rece nt changes to 
Flor ida law. Pr ior notice of r ule 
develop me nt was pub lished in the 
Clay Today on J u ly 2, 2020. 
The Hules of Proce du re may addr ess 
such areas as th e Boa rd of 
Supervisors, office rs a nd voting, 
distri ct offices, publi c infor mati on 
and inspec tion of reco rds, policies, 
publi c mee tin gs, hea r ings and 
workshops, rulemaking procce di1!gs 
and compe titi ve pu rchase inc luding 
proce du re und er th e Consultant s 
Compe ti t ive Negotia ti on Ac t , 
pr oce du re regar din g a ud itor 
se lecti on, pur chase of insurar~ce, 
pr e-q ua Ii fica ti on, co n slruct 1o n 
cm~tr~ct,s , goo.~~· ___ : l~~plics and 

about:bl ank 

materi als, lll UI Ul \: II Ull l.:C Sl!rY ICCS, 

co ntra ctual services and protests 
with res pect lo procee d ings, as we ll 
as any oth er area of the gene ral 
op erat ion ofl he Distric t. 
Specific legal a uthor ity for the 
ado pti on of th e proposed Ru les of 
P roc edure in c ludes Se cti o ns 
190.011(5), 190.011(15) an d 190.035, 
Flo rida Stat utes (2010). '!'he speci fic 
laws imp lem ented in the Hules of 
P roce du re include, but are not 
limite d to, Sect ions 112.08, 112.3 143, 
112.31446, 112.3145, ll 9.07, 119.0701, 
189.053, 189.069(2)(a)l 6, 190.006, 
100 .007 , 190.0 08, 190 .011(3 ) , 
190.011(5), 190.011(1 5), 190.033, 
190.035, 218.33, 218.391, 255.05, 
255.0518, 255.0525, 255.20, 286.0105, 
286.011, 286.0ll 3, 286.0114, 287.017, 
287.055 and 287.084, J<lorid a Statut es 
(2019). 
A copy of th e pr oposed Rules of 
Procedu re may be obtain ed by 
cont actin g the Distr ict Manager c/o 
Gover nment al Manage ment Se rvices, 
475 Wes t Town Pl ace, Suite 114, 
World Golf Village, SI. Augustine, 
Fl or id a 32092 , (004) 940-5850 
("Distri ct Manage 1's Office"). 
Any pe rso n who wis hes to provide 
the Oislr icl wit h a prop os al for a 
lower cost reg ul atory alt ern ative as 
provided by Sect ion 120.541(1), 
Fl orida Statu tes , must do so in 
writin g withi n lwe nlyone (21) da ys 
all er pu blica tion of th is '!'his pub lic 
hear ing may be continu ed to a da te, 
tim e, and pl ace to be spec ified on 
th e record al the hearin g without 
ad diti ona l not ice. II' an yone chooses 
to a ppea l an y dec isio n of th e Boar d 
wi th respec l lo uny ma tt e r 
co nsidere d at a pu blic hear ing, such 
person wi II need a reco rd · of th e 
proceed ings and should acco rd ingly 
e nsur e that a ve rba tim recor d of the 
procee d ings is mad e whic h in clud es 

, the tes timony an d evidence up on 
whi ch such ap 1>eal is to be base d. At 
,the hea rin g, s taff or Superv isor s may 
1
parti cip ale in th e public hea rin g by 
spea ke r te le phone. · 
Pu rsuant lo th e provisio ns of the 
Amer ica ns with Disa bi lities Act, any 
p e r so n r e q uirin g s p ec ial 
acco mmodations at this meet ing 
becau se of a disa bilit y or 1,hys ical 
impairm e nt shou ld cont act th e 
District Manager's Office at least 
forty-e ight (48) hours pr ior lo th e 
meeti ng. If you are hea rin g or s peech 
impair ed , pl ease co nt act th e F lori da 
He lay Se rvi ce al 1-800-055-8771 or 
1800-955-8770 for aid in cont ac tin g 
th e Distri cl Manage l's o m ce. 
J im Oliver , Distr ict Ma nager 
Holling Hill s Communi ty 
Devclopmc nl Dislrie l 
Lega l 46136 pub llshed Ju ly 9, 2820 in 
Clay Coun ly's Clay Toda y newsJ>aper. 

5/19/2020, 10:54 AM 



PUBLISHER AFFIDAVIT 
CLAY TODAY 

Published Weekly 
Orange Park, Florida 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF CLAY: 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared 
Jon Cantrell, who on oath says that he is the publisher of the 
"Clay Today" a newspaper published weekly at Orange Park in 
Clay County, Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement 
Being 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
in the matter of 

2020/2021 BUDGET 

Legal 46317 Order 264615 & 264617 

was published in said newspaper in the issues 

JULY 9 & JULY 16, 2020 

Alliant further says that said "Clay Today" is a newspaper published 
at Orange Park, in said Clay County, Florida, and that the said newspaper 
has heretofore been continuously published in said Clay County, Florida, 
weekly, and has been entered as Periodical material matter at the post 
office in Orange Park, in said Clay County, Florida, for period of one 
year next proceeding the first publication of the attached copy of 
advertisement; and affiant further says that he has neither paid nor promised 
any person, firm or corporation any discount, rebate, commission or 
refund for the purpose of securing this advertisement for publication in 
the said newspap ) 

c--~ 
..,._.-::_ An \ 

/i¥f\'---A)n;l+tr~t/f;I-+-- --

16TH day of July, 2020 

~~ CHRISTIE LOU WAYNE 
~ MY COMMISSION# GG24! 73 

~opn,O~o"' EXPIRES: September 20, 2020 

3513 US HWY 17 Suite A, Fleming Island FL 32003 
Telephone (904) 264-3200 - FAX (904) 264-3285 



CI.A\70DAYllNUNE.COM CLAY LEGALS Jul( 16, 2020 •. CLAY_TODAY_ •. _3_1 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE ADOPTION OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2.020/2021 BUDGET; NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE IMPOSITION OF OPERATIONS AND 
MAINTENANCE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, ADOPTION OF AN ASSESSMENT ROLL, AND THE LEVY, COLLECTION, AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE SAME; NOTICE OF POSSIBLE REMOTE PRO CE· 
DU RES DURING PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY DUE TO COVID-19; AND NOTICE OF REGULAR BOARD OF SUPERVISORS' MEETING. 

Upcoming Public Hearings, and Regular Meeting 

The Board of Supervisors ("Board") for the Rolling HIiis Community Development Drstrlct ("District") will hold the following two public hearings and a regular meeting: 

DATE: August 11, 2020 
TIME: 6:00 p.m. 

LOCATION: Rolling Hills Amenity Center 
3212 Bradley Creek Parl<way 
Green_ Cove Springs, Florida 32043 

. It is anticipated that the public hearings and meeting will take place at the location above. Currentlyth ere is in pl ace federal, state, and loca! emergency declaraflons roedarafrons'} in response to COVJD-19. 
1n the event the Declarations remain in effect and/or future orders or declarations so authorize, the District may conduct the public hearings and meeting by telephone or video conferencing communications 
media technology pursuant to such governmental orders, including but not limited to Executive Orders 20-52, 20-69, and 20-112 issued by Governor Desantis on March 9, 2020, March 20, 2020, and April 29, 
2020, respectively, and any extensions or supplements thereof, and pursuant to Section 12054(5)(b)2., Florida Statutes. 

While it may be newsary to hold the above referenced public hearings and meeting utilizing communication, media technology due to the current COVID-19 public health emergency, the District ti.Illy encourages 
public participation in a safe and efficient mannr;r. To that end, anyone wishing to /iSten to and/or participate in the meeting and obtain information about how the meeting will occur should refer to the District's website, 
www.rollinghillscdd.com or contact the office of the District Manager, do Governmental Management SeNiw, LlC, at (904) 940-5850 or jolive.t@gmsnfrom to obtain access information. Participants are strongly encour
aged to submit questiom and comments to the District Manager's Office at Governmental Management SeNices, LLC, 415 West Town Place, Suite / 14, St Augustine, Rorida 32092, or by ca!{lng (904) 940-5850 by~ 
10 2020 ar 5:00 p.m. in advan~e of the meeting /o facilitate rhe Boord~ consideration of such question, and comments during the meeting. 

The first public hearing Is being held pursuant to Chapter 190, Florid~ Statutes, to receive public comment and objections on the District's proposed budget ("Proposed Budget") for the fiscal year begin~ 
ning Oaober 1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2021 ("Fiscal Year 2020/2021"). The second public hearing Is being held pursuant to Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes, to consider the !mpos:ition 
of operations and maintenance spedal assessments ("O&M Assessments") upon the lands located within the District, to fund the Proposed Budget for Flscal Year 2020/2021; to consider the adoption of an 
assessment roll; and, to provide for the levy, collection, and enforcement of asseSsments. At the conclusion of the hearings, the Board will, by resolution, adopt a budget and levy O&M Assessments as finally 
approved by the Board. A Board meeting of the District will also be held where the Board may consider any other District business. 

Description of Assessments 

The District imposes O&M Assessments on benefitted property within the District for the purpose of funding the Dlstrict's general administrative, operations, and maintenance budget. Pursuant to Section 
170.07, Florida Statutes, a description of the streets and areas to be improved, description of seNices to be funded by the O&M Assessments, and the properties to be improved and benefitted from the O&M 
Assessments, are all set forth in the Proposed Budget. A geographic depiction of the property potenti~lly subject to the proposed O&M Assessments ls identified in the map attached hereto. The table below 
shows the schedule of the proposed O&M Assessments, wh!ch are subject to change at the hearing: 

land Use Total# of Units/Acres ERU Factor Proposed O&M Assessment 
(including collection costs/ early payment discounts 

Platted 375 1 $371,250.00 

Unplatted 386 .75 $280,185.05 

The proposed O&M Assessments as stated include collection costs and/or early payment discounts, which Clay County ('(aunty") may impose on assessments that are collected on the County tax bill. 
Moreover, pursuant to Section 197.3632{4), Florid<l Statutes, the lien amount shall serve as the"maximum rate'author!zed by law forO&M Assessments, such that no assessment hearing shall be held or notice 
provided in future years unless the assessments are proposed to be increased or another criterion within Section 197.3632(4), Florida Statutes, is met. Note that the O&M Assessments do not Include any debt 
seNice assessments previously levied by the District and due to be collected for Fiscal Year 2020/202.1. 

For Ffscal Year 202.0/2021, the District intends to have the County tax collector collect the assessments imposed on certain developed property, and will directly collect the assessments imposed on the 
remaining benefitted property by sending out a bill prior to, or during, November 2020. It is Important to pay your assessment because failure to pay will cause a tax certificate to be issued against the property 
which may result in loss oftit!e,orfordirect bllled assessments,mayresult in a foreclosure action, which also may result in a loss of title, The Dlstrict's decision to collect assessments on the tax /OIi or by direct 
billlng does not preclude the District from )ater electing to col!ect those or other assessments in a different manner at a future time. 

Additional Provisions 

The public hearlngs and meeting are open to the public and will be conducted In accordance with the provisions of Florida law. A copy of the Proposed Budget, proposed assessment roll, and the agenda 
for the hearings and meeting may be obtained at the offices of the District Manager, located at Governmental Management Services, LLC, 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092, or by 
calling (904) 940-5850 ("Dis tr let Manager's Office"), during normal business hours, or by accessing the District's website at b.ttps:1/rollinghillscdd com/. The public hearings and meeting may be continued 
to a date, time, and place to be Specified on the record at the hearings or meeting. There may be occasions when staff or board members may participate by speaker telephone. 

Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the Dlstrict Manager's Office at least forty-eight(48) hours prior to the meeting. 
If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay 5eNice by dialing 7-1-1, or 1·800-955-8771 (TTY)/ 1-800-955-8770 (Vo lee), for aid in contacting the District Manager's Office .. 

Please note that all affected property owners have the 1ight to appear at the public hearings and meeting, and may also file written objections with the District Manager's Office within twenty (2.0) days 
of publication of this notice. Each person who decides to ;ippeal any decision made by the Soard with respect to any matter considered at the public hearings or meeting is advised that person will need a 
record of proceedings and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and evldence upon which such appeal Is to be based. 

James Of!ve.r, District Manager 

Legal 46317 published July 9 and July 16, 2020 in Clay County's Clay Today newspaper. 



ClAY ~EGALS CLAYTODAYON_LIN_E,COM 

RESOLUTION 2020-03 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021 AND SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING THEREON PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA LAW; ADDRESSING TRANSMITTAL, POSTING AND PUBLICATION 
REQUIREMENTS; ADDRESSING SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

6, PUBLICATION OF NOTICE. The District shall cause this Resolution to be published 
once a week for a period of two weeks in a newspaper of general circulation published in 
Clay County. Additionally, notlce of the public hearings shall be provided in the manner 
prescribed in Florida !aw. 

7. SEVERABIUTY. The Invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions of 
this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of 
this Resolution, or any part thereof. 

WHEREAS, the District Manager has heretofore prepared and submitted to the 8, EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
Board of Supervisors ("Board") of the Rolling Hills Community Development District 
{"District") prior to June 15, 2020, a proposed budget ("Proposed Budger) for the fiscal 
year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2021 ("Fiscal Year 2020/2021 i; 
and PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 14rn DAY OF MAY, 2020, 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the District to fund the administrative and 
·) operations services (together,"Servicesi set forth in the Proposed Budget by levy of special 

assessments pursuant to Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes ('Assessments"), as set 
forth in the preliminary assessment roll included within the Proposed Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the District hereby determines that benefits would accrue to the 
properties within the District, as outlined within the Proposed Budget, in an amount 
equal to or ln excess of the Assessments, and that such Assessments would be fairly and 
reasonably allocated as set forth in the Proposed Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has considered the Proposed Budget, including the 
Assessments, and desires to set the required public hearings thereon. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
R1;)LLING HILLS <;OMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

1. PROPOSED BUDGET APPROVED. The Proposed Budget prepared by the District 
Manager for Flsca! Year 2020/2021 attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved as the 
basis for conducting a pub!lc hearing to adopt said Proposed Budget. 

2. DECLARING ASSESSMENTS. Pursuant to Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florido 
Statutes, the Assessments shall defray the cost of the Services In the total estimated 
amounts set forth in the Proposed Budget. The nature of, and plans and specifications 
for, the Services to be funded by the Assessments are described in the Proposed Budget, 
all of which are on file and available for public inspection at the •oistrict's Office;' do 
Governmental Management Services, LLC, 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, 
Florida 32092. The Assessments shall be levied within the District on all benefitted lots 
and lands, and shall be apportioned, all as described in the Proposed Budget and the 
preliminary assessment roll lncluded therein. The preliminary assessment roll is also on file 
and available for public inspection at the District's Office. The Assessments sh al! be paid in 
one more installments pursuant to a bill issued by the District in November of 2020, and 
pursuant to Chapter 170, Florida Statutes, or, alternatively, pursuant to the Uniform Method 
as set forth in Chapter 197, Florida Statutes. 

3, SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING. A public hearing on said approved Proposed 
Budget is hereby declared and set for August 11, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. The hearing may 
be conducted remotely, pursuant to Zoom communications media technology and/or 
by telephone pursuant to Executive Orders 20-52, 20-69 and 20-112 Issued by Governor 
Desantis on March 9, 2020, March 20, 2020 and April 29, 2020, as such orders may be 
extended or supplemented, respectively, and pursuant to Section l 20.54(5)(b)2., Florida 
Statutes. In the event that Executive Orders are not extended and the Board is required 
to meet in person for quorum requirements, and/or if conditions allow the meeting to be 
held in person, it wlll be he!d at the following location: 

LOCATION: Rolling Hills Amenity Center 
3212 Bradley Creek Parkway 

Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 

4. TRANSMITTAL· OF PROPOSED BUDGET TO LOCAL GENERAL PURPOSE 
GOVERNMENT($). The District Manager is hereby directed to submit a copy of the 
Proposed Budget to the Clay County, Florida at !east 60 days prior to the hearing set above. 

5, POSTING OF PROPOSED BUDGET. In accordance with Section 189.016, Florida 
Statutes, the District's Secretary is further directed to post the approved Proposed Budget 
on the District's website at least two days before the budget hearing date as set forth in 
Section 2, and shall remain on the website for at least 45 days. 

ATTEST: ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Secretary 

ROLUNG HILLS 
SUBDIVISION ·.~ 

}t----l-◊-C-At~,-o,~,,,-,--,,ow lllS 

Vice/Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

Ifl HADDEN & LAND ENGINEERING, INC. 
,.. ...... ,..., .. ,,, ... _.,.~·-·---·"" 

Ill! >.,/."W[l ~\[ • l(i;!( 101 
m,v.i:,~n1io,1 

Po1'1"t~ (~JI) 101-tlll • ,.,. (>~•) 1•1-J;1J 

Legal 46317 published July 9 and July 16, 2020 in Clay County's Clay Today newspaper. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Rolling Hills Community 

Development District was held Thursday, May 14, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. via Zoom. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 Bill Tew Chairman 
 Rose Bock Vice Chairperson 
 Kurt von der Osten Supervisor 
 David Church Supervisor 
 Shannon Jordan Supervisor 
 
 Also present were: 
 
 Jim Oliver District Manager 
 Katie Buchanan District Counsel 
 Freddie Oca Riverside Management 
 Chris Hall Riverside Management 
 
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Oliver called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and called the roll. 

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments  

 A resident asked about COVID related closing of facilities, maintenance concerns, and 

timely updates to the marquee sign. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Organizational Matters 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the February 11, 
2020 Meeting 

 Ms. Jordan stated I have one revision, but I can’t find it right now. 

 Mr. Oliver stated we will make that revision when Shannon sends it to us. 

 



May 14, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

2 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Church with all in 
favor the minutes of the February 11, 2020 meeting were approved 
as amended. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion Regarding the Reopening of 
Amenity Facilities 

 Mr. Oliver stated we will discuss the plan for reopening portions of the amenities in 

accordance with the Phase 1 of Governor DeSantis’ plan to reopen.  We expect other phases to 

drop soon and we will make sure we have the proper authority so that we don’t have to wait for a 

meeting to make those changes to the plan.  The plan is going to cover each of the facilities that 

are allowed to be reopened; some will not be allowed to be reopened, particularly the gym.  We 

have been working on the plan with counsel as well as the amenity manager.  The plan that has 

been developed is very much like most of the plans for CDDs in the area in that it takes into account 

the legal liability as well as the safety of residents and meeting the guidelines, both federal and 

state.  It is important to note that some districts have decided not to reopen and are waiting until 

later in the summer.  I think you will find that most districts in Clay County, Duval County and St. 

Johns County are trying to re-open this month, if they haven’t already done so.  I had a few 

meetings last week including one at Eagle Landing. They opened their facility once the board 

approved the plan.  The attorney will walk through the plan and pending any revisions that we 

make during this meeting we can approve the plan and announce the opening of facilities. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated I will start with what our legal responsibility is.  Initially the governor 

issued the executive order, which was a stay at home order and while it authorized swimming as 

an essential activity it didn’t necessarily authorize the operation of an amenity center as an essential 

function.  We were caught in a situation like everyone else across the state where the district took 

the conservative approach, just like Clay County did and just like all the CDDs did in the area and 

closed its facilities temporarily.  Since then the governor has updated his executive order and 

determined that local jurisdictions could make their own decisions about reopening provided that 

they put policies in place to allow for proper social distancing.  That is subject to the CDC 

guidelines, what we generally understand is that there shouldn’t be groups larger 10 and we should 

make sure that unrelated groups have the ability to stay 6 feet apart.  With that general guideline, 

Jim, Freddie and I worked together to come up with this policy that has generally been approved 

by your insurer as well so that it is an approach in the middle of the pack, you are not going to be 

ahead of the curve, meaning that you are the only person doing something and your insurer is 



May 14, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

3 

going to feel comfortable that the actions you have taken are reasonable, responsible and we 

wouldn’t anticipate there being any problems with coverage.  While I think it is pretty improbable 

that someone gets Covid at the amenity center and I think it is more improbable that he could prove 

it because people have to go to the grocery store together and you are going everywhere; there is 

community spread.  The district would probably like to avoid the extra time and expense associated 

with lawsuits relating to Covid and the best way to do that is to put in place a policy your insurer 

feels comfortable with.   

 The policy is in draft form and we can talk through it section by section.  The first part 

reiterates social distancing guidelines for Phase 1 and Phase 2 and ensures that we have proper 

signage throughout the facility.   

 The second part does indicate that the facilities are going to be deep cleaned, that 

employees will be masked and that if there is a reported case of Covid we would either shut down 

the facility to do a deep clean or work with the board for any extended closure and general 

sanitation.  Those are our two options to make sure there is no additional spread once there has 

been a Covid case.  We would communicate with the residents to ensure that they understand the 

protocols the district is putting in place and make sure they feel comfortable notifying CDD 

management if they in fact tested positive and had been to the facility and potentially exposed the 

district to Covid.  The one thing to keep in the back of our minds as we discuss this plan is how 

many changes we propose are going to impact costs to the budget maybe increases in janitorial 

supplies, staffing hours and potential decreases to revenues.  We aren’t able to rent the facility as 

frequently as we have been.   

 Are there any questions on the first page?  

 Ms. Jordan asked is it not possible to have them sign a waiver that they do not hold us 

liable for any potential illnesses they catch at the pool, which I assume they have already done but 

do it again with the addition of Covid? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated we have a waiver in place.  Our insurer has told us that it is kind of a 

mixed bag in the sense that if you get a waiver, great, but sometimes it is impossible to get a waiver 

from everybody and then we look irresponsible because we are not applying it across the board 

uniformly. 

 Mr. Church asked where you have option A, swim at your own risk, what does that say, 

things done by the residents instead of management? 



May 14, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

4 

 Ms. Buchanan stated that is right.  Frankly, that is the highest risk approach for the CDD 

to take.  These options are generally, the two options that get you open with staying closed being 

the most conservative but that is probably is not what you wanted.  You swim at your own risk; 

we post signage everywhere.   

 Ms. Jordan asked since the pool is already swim at your own risk is it necessary to have 

additional signage for Covid? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated yes, it is necessary per your insurer.  It wouldn’t have to be permanent 

signage. 

 Ms. Jordan asked can we make the signage generic that should another pandemic occur we 

could utilize the sign? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated I’m envisioning laminated sheets of paper not a wooden sign. 

 On the pool specifically, staff is going to be working to take out some of the pool furniture 

to make it less about sitting and more about swimming.  They are also trying to give more room 

to people walking around and not bumping into each other.  Any sort of touch points they are 

trying to work to minimize contact, the closure of the slide and splash park area.  Because there 

are going to be limitations potentially on the number of folks that are able to use the pool at the 

same time, we think it is appropriate to not allow guests from outside the community right now 

and we are looking at an option to set up different swim periods so that more people can come 

throughout the day and not everyone would try to hit it at the same time.  You give more people a 

chance to use it but you have some scheduling involved so that everybody can come in and take 

their turn.   

 Mr. Church stated it looks like that since there are no lifeguards right now won’t that money 

come back and we can use it for the extra cleaning staff? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated that is something that Jim, Freddie and I have discussed; because you 

are saving money by not having lifeguards for the slide that money could potentially be redirected 

to help staff. 

 Ms. Jordan stated because we won’t need a large staff we should have excess in the budget 

to put it in a reserve and possibly use it later for parks or something of that nature. 

 Mr. Church stated Freddie is already on staff.  Are we planning to bring somebody else in? 

 Ms. Jordan stated we have no choice.  We have to at least employ one additional person 

because Freddie can’t work seven days a week. 



May 14, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

5 

 Ms. Buchanan stated we have talked about Option A a little bit and I told you it is the most 

risk.  Do you want to talk about Option B, that is a starting point for discussion and you can look 

at it and decide how you want to modify it to make it work for you?  Now it is proposed to be two 

sessions, 9:30 to 12:30 an hour for staff to wipe down everything between the two sessions and 

then clean up at the end of the day.  If that is not enough you could potentially look to redirect your 

funds for additional staffing to add a third person. 

 Ms. Jordon stated the only thing I recommend is that we remove all furnishings and allow 

them to bring their own chairs, their own towels, whatever it is they want.  The illness can last on 

those things 3 – 7 days and while the risk is minimal removing all the furnishings makes sense.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated there are other CDDs taking the same approach.  Do we have 

questions or comments about the pool?  I put these boxes in here so we could keep up with the 

conversation as we move along and make sure everybody is on the same page.   

 Ms. Jordan stated we want the reopening of the pool given that all those things need to be 

discussed and given to us so we can make an educated decision.   

 Mr. Church asked is it possible to do a mix of the two?  Go with Option A but after 4:30 

make it swim at your own risk?  Is that something you can do? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated it was discussed but my question is, if there is an hour where 

supervision might be most important isn’t it probably the evening hours?   

 Ms. Jordan stated probably.  Maybe we look at budget and talk about having a third person 

to monitor those evening hours so we are in compliance with what the state is recommending, in 

compliance with what our insurer wants and still able to provide our residents what they would 

like, which is access to the amenities.  Some residents are still working and weekends are available 

to them but having an evening shift a couple days a week if we can’t fund the full five days a week 

would give them the ability to use the amenities.   

 Mr. Church stated also we are going with no guests allowed.  We are going to need 

someone there to monitor that.  Somebody has to check IDs and all that.   

 Ms. Jordan stated if we have a waiver, they could sign that as they are coming into the 

pool.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated another option for the waiver we have seen done in other places, 

signup genius and Freddie’s staff can put together the schedule for signup genius to have you sign 

up online and there is the option you click on the waiver and click “accept”.   



May 14, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

6 

 Ms. Jordan stated I think that would also be great.  We have a large number of residents 

who want their kids to get out.  Being able to sign up for slotted times is beneficial so they don’t 

show up and find that we are at capacity.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated we want to make sure that everyone has as much of a chance as 

possible to swim.  That is the thought with sessions and signups and we wouldn’t want a family to 

take someone else’s time unfairly. 

 What I’m hearing is you like Option B, you would like staff to investigate adding a third 

window for the evening assuming we can find staff and that we have sufficient budget.   

 Ms. Jordan stated yes and removing all the furniture. 

 Ms. Buchanan asked Freddie, does that sound doable to you? 

 Mr. Oca responded it does.  We do have limited staff, we just hired another one but is a 

minor, still in school and will work weekends. 

 Ms. Jordan asked what are we looking at to accommodate two or three nights, getting 

someone on part time, maybe not still in school? 

 Mr. Oca stated the key person we have hired right now, all the other lifeguards are 

underage.   

 Ms. Jordan asked do we need a lifeguard or just a floor monitor? 

 Mr. Oca responded we would like to get lifeguards because eventually we will be pushing 

that way so I don’t want to waste the opportunity to have a lifeguard already there.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated my thought is in addition to going through the plan we are going to 

have to delegate authority to one board member to arbitrate and finalize these decisions.   

 Mr. Church stated I’m leaning more towards swim at your own risk but close for an hour 

to clean.  Some people like to swim earlier than 9:30 in the morning.  That is my thought if we 

could merge those two together, swim at your own risk but we are closed for an hour around lunch 

time.  There won’t be much cleaning if there is no furniture the only things they would be cleaning 

is the gate where everybody touches the gate in and out and bathrooms.   

 Ms. Jordon stated my only concern with that is that then we are acknowledging that we 

have some sort of responsibility to maintain cleanliness if we close for an hour.  I think it does 

have to be one or the other in my opinion.  It is going to be viewed as we have a responsibility to 

maintain cleanliness if there is an hour we are shutting down to do that but then we are saying do 



May 14, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

7 

whatever you want.  What happens if we hit 70 people, which is over the 60 maximum?  Who is 

going to do that?   

 Mr. Church stated I get that part but it is swim at your own risk with reservations.  Still 

have that hour where they can clean the bathrooms.  Usually Freddie is on top of it anyway. Do 

reservations but swim at your own risk just so we don’t go over that allotted amount of people that 

can be there. 

 Ms. Jordan stated I think it is swim at your own risk even if we have someone there.  Maybe 

we can look at extending the hours. 

 Mr. Church stated I know people like to swim before 9:30 and I like to swim later in the 

evening.   

 Ms. Buchanan asked are we ready to go on to tennis courts?  This is something we think 

you can probably open with limited capacity, just by rule and if Freddie sees that someone is 

violating it then he can have a talk with them and if they don’t agree to change their ways he can 

ask them leave for the day.  It is mostly signage here and adopting a policy. 

 Ms. Jordan stated I don’t think anybody uses the tennis courts and if they do it is not a lot; 

open the tennis courts. 

 Mr. Church stated I’m fine with that. 

 Mr. Oca stated we are having a tennis program start up and that is another thing to keep in 

mind. 

 Mr. Oliver stated we are not going to start it yet due to COVID considerations.. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated similarly the volleyball along the same lines as the tennis court, same 

situation. 

 Ms. Jordan stated I would defer to Freddie.  Do they exceed what is allowable at this time? 

 Mr. Oca stated there is one group that we may have to talk to, it is the Middleburg Travel 

Team and sometimes they will have more.  We will have a chat with them about the number of 

kids.  I think 4 to 8 people is fine, but I want to stay under that 10. 

 Ms. Jordan stated as far as I know there are no sports that are open, so they are probably 

not practicing yet. 

 Mr. Buchanan stated we will move forward with opening that up and Freddie will keep an 

eye on it.   



May 14, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

8 

 Rentals, we recommend to stay closed for the time being.  Lifestyle programming I think 

Freddie is working on resuming it but for now with the limitation of 10 it is hard to implement.   

 The following list is what Freddie recommends to stay closed: splash pad, playground, 

amenity center and fitness area.  The governor had a press conference today that indicated he was 

going to make an announcement about reopening gyms.  I don’t know the details of that yet, but I 

expect that there will be a change coming soon.  The 10,000 foot level suggestions are to make 

cleaning supplies available, have staff available to wipe it down, request that residents use every 

other machine so no one is standing too close and look at the space of your fitness center and make 

a determination as to how many people can fit in there.   

 Ms. Jordan stated maybe 2 at any given time. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated potentially using the signup system there so someone doesn’t come 

to the gym ready to work out and wait in line.   

 Mr. Church asked why is the splash pad closed?  I don’t see the point of closing that.   

 Mr. Oca stated the square footage is not going to allow many people to be over there with 

the 6-foot distancing.  The splash pad is only 20 yards wide.  The playground is right next to that 

as well so that is my concern with the playground; I don’t know how we are going to be able to 

keep that clean all the time.  That is a big area to sanitize. 

 Ms. Jordan stated as to the volleyball court if we are unable to bring guests into the pool 

area, we would extend that to any of our amenities so our residents have access. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated it makes sense. 

 Mr. Oca stated the kids going to the splash pad are 2 – 4 and they don’t understand about 

distancing themselves from other each other.  

 Ms. Jordan stated I have looked at every community around us and they are opening and 

they have the budget to be able to pay people to come out and clean.  We have a little bit of excess 

and if we are required to clean, we can do that but that money is not going to last forever.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated I think we have talked about everything.  Is there disagreement on 

leaving the areas identified closed, understanding that the fitness center may open up pursuant to 

the executive order that gets revised in the next day or so.   

 Mr. Oca stated the only thing that concerns me is if they have access to the gym they have 

another point of entry to the pool.   



May 14, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

9 

 Ms. Buchanan stated we can put signage on the door and someone may sneak through it 

and you may catch them with signage that says, if you are going to the pool go back out and check 

in with the monitor.   

 I think the discussion has been pretty clear and once the board is done, we can open it to 

public comment.   

 Ms. Jordan asked Bill and Rose how they doing it in the communities where you live. 

 Ms. Bock stated I live in a community with a CDD and we are not open yet and we have a 

meeting next week and I’m sure this same discussion will happen there.  I don’t know if they will 

take it upon themselves to go ahead and open the gym if the governor okays that.  I don’t know 

how they will do it without board approval next week. 

 Mr. Tew stated I do not live in an amenitized community, I live in an older community and 

I appreciate David’s and Shannon’s input it is all very good input.  The draft we have in front of 

us is a good thing to work off of.  I hesitate to let us get involved in making reservations and things 

like that.  I lean towards first come first served and that may not be manageable either.  If someone 

makes a reservation for 5 and they choose to stay home then that is a spot people can’t get in.  I 

appreciate everybody’s sensitivity to the budget.  We are getting the pool open, which I think is a 

great effort on the part of the CDD and our supervisors and management crew and attorney.  Let’s 

just not over stipulate too much.  On the gym, can we block the steps to downstairs?  Would it help 

to block the stairs? 

 Mr. Oca stated we can definitely do something.   

 Mr. von der Osten stated I know our gym is not open, but they did open the swimming pool 

where I live and I see the volleyball court being used.   

 Ms. Jordan stated I would say go forward with opening the pool and we can vote on opening 

the gym as soon as the governor allows it.  The maintenance cost of cleaning should not increase.  

If they clean the pool area they can run upstairs and clean the gym area at the same time. 

 Mr. von der Osten stated I think the reservation system would be a lot for Freddie or 

anybody to handle and it might detract from the cleaning or monitoring what is going on; you 

would need a reservation manager to track it.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated the counter to that and the reason we are suggesting it is if we don’t 

have windows that Freddie is going to have to look at the log and track people and say, you have 

been here two to three hours it is time to leave.  That is an uncomfortable situation for Freddie to 



May 14, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

10 

be in and it is more cumbersome to go with a resident by resident basis and a log than, we have 

window A it is time for window A to go.  You have window B it is time for window B to go.  The 

way it works online, Freddie won’t have to do much other than set it up initially it is on autopilot.  

I think we can easily add to the policy that if you show up at a quarter after and there is a spot 

available because someone chose not to use their reservation then Freddie can let them in if there 

is capacity.   

 Mr. Church asked what is our max number if we are doing 25%? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated 60 is your max number. 

 Mr. Church stated I want people to be able to swim and not make it difficult on everyone.   

 Ms. Jordon stated we don’t want to make it difficult on the residents but let’s not kill our 

budget in the process. 

 Ms. Buchanan asked what do you want to do?  Talk about it more, open it up to resident 

comment, vote on it? 

 The meeting was open for resident comment. 

 A resident stated this place is clean and I’m not worried about someone touching the gate 

at the pool or a chair.  It seemed to be so quick to close and extremely complicated to open.  Just 

open the pool with 60 people is fine.  I have never seen 60 people there ever.  I don’t know what 

the hours serve.  At our own risk is probably the best.  When I come home at 5 or 6 I want to walk 

up and take a dip to cool off.  That 4:30 doesn’t work for me at all. 

 A resident stated I agree with what he said.  It all falls back on self-sanitation we are all 

carrying hand sanitizer.  I can get this disease off an Ace Hardware shelf or Walmart shelf that I 

can get grabbing the gate at the amenity center or the door.  It has been proven that chlorine kills 

these things.  I think this has gone way too far and I have never seen more than 60 people there 

myself.  As a resident I would like to vote, if I have a vote to say it needs to be opened.  Swim at 

your own risk, I’m sure if we had to sign a waiver to get in we will sign the waiver to get in.  I like 

to swim laps and it is something we can’t do. 

 A resident stated having the hand sanitizer, the same as the wipes at the gym where you 

have to wipe down furniture so you can still have the furniture in there, making those available in 

different locations would be helpful so we can wipe stuff down if we want to.  Having the furniture 

there is important to us and we could avoid the hassle of carrying our own chairs.  There are never 

more than 60 people at one time at the pool.  If we happen to drive by and it is not busy we may 



May 14, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

11 

want to go in but if it is slammed we would go back home.  As to the reservation part there are too 

many rainy afternoons. 

 The board is ready to vote but you are not ready to open because the whole time it was 

closed you haven’t done CDC protocols., which should have been done all along.  Is the pump 

working?  I agree with everything except first come first served because Freddie will be 

overwhelmed if 60 people show up at one time.  The pool area should have been sanitized by now. 

 Mr. Hall stated the pool is sanitized, he has repainted everything and it looks great. 

 Mr. Oca stated we have sanitized and will be ready to open as soon as we remove the 

furniture. 

 Mr. Miller stated I work in the hospital and we are preparing to open the hospital to all 

visitors very shortly.  The hospital is sanitized on a daily basis, we are wearing face masks because 

we are in an interior and when we work on the exterior the face masks are off.  This pool belongs 

to the community, to the citizens, if you are removing the furniture that is one of your main areas 

where you can have trouble getting sanitized.  Fantastic, open the pool. 

 A resident stated if Freddie needs help at night, I would be willing to come up here and 

help him so people can swim. 

 A resident stated you are making all these rules and have people enforcing them.  What are 

the consequences going to be if someone is not following the rules? 

 Mr. Oliver stated it will be the same amenity policies that are in effect right now.  If 

someone breaks the rules, they are subject to having their access suspended by the district manager, 

for a period to be determined by the Board of Supervisors.  But, hopefully, it doesn’t get to that.  

Most people want to comply with policies, but if someone egregiously violates the rules, they will 

lose their privileges. 

  Ms. Buchanan stated the first action item, open the pool, that was a yes.  Then under 

what conditions, because I don’t think you are picking either one.   

 Ms. Jordan stated remove the furniture. 

 Mr. Church stated open the pool let them swim at your own risk and remove the furniture. 

 Mr. von der Osten asked what will the hours be? 

 Ms. Jordan stated sun-up to sundown. 

 Mr. von der Osten stated our pool opened this weekend and it is from 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 

p.m., social distancing rules, the furniture is out there and the facilities are cleaned at night. 



May 14, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

12 

 Ms. Jordan stated we would ask that the residents don’t bring guests.  I’m not sure if we 

need someone to monitor that.  We are asking to be courteous to your fellow residents who are 

also paying CDD fees to make sure there is capacity for them to come to the pool.   

 Mr. von der Osten stated I agree with Shannon and Dave. 

 Ms. Bock stated I agree also. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated for tennis, volleyball I think everyone agreed on those things as well.  

The last item is to delegate authority to a certain board member to work with staff to reopen the 

fitness center when it is legal. 

 Ms. Jordan stated I will do that. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated we will delegate the authority to Shannon to reopen the fitness center 

and if Freddie needs to make any modifications to what is happening he will work with Shannon 

to put those modifications in place. 

 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Church with all in 
favor the pool will be reopened staff will remove the furniture and 
Supervisor Jordan was authorized to work with staff to reopen the 
gym when it is legal to do so and to work with staff on any 
modifications to the plan that is needed. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2020-02 
Resetting a Public Hearing Date to Adopt the 
Revised Rules of Procedure 

 Mr. Oliver stated the public hearing was to be held before we had to cancel the last meeting 

and we would like to reset that public hearing to be held August 11, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. at the 

amenity center. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Church with all in 
favor Resolution 2020-02 resetting the public hearing date to August 
11, 2020 was approved. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of The Lake Doctors Proposal 



May 14, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

13 

 Mr. Oliver stated the next item is a Lake Doctors proposal.  They had an increase in all of 

their districts of $20 per month and will bring the monthly fee from $400 to $420 and we will 

budget for it accordingly. 

 Ms. Jordan asked I like the Lake Doctors, but do we not get bids on all of our contracts?  I 

work from home and haven’t seen them in a while. 

 Mr. Oliver stated typically contracts are let and that vendor may be on for a few years, but 

if their performance is not satisfactory that is typically when you go out for bids.  It is good to have 

cost comparisons anyway and we will prepare an updated scope to solicit proposals.  

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2020-03 
Approving the Proposed Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2021 and Setting a Public Hearing Date 
to Adopt 

 Mr. Oliver stated we are required by Chapter 190 to approve a proposed budget and provide 

it to the local government by June 15th of each year.  Once we approve it we will put it in final 

form and send it to Clay County.  We have a budget hearing to adopt the budget and the budget 

hearing cannot be any sooner than 60 days after approval and in this case we would have budget 

adoption at our August 11th meeting, we have approximately 3 months to refine this budget.    

 Ms. Jordan asked are there any contracts in the budget that we could get additional bids 

for? 

 Mr. Oliver stated you can do it for landscaping if you want to.  I think you have had that 

vendor for a little bit over a year. 

 Ms. Jordan stated I would like to open it up for landscaping.  I’m not happy that they give 

us a bid for something and then have $30,000 of amendments to that contract.   

 Mr. Church stated I think they are doing a wonderful job, but we should definitely get some 

bids.  I notice on our budget that we were paying for treatment for Orange Environment but that 

was already in the budget for them to spray through our current landscaper.   

 Mr. Oca stated they spray the inside of the building and the outside of the building, that is 

pest control. 

 Mr. Oliver stated we can pursue the proposal process and the board can rank them based 

on best value.  You want a good price, but you want to make sure you are happy with the 

appearance. 



May 14, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

14 

 What you have before you is the budget, this is just a start and we will refine the budget.  

There is no increase in assessments, because of the fact that we are in a recessions, unemployment 

is high and it is probably not a good idea to raise assessments and I will also point out that after 

the election cycle, which we will talk about later in this meeting, you will have four residents on 

the board for the next budget cycle and then it will be in your hands to decide what assessment 

should be moving forward in terms of if you want additional money for parks and other 

improvements.   

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Ms. Jordan with all in favor 
Resolution 2020-03 approving the proposed budget and setting the 
public hearing for August 11, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. was approved. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2020-04 
Adopting an Internal Controls Policy 

 Ms. Buchanan stated this is a resolution that adopts accounting controls, financial controls.  

GMS has been complying with these in principal for years but recently Florida Law changed to 

require the district to adopt a formal policy.  We are just formalizing what we have already been 

doing. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Church with all in 
favor Resolution 2020-04 was approved. 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

 A. Attorney 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

 B. Engineer 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

 C. Manager – Report on the Number of Registered Voters (686) 



May 14, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

15 

 Mr. Oliver stated the letter from the supervisor of elections indicating there are 686 

registered voters residing within the district was included in the agenda package.  We are required 

by Florida Statutes to put that on the record each year. 

 The other matter is the election of two new supervisors to the board as we go through the 

election cycle.  Bill and Kurt hold seats one and three and their terms will be ending in November.  

It will be time for two more residents to join the board. Potential candidates who are residents of 

Rolling Hills who are registered voters must qualify with the Supervisor of Elections.  Once you 

qualify with the Supervisor of Elections, you are eligible to run for one of the two vacant seats. If 

only one person qualifies for a given seat, that person will not be on the ballot and will assume 

office after the general election.  If two or more people qualify for a given seat, they will be on the 

November general election ballot, with other state, local and federal candidates, including the 

presidential race. The qualifying period is June 8th through June 12th. I suggest anyone interested 

in running for this Board contact the Supervisor of Elections. We will post qualifying information 

on the CDD website and send an eblast with that information.  For more information, visit 

clayelections.gov or contact the Supervisor of Elections Office at  269-6350. You will find them 

to be very helpful as they walk you through the process to qualify for office.   

 

 D. Operations/Amenity Manger 

 1. Report 

 A copy of the monthly operations report was included in the agenda package. 

 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors Requests 

 Mr. Church asked who do we contact about the traffic on the dirt road in the back of Hidden 

Meadows?  There are people out there at 3 and 4 in the morning with loud radios.   

 Who is responsible for all the construction?  There are major cracks in houses back here 

and dirt, they are not watering down.  I know they are supposed to water down everyday, but there 

is an inch of dirt on people’s cars.   

 Mr. Oliver stated the best thing you can do is inform the county commissioner for this 

particular district and that may be the only success we will have since it is an FDOT project.   



May 14, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

16 

 Mr. Tew stated find the website for the First Coast Expressway, there will be an advocate 

on there and I got something from them recently and I will send it to Jim to send out.  They need 

to go to the DOT. 

 Mr. Church stated the park that is on Paddle Creek I know we did a concrete slab and put 

one table in there.  Can we find money in the budget to dress it up?  A couple months ago we 

approved $5,000 budget, can we get some trees and make it look a little more pleasing?  I know 

you are working within the budget but maybe we can have some trees or drought resistant plants 

or something. 

 Ms. Jordan stated also some sort of cover. 

 Ms. Church stated that is what I envisioned originally, was a cover over a picnic table so 

they could be out of the rain.   

 Ms. Bock asked is that the park we put the sign on? 

 Ms. Jordan stated we put signs on all of our designated park areas.  This is the first one we 

approved to have any type of improvements.  We probably have two or three residents who would 

do it at cost of materials to build a shade structure.  As to trees, maybe the neighbors will help out 

with that too.  There must be cost effective ways to accomplish these things so it is not just a slab 

with a picnic table. 

 Mr. Oliver stated David and Chris if you can get together and develop some options and 

put a price on it then the three of us can circle up and take a look at what we have compared to 

what funding is available. 

 Ms. Jordan stated something to be considered for the budget, but whenever there is 

downtime and kids are home or adults are home a lot of us that reside on those ponds are having 

people in our backyards.  One of the residents suggested that the pond nearest the amenity center 

have some sort of dock for fishing to give them an area to go and fish where they are not behind 

someone’s backyard.   

 Mr. Church stated some of the houses around the ponds are looking shabby and I don’t 

know if everyone is aware that it is the homeowner’s responsibility to cut down to the pond.  I 

wanted to make sure that Kurt was aware of that. 

 Mr. von der Osten stated I will make sure that she does a property inspection.   

 Mr. Church stated I know they wanted to have an HOA meeting.  Does that have to be in 

writing and sent to you? 



May 14, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

17 

 Mr. von der Osten stated it wouldn’t hurt.  I can pass it along to the developer and it would 

be up to him to call a meeting. 

 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 Ms. Anschuetz stated Shannon talked about the fishing and ponds on Paddle Creek.  My 

husband pretty much maintains that property and maintains around the lake because we had so 

many people coming into our property and trying to fish in the lake.  Right next to the tennis courts 

that hasn’t been bush hogged or anything of that nature.  If we can get that cut then we can probably 

keep that maintained a little better so people can fish and not come onto private properties. 

 Mr. Church stated that is in Yellowstone’s contract to take care of that quarterly.  That is 

something Chris would have to get on with them. 

 Mr. Hall stated I will do that. 

 A resident stated the splash pool pump runs 24/7.  Is that something that could be put on a 

timer?  It was brought up earlier about a travel team using the volleyball court for practice.  Is that 

something the community is benefitting from?  Do we lease that to them?  Do they pay a rental to 

practice?  The residents who live on a pond, my property goes down to the pond and I have to wear 

waterproof boots to cut down to the pond.  I get it cut but I completely tear up the lawn because it 

is so wet.  I sink to my ankles in mud and I do it with a weed whacker.  I don’t know if something 

is leaking and I have shut off my sprinklers to try to mitigate some of the moisture.  It is wet 24/7 

365 down there. 

 Mr. Hall stated we just installed a new system for that splash pad and Black Creek came in 

and fixed the first part and they are supposed to come back and install a timer for the splash pad.   

 A resident stated if you hear four wheelers on the dirt road call the sheriff’s office, that is 

the only way to stop it. 

 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Reports 

 A. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 

 A copy of the balance sheet and income statement were included in the agenda package. 

 

 B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 

 A copy of the assessment receipt schedule was included in the agenda package. 



May 14, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

18 

 

 C. Check Register 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Church seconded by Ms. Jordan with all in 
favor the check registers were approved. 

 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Meeting Scheduled for August 11, 2020 
@ 6:00 p.m. at Rolling Hills Amenity Center, 
3212 Bradley Creek Parkway, Green Cove 
Springs, Florida 32043 

 Mr. Oliver stated the next meeting is August 11, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Jordan seconded by Mr. Church with all in 
favor the meeting adjourned at 7:34 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 
 



ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 A special meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Rolling Hills Community 

Development District was held Thursday, July 23, 2020 at 11:00 a.m. via Zoom. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 Bill Tew Chairman 
 Rose Bock Vice Chairperson 
 David Church Supervisor 
 Shannon Jordan Supervisor 
 Kurt von der Osten Supervisor 
 
 Also present were: 
 
 Jim Oliver District Manager 
 Michelle Rigoni District Counsel 
 Keith Hadden District Engineer 
 Freddie Oca Riverside Management 
 Bill Huck Common Bond Capital Partners  
 Ernesto Torres Governmental Management Services 
 
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Oliver called the meeting to order at 11:00 a.m. and called the roll and stated today we 

are going to talk about the next phase, Phase A and Keith will talk about this in more detail later.  

We are just starting the process to issue a construction contract and that starts with the ranking of 

the proposals that we received via a request for proposals process.  We advertised a request for 

proposals and provided a very detailed scope, which included the project specifications.  Deadline 

for submittal was 2:00 p.m. this past Monday.  Our District Engineer Keith Hadden conducted a 

public bid opening at the amenity center. We had two proposers present for the bid opening. No 

contractors arrived late to the meeting or submitted proposals after the fact.  Over the last three 

days, Keith has worked with the development team to review and rank those proposals for the 

Board’s consideration.  He will review the proposals with the Board today. At the end of his 

discussion and following any questions you may have regarding that process, the board will rank 

those proposals. The Board can certainly accept Keith’s ranking that he will present shortly. The 

attorney will assist with the preparation of letters of notice of intent to award to send to both 



July 23, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

2 

bidders, advise the Board  regarding the protest period, and begin contract preparation. Contract 

details need to be worked out and staff will work on that with the chairman and the development 

team.  We are not handling any financing matters today, that can be done at future meetings. This 

is just the first step in the process right now.   

 We can take audience comments later in the meeting because as we discuss this project in 

more detail that may answer some of the questions. 

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposals for Construction 
Services for Infrastructure Improvements 

 Mr. Oliver stated next is consideration of proposals for construction services for 

infrastructure improvements.  Keith will give a quick review of the proposal process and what he 

has done since the proposals were received.  I will put a copy of Keith’s score sheet on the screen 

so everyone can see that. 

 Mr. Hadden stated we received bids at 2:00 p.m. on Monday, we had two bids, one from 

Vallencourt Construction and one from Baker Contractors.  We advertised and had six companies 

that requested plans and specifications, but only these two actually gave us bids.  I have worked 

with both companies in the last three years and know the quality of both.  I went through each line 

item, we had it broken down to clearing and earthwork and paving and water, sewer, lift station, 

that kind of thing and my scoring sheet is on the screen now.   

 The first criteria is personnel and I ranked Vallencourt higher than Baker and that was 

based more on my personal experience the last three years in working with both of them.  

Vallencourt is headquartered in Green Cove and they do a lot of their work here in St. Johns 

County.  Baker is headquartered in Savannah, but they do have an office here in Jacksonville in 

St. Johns County.  Vallencourt has more bodies in the vicinity they can put onsite if need be.  

Experience, Vallencourt has been in business longer.  Understanding the scope, I felt that the 

presentation they put together, the detail they gave me they spent more time looking at the ways 

we could possibly save money and whatever.  Schedule, Vallencourt had 227 days, Baker had 262 

days and that is over a month quicker.  Price, Vallencourt broke out some alternate things that we 

may not need even if you include all their alternates they are still the lowest of the two bids, 

therefore, I ranked them higher.  The total was 100 points for Vallencourt and 85 points for Baker 

and I ranked Vallencourt no. 1. 



July 23, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

3 

 Ms. Rigoni asked in your review, were both of the bids received responsive and responsible 

to this request for proposals? 

 Mr. Hadden responded yes. 

 Mr. Oliver stated at this point the board can discuss the proposals or they can accept Keith’s 

recommended scoring.  You can see there is a pretty wide spread in scoring. Even if some of the 

scoring were to fluctuate some among the individual areas, the 15 points difference would be pretty 

tough to overcome, especially when you look at the price and schedule, which account for 65 of 

the 100 points.  If there is no discussion, any board member could make a motion accepting the 

engineer’s ranking with Vallencourt no. 1 and Baker no. 2 and authorize staff to work with the 

chairman and developer, and for staff to issue the notice of intent to award letter, and begin the 

contracting process with the chairman authorized to execute the contract when it is ready. 

 

Mr. Tew moved to accept the engineer’s ranking of Vallencourt no. 
1 and Baker no. 2 and to authorize staff to work with the chair and 
developer to issue the notice of intent to award and begin the 
contracting process and to authorize the chairman to execute the final 
contract and Ms. Bock seconded the motion. 

 

 Mr. Church stated the only thing I noticed on Baker’s is they outlined the curbing, what it 

was made out of.  They said it was asphalt curbing.  Vallencourt did not say what their curbing 

would be.  I know the rest of the development is concrete curbing. 

 Mr. Hadden stated it will all be concrete.  I didn’t pick up on Baker saying asphalt curbing, 

but it will not be asphalt.  Clay County requires all curbing be concrete.   

 

On voice vote with all in favor the motion passed. 
 

 Mr. Oliver stated Keith, for the benefit of everyone here, can you give a brief overview of 

this project? 

 Mr. Hadden stated this is what we call the Christmas Tree parcel or the Ribcage parcel, it 

is 139 lots, directly off of the main road through Rolling Hills.  As you drive past the amenity 

center, the first large pond on your left has trees along it, the second large pond does not have trees 

and there is a little stub where a lot of people have been dumping concrete and whatever and that 

is the entrance road you see on the map.  That is a spine road that consists of 6 cul-de-sacs.  We 



July 23, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

4 

have water that loops under the main road and feeds all 6 cul-de-sacs.  The sewer goes down, on 

the bottom right cul-de-sac it says easement across there and that is where we cross the wetland 

with gravity sewer and it will go over to a lift station, which is in the area further to the south.  The 

lift station is sized to not only serve these 139 lots but the future lots as well.   

 Ms. Jordan asked are there any parks in that area? 

 Mr. Hadden stated between the bottom of the spine road and the lake, we have a park right 

there.  

 Ms. Jordan asked is there irrigation for that park? 

 Mr. Hadden stated we have reuse water throughout the property.  All these lots will have 

reuse meters and we could very easily irrigate the park if we wanted to. 

 Mr. Church asked is there a secondary amenity center?  I know that was a selling point for 

everyone who has bought into the community.  They said there would be a second amenity center 

eventually or just a pool.  Is there any land allotted for that? 

 Mr. Hadden responded not in this.  It is in the next section.  Richmond America built the 

53 lots two years ago, the southernmost development right now and behind the woods behind them 

is a big field and that is where the next phases will go and that is where we are going to put 

amenities. 

 Ms. Jordan asked how many more phases are left for development?   

 Mr. Hadden responded this one then at least two more after this and it could be three more, 

but at least two after this. 

 Ms. Jordan asked is that built into the bond? 

 Mr. Hadden responded no, the bonds are just for these 139 lots. 

 Ms. Jordan asked is their only access point through the community? 

 Mr. Hadden stated yes, they need to come through by the front amenity center.  They could 

drive down that road that parallels the outer beltway and come in from the backside and go through 

the 53 lots that Richmond American built back there.   

  

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments  

 There not being any, the next item followed. 

 



July 23, 2020 Rolling Hills CDD 

5 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting: August 11, 2020 at 
6:00 p.m. at the Rolling Hills Amenity Center 

 Mr. Oliver stated the next meeting is scheduled for August 11, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. and that 

is a regular CDD meeting and we will also have our budget hearing to determine the FY 21 budget.  

There is no increase in assessments for FY 21 for the third year in a row.   

 Mr. Huck stated my partner Ken Peterson and I are representing the developer.  I wanted 

to thank all the board members and the professional staff for a special meeting early on a Thursday.  

We appreciate the opportunity to participate in it. We know that there are many things going on in 

the community because of the virus and other matters that we are not as accustomed to as you are. 

We  very much appreciate the hard work of everybody dealing with those.   

 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Ms. Jordan with all in favor 
the meeting adjourned at 11:22 a.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



 

 

 
Rolling Hills 

Community Development District 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report 

for Series 2020, Capital Improvement Revenue and 
Refunding Bonds 

 
                                 July 28, 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by 
 

Governmental Management Services, LLC 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

   2 

 
Table of Contents 

 
 

 
1.0 Introduction 

1.1      Executive Summary ......................................................................  3     
 
2.0 The Series 2020 Bonds 

2.1 Development Plan Overview ....................................................... 4                 
2.2      Bond Description………………………………………………………5 
2.3      Collection of Assessments……………………………………………5 
 

3.0 Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology 
3.1 Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology .................. 5  
3.2 Benefit Analysis ............................................................................... 6                             
3.3 Assessment Allocation ................................................................... 6              
 

4.0 Assessment Roll………………...………………………………………………7 
 

5.0 True-Up Mechanism 
5.1 Structure .......................................................................................... 7        
   ...........................................................................................................                              

5.0 Appendix 
 
            Table 1   Development Program    ………………………………………8 
            Table 2   Terms - Bond Series 2020A-1 and 2020A-2…….....................9 
            Table 3   Capital Improvement Plan…………………………………… 10  
            Table 4   Par Debt and Benefit Analysis…………………...…………....11 
            Table 5   Series 2020 Assessments………………………………………...12    

 Table 6   Assessment Roll.....…………………………………………….…13        
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

   3 

 
 
 1.0 Introduction 
      

1.1 Executive Summary 
 
1.1.1 Purpose 
 
This Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report 
for Series 2020 Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding 
Bonds (“Supplemental Report”) is for the allocation and levy 
of debt assessments (“Series 2020 Assessments”) benefitting 
property to secure the repayment of the Series 2020, Capital 
Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds (“Series 2020 
Bonds”).  The Series 2020 Bonds are being issued for the partial 
refunding of the Series 2015A-3, Capital Improvement 
Revenue Refunding Bonds (“Series 2015A-3 Bonds”) and new 
bond proceeds for construction of the Series 2020 Project 
Cost detail in Engineer’s Report prepared by Hadden 
Engineering, Inc. dated July 8, 2020, fund debt service reserve 
fund, cost of issuance including underwriters discount and 
capitalized interest.  
 
1.1.2 The District 

 
The District is a local unit of special-purpose government 
created by Clay County. The District encompasses 
approximately 562.32 acres of land located within Clay 
County, Florida, and was established for the purpose of, 
among other things, financing and managing the acquisition, 
construction, maintenance and operation of major 
infrastructure necessary for development to occur within the 
Rolling Hills development.  
 
 
1.1.3 Original Series 2006, 2009 and 2015 Bonds 
 
The District’s Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) adopted its 
Capital Improvement Plan (the“CIP”), dated August 15, 2006 
as prepared by Hadden Land and Engineering, Inc. The CIP 
describes infrastructure improvements the District intended to 
finance, construct, install and/or acquire. The District’s CIP 
consists of transportation improvements, potable water, 
sewer, and reuse utilities, wetland mitigation and community 



 

   4 

recreation improvements that benefit all lands within the 
District. To fund the CIP, the Board approved the issuance of 
the Series 2006A and 2006B Capital Improvement Revenue 
Bonds (the “Series 2006 Bonds”) and the Final Numbers 
Supplemental Assessment Methodology Report, dated 
December 5, 2006 (the “2006 Assessment Report”) prepared 
by Governmental Management Services, LLC.  
 
On April 23, 2009, the Board of Supervisors approved 
Resolution 2009-04 declaring the Series 2006 Project complete 
due to economic reasons, approved the Second 
Supplemental Methodology Report, and authorized the 
redemption of $11,345,000 of Series 2006A and 2006B Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds.  The Bondholders of the Series 
2006 Bonds agreed to accept redemption of the bonds at a 
discount, which reduced the CIP in estimated costs by 
$3,970,750, and accordingly reduced the related benefit 
received by the property owners of Phase 2B/3.   
 
On December 9, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved 
Resolution 2016-01, Delegated Award Resolution authorizing 
the exchange of the outstanding Series 2006 Bonds for the 
Series 2015A-1, Series 2015A-2, Series 2015B and Series 2015A-
3, Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bonds 
(collectively “Series 2015 Exchanged Bonds”).   
 
 

2.0 The Series 2020 Bonds 
 
2.1 Development Plan - Overview 

 
The total planned development is for 761 single-family lots of 
which 375 have been platted. The 375 units that have been 
platted are in Phases 1, 2A and 2B.  The landowner of the 
unplatted property for Phase  3 within the District has defined 
the land uses for the property based on current market 
conditions. Phase 3 is designated for single-family 
development. Presently there are 386 single-family units 
designated for Phase 3.  
 
 

 
 
 



 

   5 

2.2 Bond Description 
 
The Series 2020 Bonds are generally described as follows: 
 
(a) The Series 2020A-1 Bonds have a principal of $2,480,000 

and are secured by the Series 2020A-1 Assessments levied 
on properties within the Series 2020A Assessment Area 
planned for 139 residential lots within Phase 3 of the 
Development. These Series 2020A-1 Bonds have an 
interest rate of 5.25 % with maturity date of May 1, 2050. 

 
(b) The Series 2020A-2 Bonds have a principal of $2,115,000, 

interest rate of 5.25% with a maturity date of May 1, 2030.  
The Series 2020A-2 Bonds are secured by Series 2020A-2 
Assessments levied on the Series 2020A Assessment Area 
planned for 139 residential lots within Phase 3 of the 
Development. 

 
2.3 Collection of Assessments Securing the Series 2020 Bonds 

 
The Series 2020A-1 Assessments securing the Series 2020A-1 
Bonds shall be collected in annual installments by the District 
in an amount sufficient to fund the respective Series 2020A-1 
Bond annual debt service payments. The prepayment of 
Series 2020A-1 Assessments will be applied to the redemption 
of the Series 2020A-1 Bonds.  
 
The annual interest of the Series 2020A-2 Assessments securing 
the Series 2020A-2 Bonds are expected to be directly 
collected from landowner and the par debt per unit of the 
Series 2020A-2 Assessments paid at the time of a lot sale to a 
builder.  Such pre-payments will be applied to the 
redemption of the Series 2020A-2 Bonds. 

 
3.0 Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology 
 

3.1 Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology 
 

Special Assessments under Florida law, to be valid, must meet 
two requirements. The first requirement is that the properties 
assessed must receive a special benefit from the 
improvements paid for by the assessments. The second 
requirement is that the assessments must be fairly and 
reasonably allocated to the properties being assessed. 



 

   6 

 
Florida law provides for a wide application of special 
assessments that meet these two characteristics of special 
assessments.  
 

3.2 Benefits Analysis 
 

Improvements undertaken by the District create special and 
peculiar benefits to the property, different in kind and degree 
than general benefits, for properties within its borders as well 
as general benefits to the public at large.   
 
As contained in Table 4 of the 2006 Assessment Report a 
determination of benefit was established for single-family units 
of $44,250. Table 4 of this Supplemental Report reflects the 
significant excess benefit received by each lot in the 
development plan.    
 

3.3 Assessment Allocation 
 

The Series 2020A-1 Bonds are being issued to fund a portion of 
the Series 2020 Project Cost, fund Debt Service Reserve Fund 
and Cost of Issuance including underwriters discount.  The 
Series 2020A-1 Assessments will be initially allocated over all 
the developable acreage within the Series 2020A Assessment 
Area on an equal acreage basis.   Upon platting of the 
property within the Series 2020A Assessment Area, the Serie 
2020A-1 Assessments will be assigned to each platted lot 
based upon this Supplemental Report.   
 
The Series 2020A-2 Bonds are being issued to fund a portion of 
the refund a portion of the Series 2015A-3 Bonds, fund a 
portion of the Series 2020 Project Cost, fund Debt Service 
Reserve Fund and Cost of Issuance including underwriters 
discount.  The Series 2020A-2 Assessments will be initially 
allocated over all the developable acreage within the Series 
2020AAssessment Area on an equal acreage basis.   Upon 
platting of the property within the Series 2020A Assessment 
Area, the Serie 2020A-2 Assessments will be assigned to each 
platted lot based upon this Supplemental Report.   
 

 
 
 



 

   7 

                       
4.0 Assessment Roll 

 
The debt associated with the Series 2020 Bonds will be 
distributed as set forth in this Supplemental Methodology.  
Table 6 is a preliminary roll. 
 

5.0 True-Up Mechanism 
 

5.1 Structure 
 

The landowner in the Series 2020 Assessment Area is 
responsible for completing the Development Program as 
anticipated in Table 1.  If the landowner of lands in the Series 
2020 Assessment Area does not plat the total number of 
development units specified in Table 1 within the particular 
Assessment Area, the landowner may be required to make a 
density reduction payment.  The landowner will be required 
to entered into a True-Up Agreement with the District that will 
explain the requirements of the landowner should the actual 
development of the Series 2020 Assessment Area not equal or 
exceed the development plan in table 1 of this Supplemental 
Report.   

 
  



TABLE 1
Rolling Hills  CDD
Development Program 

Land Use : Units

Single Family 53' 111
Single Family 60' 28
 Total    139

                                             Prepared By

                      Governmental Management Services, LLC



 TABLE 2
Rolling Hills  CDD
Capital Improvement Plan 

Estimated 
Improvement Description Cost

Pond $250,000
Roads $750,000
Drainage $1,005,000
Sanitary Sewer $550,000
Lift Station & Force Mains $500,000
Potable Water $300,000
Reuse Water $250,000
Soft Costs $245,000
Contingency $400,000
Total $4,250,000

Provided by: Hadden Engineering, Inc.

                                             Prepared By
                      Governmental Management Services, LLC



TABLE 3
Rolling Hills  CDD
Series 2020A-2 Bonds - Sources and Uses of Funds
Revenue and Refunding Bonds

Series 2020A-1 Series 2020A-2
Bond Sizing Bond Sizing Combined

Sources

Par amount of Bond Issue $2,480,000 $2,115,000 $4,595,000

Total Sources $2,480,000 $2,115,000 $4,595,000

Uses

Construction Funds $2,163,983 $726,020 $2,890,003
Partial Redemption of Series 2015-3 Bonds $0 $1,127,942 $1,127,942
Debt Service Reserve $166,017 $111,038 $277,055
Cost of Issuance $100,000 $100,000 $200,000
Underwriter's Discount $50,000 $50,000 $100,000

Total Uses $2,480,000 $2,115,000 $4,595,000

54% 46% 100%

Principal Amortization Installments  30 10
Average Coupon 5.25% 5.25%
Estimated Par Amount $2,480,000 $2,115,000 
Estimated Maximum Annual Debt Service (net) $166,017 $111,038
Final Maturity Date 5/1/50 5/1/30

Provided by: MBS Capital Markets, LLC

                                             Prepared By

                      Governmental Management Services, LLC



TABLE 4
Rolling Hills  CDD

Par Debt/Beneift Per Unit

 
Proposed  Series    Series 2020A-1 Excess

 Series 2020A-1 Developer 2020A-1 Par Debt Benefit
Land Use : Units  Par Debt Contributions Par Debt Per Unit Per Unit

Single Family 53' 111 17,842$ 1,980,432$         (0)$                   1,980,432$       17,842$                -$            
Single Family 60' 28 17,842$ 499,568$            -$                 499,568$          17,842$                0$               
Total 139 2,480,000$         (0)$                   2,480,000$        

 
Proposed  Series    Series 2020A-2 Excess

 Series 2020A-2 Developer 2020A-2 Par Debt Benefit
Land Use : Units  Par Debt Contributions Par Debt Per Unit Per Unit

 
Single Family 53' 111 26,408$ 2,223,993$         (669,258)$        1,554,735$       14,007$                12,402$      
Single Family 60' 28 26,408$ 561,007$            (742)$               560,265$          20,009$                6,399$        
Total 139  2,785,000$         (670,000)$        2,115,000$        

 
Combined Combined Combined Excess

Benefit Proposed Developer Combined Par Debt Benefit
Land Use : Units Per Unit Par Debt Contributions Par Debt Per Unit Per Unit

Single Family 53' 111 44,250$ 4,204,425$         (669,258)$        3,535,166$       31,848$                12,402$      
Single Family 60' 28 44,250$ 1,060,576$         (742)$               1,059,833$       37,851$                6,399$        
Total 139 5,265,000$         (670,001)$        4,595,000$        

 
 

                                             Prepared By  
 

                      Governmental Management Services, LLC  

I 



TABLE 5
Rolling Hills CDD
Allocation of Series 2020 Bonds
Annual Assessments Per Unit

Series 2020A-1 Bonds through May 1, 2050
Net Annual Gross Annual

Par Debt Series 2020A-1 Net Annual Per Unit Per Unit
Development Type Units Per Unit Par Assessments Assessments Assessments

Single Family 53' 111 17,841.73 $1,980,432 $132,574.73 $1,194.37 $1,270.60
Single Family 60' 28 17,841.73 $499,568 $33,442.27 $1,194.37 $1,270.60

139 $2,480,000 $166,017.00  
 

Series 2020A-2 Bonds through May 1, 2030
Net Annual Gross Annual

Par Debt Series 2020A-2 Net Annual Per Unit Per Unit
Development Type Units Per Unit Par Assessments Assessments Assessments

Single Family 53' 111 14,006.62 $1,554,735 $81,623.58 $735.35 $782.28
Single Family 60' 28 20,009.46 $560,265 $29,413.91 $1,050.50 $1,117.55

139 $2,115,000 $111,037.48  

All assessments presented are net of early payment discount 4% and collection costs of 2%

                                           Prepared By

                        Governmental Management Services-Central Florida, LLC



TABLE 6
Rolling Hills CDD
Assessment Roll

Series 2020A-1 Bonds through Mat 1, 2051

Net Annual Gross Annual
 Net Annual Per Unit Per Unit

Property Owner Acreage Par Debt Assessments Assessments Assessments

Waltham Development Company 50 2,480,000.00 $166,017.00 $3,320.34 $3,532.28
      
    

 
Series 2020A-2 Bonds through May 1, 2030

Net Annual Gross Annual
 Net Annual Per Unit Per Unit

Property Owner Acreage Par Debt Assessments Assessments Assessments

Waltham Development Company 50 2,115,000.00 $111,037.48 $2,220.75 $2,362.50



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-08 

A RESOLUTION DELEGATING TO THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (THE "DISTRICT") THE AUTHORITY TO 
APPROVE THE SALE, ISSUANCE AND TERMS OF SALE OF 
ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2020A-1 AND ROLLING 
HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 
2020A-2, AS ONE SERIES OF BONDS UNDER THE MASTER TRUST 
INDENTURE (COLLECTIVELY, THE "SERIES 2020 BONDS") IN 
ORDER TO CURRENTLY REFUND AND REDEEM A PORTION OF 
THE OUTSTANDING PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE DISTRICT'S 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 
2015A-3 (THE "REFUNDED BONDS") AND FINANCE THE SERIES 
2020 PROJECT; ESTABLISHING THE PARAMETERS FOR THE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS, MAXIMUM MATURITY DATE, 
REDEMPTION PROVISIONS AND OTHER DETAILS THEREOF; 
APPROVING THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN 
TO ACCEPT THE BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE 
SERIES 2020 BONDS; APPROVING A NEGOTIATED SALE OF THE 
SERIES 2020 BONDS TO THE UNDERWRITER; RATIFYING THE 
MASTER TRUST INDENTURE AND APPROVING THE FORM OF 
FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE AND AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY THEREOF BY CERTAIN 
OFFICERS OF THE DISTRICT;  APPOINTING A TRUSTEE, PAYING 
AGENT AND BOND REGISTRAR FOR THE SERIES 2020 BONDS; 
APPROVING THE FORMS OF THE SERIES 2020 BONDS; 
APPROVING THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE USE OF THE 
PRELIMINARY LIMITED OFFERING MEMORANDUM AND LIMITED 
OFFERING MEMORANDUM RELATING TO THE SERIES 2020 
BONDS; APPROVING THE FORM OF THE CONTINUING 
DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT RELATING TO THE SERIES 2020 
BONDS; AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICERS OF THE DISTRICT TO 
TAKE ALL ACTIONS REQUIRED AND TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER 
ALL DOCUMENTS, INSTRUMENTS AND CERTIFICATES 
NECESSARY IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND 
DELIVERY OF THE SERIES 2020 BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE VICE 
CHAIRMAN AND ASSISTANT SECRETARIES TO ACT IN THE STEAD 
OF THE CHAIRMAN OR THE SECRETARY, AS THE CASE MAY BE; 
SPECIFYING THE APPLICATION OF THE PROCEEDS OF THE 
SERIES 2020 BONDS; AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICERS OF THE 
DISTRICT TO TAKE ALL ACTIONS AND ENTER INTO ALL 
AGREEMENTS REQUIRED IN CONNECTION WITH THE 



 

 
2 

REFUNDING OF THE REFUNDED BONDS AND THE UNDERTAKING 
OF THE SERIES 2020 PROJECT; APPOINTING A VERIFICATION 
AGENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Rolling Hills Community 
Development District (the "Board" and the "District," respectively) has determined to 
proceed at this time with the sale and issuance of Rolling Hills Community 
Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A-1 and 
Rolling Hills Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue and 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A-2 (collectively, the "Series 2020 Bonds") to be issued 
under and pursuant to a Master Trust Indenture, dated as of November 1, 2006 (the 
"Master Indenture"), from the District to U.S. Bank National Association, Orlando, 
Florida, as trustee (the "Trustee"), as amended and supplemented by a Fifth 
Supplemental Trust Indenture to be dated as of the first day of the first month and 
year in which the Series 2020 Bonds are issued thereunder (the "Supplemental 
Indenture" and together with the Master Indenture, the "Indenture") from the 
District to the Trustee, in order to currently refund and redeem a portion of the 
Outstanding principal amount of the District's Capital Improvement Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2015A-3 (such portion hereinafter referred to as the 
"Refunded Bonds") and finance a portion of the Costs of the Series 2020 Project; 

WHEREAS, the Board has received a proposal from MBS Capital Markets, 
LLC (the "Underwriter") for the purchase of the Series 2020 Bonds within parameters 
to be established by the Board and the Board has determined that authorization of 
the Chairman or other designated person to enter into a Bond Purchase Agreement 
(the "Purchase Agreement") in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A 
for the sale of the Series 2020 Bonds to the Underwriter within the Parameters 
(hereinafter defined) herein set forth is in the best interests of the District for the 
reasons hereafter indicated; and  

WHEREAS, in conjunction with the sale and issuance of the Series 2020 
Bonds, it is necessary to approve the form of the Supplemental Indenture, to establish 
the parameters for the delegated award of the Series 2020 Bonds as set forth in 
Schedule I attached hereto (the "Parameters"), to authorize the Chairman to approve 
the use of the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum relating to the Series 2020 
Bonds and the form of the final Limited Offering Memorandum, to approve the forms 
of the Series 2020 Bonds and to provide for various other matters with respect to the 
Series 2020 Bonds and the refunding and redemption of all of the Refunded Bonds 
and the undertaking of the Series 2020 Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 



 

 
3 

1. Definitions.  All words and phrases used herein in capitalized form, 
unless otherwise defined herein, shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the 
Indenture. 

2. Award.  The Purchase Agreement in the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit A is hereby approved in substantial form and the sale of the Series 2020 
Bonds to the Underwriter upon the terms and conditions therein set forth, but within 
the Parameters, is hereby approved.  The Chairman is hereby authorized and 
directed to execute and deliver the Purchase Agreement on behalf of the District, with 
such changes, additions, deletions and insertions as shall be approved by the official 
executing such Purchase Agreement, which approval shall be conclusively evidenced 
by the execution and delivery thereof.  In the absence or unavailability of the 
Chairman, the Vice Chairman is authorized and directed to execute the Purchase 
Agreement, and in the absence or unavailability of the Vice Chairman, any other 
member of the Board is authorized and directed to execute the Purchase Agreement.  
The Purchase Agreement, when executed and delivered by the District and the 
Underwriter, shall be the legal, valid and binding obligation of the District, 
enforceable in accordance with its terms.  

3. Negotiated Sale.  The Board hereby determines that a negotiated sale 
of the Series 2020 Bonds to the Underwriter is in the best interests of the District 
because the market for instruments such as the Series 2020 Bonds is limited, because 
of prevailing market conditions and because the delays caused by soliciting 
competitive bids could adversely affect the District's ability to issue and deliver the 
Series 2020 Bonds. 

4. Approval of Form of Supplemental Indenture; Ratification of 
Master Indenture; Appointment of Trustee, Paying Agent and Bond 
Registrar.  Attached hereto as Exhibit B is the form of Supplemental Indenture, 
which is hereby authorized and approved, subject to such changes, additions, 
deletions and insertions as shall be approved by the Chairman, which approval shall 
be conclusively evidenced by the execution thereof. The Chairman is hereby 
authorized to execute and the Secretary is authorized to attest the Supplemental 
Indenture and the Chairman is hereby authorized to deliver to the Trustee the 
Supplemental Indenture which, when executed and delivered by the Trustee, shall 
constitute a legal, valid and binding obligation of the District, enforceable in 
accordance with its terms.  The Master Indenture as executed and delivered and the 
appointment of U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, Paying Agent and Bond 
Registrar under the Master Indenture is hereby ratified and confirmed and U.S. Bank 
National Association is hereby appointed as Trustee, Paying Agent and Bond 
Registrar under the Supplemental Indenture.   

5. Description of Series 2020 Bonds.  The Series 2020 Bonds shall be 
dated as of their date of delivery and may be issued in one or more Series having such 



 

 
4 

details as shall be set forth in the Purchase Agreement and as reflected in the 
Supplemental Indenture, but within the Parameters.  The Series 2020 Bonds may be 
signed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Chairman and attested by the 
manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary.  The Series 2020 Bonds shall, subject 
to the Parameters, be subject to redemption on the terms, at the times and prices and 
in the manner provided in the Purchase Agreement and in the forms of Series 2020 
Bonds attached to the Supplemental Indenture, which forms are hereby approved, 
subject to such changes, additions, deletions and insertions as shall be approved by 
the Chairman, which approval shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution 
thereof.  The Chairman is hereby authorized to execute and the Secretary is 
authorized to attest and seal the Series 2020 Bonds and the Chairman is hereby 
authorized to deliver to the Trustee for authentication and delivery to the 
Underwriter upon payment by the Underwriter of the purchase price therefor, the 
Series 2020 Bonds which, when authenticated and delivered by the Trustee, shall be 
legal, valid and binding obligations of the District, enforceable in accordance with 
their respective terms.  

6. Approval of Form of Preliminary Limited Offering 
Memorandum and Limited Offering Memorandum; Approval of Form of 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement.  The Chairman is hereby authorized to 
approve the form and content of the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum, 
which is attached hereto as Exhibit C (the "Preliminary Limited Offering 
Memorandum") with such changes, additions, deletions and insertions as shall be 
approved by the Chairman prior to its distribution and the final form of which is to 
be dated the date of execution and delivery of the Purchase Agreement (the "Limited 
Offering Memorandum") relating to the Series 2020 Bonds.  The Chairman is hereby 
authorized to execute on behalf of the District such Limited Offering Memorandum 
with such changes, additions, deletions and insertions as the Chairman may approve 
(such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Limited Offering 
Memorandum, if required), and to deliver such Limited Offering Memorandum to the 
Underwriter in sufficient quantities for use by the Underwriter in marketing the 
Series 2020 Bonds. The Chairman is hereby authorized to deem "final" the 
Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum, as of its date, for the purposes and 
within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission 
(except for information concerning the offering prices, interest rates, selling 
compensation, aggregate principal amount, principal amount per maturity, delivery 
dates, ratings or other terms dependent upon such matters, and except for such 
technical and conforming changes which shall be approved by the Chairman which 
approval shall be evidenced by the execution thereof, if required).   

The Continuing Disclosure Agreement relating to the Series 2020 Bonds in the 
form attached hereto as Exhibit D is hereby approved, subject to such changes, 
additions, deletions and insertions as shall be approved by the Chairman, which 



 

 
5 

approval shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution thereof.  The Chairman is 
hereby authorized to execute and the Secretary is authorized to attest the Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement which, when executed and delivered by the District, shall be 
the legal, valid and binding obligation of the District, enforceable in accordance with 
its terms. 

7. Open Meetings.  It is hereby found and determined that all official acts 
of this Board concerning and relating to the issuance, sale, and delivery of the 
Series 2020 Bonds, including but not limited to adoption of this Resolution, were 
taken in open meetings of the members of the Board and all deliberations of the 
members of the Board that resulted in such official acts were in meetings open to the 
public, in compliance with all legal requirements including, but not limited to, the 
requirements of Section 286.011, Florida Statutes. 

8. Other Actions.  The Chairman, the Secretary, and all other members, 
officers and employees of the Board and the District are hereby authorized and 
directed to take all actions necessary or desirable in connection with the issuance and 
delivery of the Series 2020 Bonds and the consummation of all transactions in 
connection therewith, including the execution of all certificates, documents, papers, 
and agreements necessary to the undertaking and fulfillment of all transactions 
referred to in or contemplated by the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum, 
the Limited Offering Memorandum, the Indenture, this Resolution, the Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement and the Purchase Agreement, in all cases within the 
Parameters. 

The Vice Chairman is hereby authorized to act in the stead of the Chairman in 
any undertaking authorized or required of the Chairman hereunder and any 
Assistant Secretary is hereby authorized to act in the stead of the Secretary in any 
undertaking authorized or required of the Secretary hereunder.  

9. Deposits to Funds and Accounts.  The Trustee is hereby authorized 
and directed to apply the proceeds of the Series 2020 Bonds in the amounts and in 
the manner set forth in Section 402 of the Supplemental Indenture.  

10. Refunding of the Refunded Bonds; Undertaking of the Series 
2020 Project; Execution and Delivery of Other Instruments.  The Board hereby 
authorizes and approves the refunding of the Refunded Bonds.  The Board hereby 
authorizes the undertaking of the Series 2020 Project and authorizes and directs the 
District staff and Consulting Engineer to proceed with due diligence to the completion 
thereof in accordance with the Indenture. 

The Board hereby authorizes the Chairman and the Secretary to execute and 
deliver, receive or enter into such agreements, contracts, documents, instruments, 
certificates and proceedings incident thereto or necessary in order to effect the 



 

 
6 

refunding of the Refunded Bonds, the undertaking of the Series 2020 Project and the 
issuance, sale and delivery of the Series 2020 Bonds, including but not limited to the 
execution and delivery of the DTC Letter of Representation. 

11. Approval of Prior Actions.  All actions taken to date by the members 
of the Board and the officers, agents and consultants of the District in furtherance of 
the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds are hereby approved, confirmed and ratified. 

12. Severability.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 
Resolution shall be held to be invalid or ineffective for any reason, the remainder of 
this Resolution shall continue in full force and effect, it being expressly hereby found 
and declared that the remainder of this Resolution would have been adopted despite 
the invalidity or ineffectiveness of such section, paragraph, clause or provision. 

13. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

  



 

 
7 

PASSED in Public Session of the Board of Supervisors of Rolling Hills 
Community Development District, this 11th day of August, 2020. 
 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Attest: 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman,  
 Board of Supervisors 
 



 

SCHEDULE I 
PARAMETERS 

 
 
Maximum Principal Amount: Not to Exceed $5,000,000 in the aggregate for 

all Series to be allocated among Series based 
on market conditions 

 
Maximum Interest Rate: Maximum statutory rate 
 
Underwriting Discount: Maximum 2.0%  
 
Maturity Date: May 1, 2050 
  
Redemption Provisions: Each Series of the Series 2020 Bonds shall be 

subject to redemption as set forth in the forms 
of the respective Series of Series 2020 Bond 
attached to the form of Supplemental 
Indenture attached hereto and the Series 
2020A-1 Bonds shall be subject to optional 
redemption no later than May 1, 2033 at par. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 



____________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________ 

 

FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE 

 

 

ROLLING HILLS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

TO 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,  

AS TRUSTEE 

 

 

Dated as of September 1, 2020 

 

____________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________ 



 

i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

This Table of Contents is incorporated herein for ease of reference only and 
shall not be deemed a part of the Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture. 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

Section 101. Definitions ............................................................................................... 4 

ARTICLE II 
AUTHORIZATION, ISSUANCE AND PROVISIONS OF SERIES 2020 BONDS 

Section 201. Authorization of Series 2020 Bonds; Separate Series Designations 
for Certain Limited Purposes; Book-Entry Only Form ..................... 10 

Section 202. Terms ..................................................................................................... 12 
Section 203. Dating; Interest Accrual ....................................................................... 12 
Section 204. Denominations ...................................................................................... 12 
Section 205. Paying Agent ......................................................................................... 12 
Section 206. Bond Registrar ...................................................................................... 12 
Section 207. Conditions Precedent to Issuance of Series 2020 Bonds .................... 12 

ARTICLE III 
REDEMPTION OF SERIES 2020 BONDS 

Section 301. Bonds Subject to Redemption .............................................................. 13 
Section 302. Conditional Notice ................................................................................ 14 

ARTICLE IV 
DEPOSIT OF SERIES 2020 BOND PROCEEDS AND APPLICATION 
THEREOF; ESTABLISHMENT OF ACCOUNTS AND OPERATION 

THEREOF 

Section 401. Establishment of Accounts ................................................................... 14 
Section 402. Use of Series 2020 Bond Proceeds ....................................................... 14 
Section 403. Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account; Series 2020 

Costs of Issuance Account .................................................................. 15 
Section 404. Reserved ................................................................................................ 16 
Section 405. Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account; Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account .. 16 
Section 406. Amortization Installments; Selection of Bonds for Redemption ........ 18 
Section 407. Tax Covenants ...................................................................................... 18 
Section 408. Series 2020 Revenue Account; Application of Revenues and 

Investment Earnings .......................................................................... 18 

ARTICLE V 
CONCERNING THE TRUSTEE 

Section 501. Acceptance by Trustee .......................................................................... 21 



 

ii 

Section 502. Limitation of Trustee's Responsibility ................................................ 21 
Section 503. Trustee's Duties .................................................................................... 21 

ARTICLE VI 
ADDITIONAL BONDS 

Section 601. No Parity Bonds; Limitation on Parity Assessments ......................... 22 

ARTICLE VII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 701. Confirmation of Master Indenture ...................................................... 22 
Section 702. Continuing Disclosure Agreement ....................................................... 22 
Section 703. Additional Covenant Regarding Assessments .................................... 22 
Section 704. Collection of Assessments .................................................................... 23 
Section 705. Foreclosure of Assessment Lien ........................................................... 23 
Section 706. Owner Direction and Consent with Respect to Series 2020 

Acquisition and Construction Account Upon Occurrence of Event 
of Default ............................................................................................. 24 

Section 707. Assignment of District's Rights Under Collateral Assignment ......... 24 
Section 708. Enforcement of True-Up Agreement and Completion Agreement ..... 24 
Section 709. Payment of Rebate Amount ................................................................. 25 
Section 710. Provisions Relating to Bankruptcy or Insolvency of Landowner ....... 25 
Section 711. Additional Events of Default ................................................................ 27 
Section 712. Enforcement of Remedies ..................................................................... 27 
Section 713. Requisite Owners for Direction or Consent ........................................ 28 
Section 714. No Duty to File Annual Report ............................................................ 28 
Section 715. Brokerage Statements .......................................................................... 28 
Section 716. Patriot Act Requirements of the Trustee ............................................ 28 

 
 
Exhibit A – Description of Series 2020 Project  
Exhibit B – Form of Series 2020 Bonds 
Exhibit C – Form of Requisition for Series 2020 Project 
 



 

FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE 

THIS FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE (the "Fifth 
Supplemental Indenture") is dated as of September 1, 2020, from ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (the "District") to U.S. BANK 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as trustee (the "Trustee"), a national banking 
association, authorized to accept and execute trusts of the character herein set forth, 
with its designated corporate trust office located at 225 East Robinson Street, Suite 
250, Orlando, Florida 32801, Attention: Corporate Trust Department. 

WHEREAS, the District entered into a Master Trust Indenture, dated as of 
November 1, 2006 (the "Master Indenture" and together with this Fifth Supplemental 
Indenture, the "Indenture") with the Trustee to secure the issuance of its Rolling Hills 
Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds (the 
"Bonds"), issuable in one or more Series from time to time; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2006-14, adopted by the Governing 
Body of the District on June 1, 2006, the District has authorized the issuance, sale 
and delivery of not to exceed $42,000,000 of Bonds, to be issued in one or more Series 
of Bonds as authorized under the Master Indenture, which Bonds were validated by 
final judgment of the Fourth Judicial Circuit of Florida, in and for Clay County on 
September 11, 2006, the appeal period for which expired with no appeal having been 
taken; and 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the District duly adopted Resolution No. 
2015-08, on September 17, 2015, providing for the acquisition, construction and 
installation of assessable capital improvements (the "Capital Improvement 
Program"), providing estimated Costs of the Capital Improvement Program, defining 
assessable property to be benefited by the Capital Improvement Program, defining 
the portion of the Costs of the Capital Improvement Program with respect to which 
Assessments will be imposed and the manner in which such Assessments shall be 
levied against such benefited property within the District, directing the preparation 
of an assessment roll, and stating the intent of the District to issue Bonds of the 
District secured by such Assessments to finance the Costs of the acquisition, 
construction and installation of the Capital Improvement Program and the Governing 
Body of the District duly adopted Resolution No. 2016-02, on December 9, 2015, 
following a public hearing conducted in accordance with the Act, to fix and establish 
the Assessments and the benefited property; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2016-01, adopted by the Governing 
Body of the District on December 9, 2015, the District authorized, issued and sold, 
among other things, its $3,850,000 Rolling Hills Community Development District 
Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015A-3 (the "Series 2015A-
3 Bonds"), as an issue of Bonds under the Master Indenture, and ratified and 
confirmed the Master Indenture and authorized the execution and delivery of a 
Fourth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of November 1, 2015 (the "Fourth 



 

2 

Supplemental Indenture"), from the District to the Trustee to secure the issuance of 
the Series 2015A-3 Bonds and to set forth the terms of the Series 2015A-3 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2015A-3 Bonds are currently Outstanding in the 
aggregate principal amount of $[OPA]; and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2015A-3 Bonds were issued in exchange for and to 
restructure a portion of the District's Outstanding Capital Improvement Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2006A and Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2006B, which 
were issued to finance a portion of the Costs of the acquisition, construction and 
equipping of certain assessable improvements (the "Series 2006 Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2015A-3 Bonds are payable from and secured in part 
by revenues derived from Assessments imposed, levied and collected by the District 
with respect to property specially benefited by the Series 2006 Project (the "Series 
2015A-3 Assessments"), which, together with the Series 2015A-3 Pledged Funds and 
Accounts (as defined in the Fourth Supplemental Indenture) comprise the Series 
2015A-3 Trust Estate (as defined in the Fourth Supplemental Indenture); and 

WHEREAS, the District has determined that under existing market 
conditions, it would be in the best interest of the District to currently refund and 
redeem a portion of the Series 2015A-3 Bonds (such portion hereinafter referred to as 
the "Refunded Bonds") and to finance the Cost of the Series 2020 Project (as defined 
herein); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2020-08, adopted by the Governing 
Body of the District on August 11, 2020, the District has authorized the issuance, sale 
and delivery of, among other things, its $[Bond Amount] Rolling Hills Community 
Development District Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 
2020 (the "Series 2020 Bonds"), further designated as Rolling Hills Community 
Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A-1, in the 
aggregate principal amount of $[A-1 Amount] (the "Series 2020A-1 Bonds") and 
Rolling Hills Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue and 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A-2, in the aggregate principal amount of $[A-2 
Amount] (the "Series 2020A-2 Bonds"), which are issued hereunder as one and the 
same Series of Bonds under the Master Indenture, and has ratified and confirmed 
the Master Indenture and authorized the execution and delivery of this Fifth 
Supplemental Indenture to secure the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds and to set 
forth the terms of the Series 2020 Bonds; and  

WHEREAS, the District will apply the proceeds of the Series 2020 Bonds to 
(i) currently refund and redeem all of the Refunded Bonds, (ii) finance the Costs of 
the Series 2020 Project, (iii) pay certain costs associated with the issuance of the 
Series 2020 Bonds, and (iv) make a deposit into the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account 
to be held for the benefit of all of the Series 2020A-1 Bonds and into the Series 2020A-
2 Reserve Account to be held for the benefit of all of the Series 2020A-2 Bonds; and 



 

3 

WHEREAS, the Series 2020 Bonds will be payable from and secured in part 
by revenues derived from Assessments imposed, levied and collected by the District 
with respect to property specially benefited by the Series 2006 Project and the Series 
2020 Project (the "Series 2020 Assessments"); and 

WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of the Series 2020 Bonds and of this 
Fifth Supplemental Indenture have been duly authorized by the Governing Body of 
the District and all things necessary to make the Series 2020 Bonds, when executed 
by the District and authenticated by the Trustee, valid and binding legal obligations 
of the District and to make this Fifth Supplemental Indenture a valid and binding 
agreement and, together with the Master Indenture, a valid and binding lien on the 
Series 2020 Trust Estate (hereinafter defined) have been done; 

NOW THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THIS 
FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE WITNESSETH: 

That the District, in consideration of the premises, the acceptance by the 
Trustee of the trusts hereby created, the mutual covenants herein contained, the 
purchase and acceptance of the Series 2020 Bonds by the purchaser or purchasers 
thereof, and other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, and in order to further secure the payment of the principal and 
Redemption Price of, and interest on, all Series 2020 Bonds Outstanding from time 
to time, according to their tenor and effect, and such other payments required to be 
made under the Master Indenture or hereunder, and to further secure the observance 
and performance by the District of all the covenants, expressed or implied in the 
Master Indenture, in this Fifth Supplemental Indenture and in the Series 2020 Bonds 
(a) has executed and delivered this Fifth Supplemental Indenture and (b) does 
hereby, in confirmation of the Master Indenture, grant, bargain, sell, convey, 
transfer, assign and pledge unto the Trustee, and unto its successors in the trusts 
under the Master Indenture, and to them and their successors and assigns forever, 
all right, title and interest of the District, in, to and under, subject to the terms and 
conditions of the Master Indenture and the provisions of the Master Indenture 
pertaining to the application thereof for or to the purposes and on the terms set forth 
in the Master Indenture, the revenues derived by the District from the Series 2020 
Assessments (the "Series 2020 Pledged Revenues") and the Funds and Accounts 
(except for the Series 2020 Rebate Account) established hereby (the "Series 2020 
Pledged Funds") which shall constitute the Trust Estate securing the Series 2020 
Bonds (the "Series 2020 Trust Estate"); 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all the same by the Master Indenture granted, 
bargained, sold, conveyed, transferred, assigned and pledged, or agreed or intended 
so to be, to the Trustee and its successors in said trust and to it and its assigns forever; 

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, except as in each such case may otherwise be 
provided in the Master Indenture, upon the terms and trusts in the Indenture set 
forth for the equal and proportionate benefit, security and protection of all and 



 

4 

singular the present and future Owners of the Series 2020 Bonds issued or to be 
issued under and secured by this Fifth Supplemental Indenture, without preference, 
priority or distinction as to lien or otherwise, of any one Series 2020 Bond over any 
other Series 2020 Bond by reason of priority in their issue, sale or execution; 

PROVIDED HOWEVER, that if the District, its successors or assigns, shall 
well and truly pay, or cause to be paid, or make due provision for the payment of the 
principal and Redemption Price of the Series 2020 Bonds or any Series 2020 Bond of 
a particular maturity issued, secured and Outstanding under this Fifth 
Supplemental Indenture and the interest due or to become due thereon, at the times 
and in the manner mentioned in the Series 2020 Bonds and this Fifth Supplemental 
Indenture, according to the true intent and meaning thereof, and shall well and truly 
keep, perform and observe all the covenants and conditions pursuant to the terms of 
the Master Indenture and this Fifth Supplemental Indenture to be kept, performed 
and observed by it, and shall pay or cause to be paid to the Trustee all sums of money 
due or to become due to it in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Master 
Indenture and this Fifth Supplemental Indenture, then upon such final payments, 
this Fifth Supplemental Indenture and the rights hereby granted shall cease and 
terminate, with respect to all Series 2020 Bonds or any Series 2020 Bond of a 
particular maturity, otherwise this Fifth Supplemental Indenture shall remain in full 
force and effect; 

THIS FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE FURTHER 
WITNESSETH, and it is expressly declared, that all Series 2020 Bonds issued and 
secured hereunder are to be issued, authenticated and delivered and all of the rights 
and property pledged to the payment thereof are to be dealt with and disposed of 
under, upon and subject to the terms, conditions, stipulations, covenants, 
agreements, trusts, uses and purposes as expressed in the Master Indenture (except 
as amended directly or by implication by this Fifth Supplemental Indenture) and this 
Fifth Supplemental Indenture, and the District has agreed and covenanted, and does 
hereby agree and covenant, with the Trustee and with the respective Owners, from 
time to time, of the Series 2020 Bonds, as follows: 

 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

Section 101. Definitions.  All terms used herein that are defined in the 
recitals hereto are used with the same meaning herein unless the context clearly 
requires otherwise.  All terms used herein that are defined in the Master Indenture 
are used with the same meaning herein (including the use of such terms in the 
recitals hereto and the granting clauses hereof) unless (a) expressly given a different 
meaning herein or (b) the context clearly requires otherwise.  In addition, unless the 
context clearly requires otherwise, the following terms used herein shall have the 
following meanings: 



 

5 

"Arbitrage Certificate" shall mean the Certificate as to Arbitrage and 
Certain Other Tax Matters of the District dated as of [Closing Date]. 

"Assessment Methodology" shall mean the Supplemental Special 
Assessment Methodology Report, dated [__________], prepared by the Methodology 
Consultant. 

"Beneficial Owners" shall have the meaning given such term by DTC so long 
as it is the registered Owner through its Nominee, Cede & Co., of the Series 2020 
Bonds as to which such reference is made to enable such Series 2020 Bonds to be held 
in book-entry only form, and shall otherwise mean the registered Owner on the 
registration books of the District maintained by the Bond Registrar. 

"Bond Depository" shall mean the securities depository from time to time 
under Section 201 hereof, which may be the District. 

"Bond Participants" shall mean those broker-dealers, banks and other 
financial institutions from time to time for which the Bond Depository holds Series 
2020 Bonds as securities depository. 

"Collateral Assignment" shall mean the [Collateral Assignment] between 
the District and the Developer, dated as of [Closing Date]. 

"Completion Agreement" shall mean the [Completion Agreement] between 
the District and the Developer, dated as of [Closing Date]. 

"Conditions for Reduction of Reserve Account Requirement" shall mean, 
collectively, that (i) all lots subject to Series 2020 Assessments have been developed 
and platted, (ii) all lots subject to Series 2020 Assessments have been sold by the 
Developer to builders and all such sales have closed, and (iii) there are no Events of 
Default occurring or continuing under the Indenture with respect to the Series 2020 
Bonds.  The District Engineer shall provide a written certification to the District and 
the Trustee certifying that the event in clause (i) has occurred and the District 
Manager shall provide a written certification to the District and the Trustee 
certifying that the event in clause (ii) has occurred and affirming clause (iii), on which 
certifications the Trustee may conclusively rely. 

"Continuing Disclosure Agreement" shall mean the Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement, by and among the District, the Developer and [Government Management 
Services, LLC], as dissemination agent, dated as of [Closing Date]. 

"Delinquent Assessment Interest" shall mean Series 2020A-1 Assessment 
Interest or Series 2020A-2 Assessment Interest deposited by the District with the 
Trustee on or after May 1 of the year in which such Series 2020A-1 Assessment 
Interest or Series 2020A-2 Assessment Interest has, or would have, become 
delinquent under State law or the Series 2020 Assessment Proceedings applicable 
thereto. 



 

6 

"Delinquent Assessment Principal" shall mean Series 2020A-1 Assessment 
Principal or Series 2020A-2 Assessment Principal deposited by the District with the 
Trustee on or after May 1 of the year in which such Series 2020A-1 Assessment 
Principal or Series 2020A-2 Assessment Principal has, or would have, become 
delinquent under State law or the Series 2020 Assessment Proceedings applicable 
thereto. 

"Delinquent Assessments" shall mean, collectively, Delinquent Assessment 
Principal and Delinquent Assessment Interest. 

"Developer" shall mean Waltham Development Co., a Florida corporation. 

"Direct Billed" shall mean Assessments or Operation and Maintenance 
Assessments, as applicable within the context in which such reference is made, which 
are billed directly by the District rather than collected on the tax bill using the 
Uniform Method. 

"DTC" shall mean The Depository Trust Company, and its successors and 
assigns. 

"Engineer's Report" shall mean the [Supplemental Engineer's Report], dated 
[__________], prepared by Hadden Engineering, Inc., a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit A.  

"Government Obligations" shall mean direct obligations of, or obligations 
the timely payment of principal of and interest on which are unconditionally 
guaranteed by, the United States of America. 

"Interest Payment Date" shall mean each May 1 and November 1, 
commencing May 1, 2021. 

"Majority Owners" shall mean the Beneficial Owners of more than 50% in 
principal amount of the Outstanding Series 2020 Bonds. 

"Methodology Consultant" shall mean Governmental Management Services, 
LLC. 

"Nominee" shall mean the nominee of the Bond Depository, which may be the 
Bond Depository, as determined from time to time pursuant to this Fifth 
Supplemental Indenture. 

"On a pro rata basis" shall mean the Outstanding principal amount of each 
of the Series 2020A-1 Bonds and Series 2020A-2 Bonds, respectively, divided by the 
total Outstanding principal amount of the Series 2020 Bonds. 



 

7 

"Operation and Maintenance Assessments" shall mean assessments 
described in Section 190.021(3) of the Act, for the maintenance of District facilities or 
the operations of the District. 

"Quarterly Redemption Date" shall mean each February 1, May 1, August 
1 and November 1. 

"Redemption Date" shall mean a Quarterly Redemption Date in the case of a 
partial redemption of Outstanding Series 2020 Bonds, or any date in the case of the 
redemption of all of the Outstanding Series 2020 Bonds. 

"Series 2020 Assessment Area"  shall mean the [562] gross acres within the 
District anticipated to include 139 residential units, as more fully described in the 
Engineer's Report and the Assessment Methodology. 

"Series 2020 Assessment Proceedings" shall mean the proceedings of the 
District with respect to the establishment, levy and collection of the Series 2020 
Assessments which include Resolution Nos. 2015-08, 2015-09, 2016-02 and 2020-[__], 
adopted by the Governing Body of the District, and any supplemental proceedings 
undertaken by the District with respect to the Series 2020 Assessments and the 
Assessment Methodology as approved thereby. 

"Series 2020 Assessments" shall mean the Series 2020A-1 Assessments and 
the Series 2020A-2 Assessments. 

"Series 2020A-1 Assessments" shall mean the principal and interest of Series 
2020A-1 Assessments received by the District which corresponds to a proportionate 
amount of the principal and interest of the Series 2020A-1 Bonds. 

"Series 2020A-1 Assessment Interest" shall mean the interest on the 
Series 2020A-1 Assessments which is pledged to the Series 2020A-1 Bonds. 

"Series 2020A-1 Assessment Principal" shall mean the principal amount of 
Series 2020A-1 Assessments received by the District which represents a 
proportionate amount of the principal of and Amortization Installments of the Series 
2020A-1 Bonds, other than applicable Delinquent Assessment Principal and Series 
2020A-1 Prepayments. 

"Series 2020A-1 Assessment Revenues" shall mean all revenues derived by 
the District from the Series 2020A-1 Assessments, including Delinquent 
Assessments, proceeds from any foreclosure of the lien of Delinquent Assessments 
and any statutory interest on the Delinquent Assessments collected by the District 
in excess of the rate of interest on the Series 2020A-1 Bonds. 

"Series 2020A-2 Assessments" shall mean the principal and interest of Series 
2020A-2 Assessments received by the District which corresponds to a proportionate 
amount of the principal and interest of the Series 2020A-2 Bonds. 



 

8 

"Series 2020A-2 Assessment Interest" shall mean the interest on the 
Series 2020A-2 Assessments which is pledged to the Series 2020A-2 Bonds. 

"Series 2020A-2 Assessment Principal" shall mean the principal amount of 
Series 2020A-2 Assessments received by the District which represents a 
proportionate amount of the principal of and Amortization Installments of the Series 
2020A-2 Bonds, other than applicable Delinquent Assessment Principal and Series 
2020A-2 Prepayments. 

"Series 2020A-2 Assessment Revenues" shall mean all revenues derived by 
the District from the Series 2020A-2 Assessments, including Delinquent 
Assessments, proceeds from any foreclosure of the lien of Delinquent Assessments 
and any statutory interest on the Delinquent Assessments collected by the District 
in excess of the rate of interest on the Series 2020A-2 Bonds. 

"Series 2020 Investment Obligations" shall mean and includes any of the 
following securities, if and to the extent that such securities are legal investments for 
funds of the District: 

(a) Government Obligations; 

(b) Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued by 
any of the following agencies or such other government - sponsored agencies which 
may presently exist or be hereafter created; provided that, such bonds, debentures, 
notes or other evidences of indebtedness are fully guaranteed as to both principal and 
interest by the Government National Mortgage Association (including participation 
certificates issued by such association); Fannie Mae (including participation 
certificates issued by such entity); Federal Home Loan Banks; Federal Farm Credit 
Banks; Tennessee Valley Authority; Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and 
repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, which funds are rated in the 
highest categories for such funds by both Moody's and S&P at the time of purchase; 

(c) Both (i) shares of a diversified open-end management investment 
company (as defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940) or a regulated 
investment  company (as defined in Section 851(a) of the Code) that is a money 
market fund that is rated in the highest rating category for such funds by Moody's 
and S&P, and (ii) shares of money market mutual funds that invest only in the 
obligations described in (a) and (b) above;  

(d) Money market deposit accounts, time deposits, and certificates of 
deposits issued by commercial banks, savings and loan associations or mutual 
savings banks whose short-term obligations are rated, at the time of purchase, in one 
of the two highest rating categories, without regard to gradation, by Moody's and S 
& P; and  



 

9 

(e) Commercial paper (having maturities of not more than 270 days) rated, 
at the time of purchase, in one of the two highest rating categories, without regard to 
gradation, by Moody's and S & P. 

Under all circumstances, the Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively rely that 
any investment directed in writing by an Authorized Officer of the District is 
permitted under the Indenture and is a legal investment for funds of the District. 

"Series 2020A-1 Prepayment Interest" shall mean the interest on the 
Series 2020A-1 Prepayments received by the District. 

"Series 2020A-2 Prepayment Interest" shall mean the interest on the Series 
2020A-2 Prepayments received by the District. 

"Series 2020A-1 Prepayments" shall mean the excess amount of Series 
2020A-1 Assessment Principal received by the District over the Series 2020A-1 
Assessment Principal included within a Series 2020A-1 Assessment appearing on any 
outstanding and unpaid tax bill or direct collect invoice, whether or not mandated to 
be prepaid in accordance with the Series 2020 Assessment Proceedings.  Anything 
herein or in the Master Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, the term Series 
2020A-1 Prepayments shall not mean the proceeds of any Refunding Bonds or other 
borrowing of the District. 

"Series 2020A-2 Prepayments" shall mean the excess amount of Series 
2020A-2 Assessment Principal received by the District over the Series 2020A-2 
Assessment Principal included within a Series 2020A-2 Assessment appearing on any 
outstanding and unpaid tax bill or direct collect invoice, whether or not mandated to 
be prepaid in accordance with the Series 2020 Assessment Proceedings.  Anything 
herein or in the Master Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, the term Series 
2020A-2 Prepayments shall not mean the proceeds of any Refunding Bonds or other 
borrowing of the District. 

"Series 2020 Project" shall mean that portion of the Capital Improvement 
Program to be financed in part with the proceeds of the Series 2020 Bonds on deposit 
in the Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account, as more particularly 
described in the Engineer's Report. 

"Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account Requirement" shall mean an amount 
equal to the Maximum Annual Debt Service Requirement for all Outstanding Series 
2020A-1 Bonds, as of the time of any such calculation, until such time as the 
Conditions for Reduction of Reserve Account Requirement are met, at which time and 
thereafter the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account Requirement shall be an amount 
equal to 50% of the Maximum Annual Debt Service Requirement for all Outstanding 
Series 2020A-1 Bonds, as of the time of any such calculation. On the date of initial 
issuance of the Series 2020A-1 Bonds, the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account 
Requirement shall be $[A-1 RAR]. 



 

10 

"Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account Requirement" shall mean an amount 
equal to the maximum annual interest requirement for the Series 2020A-2 Bonds, as 
calculated from time to time, which amount on the date of initial issuance is $[A-2 
RAR].   

"Substantially Absorbed" shall mean the date on which the principal 
amount of the Series 2020A-1 Assessments equaling 90% of the then Outstanding 
principal amount of the Series 2020A-1 Bonds is levied on tax parcels within the 
Series 2020 Assessment Area with respect to which a certificate of occupancy has 
been issued for a structure thereon and are owned by end users, as certified by an 
Authorized Officer and upon which the Trustee may conclusively rely. 

"True-Up Agreement" shall mean the [True-Up Agreement] between the 
District and the Developer, dated as of [Closing Date]. 

"Uniform Method" shall mean the uniform method for the levy, collection and 
enforcement of Assessments afforded by Sections 197.3631, 197.3632 and 197.3635, 
Florida Statutes, or any successor statutes. 

 

ARTICLE II 
AUTHORIZATION, ISSUANCE AND PROVISIONS OF SERIES 

2020 BONDS 

Section 201. Authorization of Series 2020 Bonds; Separate Series 
Designations for Certain Limited Purposes; Book-Entry Only Form.  The 
Series 2020 Bonds are hereby authorized to be issued for the purposes enumerated 
in the recitals hereto in one Series but designated "$[A-1 Amount] Rolling Hills 
Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 
2020A-1" and "$[A-2 Amount] Rolling Hills Community Development District Capital 
Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A-2."  The Series 2020 
Bonds are for all purposes under the Indenture one and the same Series of Bonds.  
The Series 2020 Bonds shall be substantially in the forms attached hereto as Exhibit 
B.  Each Series 2020A-1 Bond shall bear the designation "2020A-1R" and shall be 
numbered consecutively from 1 upwards and each Series 2020A-2 Bond shall bear 
the designation "2020A-2R" and shall be numbered consecutively from 1 upwards. 

The Series 2020 Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a separate single 
certificated fully registered Series 2020 Bond for each Series and maturity thereof.  
Upon initial issuance, the ownership of each such Series 2020 Bond shall be 
registered in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar in the name of Cede 
& Co., as Nominee of DTC, the initial Bond Depository.  Except as provided in this 
Section 201, all of the Outstanding Series 2020 Bonds shall be registered in the 
registration books kept by the Bond Registrar in the name of Cede & Co., as Nominee 
of DTC. 



 

11 

With respect to Series 2020 Bonds registered in the registration books kept by 
the Bond Registrar in the name of Cede & Co., as Nominee of DTC, the District, the 
Trustee, the Bond Registrar and the Paying Agent shall have no responsibility or 
obligation to any such Bond Participant or to any indirect Bond Participant.  Without 
limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the District, the Trustee, the Bond 
Registrar and the Paying Agent shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect 
to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co., or any Bond Participant with 
respect to any ownership interest in the Series 2020 Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any 
Bond Participant or any other person other than an Owner, as shown in the 
registration books kept by the Bond Registrar, of any notice with respect to the Series 
2020 Bonds, including any notice of redemption, or (iii) the payment to any Bond 
Participant or any other person, other than an Owner, as shown in the registration 
books kept by the Bond Registrar, of any amount with respect to principal of, 
premium, if any, or interest on the Series 2020 Bonds.  The District, the Trustee, the 
Bond Registrar and the Paying Agent shall treat and consider the person in whose 
name each Series 2020 Bond is registered in the registration books kept by the Bond 
Registrar as the absolute Owner of such Series 2020 Bond for the purpose of payment 
of principal, premium and interest with respect to such Series 2020 Bond, for the 
purpose of giving notices of redemption and other matters with respect to such Series 
2020 Bond, for the purpose of registering transfers with respect to such Series 2020 
Bond, and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Paying Agent shall pay all principal 
of, premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2020 Bonds only to or upon the order 
of the respective Owners, as shown in the registration books kept by the Bond 
Registrar, or their respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, as provided herein 
and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the 
District's obligations with respect to payment of principal of, premium, if any, and 
interest on the Series 2020 Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.  No person 
other than an Owner, as shown in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar, 
shall receive a certificated Series 2020 Bond evidencing the obligation of the District 
to make payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest pursuant to the 
provisions hereof.  Upon delivery by DTC to the District of written notice to the effect 
that DTC has determined to substitute a new Nominee in place of Cede & Co., and 
subject to the provisions herein with respect to Record Dates, the words "Cede & Co." 
in this Fifth Supplemental Indenture shall refer to such new Nominee of DTC, and 
upon receipt of such a notice the District shall promptly deliver a copy of the same to 
the Trustee, the Bond Registrar and the Paying Agent. 

Upon receipt by the Trustee or the District of written notice from DTC 
(i) confirming that DTC has received written notice from the District to the effect that 
a continuation of the requirement that all of the Outstanding Series 2020 Bonds be 
registered in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar in the name of Cede 
& Co., as Nominee of DTC, is not in the best interest of the Beneficial Owners of the 
Series 2020 Bonds, or (ii) to the effect that DTC is unable or unwilling to discharge 
its responsibilities and no substitute Bond Depository willing to undertake the 
functions of DTC hereunder can be found which is willing and able to undertake such 



 

12 

functions upon reasonable and customary terms, the Series 2020 Bonds shall no 
longer be restricted to being registered in the registration books kept by the Bond 
Registrar in the name of Cede & Co., as Nominee of DTC, but may be registered in 
whatever name or names Owners transferring or exchanging the Series 2020 Bonds 
shall designate, in accordance with the provisions hereof. 

Section 202. Terms.  The Series 2020 Bonds shall be issued as [___] Term 
Bonds, shall be dated as of the date of their issuance and delivery to the initial 
purchasers thereof, shall bear interest at the fixed interest rates per annum and shall 
mature in the amounts and on the dates set forth below: 

Number Principal Amount Maturity Date Interest Rate CUSIP 
     
     
     
     

Section 203. Dating; Interest Accrual.  Each Series 2020 Bond shall be 
dated [Closing Date].  Each Series 2020 Bond shall also bear its date of 
authentication.  Each Series 2020 Bond shall bear interest from the Interest Payment 
Date to which interest has been paid next preceding the date of its authentication, 
unless the date of its authentication (i) is an Interest Payment Date to which interest 
on such Series 2020 Bond has been paid, in which event such Series 2020 Bond shall 
bear interest from its date of authentication, or (ii) is prior to the first Interest 
Payment Date for the Series 2020 Bonds, in which event such Series 2020 Bond shall 
bear interest from its date.  Interest on the Series 2020 Bonds shall be due and 
payable on each May 1 and November 1, commencing May 1, 2021, and shall be 
computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.  

Section 204. Denominations.  The Series 2020 Bonds shall be issued in 
Authorized Denominations; provided, however, that the Series 2020 Bonds shall be 
delivered to the initial purchasers thereof only in aggregate principal amounts of 
$100,000 or integral multiples of Authorized Denominations in excess of $100,000. 

Section 205. Paying Agent.  The District appoints the Trustee as Paying 
Agent for the Series 2020 Bonds. 

Section 206. Bond Registrar.  The District appoints the Trustee as Bond 
Registrar for the Series 2020 Bonds. 

Section 207. Conditions Precedent to Issuance of Series 2020 Bonds.  
In addition to complying with the requirements set forth in the Master Indenture in 
connection with the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds, all the Series 2020 Bonds shall 
be executed by the District for delivery to the Trustee and thereupon shall be 
authenticated by the Trustee and delivered to the District or upon its order, but only 
upon the further receipt by the Trustee of: 



 

13 

(a) certified copies of the Series 2020 Assessment Proceedings; 

(b) executed copies of the Master Indenture and this Fifth Supplemental 
Indenture; 

(c) a customary Bond Counsel opinion; 

(d) the District Counsel opinion required by the Master Indenture; 

(e) a certificate of an Authorized Officer to the effect that, upon the 
authentication and delivery of the Series 2020 Bonds, the District will not be in 
default in the performance of the terms and provisions of the Master Indenture or 
this Fifth Supplemental Indenture; 

(f) an Engineer's Certificate and a copy of the Engineer's Report, which sets 
forth the estimated Costs of the Series 2020 Project; 

(g) a certificate of the Methodology Consultant addressing the validity of 
the Series 2020 Assessments;  

(h) a certified copy of the final judgment of validation in respect of the Bonds 
together with a certificate of no appeal; and 

(i) an executed Collateral Assignment, Completion Agreement and True-
Up Agreement. 

Payment to the Trustee of the net proceeds of the Series 2020 Bonds in the 
amount of $[NP] shall conclusively evidence that the foregoing conditions precedent 
have been met to the satisfaction of the District and the underwriter. 

 

ARTICLE III 
REDEMPTION OF SERIES 2020 BONDS 

Section 301. Bonds Subject to Redemption.  The Series 2020 Bonds are 
subject to redemption prior to maturity as provided in the respective forms thereof 
attached hereto as Exhibit B.  Interest on Series 2020A-1 Bonds which are called for 
redemption shall be paid on the date of redemption from the Series 2020A-1 Interest 
Account or from the Series 2020 Revenue Account to the extent moneys in the Series 
2020A-1 Interest Account are insufficient for such purpose.  Interest on Series 2020A-
2 Bonds which are called for redemption shall be paid on the date of redemption from 
the Series 2020A-2 Interest Account or from the Series 2020 Revenue Account to the 
extent moneys in the Series 2020A-2 Interest Account are insufficient for such 
purpose.  Moneys in the Series 2020 Optional Redemption Subaccount shall be 
applied in accordance with Section 506 of the Master Indenture to the optional 
redemption of Series 2020 Bonds. 



 

14 

Section 302. Conditional Notice.  Notwithstanding anything in the 
Master Indenture or this Fifth Supplemental Indenture to the contrary, notice of 
optional redemption may be conditioned upon the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
such event or events or upon the later deposit of moneys therefor as shall be specified 
in such notice of optional redemption and may also be subject to rescission by the 
District if expressly set forth in such notice. 

 

ARTICLE IV 
DEPOSIT OF SERIES 2020 BOND PROCEEDS AND 

APPLICATION THEREOF; ESTABLISHMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
AND OPERATION THEREOF 

Section 401. Establishment of Accounts.  There are hereby established, 
as needed, the following Accounts: 

(a) within the Acquisition and Construction Fund held by the Trustee: (i) a 
Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account; and (ii) a Series 2020 Costs of 
Issuance Account; 

(b) within the Debt Service Fund held by the Trustee: (i) a Series 2020 Debt 
Service Account and therein a Series 2020A-1 Sinking Fund Account, a Series 2020A-
1 Interest Account, a Series 2020A-2 Principal Account and a Series 2020A-2 Interest 
Account; and (ii) a Series 2020 Redemption Account and therein a Series 2020A-1 
Prepayment Subaccount, a Series 2020A-2 Prepayment Subaccount and a Series 
2020 Optional Redemption Subaccount; 

(c) within the Reserve Fund held by the Trustee: (i) a Series 2020A-1 
Reserve Account, which shall be held for the benefit of all of the Series 2020A-1 
Bonds, without distinction as to Series 2020A-1 Bonds and without privilege or 
priority of one Series 2020A-1 Bond over another; and (ii) a Series 2020A-2 Reserve 
Account, which shall be held for the benefit of all of the Series 2020A-2 Bonds, without 
distinction as to Series 2020A-2 Bonds and without privilege or priority of one 
Series 2020A-2 Bond over another; 

(d) within the Revenue Fund held by the Trustee a Series 2020 Revenue 
Account; and 

(e) within the Rebate Fund held by the Trustee a Series 2020 Rebate 
Account. 

Section 402. Use of Series 2020 Bond Proceeds.  The net proceeds of sale 
of the Series 2020 Bonds in the amount of $[NP] (consisting of $[Bond Amount].00 
principal amount of Series 2020 Bonds [less/plus] [net] original issue 
[discount/premium] in the amount of $[OID/OIP] and less underwriter's discount in 
the amount of $[UD]), shall as soon as practicable upon the delivery thereof to the 



 

15 

Trustee by the District pursuant to Section 207 of the Master Indenture, be applied 
as follows: 

(a) $[A-1 RAR] from the proceeds of the Series 2020A-1 Bonds, representing 
the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account Requirement at the time of issuance of the Series 
2020A-1 Bonds, shall be deposited to the credit of the Series 2020A-1 Reserve 
Account; 

(b) $[A-2 RAR] from the proceeds of the Series 2020A-2 Bonds, representing 
the Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account Requirement at the time of issuance of the Series 
2020A-2 Bonds, shall be deposited to the credit of the Series 2020A-2 Reserve 
Account; 

(c) $[COI] from the proceeds of the Series 2020 Bonds, representing the 
costs of issuance relating to the Series 2020 Bonds, shall be deposited to the credit of 
the Series 2020 Costs of Issuance Account;  

(d) $[CD] from the proceeds of the Series 2020 Bonds shall be deposited to 
the credit of the Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account; and 

(e) the balance of the proceeds of the Series 2020A-2 Bonds, $[ED Proceeds], 
shall be deposited to the Series 2015A-3 Optional Redemption Subaccount of the 
Series 2015A-3 Redemption Account established pursuant to the Fourth 
Supplemental Indenture and used to refund and redeem the Refunded Bonds on 
[Closing Date]. 

Section 403. Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account; 
Series 2020 Costs of Issuance Account.   

(a) Amounts on deposit in the Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction 
Account shall be applied to pay Costs of the Series 2020 Project upon compliance with 
the requisition provisions set forth in Section 503(b) of the Master Indenture and on 
the form attached hereto as Exhibit C.  The Trustee shall have no duty to verify that 
any requested disbursement from the Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction 
Account is for a Cost of the Series 2020 Project.  The Consulting Engineer shall 
establish a Date of Completion for the Series 2020 Project, and any balance remaining 
in the Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account after such Date of 
Completion (taking into account the moneys then on deposit therein to pay any 
accrued but unpaid Costs of the Series 2020 Project which are required to be reserved 
in the Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account in accordance with the 
certificate of the Consulting Engineer delivered to the District and the Trustee 
establishing such Date of Completion), shall be transferred first to the Series 2020A-
2 Prepayment Subaccount and applied to the extraordinary mandatory redemption 
of the Series 2020A-2 Bonds until such Series 2020A-2 Bonds are no longer 
Outstanding and then to the Series 2020A-1 Prepayment Subaccount and applied to 
the extraordinary mandatory redemption of the Series 2020A-1 Bonds in accordance 



 

16 

with Section 301 hereof and in the manner prescribed in the respective forms of Series 
2020 Bonds attached hereto as Exhibit B.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the District 
shall not establish a Date of Completion until after the Conditions for Reduction of 
Reserve Account Requirement have been satisfied and moneys have been transferred 
from the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account to the Series 2020 Acquisition and 
Construction as a result of such satisfaction pursuant to Section 405 hereof.  At such 
time as there are no amounts on deposit in the Series 2020 Acquisition and 
Construction Account, such Account shall be closed. 

(b) The amount deposited in the Series 2020 Costs of Issuance Account 
shall, at the written direction of an Authorized Officer to the Trustee, be used to pay 
the costs of issuance relating to the Series 2020 Bonds.  On the earlier to occur of (x) 
the written direction of an Authorized Officer or (y) six months from the date of 
issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds, any amounts deposited in the Series 2020 Costs 
of Issuance Account for which the Trustee has not received a requisition to pay such 
costs shall be transferred over and deposited into the Series 2020 Acquisition and 
Construction Account and used for the purposes permitted therefor.  Any deficiency 
in the amount allocated to pay the costs of issuance relating to the Series 2020 Bonds 
shall be paid from excess moneys on deposit in the Series 2020 Revenue Account 
pursuant to Section 408(d) hereof.  When such deficiency has been satisfied and no 
moneys remain therein, the Series 2020 Costs of Issuance Account shall be closed. 

Section 404. Reserved.   

Section 405. Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account; Series 2020A-2 
Reserve Account.  The Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account shall be funded and 
maintained at all times in an amount equal to the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account 
Requirement.  Except as otherwise provided herein or in the Master Indenture, 
amounts on deposit in the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account shall be used only for the 
purpose of making payments into the Series 2020A-1 Interest Account and the Series 
2020A-1 Sinking Fund Account to pay Debt Service on the Series 2020A-1 Bonds, 
when due, without distinction as to Series 2020A-1 Bonds and without privilege or 
priority of one Series 2020A-1 Bond over another, to the extent the moneys on deposit 
in such Accounts available therefor are insufficient and for no other purpose.  The 
Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account shall consist only of cash and Series 2020 
Investment Obligations. 

Anything herein or in the Master Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, 
on the 45th day preceding each Quarterly Redemption Date (or, if such 45th day is not 
a Business Day, on the first Business Day preceding such 45th day), the Trustee is 
hereby authorized and directed to recalculate the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account 
Requirement and to transfer any excess on deposit in the Series 2020A-1 Reserve 
Account (i) resulting from Prepayments of Series 2020A-1 Assessments into the 
Series 2020A-1 Prepayment Subaccount and applied to the extraordinary mandatory 
redemption of the Series 2020A-1 Bonds, (ii) resulting from a reduction of the 
Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account Requirement as the result of the Conditions for 



 

17 

Reduction of Reserve Account Requirement being met into the Series 2020 
Acquisition and Construction Account and used for the purposes of such Account, or 
(iii) resulting from investment earnings as provided in Section 408(f) herein.   

On the earliest date on which there is on deposit in the Series 2020A-1 Reserve 
Account sufficient moneys, after taking into account other moneys available therefor, 
to pay and redeem all of the Outstanding Series 2020A-1 Bonds, together with 
accrued interest and redemption premium, if any, on such Series 2020A-1 Bonds to 
the earliest Redemption Date permitted therein and herein, then the Trustee shall 
transfer the amount on deposit in the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account into the Series 
2020A-1 Prepayment Subaccount to pay and redeem all of the Outstanding Series 
2020A-1 Bonds on the earliest Redemption Date permitted for redemption therein 
and herein. 

The Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account shall be funded and maintained at all 
times in an amount equal to the Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account Requirement.  
Except as otherwise provided herein or in the Master Indenture, amounts on deposit 
in the Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account shall be used only for the purpose of making 
payments into the Series 2020A-2 Interest Account and the Series 2020A-2 Principal 
Account to pay Debt Service on the Series 2020A-2 Bonds, when due, without 
distinction as to Series 2020A-2 Bonds and without privilege or priority of one Series 
2020A-2 Bond over another, to the extent the moneys on deposit in such Accounts 
available therefor are insufficient and for no other purpose.  The Series 2020A-2 
Reserve Account shall consist only of cash and Series 2020 Investment Obligations. 

Anything herein or in the Master Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, 
on the 45th day preceding each Quarterly Redemption Date (or, if such 45th day is not 
a Business Day, on the first Business Day preceding such 45th day), the Trustee is 
hereby authorized and directed to recalculate the Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account 
Requirement and to transfer any excess on deposit in the Series 2020A-2 Reserve 
Account (other than excess resulting from investments, which shall be governed by 
Section 408(f) hereof) into the Series 2020A-2 Prepayment Subaccount and applied to 
the extraordinary mandatory redemption of the Series 2020A-2 Bonds.   

On the earliest date on which there is on deposit in the Series 2020A-2 Reserve 
Account sufficient moneys, after taking into account other moneys available therefor, 
to pay and redeem all of the Outstanding Series 2020A-2 Bonds, together with 
accrued interest and redemption premium, if any, on such Series 2020A-2 Bonds to 
the earliest Redemption Date permitted therein and herein, then the Trustee shall 
transfer the amount on deposit in the Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account into the Series 
2020A-2 Prepayment Subaccount to pay and redeem all of the Outstanding Series 
2020A-2 Bonds on the earliest Redemption Date permitted for redemption therein 
and herein. 

Anything herein or in the Master Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, 
amounts on deposit in the Series 2020-1 Reserve Account and the Series 2020A-2 



 

18 

Reserve Account shall, upon the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default, 
be subject to a first charge by the Trustee for its fees and expenses, including fees and 
expenses of collection of Delinquent Assessments. 

Section 406. Amortization Installments; Selection of Bonds for 
Redemption.  (a)  The Amortization Installments established for the Series 2020A-
1 Bonds shall be as set forth in the form of Series 2020A-1 Bonds attached hereto.  No 
Amortization Installments are established for the Series 2020A-2 Bonds. 

(b) Upon any redemption of Series 2020A-1 Bonds (other than Series 
2020A-1 Bonds redeemed in accordance with scheduled Amortization Installments 
and other than Series 2020A-1 Bonds redeemed at the direction of the District 
accompanied by a cash flow certificate as required by Section 506(b) of the Master 
Indenture), the Trustee shall cause Series 2020A-1 Bonds to be redeemed in such 
amounts and having such maturities so as to result in Amortization Installments 
recalculated, which recalculation shall be performed by the District, in such manner 
as shall amortize all the Outstanding Series 2020A-1 Bonds of all of the terms in 
substantially equal annual installments of principal and interest (subject to rounding 
to Authorized Denominations of principal) over the remaining terms of all of the 
Series 2020A-1 Bonds.  

Section 407. Tax Covenants.  The District shall comply with the Arbitrage 
Certificate, including but not limited to the Tax Regulatory Covenants set forth as an 
exhibit to the Arbitrage Certificate, as amended and supplemented from time to time 
in accordance with their terms. 

Section 408. Series 2020 Revenue Account; Application of Revenues 
and Investment Earnings.  (a)  The Trustee is hereby authorized and directed to 
deposit any and all amounts required to be deposited in the Series 2020 Revenue 
Account by this Section 408 or by any other provision of the Master Indenture or this 
Fifth Supplemental Indenture, and any other amounts or payments specifically 
designated by the District pursuant to a written direction or by a Supplemental 
Indenture for said purpose.  The Series 2020 Revenue Account shall be held by the 
Trustee separate and apart from all other Funds and Accounts held under the 
Indenture and from all other moneys of the Trustee. 

(b) The Trustee shall deposit into the Series 2020 Revenue Account (i) 
Series 2020A-1 Assessment Revenues (other than Series 2020A-1 Prepayments, 
which shall be identified by the District to the Trustee as such in writing upon 
deposit, upon which certification the Trustee may conclusively rely, and which shall 
be deposited into the Series 2020A-1 Prepayment Subaccount), (ii) Series 2020A-2 
Assessment Revenues (other than Series 2020A-2 Prepayments, which shall be 
identified by the District to the Trustee as such in writing upon deposit, upon which 
certification the Trustee may conclusively rely, and which shall be deposited into the 
Series 2020A-2 Prepayment Subaccount), (iii) Series 2020A-1 Prepayment Interest 
and Series 2020A-2 Prepayment Interest, and (iv) any other revenues required by 



 

19 

other provisions of the Indenture to be deposited into the Series 2020 Revenue 
Account. 

(c) (i) On the 45th day preceding each Quarterly Redemption Date (or if 
such 45th day is not a Business Day, on the Business Day preceding such 45th day), 
the Trustee shall determine the amount on deposit in the Series 2020A-1 Prepayment 
Subaccount and, if the balance therein is greater than zero, shall, upon written 
direction from the District, transfer from the Series 2020 Revenue Account for deposit 
into the Series 2020A-1 Prepayment Subaccount an amount sufficient to increase the 
amount on deposit therein to an integral multiple of $5,000 (provided that there are 
sufficient funds remaining in the Series 2020 Revenue Account to pay Debt Service 
coming due on the Series 2020A-1 Bonds on the next succeeding Interest Payment 
Date), and shall thereupon give notice and cause the extraordinary mandatory 
redemption of the Series 2020A-1 Bonds on the next succeeding Redemption Date in 
the maximum aggregate principal amount for which moneys are then on deposit in 
the Series 2020A-1 Prepayment Subaccount in accordance with the provisions for 
extraordinary mandatory redemption of the Series 2020A-1 Bonds set forth in the 
form of Series 2020A-1 Bonds attached hereto, Section 301 hereof, and Article III of 
the Master Indenture. 

 (ii) On the 45th day preceding each Quarterly Redemption Date (or if 
such 45th day is not a Business Day, on the Business Day preceding such 45th day), 
the Trustee shall determine the amount on deposit in the Series 2020A-2 Prepayment 
Subaccount and, if the balance therein is greater than zero, shall, upon written 
direction from the District, transfer from the Series 2020 Revenue Account for deposit 
into the Series 2020A-2 Prepayment Subaccount an amount sufficient to increase the 
amount on deposit therein to an integral multiple of $5,000 (provided that there are 
sufficient funds remaining in the Series 2020 Revenue Account to pay Debt Service 
coming due on the Series 2020A-2 Bonds on the next succeeding Interest Payment 
Date), and shall thereupon give notice and cause the extraordinary mandatory 
redemption of the Series 2020A-2 Bonds on the next succeeding Redemption Date in 
the maximum aggregate principal amount for which moneys are then on deposit in 
the Series 2020A-2 Prepayment Subaccount in accordance with the provisions for 
extraordinary mandatory redemption of the Series 2020A-2 Bonds set forth in the 
form of Series 2020A-2 Bonds attached hereto, Section 301 hereof, and Article III of 
the Master Indenture. 

(d) On May 1 and November 1 (or if such May 1 or November 1 is not a 
Business Day, on the Business Day preceding such May 1 or November 1), the Trustee 
shall transfer amounts on deposit in the Series 2020 Revenue Account to the Accounts 
designated below in the following amounts and in the following order of priority: 

FIRST, on a pro rata basis, to the Series 2020A-1 Interest Account, the 
amount, if any, equal to the difference between the amount of interest payable on all 
Series 2020A-1 Bonds then Outstanding on such May 1 or November 1, and the 
amount already on deposit in the Series 2020A-1 Interest Account not previously 



 

20 

credited, and to the Series 2020A-2 Interest Account, the amount, if any, equal to the 
difference between the amount of interest payable on all Series 2020A-2 Bonds then 
Outstanding on such May 1 or November 1, and the amount already on deposit in the 
Series 2020A-2 Interest Account not previously credited;  

SECOND, on a pro rata basis, on May 1, 2021 and on each May 1 thereafter, 
to the Series 2020A-1 Sinking Fund Account, the amount, if any, equal to the 
difference between the Amortization Installments of all Series 2020A-1 Bonds subject 
to mandatory sinking fund redemption on such May 1 and the amount already on 
deposit in the Series 2020A-1 Sinking Fund Account not previously credited and on 
May 1, 2030, to the Series 2020A-2 Principal Account, the amount, if any, equal to 
the difference between the principal amount of all Series 2020A-2 Bonds coming due 
on such May 1, and the amount already on deposit in the Series 2020A-2 Principal 
Account not previously credited; 

THIRD, on a pro rata basis, to the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account, the 
amount, if any, which is necessary to make the amount on deposit therein equal to 
the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account Requirement with respect to the Series 2020A-1 
Bonds, and to the Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account, the amount, if any, which is 
necessary to make the amount on deposit therein equal to the Series 2020A-2 Reserve 
Account Requirement with respect to the Series 2020A-2 Bonds; and 

FOURTH, the balance shall first be deposited into the Series 2020 Costs of 
Issuance Account to fund any deficiencies in the amount allocated to pay the costs of 
issuance relating to the Series 2020 Bonds, and then the balance shall be retained in 
the Series 2020 Revenue Account. 

(e) On any date required by the Arbitrage Certificate, the District shall give 
the Trustee written direction to, and the Trustee shall, transfer from the Series 2020 
Revenue Account to the Series 2020 Rebate Account the amount due and owing to the 
United States, which amount shall be paid to the United States when due in 
accordance with such Arbitrage Certificate. 

(f) Anything herein or in the Master Indenture to the contrary 
notwithstanding, moneys on deposit in all of the Funds and Accounts held as security 
for the Series 2020 Bonds shall be invested only in Series 2020 Investment 
Obligations.  Earnings on investments in the Series 2020 Acquisition and 
Construction Account, the Series 2020A-1 Interest Account and the Series 2020A-2 
Interest Account shall be retained, as realized, in such Accounts and used for the 
purpose of such Accounts.  Earnings on investments in the Funds and Accounts other 
than the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account and the Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account, 
and other than as set forth above, shall be deposited, as realized, to the credit of the 
Series 2020 Revenue Account and used for the purpose of such Account. 

Earnings on investments in the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account and the Series 
2020A-2 Reserve Account shall be disposed of as follows: 



 

21 

(i) if there was no deficiency (as defined in Section 509 of the Master 
Indenture) in the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account or the Series 2020A-2 Reserve 
Account as of the most recent date on which amounts on deposit in such Reserve 
Account were valued by the Trustee, and if no withdrawals have been made from such 
Reserve Account since such date which have created a deficiency, then earnings on 
investments in both Reserve Accounts shall be deposited into the Series 2020 
Revenue Account and used for the purpose of such Account; or 

(ii) if there was a deficiency (as defined in Section 509 of the Master 
Indenture) in the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account or the Series 2020A-2 Reserve 
Account as of the most recent date on which amounts on deposit in such Reserve 
Account were valued by the Trustee, or if after such date withdrawals have been 
made from the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account or the Series 2020A-2 Reserve 
Account and have created such a deficiency, then earnings on investments in the 
Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account or the Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account shall be 
retained in such Reserve Account until the amount on deposit therein is equal to the 
Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account Requirement or the Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account 
Requirement, as applicable, and then earnings on investments in the Series 2020A-1 
Reserve Account or the Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account shall be deposited into the 
Series 2020 Revenue Account and used for the purpose of such Account. 

The foregoing determination and disbursement shall be made prior to any 
recalculation and transfer of excess amounts on deposit in the Series 2020A-1 Reserve 
Account or the Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account made pursuant to Section 405 hereof.  

 

ARTICLE V 
CONCERNING THE TRUSTEE 

Section 501. Acceptance by Trustee.  The Trustee accepts the trusts 
declared and provided in this Fifth Supplemental Indenture and agrees to perform 
such trusts upon the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the Master 
Indenture. 

Section 502. Limitation of Trustee's Responsibility.  The Trustee shall 
not be responsible in any manner for the due execution of this Fifth Supplemental 
Indenture by the District or for the recitals contained herein, all of which are made 
solely by the District. 

Section 503. Trustee's Duties.  Nothing contained herein shall limit the 
rights, benefits, privileges, protection and entitlements inuring to the Trustee under 
the Master Indenture, including, particularly, Article VI thereof. 

 



 

22 

ARTICLE VI 
ADDITIONAL BONDS 

Section 601. No Parity Bonds; Limitation on Parity Assessments.  
Other than Refunding Bonds issued to refund the then Outstanding Series 2020 
Bonds, the issuance of which results in net present value Debt Service savings, the 
District shall not, while any Series 2020 Bonds are Outstanding, issue or incur any 
debt payable in whole or in part from the Series 2020 Trust Estate.  The District 
further covenants and agrees that so long as the Series 2020A-1 Assessments have 
not been Substantially Absorbed and the Series 2020A-2 Bonds are Outstanding, it 
will not impose Assessments for capital projects on any lands subject to the Series 
2020 Assessments without the written consent of the Majority Owners.  
Notwithstanding the immediately preceding sentence, the District may impose 
Assessments on property subject to the Series 2020 Assessments which are necessary 
for health, safety or welfare reasons, or to remediate a natural disaster, or to effect 
repairs to or replacement of property, facilities or equipment of the District without 
the consent of the Majority Owners. 

ARTICLE VII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 701. Confirmation of Master Indenture.  As supplemented by 
this Fifth Supplemental Indenture, the Master Indenture is in all respects ratified 
and confirmed, and this Fifth Supplemental Indenture shall be read, taken and 
construed as a part of the Master Indenture so that all of the rights, remedies, terms, 
conditions, covenants and agreements of the Master Indenture, except insofar as 
modified herein, shall apply and remain in full force and effect with respect to this 
Fifth Supplemental Indenture and to the Series 2020 Bonds issued hereunder. 

Section 702. Continuing Disclosure Agreement.  Contemporaneously 
with the execution and delivery hereof, the District has executed and delivered the 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement in order to comply with the requirements of Rule 
15c2-12 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  The District 
covenants and agrees to comply with the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement.  However, as set forth therein, failure to so comply shall not constitute 
an Event of Default hereunder, but instead shall be enforceable as provided in the 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement. 

Section 703. Additional Covenant Regarding Assessments.  In 
addition to, and not in limitation of, the covenants contained elsewhere in this Fifth 
Supplemental Indenture and in the Master Indenture, the District covenants to 
comply with the terms of the Series 2020 Assessment Proceedings heretofore adopted 
with respect to the Series 2020 Assessments, including the Assessment Methodology, 
and to levy the Series 2020 Assessments and any required true-up payments set forth 
in the Assessment Methodology in such manner as will generate funds sufficient to 
pay the principal of and interest on the Series 2020 Bonds, when due.  The 



 

23 

Assessment Methodology shall not be materially amended without prior written 
consent of the Majority Owners. 

Section 704. Collection of Assessments.  (a)  Anything herein or in the 
Master Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, Series 2020A-1 Assessments 
levied on unplatted lands and pledged hereunder to secure the Series 2020A-1 Bonds 
shall be collected directly by the District pursuant to the Act and Chapters 170 and 
197, Florida Statutes, and Series 2020A-1 Assessments levied on platted lots and 
pledged hereunder to secure the Series 2020A-1 Bonds shall be collected pursuant to 
the Uniform Method.  Anything herein or in the Master Indenture to the contrary 
notwithstanding, Series 2020A-2 Assessments whether levied on unplatted lands or 
platted lots and pledged hereunder to secure the Series 2020A-2 Bonds shall be 
collected directly by the District pursuant to the Act and Chapters 170 and 197, 
Florida Statutes and not pursuant to the Uniform Method, unless otherwise directed 
by the Trustee acting at the direction of the Majority Owners.  

(b) All Series 2020 Assessments that are collected directly by the District  
and not via the Uniform Method shall be due and payable by the applicable 
landowner no later than 30 days prior to each Interest Payment Date.  

Section 705. Foreclosure of Assessment Lien.  Notwithstanding Section 
814 of the Master Indenture or any other provision of the Indenture to the contrary, 
the following provisions shall apply with respect to the Series 2020 Assessments and 
Series 2020 Bonds.   

If any property shall be offered for sale for the nonpayment of any Series 2020 
Assessments and no person or persons shall purchase such property for an amount 
equal to the full amount due on the Series 2020 Assessments (principal, interest, 
penalties and costs, plus attorneys' fees, if any), the property may then be purchased 
by the District for an amount less than or equal to the balance due on the Series 2020 
Assessments (principal, interest, penalties and costs, plus attorneys' fees, if any), 
from any legally available funds of the District and the District shall receive, in its 
corporate name or in the name of a special purpose entity, title to the property for the 
benefit of the Owners of the Series 2020 Bonds; provided that the Trustee shall have 
the right acting at the direction of the Majority Owners, but shall not be obligated, to 
direct the District with respect to any action taken pursuant to this Section 705. The 
District, either through its own actions or actions caused to be taken through the 
Trustee, shall have the power to lease or sell such property, and deposit all of the net 
proceeds of any such lease or sale into the Series 2020 Revenue Account.  The District, 
either through its own actions or actions caused to be taken through the Trustee, 
agrees that it shall, after being provided assurances satisfactory to it of payment of 
its fees, costs and expenses for doing so, be required to take the measures provided 
by law for listing for sale of property acquired by it as trustee for the benefit of the 
Owners of the Series 2020 Bonds within 60 days after the receipt of the request 
therefor signed by the Trustee or the Majority Owners. The Trustee may, upon 
direction from the Majority Owners, pay costs associated with any actions taken by 



 

24 

District pursuant to this paragraph from any moneys legally available for such 
purpose held under the Indenture. 

Section 706. Owner Direction and Consent with Respect to Series 
2020 Acquisition and Construction Account Upon Occurrence of Event of 
Default.  In accordance with the provisions of the Indenture, the Series 2020 Bonds 
are payable solely from the Series 2020 Pledged Revenues and the Series 2020 
Pledged Funds held by the Trustee under the Indenture for such purpose.  Anything 
in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, the District hereby acknowledges 
that (i) the Series 2020 Pledged Funds includes, without limitation, all amounts on 
deposit in the Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account then held by the 
Trustee, (ii) upon the occurrence of an Event of Default with respect to the Series 
2020 Bonds, the Series 2020 Pledged Funds may not be used by the District (whether 
to pay Costs of the Series 2020 Project or otherwise) without the consent of the 
Majority Owners, except to the extent that prior to the Trustee notifying the District 
of such declared Event of Default the District had incurred a binding obligation with 
third parties for work on the Series 2020 Project and payment is for such work, and 
(iii) upon the occurrence of an Event of Default with respect to the Series 2020 Bonds, 
the Series 2020 Pledged Funds may be used by the Trustee, at the direction or with 
the approval of the Majority Owners, to pay the reasonable costs and expenses 
incurred in connection with the pursuit of remedies under the Indenture.  The District 
shall not enter into any binding agreement with respect to the Series 2020 Project 
that will cause the expenditure of additional funds from the Series 2020 Trust Estate 
after the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default unless 
authorized in writing by the Majority Owners. 

Section 707. Assignment of District's Rights Under Collateral 
Assignment.  Subject to the terms of the Collateral Assignment, the District hereby 
assigns its rights under the Collateral Assignment to the Trustee for the benefit of 
the Owners, from time to time, of the Series 2020 Bonds.  The Trustee shall not be 
deemed to have accepted any obligation under the Collateral Assignment by virtue of 
such assignment. 

Section 708. Enforcement of True-Up Agreement and Completion 
Agreement.  The District, either through its own actions, or actions caused to be 
taken through the Trustee, covenants that it shall strictly enforce all of the provisions 
of the True-Up Agreement and the Completion Agreement and, upon the occurrence 
and continuance of a default under either or both of such Agreements, the District 
covenants and agrees that the Trustee, at the direction of the Majority Owners, shall 
act on behalf of and in the District's stead to enforce the provisions of such 
Agreements and to pursue all available remedies under applicable law or in equity.  
Anything herein or in the Master Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, failure 
of the District to enforce, or permit the Trustee to enforce in its stead, all of the 
provisions of the True-Up Agreement and the Completion Agreement upon demand 
of the Majority Owners, or the Trustee at the direction of the Majority Owners, shall 



 

25 

constitute an Event of Default under the Indenture, provided, however, that the 
District shall have a reasonable opportunity to cure. 

Section 709. Payment of Rebate Amount.  Anything herein or in the 
Master Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, the District shall cause a Rebate 
Analyst to determine the Rebate Amount, if any, at the times and in the manner 
provided in the Tax Regulatory Covenants attached as an exhibit to the Arbitrage 
Certificate.  If a Rebate Amount shall be due, the District shall deliver to the Trustee 
the written direction of an Authorized Officer to pay from the Series 2020 Rebate 
Account, or from any other available funds as shall be provided in such written 
direction, the Rebate Amount to the District for remittance to the Internal Revenue 
Service.  The Trustee may conclusively rely on such written direction and shall have 
no responsibility for the calculation or payment of the Rebate Amount, if any.  The 
District shall not be required to provide the report of the Rebate Analyst to the 
Trustee. 

Section 710. Provisions Relating to Bankruptcy or Insolvency of 
Landowner.  (a)  The provisions of this Section 710 shall be applicable both before 
and after the commencement, whether voluntary or involuntary, of any case, 
proceeding or other action by or against any owner of any tax parcel, or tax parcels 
which are in the aggregate, subject to at least five percent of the Series 2020 
Assessments pledged to the Series 2020 Bonds (an "Insolvent Taxpayer") under any 
existing or future law of any jurisdiction relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, 
reorganization, assignment for the benefit of creditors, or relief of debtors (a 
"Proceeding"). 

(b) The District acknowledges and agrees that, although the Series 2020 
Bonds were issued by the District, the Owners of the Series 2020 Bonds are 
categorically the party with the ultimate financial stake in the transaction and, 
consequently, the party with a vested and pecuniary interest in a Proceeding.  In the 
event of any Proceeding involving an Insolvent Taxpayer:  

(i) the District hereby agrees that it shall seek to secure the written 
consent of the Trustee, acting at the direction of the Majority Owners of the 
Series 2020 Bonds then Outstanding, prior to making any election, giving any 
consent, commencing any action or filing any motion, claim, obligation, notice 
or application or in taking any other action or position in any Proceeding or in 
any action related to a Proceeding that affects, either directly or indirectly, the 
Series 2020 Assessments, the Series 2020 Bonds then Outstanding or any 
rights of the Trustee under the Indenture (provided, however, the Trustee shall 
be deemed to have consented, on behalf of the Majority Owners of the Series 
2020 Bonds then Outstanding, to the proposed action if the District does not 
receive a written response from the Trustee within 60 days following request 
for consent);  



 

26 

(ii) the District hereby agrees that it shall not make any election, give 
any consent, commence any action or file any motion, claim, obligation, notice 
or application or take any other action or position in any Proceeding or in any 
action related to a Proceeding that affects, either directly or indirectly, the 
Series 2020 Assessments, the Series 2020 Bonds then Outstanding or any 
rights of the Trustee under the Indenture that are inconsistent with any 
written consent received (or deemed received) from the Trustee;  

(iii) the District hereby agrees that it shall seek the written consent 
of the Trustee prior to filing and voting in any such Proceeding (provided, 
however, the Trustee shall be deemed to have consented, on behalf of the 
Majority Owners of the Series 2020 Bonds then Outstanding, to the proposed 
action if the District does not receive a written response from the Trustee 
within 60 days following request for consent);  

(iv) the Trustee shall have the right, by interpleader or otherwise, to 
seek or oppose any relief in any such Proceeding that the District, as claimant 
with respect to the Series 2020 Assessments, would have the right to pursue, 
and, if the Trustee chooses to exercise any such rights, the District shall not 
oppose the Trustee in seeking to exercise any and all rights and taking any and 
all actions available to the District in connection with any Proceeding of any 
Insolvent Taxpayer, including, without limitation, the right to file and/or 
prosecute and/or defend any claims and proofs of claims, to vote to accept or 
reject a plan, to seek dismissal of the Proceeding, to seek stay relief to 
commence or continue foreclosure or pursue any other available remedies as to 
the Series 2020 Assessments, to seek substantive consolidation, to seek to 
shorten the Insolvent Taxpayer's exclusivity periods or to oppose any motion 
to extend such exclusivity periods, to oppose any motion for use of cash 
collateral or for authority to obtain financing, to oppose any sale procedures 
motion or any sale motion, to propose a competing plan of reorganization or 
liquidation, or to make any election under Section 1111(b) of the Bankruptcy 
Code; and  

(v) the District shall not challenge the validity or amount of any 
claim submitted in good faith in such Proceeding by the Trustee or any 
valuations of the lands owned by any Insolvent Taxpayer submitted in good 
faith by the Trustee in such Proceeding or take any other action in such 
Proceeding, which is adverse to the Trustee's enforcement of the District's 
claim and rights with respect to the Series 2020 Assessments or receipt of 
adequate protection (as that term is defined in the Bankruptcy Code).  Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, the District agrees that the Trustee 
shall have the right to (A) file a proof of claim with respect to the Series 2020 
Assessments, (B) deliver to the District a copy thereof, together with evidence 
of the filing with the appropriate court or other authority, and (C) defend any 
objection filed to said proof of claim.  



 

27 

The District acknowledges and agrees that it shall not be a defense to a 
breach of the foregoing covenants that it has acted on advice of counsel in not 
complying with the foregoing covenants. 

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (b) above, nothing in this 
Section 710 shall preclude the District from becoming a party to a Proceeding in order 
to enforce a claim for Operation and Maintenance Assessments, and the District shall 
be free to pursue such a claim in such manner as it shall deem appropriate in its sole 
and absolute discretion.  Any actions taken by the District in pursuance of its claim 
for Operation and Maintenance Assessments in any Proceeding shall not be 
considered an action adverse or inconsistent with the Trustee's rights or consents 
with respect to the Series 2020 Assessments whether such claim is pursued by the 
District or the Trustee; provided, however, that the District shall not oppose any relief 
sought by the Trustee under the authority granted to the Trustee in clause (b)(iv) 
above. 

Section 711. Additional Events of Default.  Section 902 of the Master 
Indenture is hereby amended with respect to the Series 2020 Bonds by inserting at 
the conclusion thereof the following paragraph: 

"(h) More than twenty-five percent (25%) of the Series 2020 Assessments 
shall have become Delinquent Assessments and remain delinquent for more than 
ninety (90) days and the Indenture provides for the Trustee to withdraw funds from 
the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account or the Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account to pay 
Debt Service on the Series 2020A-1 Bonds or Series 2020A-2 Bonds, as applicable 
(regardless of whether the Trustee does or does not, per the direction of the Majority 
Owners, actually withdraw such funds from the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account or 
the Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account to pay Debt Service on the Series 2020A-1 Bonds 
or the Series 2020A-2 Bonds, as applicable); 

(i) Breach by the District of any covenant made by it in the Indenture, 
whether or not notice of such breach has been given and without the necessity for the 
passage of time; and 

(j) More than twenty percent (20%) of the Operation and Maintenance 
Assessments levied by the District have not been paid, when due, and remain 
delinquent for more than sixty (60) days." 

Section 712. Enforcement of Remedies.  Anything herein or in the 
Master Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, the District covenants and agrees 
that it will take such actions to enforce the remedial provisions of the Indenture, the 
provisions for the collection of Delinquent Assessments, including delinquent Direct 
Billed Operation and Maintenance Assessments, the provisions for the foreclosure of 
liens of Delinquent Assessments, including delinquent Direct Billed Operation and 
Maintenance Assessments, and will take such other appropriate remedial actions as 
shall be directed by the Trustee acting at the direction of, and on behalf of, the 



 

28 

Majority Owners. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, and unless 
otherwise directed by the Majority Owners and allowed pursuant to Federal or State 
law, the District acknowledges and agrees that (i) upon failure of any property owner 
to pay an installment of Series 2020 Assessments collected directly by the District 
when due, that the entire Series 2020 Assessment on the tax parcel as to which such 
Delinquent Assessment appertains, with interest and penalties thereon, shall 
immediately become due and payable as provided by applicable law and the District 
shall promptly cause to be brought the necessary legal proceedings for the foreclosure 
of liens of Delinquent Assessments, including interest and penalties with respect to 
such tax parcel and (ii) the foreclosure proceedings shall be prosecuted to a sale and 
conveyance of the property involved in said proceedings as now provided by law in 
suits to foreclose mortgages. 

Section 713. Requisite Owners for Direction or Consent.  Anything in 
the Master Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, any direction or consent or 
similar provision which requires 51% of the Owners, shall in each case be deemed to 
refer to, and shall mean, the Majority Owners.  

Section 714. No Duty to File Annual Report.  Anything in Section 808(a) 
of the Master Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, the District shall not be 
required to file an annual report with the Trustee.  

Section 715. Brokerage Statements.  The District acknowledges that to 
the extent regulations of the Comptroller of the Currency or other applicable 
regulatory entity grant the District the right to receive individual confirmations of 
security transactions at no additional cost, as they occur, the District specifically 
waives receipt of such confirmations to the extent permitted by law.  The Trustee will 
furnish the District periodic cash transaction statements that include detail for all 
investment transactions made by the Trustee hereunder.  

Section 716. Patriot Act Requirements of the Trustee.  To help the 
government fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering activities, federal 
law requires all financial institutions to obtain, verify, and record information that 
identifies each person who opens an account.  For a non-individual person such as a 
business entity, a charity, a trust, or other legal entity, the Trustee will ask for 
documentation to verify such non-individual person's formation and existence as a 
legal entity.  The Trustee may also ask to see financial statements, licenses, 
identification and authorization documents from individuals claiming authority to 
represent the entity or other relevant documentation.  

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 



 

29 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Rolling Hills Community Development District 
has caused this Fifth Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its name and on its 
behalf by its Chairman, and its official seal to be hereunto affixed and attested by its 
[Assistant] Secretary, thereunto duly authorized, and to evidence its acceptance of 
the trusts hereby created, the Trustee has caused this Fifth Supplemental Indenture 
to be signed in its name and on its behalf by its duly authorized Vice President. 

 
(SEAL) 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Attest: 
 
 
      By:___________________________________ 
[Assistant] Secretary Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 

 
 
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,  
 as Trustee  

 
 
 

By:____________________________________ 
 Vice President 



 

A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF SERIES 2020 PROJECT 

 

[See Report of District Engineer Attached Hereto] 



 

B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

FORMS OF SERIES 2020 BONDS 

[FORM OF SERIES 2020A-1 BOND] 

No. 2020A-1R- $[__] 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BOND,  

SERIES 2020A-1 
 

Interest Rate Maturity Date Dated Date CUSIP 
% May 1, 20[__] [Closing Date]  

 
Registered Owner:   CEDE & CO. 

Principal Amount:   

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a 
community development district duly established and existing pursuant to Chapter 
190, Florida Statutes (the "District"), for value received, hereby promises to pay (but 
only out of the sources hereinafter mentioned) to the registered Owner set forth 
above, or registered assigns, on the maturity date shown hereon, unless this Bond 
shall have been called for redemption in whole or in part and payment of the 
Redemption Price (as defined in the Indenture hereinafter mentioned) shall have 
been duly made or provided for, the principal amount shown above and to pay (but 
only out of the sources hereinafter mentioned) interest on the outstanding principal 
amount hereof from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has 
been paid or provided for or, if no interest has been paid, from the Dated Date shown 
above on May 1 and November 1 of each year (each, an "Interest Payment Date"), 
commencing on May 1, 2021, until payment of said principal sum has been made or 
provided for, at the rate per annum set forth above.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
if any Interest Payment Date is not a Business Day (as defined in the Indenture 
hereinafter mentioned), then all amounts due on such Interest Payment Date shall 
be payable on the first Business Day succeeding such Interest Payment Date, but 
shall be deemed paid on such Interest Payment Date.  The interest so payable, and 
punctually paid or duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date will, as provided 
in the Indenture (hereinafter defined), be paid to the registered Owner hereof at the 
close of business on the regular Record Date for such interest, which shall be the 15th 
day of the calendar month preceding such Interest Payment Date or, if such day is 
not a Business Day, on the Business Day immediately preceding such day; provided, 
however, that on or after the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default under 



 

B-2 

clause (a) of Section 902 of the Master Indenture (hereinafter defined), the payment 
of interest and principal or Redemption Price or Amortization Installments shall be 
made by the Paying Agent (hereinafter defined) to such person who, on a special 
record date which is fixed by the Trustee, which shall be not more than 15 and not 
less than 10 days prior to the date of such proposed payment, appears on the 
registration books of the Bond Registrar as the registered Owner of this Bond.  Any 
payment of principal, Amortization Installment or Redemption Price shall be made 
only upon presentation hereof at the designated corporate trust office of U.S. Bank 
National Association, located in Orlando, Florida, or any alternate or successor 
paying agent (collectively, the "Paying Agent"), unless the Bonds are held in the book-
entry system in which case presentation shall not be required.  Payment of interest 
shall be made by check or draft (or by wire transfer to the registered Owner set forth 
above if such Owner requests such method of payment in writing on or prior to the 
regular Record Date for the respective interest payment to such account as shall be 
specified in such request, but only if the registered Owner set forth above owns not 
less than $1,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of the Series 2020 Bonds, as 
defined below).  Interest on this Bond will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year 
of twelve 30-day months.  During any period that this Bond is registered in the name 
of Cede & Co., as Nominee of DTC, the provisions of the Supplemental Indenture 
(hereinafter defined) relating to the book-entry only system shall apply, including the 
payment provisions thereof.  Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined 
shall have the same meaning as set forth in the hereinafter defined Indenture. 

This Bond is one of a duly authorized issue of Bonds of the District designated 
"$[A-1 Amount] Rolling Hills Community Development District Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A-1" and "$[A-2 Amount] Rolling Hills Community 
Development District Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 
2020A-2" (collectively, the "Series 2020 Bonds") issued as one Series under a Master 
Trust Indenture, dated as of November 1, 2006 (the "Master Indenture"), between the 
District and U.S. Bank National Association, Orlando, Florida, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"), as amended and supplemented by a Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture, 
dated as of September 1, 2020 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and together with the 
Master Indenture, the "Indenture"), between the District and the Trustee (the Series 
2020 Bonds together with any other Bonds issued under and governed by the terms 
of the Master Indenture are hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Bonds").  The 
District will apply the proceeds of the Series 2020 Bonds to (i) currently refund and 
redeem a portion of the District's Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2015A-3, (ii) finance the Cost of the Series 2020 Project, (iii) pay certain costs 
associated with the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds, and (iv) make a deposit into 
the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account to be held for the benefit of all of the Series 
2020A-1 Bonds and into the Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account to be held for the benefit 
of all of the Series 2020A-2 Bonds.  

NEITHER THIS BOND NOR THE INTEREST AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, 
PAYABLE HEREON SHALL CONSTITUTE A GENERAL OBLIGATION OR 



 

B-3 

GENERAL INDEBTEDNESS OF THE DISTRICT WITHIN THE MEANING OF 
THE CONSTITUTION AND LAWS OF FLORIDA.  THIS BOND AND THE SERIES 
OF WHICH IT IS A PART AND THE INTEREST AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, 
PAYABLE HEREON AND THEREON DO NOT CONSTITUTE EITHER A PLEDGE 
OF THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE DISTRICT OR A LIEN UPON ANY 
PROPERTY OF THE DISTRICT OTHER THAN AS PROVIDED IN THE 
INDENTURE.  NO OWNER OR ANY OTHER PERSON SHALL EVER HAVE THE 
RIGHT TO COMPEL THE EXERCISE OF ANY AD VALOREM TAXING POWER 
OF THE DISTRICT OR ANY OTHER PUBLIC AUTHORITY OR GOVERNMENTAL 
BODY TO PAY DEBT SERVICE OR TO PAY ANY OTHER AMOUNTS REQUIRED 
TO BE PAID PURSUANT TO THE INDENTURE OR THE TERMS HEREOF.  
RATHER, DEBT SERVICE AND ANY OTHER AMOUNTS REQUIRED TO BE 
PAID PURSUANT TO THE INDENTURE OR THE TERMS HEREOF SHALL BE 
PAYABLE SOLELY FROM, AND SHALL BE SECURED SOLELY BY, THE SERIES 
2020 PLEDGED REVENUES AND THE SERIES 2020 PLEDGED FUNDS 
PLEDGED TO THE SERIES 2020 BONDS, ALL AS PROVIDED HEREIN AND IN 
THE INDENTURE. 

This Bond is issued under and pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the 
State of Florida, particularly Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, and other applicable 
provisions of law and pursuant to the Indenture, executed counterparts of which 
Indenture are on file at the corporate trust office of the Trustee.  Reference is hereby 
made to the Indenture for the provisions, among others, with respect to the custody 
and application of the proceeds of Series 2020 Bonds issued under the Indenture, the 
collection and disposition of revenues and the funds charged with and pledged to the 
payment of the principal, Amortization Installments and Redemption Price of, and 
the interest on, the Series 2020 Bonds, the nature and extent of the security thereby 
created, the covenants of the District with respect to the levy and collection of Series 
2020 Assessments, the terms and conditions under which the Series 2020 Bonds are 
or may be issued, the rights, duties, obligations and immunities of the District and 
the Trustee under the Indenture and the rights of the Owners of the Series 2020 
Bonds and, by the acceptance of this Bond, the Owner hereof assents to all of the 
provisions of the Indenture.  The Series 2020 Bonds are equally and ratably secured 
by the Series 2020 Trust Estate, without preference or priority of one Series 2020 
Bond over another.  The Supplemental Indenture does not authorize the issuance of 
any Additional Bonds ranking on parity with the Series 2020 Bonds as to the lien and 
pledge of the Series 2020 Trust Estate except, under certain circumstances, 
Refunding Bonds, and the Supplemental Indenture contains provisions limiting the 
imposition of capital Assessments on property subject to the Series 2020 
Assessments.  

The Series 2020 Bonds are issuable only as registered bonds without coupons 
in current interest form in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof 
(an "Authorized Denomination"); provided, however, that the Series 2020 Bonds shall 
be delivered to the initial purchasers thereof only in aggregate principal amounts of 



 

B-4 

$100,000 or integral multiples of Authorized Denominations in excess of $100,000.  
This Bond is transferable by the registered Owner hereof or his duly authorized 
attorney at the designated corporate trust office of the Trustee in Orlando, Florida, 
as Bond Registrar (the "Bond Registrar"), upon surrender of this Bond, accompanied 
by a duly executed instrument of transfer in form and with guaranty of signature 
reasonably satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, subject to such reasonable regulations 
as the District or the Bond Registrar may prescribe, and upon payment of any taxes 
or other governmental charges incident to such transfer.  Upon any such transfer a 
new Bond or Bonds, in the same aggregate principal amount as the Bond or Bonds 
transferred, will be issued to the transferee.  At the corporate trust office of the Bond 
Registrar in Orlando, Florida, in the manner and subject to the limitations and 
conditions provided in the Master Indenture and without cost, except for any tax or 
other governmental charge, Bonds may be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal 
amount of Bonds of the same maturity, of Authorized Denominations and bearing 
interest at the same rate or rates. 

The Series 2020A-1 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the 
option of the District in whole or in part on any date on or after May 1, 20[__] at the 
Redemption Price of the principal amount of the Series 2020A-1 Bonds or portions 
thereof to be redeemed together with accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

 
The Series 2020A-1 Bonds maturing May 1, 20[__], are subject to mandatory 

redemption in part by the District by lot prior to their scheduled maturity from 
moneys in the Series 2020A-1 Sinking Fund Account established under the 
Supplemental Indenture in satisfaction of applicable Amortization Installments at 
the Redemption Price of the principal amount thereof, without premium, together 
with accrued interest to the date of redemption on May 1 of the years and in the 
principal amounts set forth below: 

May 1  
of the Year 

Amortization 
Installment 

May 1  
of the Year 

Amortization 
Installment 

    
    
    

  
* Final maturity 

The Series 2020A-1 Bonds maturing May 1, 20[__], are subject to mandatory 
redemption in part by the District by lot prior to their scheduled maturity from 
moneys in the Series 2020A-1 Sinking Fund Account established under the 
Supplemental Indenture in satisfaction of applicable Amortization Installments at 
the Redemption Price of the principal amount thereof, without premium, together 
with accrued interest to the date of redemption on May 1 of the years and in the 
principal amounts set forth below: 



 

B-5 

May 1  
of the Year 

Amortization 
Installment 

May 1  
of the Year 

Amortization 
Installment 

    
    
    

  
* Final maturity 

The Series 2020A-1 Bonds maturing May 1, 20[__], are subject to mandatory 
redemption in part by the District by lot prior to their scheduled maturity from 
moneys in the Series 2020A-1 Sinking Fund Account established under the 
Supplemental Indenture in satisfaction of applicable Amortization Installments at 
the Redemption Price of the principal amount thereof, without premium, together 
with accrued interest to the date of redemption on May 1 of the years and in the 
principal amounts set forth below: 

May 1  
of the Year 

Amortization 
Installment 

May 1  
of the Year 

Amortization 
Installment 

    
    
    

  
* Final maturity 

The Series 2020A-1 Bonds maturing May 1, 20[__], are subject to mandatory 
redemption in part by the District by lot prior to their scheduled maturity from 
moneys in the Series 2020A-1 Sinking Fund Account established under the 
Supplemental Indenture in satisfaction of applicable Amortization Installments at 
the Redemption Price of the principal amount thereof, without premium, together 
with accrued interest to the date of redemption on May 1 of the years and in the 
principal amounts set forth below: 

May 1  
of the Year 

Amortization 
Installment 

May 1  
of the Year 

Amortization 
Installment 

    
    
    

  
* Final maturity 

As more particularly set forth in the Indenture, any Series 2020A-1 Bonds that 
are purchased by the District with amounts held to pay an Amortization Installment 
will be cancelled and the principal amount so purchased will be applied as a credit 
against the applicable Amortization Installment of Series 2020A-1 Bonds.  
Amortization Installments are also subject to recalculation, as provided in the 



 

B-6 

Supplemental Indenture, as the result of the redemption of Series 2020A-1 Bonds 
other than from scheduled Amortization Installments so as to reamortize the 
remaining Outstanding principal balance of the Series 2020A-1 Bonds as set forth in 
the Supplemental Indenture. 

The Series 2020A-1 Bonds are subject to extraordinary mandatory redemption 
prior to maturity in whole or in part on any Redemption Date at the Redemption 
Price of 100% of the principal amount thereof, without premium, together with 
accrued interest to the Redemption Date, if and to the extent that any one or more of 
the following shall have occurred: 

(a) after there are no longer Series 2020A-2 Bonds Outstanding, on or after 
the Date of Completion of the Series 2020 Project, by application of moneys 
transferred from the Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account to the Series 
2020A-1 Prepayment Subaccount as provided for in the Indenture; or 

(b) from amounts, including Series 2020A-1 Prepayments, required by the 
Indenture to be deposited into the Series 2020A-1 Prepayment Subaccount; or 

(c) from amounts transferred from the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account to 
the Series 2020A-1 Prepayment Subaccount resulting from a reduction in the Series 
2020A-1 Reserve Account Requirement as provided for in the Indenture; or 

(d) on the date on which the amount on deposit in the Series 2020A-1 
Reserve Account, together with other moneys available therefor, are sufficient to pay 
and redeem all of the Series 2020A-1 Bonds then Outstanding, including accrued 
interest thereon. 

If less than all of the Series 2020A-1 Bonds shall be called for redemption, the 
particular Series 2020A-1 Bonds or portions of Series 2020A-1 Bonds to be redeemed 
shall be selected by lot by the Bond Registrar as provided in the Indenture, or as 
provided or directed by DTC. 

Notice of each redemption of Series 2020 Bonds is required to be mailed by the 
Bond Registrar, postage prepaid, not less than 30 nor more than 45 days prior to the 
date of redemption to each registered Owner of Series 2020 Bonds to be redeemed at 
the address of such registered Owner recorded on the bond register maintained by 
the Bond Registrar.  On the date designated for redemption, notice having been given 
and money for the payment of the Redemption Price being held by the Paying Agent, 
all as provided in the Indenture, the Series 2020 Bonds or such portions thereof so 
called for redemption shall become and be due and payable at the Redemption Price 
provided for the redemption of such Series 2020 Bonds or such portions thereof on 
such date, interest on such Series 2020 Bonds or such portions thereof so called for 
redemption shall cease to accrue, such Series 2020 Bonds or such portions thereof so 
called for redemption shall cease to be entitled to any benefit or security under the 
Indenture and the Owners thereof shall have no rights in respect of such Series 2020 



 

B-7 

Bonds or such portions thereof so called for redemption except to receive payments of 
the Redemption Price thereof so held by the Paying Agent.  Further notice of 
redemption shall be given by the Bond Registrar to certain registered securities 
depositories and information services as set forth in the Indenture, but no defect in 
said further notice nor any failure to give all or any portion of such further notice 
shall in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for redemption if notice thereof 
is given as above prescribed. 

Pursuant to the Indenture, notice of optional redemption may be conditioned 
upon the occurrence or non-occurrence of such event or events or upon the later 
deposit of moneys therefor as shall be specified in such notice of optional redemption 
and may also be subject to rescission by the District if expressly set forth in such 
notice. 

The Owner of this Bond shall have no right to enforce the provisions of the 
Indenture or to institute an action to enforce the covenants therein, or to take any 
action with respect to any Event of Default under the Indenture, or to institute, 
appear in or defend any suit or other proceeding with respect thereto, except as 
provided in the Indenture. 

In certain events, on the conditions, in the manner and with the effect set forth 
in the Indenture, the principal of all the Series 2020 Bonds then Outstanding under 
the Indenture may become and may be declared due and payable before the stated 
maturities thereof, with the interest accrued thereon. 

Modifications or alterations of the Master Indenture or of any indenture 
supplemental thereto may be made only to the extent and in the circumstances 
permitted by the Master Indenture. 

Any moneys held by the Trustee or any Paying Agent in trust for the payment 
and discharge of any Bond which remain unclaimed for two years after the date when 
such Bond has become due and payable, either at its stated maturity date or by call 
for earlier redemption, if such moneys were held by the Trustee or any Paying Agent 
at such date, or for two years after the date of deposit of such moneys if deposited 
with the Trustee or Paying Agent after the date when such Bond became due and 
payable, shall be paid to the District, and thereupon and thereafter no claimant shall 
have any rights against the Paying Agent to or in respect of such moneys. 

If the District deposits or causes to be deposited with the Trustee cash or 
Federal Securities sufficient to pay the principal or Redemption Price of any 
Series 2020 Bonds becoming due at maturity or by call for redemption in the manner 
set forth in the Indenture, together with the interest accrued to the due date, the lien 
of the Series 2020 Bonds as to the Series 2020 Trust Estate shall be discharged, 
except for the rights of the Owners thereof with respect to the funds so deposited as 
provided in the Indenture. 



 

B-8 

This Bond shall have all the qualities and incidents, including negotiability, of 
investment securities within the meaning and for all the purposes of the Uniform 
Commercial Code of the State of Florida. 

This Bond is issued with the intent that the laws of the State of Florida shall 
govern its construction. 

All acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and laws of the 
State of Florida and the resolutions of the District to happen, exist and be performed 
precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond and the execution of the Indenture, have 
happened, exist and have been performed as so required.  This Bond shall not be valid 
or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any benefit or security under 
the Indenture until it shall have been authenticated by the execution by the Trustee 
of the Certificate of Authentication endorsed hereon. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 



 

B-9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Rolling Hills Community Development District 
has caused this Bond to bear the signature of the Chairman of its Board of 
Supervisors and the official seal of the District to be impressed or imprinted hereon 
and attested by the signature of the [Assistant] Secretary to the Board of Supervisors. 

Attest: ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
 
  By:  
[Assistant] Secretary Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

 

(SEAL) 

 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This Bond is one of the Bonds of the Series designated herein, described in the 
within-mentioned Indenture. 

 U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,  
 as Trustee 
 
Date of Authentication: 
 By:  
[Closing Date]   Vice President 

 

CERTIFICATE OF VALIDATION 

This Bond is one of a Series of Bonds which were validated by judgment of the 
Fourth Judicial Circuit of Florida, in and for Clay County rendered on September 11, 
2006. 

 

   
 Chairman, Board of Supervisors, 
 Rolling Hills  
 Community Development District 



 

B-10 

[FORM OF ABBREVIATIONS] 

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of the 
within Bond, shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to 
applicable laws or regulations. 

TEN COM as tenants in common 

TEN ENT as tenants by the entireties 

JT TEN as joint tenants with the right of survivorship and not as tenants in 
common 

UNIFORM TRANSFER MIN ACT - __________ Custodian __________ under 
Uniform Transfer to Minors Act __________ (Cust.) (Minor) 

 (State) 

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list. 

 

[FORM OF ASSIGNMENT] 

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
_____________________ the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby 
irrevocably constitutes and appoints _________________________________, attorney to 
transfer the said Bond on the books of the District, with full power of substitution in 
the premises. 

Dated: 

Social Security Number or Employer: 

Identification Number of Transferee: 

Signature guaranteed: 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an institution which is a 
participant in the Securities Transfer Agent Medallion Program (STAMP) or similar 
program. 

NOTICE:  The assignor's signature to this Assignment must correspond with 
the name as it appears on the face of the within Bond in every particular without 
alteration or any change whatever. 



 

B-11 

[FORM OF SERIES 2020A-2 BOND] 

No. 2020A-2R- $[__] 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE AND REFUNDING BOND,  

SERIES 2020A-2 
 

Interest Rate Maturity Date Dated Date CUSIP 
% May 1, 20[__] [Closing Date]  

 
Registered Owner:   CEDE & CO. 

Principal Amount:   

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a 
community development district duly established and existing pursuant to Chapter 
190, Florida Statutes (the "District"), for value received, hereby promises to pay (but 
only out of the sources hereinafter mentioned) to the registered Owner set forth 
above, or registered assigns, on the maturity date shown hereon, unless this Bond 
shall have been called for redemption in whole or in part and payment of the 
Redemption Price (as defined in the Indenture hereinafter mentioned) shall have 
been duly made or provided for, the principal amount shown above and to pay (but 
only out of the sources hereinafter mentioned) interest on the outstanding principal 
amount hereof from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has 
been paid or provided for or, if no interest has been paid, from the Dated Date shown 
above on May 1 and November 1 of each year (each, an "Interest Payment Date"), 
commencing on May 1, 2021, until payment of said principal sum has been made or 
provided for, at the rate per annum set forth above.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
if any Interest Payment Date is not a Business Day (as defined in the Indenture 
hereinafter mentioned), then all amounts due on such Interest Payment Date shall 
be payable on the first Business Day succeeding such Interest Payment Date, but 
shall be deemed paid on such Interest Payment Date.  The interest so payable, and 
punctually paid or duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date will, as provided 
in the Indenture (hereinafter defined), be paid to the registered Owner hereof at the 
close of business on the regular Record Date for such interest, which shall be the 15th 
day of the calendar month preceding such Interest Payment Date or, if such day is 
not a Business Day, on the Business Day immediately preceding such day; provided, 
however, that on or after the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default under 
clause (a) of Section 902 of the Master Indenture (hereinafter defined), the payment 
of interest and principal or Redemption Price or Amortization Installments shall be 
made by the Paying Agent (hereinafter defined) to such person who, on a special 
record date which is fixed by the Trustee, which shall be not more than 15 and not 



 

B-12 

less than 10 days prior to the date of such proposed payment, appears on the 
registration books of the Bond Registrar as the registered Owner of this Bond.  Any 
payment of principal or Redemption Price shall be made only upon presentation 
hereof at the designated corporate trust office of U.S. Bank National Association, 
located in Orlando, Florida, or any alternate or successor paying agent (collectively, 
the "Paying Agent"), unless the Bonds are held in the book-entry system in which 
case presentation shall not be required.  Payment of interest shall be made by check 
or draft (or by wire transfer to the registered Owner set forth above if such Owner 
requests such method of payment in writing on or prior to the regular Record Date 
for the respective interest payment to such account as shall be specified in such 
request, but only if the registered Owner set forth above owns not less than 
$1,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of the Series 2020 Bonds, as defined 
below).  Interest on this Bond will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of 
twelve 30-day months.  During any period that this Bond is registered in the name of 
Cede & Co., as Nominee of DTC, the provisions of the Supplemental Indenture 
(hereinafter defined) relating to the book-entry only system shall apply, including the 
payment provisions thereof.  Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined 
shall have the same meaning as set forth in the hereinafter defined Indenture. 

This Bond is one of a duly authorized issue of Bonds of the District designated 
"$[A-1 Amount] Rolling Hills Community Development District Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A-1" and "$[A-2 Amount] Rolling Hills Community 
Development District Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 
2020A-2" (collectively, the "Series 2020 Bonds") issued as one Series under a Master 
Trust Indenture, dated as of November 1, 2006 (the "Master Indenture"), between the 
District and U.S. Bank National Association, Orlando, Florida, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"), as amended and supplemented by a Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture, 
dated as of September 1, 2020 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and together with the 
Master Indenture, the "Indenture"), between the District and the Trustee (the Series 
2020 Bonds together with any other Bonds issued under and governed by the terms 
of the Master Indenture are hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Bonds").  The 
District will apply the proceeds of the Series 2020 Bonds to (i) currently refund and 
redeem a portion of the District's Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2015A-3, (ii) finance the Cost of the Series 2020 Project, (iii) pay certain costs 
associated with the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds, and (iv) make a deposit into 
the Series 2020A-1 Reserve Account to be held for the benefit of all of the Series 
2020A-1 Bonds and into the Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account to be held for the benefit 
of all of the Series 2020A-2 Bonds.  

NEITHER THIS BOND NOR THE INTEREST AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, 
PAYABLE HEREON SHALL CONSTITUTE A GENERAL OBLIGATION OR 
GENERAL INDEBTEDNESS OF THE DISTRICT WITHIN THE MEANING OF 
THE CONSTITUTION AND LAWS OF FLORIDA.  THIS BOND AND THE SERIES 
OF WHICH IT IS A PART AND THE INTEREST AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, 
PAYABLE HEREON AND THEREON DO NOT CONSTITUTE EITHER A PLEDGE 



 

B-13 

OF THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE DISTRICT OR A LIEN UPON ANY 
PROPERTY OF THE DISTRICT OTHER THAN AS PROVIDED IN THE 
INDENTURE.  NO OWNER OR ANY OTHER PERSON SHALL EVER HAVE THE 
RIGHT TO COMPEL THE EXERCISE OF ANY AD VALOREM TAXING POWER 
OF THE DISTRICT OR ANY OTHER PUBLIC AUTHORITY OR GOVERNMENTAL 
BODY TO PAY DEBT SERVICE OR TO PAY ANY OTHER AMOUNTS REQUIRED 
TO BE PAID PURSUANT TO THE INDENTURE OR THE TERMS HEREOF.  
RATHER, DEBT SERVICE AND ANY OTHER AMOUNTS REQUIRED TO BE 
PAID PURSUANT TO THE INDENTURE OR THE TERMS HEREOF SHALL BE 
PAYABLE SOLELY FROM, AND SHALL BE SECURED SOLELY BY, THE SERIES 
2020 PLEDGED REVENUES AND THE SERIES 2020 PLEDGED FUNDS 
PLEDGED TO THE SERIES 2020 BONDS, ALL AS PROVIDED HEREIN AND IN 
THE INDENTURE. 

This Bond is issued under and pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the 
State of Florida, particularly Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, and other applicable 
provisions of law and pursuant to the Indenture, executed counterparts of which 
Indenture are on file at the corporate trust office of the Trustee.  Reference is hereby 
made to the Indenture for the provisions, among others, with respect to the custody 
and application of the proceeds of Series 2020 Bonds issued under the Indenture, the 
collection and disposition of revenues and the funds charged with and pledged to the 
payment of the principal and Redemption Price of, and the interest on, the Series 
2020 Bonds, the nature and extent of the security thereby created, the covenants of 
the District with respect to the levy and collection of Series 2020 Assessments, the 
terms and conditions under which the Series 2020 Bonds are or may be issued, the 
rights, duties, obligations and immunities of the District and the Trustee under the 
Indenture and the rights of the Owners of the Series 2020 Bonds and, by the 
acceptance of this Bond, the Owner hereof assents to all of the provisions of the 
Indenture.  The Series 2020 Bonds are equally and ratably secured by the Series 2020 
Trust Estate, without preference or priority of one Series 2020 Bond over another.  
The Supplemental Indenture does not authorize the issuance of any Additional Bonds 
ranking on parity with the Series 2020 Bonds as to the lien and pledge of the Series 
2020 Trust Estate except, under certain circumstances, Refunding Bonds, and the 
Supplemental Indenture contains provisions limiting the imposition of capital 
Assessments on property subject to the Series 2020 Assessments.  

The Series 2020 Bonds are issuable only as registered bonds without coupons 
in current interest form in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof 
(an "Authorized Denomination"); provided, however, that the Series 2020 Bonds shall 
be delivered to the initial purchasers thereof only in aggregate principal amounts of 
$100,000 or integral multiples of Authorized Denominations in excess of $100,000.  
This Bond is transferable by the registered Owner hereof or his duly authorized 
attorney at the designated corporate trust office of the Trustee in Orlando, Florida, 
as Bond Registrar (the "Bond Registrar"), upon surrender of this Bond, accompanied 
by a duly executed instrument of transfer in form and with guaranty of signature 



 

B-14 

reasonably satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, subject to such reasonable regulations 
as the District or the Bond Registrar may prescribe, and upon payment of any taxes 
or other governmental charges incident to such transfer.  Upon any such transfer a 
new Bond or Bonds, in the same aggregate principal amount as the Bond or Bonds 
transferred, will be issued to the transferee.  At the corporate trust office of the Bond 
Registrar in Orlando, Florida, in the manner and subject to the limitations and 
conditions provided in the Master Indenture and without cost, except for any tax or 
other governmental charge, Bonds may be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal 
amount of Bonds of the same maturity, of Authorized Denominations and bearing 
interest at the same rate or rates. 

The Series 2020A-2 Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to maturity at 
the option of the District. 

 
The Series 2020A-2 Bonds are subject to extraordinary mandatory redemption 

prior to maturity in whole or in part on any Redemption Date at the Redemption 
Price of 100% of the principal amount thereof, without premium, together with 
accrued interest to the Redemption Date, if and to the extent that any one or more of 
the following shall have occurred: 

(a) on or after the Date of Completion of the Series 2020 Project, by 
application of moneys transferred from the Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction 
Account to the Series 2020A-2 Prepayment Subaccount as provided for in the 
Indenture; or 

(b) from amounts, including Series 2020A-2 Prepayments, required by the 
Indenture to be deposited into the Series 2020A-2 Prepayment Subaccount;  

(c) from amounts transferred from the Series 2020A-2 Reserve Account to 
the Series 2020A-2 Prepayment Subaccount resulting from a reduction in the Series 
2020A-2 Reserve Account Requirement as provided for in the Indenture; or 

(d) on the date on which the amount on deposit in the Series 2020A-2 
Reserve Account, together with other moneys available therefor, are sufficient to pay 
and redeem all of the Series 2020A-2 Bonds then Outstanding, including accrued 
interest thereon. 

If less than all of the Series 2020A-2 Bonds shall be called for redemption, the 
particular Series 2020A-2 Bonds or portions of Series 2020A-2 Bonds to be redeemed 
shall be selected by lot by the Bond Registrar as provided in the Indenture, or as 
provided or directed by DTC. 

Notice of each redemption of Series 2020 Bonds is required to be mailed by the 
Bond Registrar, postage prepaid, not less than 30 nor more than 45 days prior to the 
date of redemption to each registered Owner of Series 2020 Bonds to be redeemed at 
the address of such registered Owner recorded on the bond register maintained by 



 

B-15 

the Bond Registrar.  On the date designated for redemption, notice having been given 
and money for the payment of the Redemption Price being held by the Paying Agent, 
all as provided in the Indenture, the Series 2020 Bonds or such portions thereof so 
called for redemption shall become and be due and payable at the Redemption Price 
provided for the redemption of such Series 2020 Bonds or such portions thereof on 
such date, interest on such Series 2020 Bonds or such portions thereof so called for 
redemption shall cease to accrue, such Series 2020 Bonds or such portions thereof so 
called for redemption shall cease to be entitled to any benefit or security under the 
Indenture and the Owners thereof shall have no rights in respect of such Series 2020 
Bonds or such portions thereof so called for redemption except to receive payments of 
the Redemption Price thereof so held by the Paying Agent.  Further notice of 
redemption shall be given by the Bond Registrar to certain registered securities 
depositories and information services as set forth in the Indenture, but no defect in 
said further notice nor any failure to give all or any portion of such further notice 
shall in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for redemption if notice thereof 
is given as above prescribed. 

The Owner of this Bond shall have no right to enforce the provisions of the 
Indenture or to institute an action to enforce the covenants therein, or to take any 
action with respect to any Event of Default under the Indenture, or to institute, 
appear in or defend any suit or other proceeding with respect thereto, except as 
provided in the Indenture. 

In certain events, on the conditions, in the manner and with the effect set forth 
in the Indenture, the principal of all the Series 2020 Bonds then Outstanding under 
the Indenture may become and may be declared due and payable before the stated 
maturities thereof, with the interest accrued thereon. 

Modifications or alterations of the Master Indenture or of any indenture 
supplemental thereto may be made only to the extent and in the circumstances 
permitted by the Master Indenture. 

Any moneys held by the Trustee or any Paying Agent in trust for the payment 
and discharge of any Bond which remain unclaimed for two years after the date when 
such Bond has become due and payable, either at its stated maturity date or by call 
for earlier redemption, if such moneys were held by the Trustee or any Paying Agent 
at such date, or for two years after the date of deposit of such moneys if deposited 
with the Trustee or Paying Agent after the date when such Bond became due and 
payable, shall be paid to the District, and thereupon and thereafter no claimant shall 
have any rights against the Paying Agent to or in respect of such moneys. 

If the District deposits or causes to be deposited with the Trustee cash or 
Federal Securities sufficient to pay the principal or Redemption Price of any 
Series 2020 Bonds becoming due at maturity or by call for redemption in the manner 
set forth in the Indenture, together with the interest accrued to the due date, the lien 



 

B-16 

of the Series 2020 Bonds as to the Series 2020 Trust Estate shall be discharged, 
except for the rights of the Owners thereof with respect to the funds so deposited as 
provided in the Indenture. 

This Bond shall have all the qualities and incidents, including negotiability, of 
investment securities within the meaning and for all the purposes of the Uniform 
Commercial Code of the State of Florida. 

This Bond is issued with the intent that the laws of the State of Florida shall 
govern its construction. 

All acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and laws of the 
State of Florida and the resolutions of the District to happen, exist and be performed 
precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond and the execution of the Indenture, have 
happened, exist and have been performed as so required.  This Bond shall not be valid 
or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any benefit or security under 
the Indenture until it shall have been authenticated by the execution by the Trustee 
of the Certificate of Authentication endorsed hereon. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 



 

B-17 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Rolling Hills Community Development District 
has caused this Bond to bear the signature of the Chairman of its Board of 
Supervisors and the official seal of the District to be impressed or imprinted hereon 
and attested by the signature of the [Assistant] Secretary to the Board of Supervisors. 

Attest: ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
 
  By:  
[Assistant] Secretary Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

 

(SEAL) 

 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This Bond is one of the Bonds of the Series designated herein, described in the 
within-mentioned Indenture. 

 U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,  
 as Trustee 
 
Date of Authentication: 
 By:  
[Closing Date]   Vice President 

 

CERTIFICATE OF VALIDATION 

This Bond is one of a Series of Bonds which were validated by judgment of the 
Fourth Judicial Circuit of Florida, in and for Clay County rendered on September 11, 
2006. 

 

   
 Chairman, Board of Supervisors, 
 Rolling Hills  
 Community Development District 



 

B-18 

[FORM OF ABBREVIATIONS] 

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of the 
within Bond, shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to 
applicable laws or regulations. 

TEN COM as tenants in common 

TEN ENT as tenants by the entireties 

JT TEN as joint tenants with the right of survivorship and not as tenants in 
common 

UNIFORM TRANSFER MIN ACT - __________ Custodian __________ under 
Uniform Transfer to Minors Act __________ (Cust.) (Minor) 

 (State) 

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list. 

 

[FORM OF ASSIGNMENT] 

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
_____________________ the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby 
irrevocably constitutes and appoints _________________________________, attorney to 
transfer the said Bond on the books of the District, with full power of substitution in 
the premises. 

Dated: 

Social Security Number or Employer: 

Identification Number of Transferee: 

Signature guaranteed: 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an institution which is a 
participant in the Securities Transfer Agent Medallion Program (STAMP) or similar 
program. 

NOTICE:  The assignor's signature to this Assignment must correspond with 
the name as it appears on the face of the within Bond in every particular without 
alteration or any change whatever. 

 



 

B-1 

EXHIBIT C 

FORM OF REQUISITION FOR SERIES 2020 PROJECT 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Rolling Hills Community 
Development District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for 
disbursement under and pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from 
the District to U.S. Bank National Association, Orlando, Florida, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"), dated as of November 1, 2006 (the "Master Indenture"), as supplemented 
by the Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture from the District to the Trustee, dated as 
of September 1, 2020 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and together with the Master 
Indenture, the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning 
ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 

(B) Name of Payee: 

(C) Amount Payable: 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if 
amount is due and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments or 
state Costs of Issuance, if applicable): 

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to be 
made: 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

 obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by 
the District, that each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 
Series 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account referenced above, that each 
disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition and/or 
construction of the Series 2020 Project and each represents a Cost of the Series 2020 
Project, and has not previously been paid out of such Account;  

OR  

  this requisition is for costs of issuance payable from the Series 2020 
Costs of Issuance Account that has not previously been paid out of such Account. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or 
served upon the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim 
affecting the right to receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set 
forth above, which has not been released or will not be released simultaneously with 
the payment hereof. 

 

 

□ 

□ 



 

B-2 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item 
representing payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at 
the date of such certificate entitled to retain. 

Originals or copies of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired 
or services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested are on 
file with the District. 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

 

By:   
 Authorized Officer 

 

CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL FOR  
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

If this requisition is for a disbursement from other than the Series 2020 Costs 
of Issuance Account, the undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this 
disbursement is for a Cost of the Series 2020 Project and is consistent with (i) the 
applicable acquisition or construction contract, (ii) the plans and specifications for the 
portion of the Series 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is being 
made, and (iii) the report of the Consulting Engineer attached as an exhibit to the 
Supplemental Indenture, as such report shall have been amended or modified on the 
date hereof. 

 

______________________________ 
Consulting Engineer 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



 

1 

RESOLUTION 2020-10 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AN INDIVIDUAL 
DESIGNATED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS TO ACT AS THE DISTRICT’S 
PURCHASING AGENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROCURING, ACCEPTING, AND 
MAINTAINING ANY AND ALL CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS NECESSARY FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE OR COMPLETION OF THE 
DISTRICT’S INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS AS PROVIDED IN THE DISTRICT’S 
ADOPTED IMPROVEMENT PLAN;  PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF A WORK 
AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING FOR PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS FOR THE 
PURCHASE OF MATERIALS; APPROVING THE FORM OF A PURCHASE 
REQUISITION REQUEST; APPROVING THE FORM OF A PURCHASE ORDER; 
APPROVING THE FORM OF A CERTIFICATE OF ENTITLEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE 
PURCHASE OF INSURANCE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the Rolling Hills Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit of 
special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to construct, install, 
operate and/or maintain systems and facilities for certain basic infrastructure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”), upon recommendation of the 
District Engineer, has adopted an improvement plan for the construction and installation of 
certain infrastructure improvements within the District (“Improvements”); and 
    
 WHEREAS, the District has or will enter into various construction contracts for the 
construction and installation of the Improvements (“Construction Contract(s)”); and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Construction Contracts allow, or will be amended to allow, for the direct 
purchase by the District of certain construction materials necessary for those contracts; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the District has determined that such direct purchase of construction 
materials will provide a significant construction cost reduction that is in the best interest of the 
District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District desires to have a District representative who is familiar with the 
project and who is knowledgeable in the area of procuring and handling construction materials 
act as its representative.    



 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. The District Engineer, the District Manager or another individual as shall 
be appointed by the Board (“Purchasing Agent”) shall have the full authority of the District to 
issue purchase orders or enter into purchase agreements on behalf of the District at such times 
and intervals as it determines necessary for the timely receipt of construction materials required 
by the Contractor for the prosecution of the construction project.   
 
 SECTION 2. The Purchasing Agent shall purchase on behalf of the District only those 
materials identified in the Construction Contracts and in amounts not to exceed the cost amount 
contained therein and as included in the Construction Contracts. 
 
 SECTION 3. The Purchasing Agent shall be authorized to purchase on behalf of the 
District any additional construction materials that are identified in a schedule of values associated 
with any change order(s) to the Construction Contracts or that of any subcontractor to the 
Contractor which is approved by the District. 
  
 SECTION 4. Should the District Engineer act as the Purchasing Agent for any given 
Construction Contract, a work authorization of the District Engineer, a form of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby approved and/or ratified, and the District Engineer shall be paid 
such reasonable fees, costs and expenses, related to its actions as the District’s Purchasing Agent 
as provided for in the District Engineer’s agreement with the District. 
  
 SECTION 5.  The Purchasing Agent is further authorized to take any other administrative 
actions that are consistent with his/her duties as the Purchasing Agent, including but not limited 
to, negotiating for lower prices on materials from other suppliers, arranging for the storage, 
delivery, and protection of purchased materials, and sending and receiving notices and releases 
as are required by law.  
 
 SECTION 6.  The District Manager is hereby directed to purchase Builders All Risk 
Insurance on behalf of the District and with the District as the named insured in such amounts as 
are necessary to cover the estimated costs of the construction materials pursuant to the 
Construction Contract.  
  
 SECTION 7.  Unless otherwise provided in a written contract between the District and a 
particular contractor, the procurement procedures and its exhibits, attached hereto as 
Composite Exhibit B and incorporated herein by reference, are hereby approved and/or ratified, 
and shall be used by the Purchasing Agent for the purchase of construction materials on behalf 
of the District (also referred to as “Owner”). 
 



 

3 
 

SECTION 8.  The actions of current and prior members of the Board and District staff in 
effectuating the District’s direct purchase of materials relative to the Construction Contracts, 
including but not limited to the execution of any documents related therewith, are hereby 
determined to be in accordance with the prior authorizations of the District’s Chairman and/or 
the Board, and are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed in all respects. 
 
 SECTION 9.  If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 10.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of August, 2020. 
 
 
ATTEST:      ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
By:_____________________________  ________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairman, Board of Supervisors
            

Exhibit A   Form of Work Authorization  
Comp. Exhibit B Procurement Procedures for Direct Purchase Material 
 



 

  

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
Work Authorization 

__________________, 20__ 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Rolling Hills Community Development District 
Governmental Management Services, LLC 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St Augustine, Florida 32092 
 

Subject: Work Authorization Number ___ 
  Rolling Hills Community Development District  
 
Dear Chairman, Board of Supervisors: 
 
Hadden Engineering, Inc. (“Engineer”) is pleased to submit this work authorization to provide engineering 
services for the Rolling Hills Community Development District (“District”).  We will provide these services 
pursuant to our current agreement dated ___________________, 20__ (“Engineering Agreement”) as follows:   
 
I. Scope of Work 
The Engineer will act as Purchasing Agent for the District with respect to the direct purchase of construction 
materials for the District’s Improvements in accordance with the procurement procedures adopted by the 
Board of Supervisors. 
 
II. Compensation 
The Engineer will be compensated for this work at the hourly rates established pursuant to the Engineering 
Agreement. 
 
III. Other Direct Costs 
Other direct costs include items such as printing, drawings, travel, deliveries, et cetera, pursuant to the 
Engineering Agreement.   
 
This work authorization, together with the Engineering Agreement, as amended and supplemented, represents 
the entire understanding between the District and the Engineer with regard to the referenced services and 
supersedes any previously executed proposal or agreement related to the provision of such services.  If you 
wish to accept this work authorization, please sign where indicated and return to our office.  Thank you for the 
opportunity to be of service. 

 
APPROVED AND ACCEPTED 
 
 
By: 
  
Authorized Representative of District 
Date: 
  

 
Sincerely, 
 
 
    ________ 
Keith I. Hadden, President 
Hadden Engineering, Inc. 



 

  

 
COMPOSITE EXHIBIT B 

 
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES FOR DIRECT PURCHASE MATERIAL 

 
1. Purchase Requisition Request Forms.  At least ten (10) calendar days prior to CONTRACTOR 
ordering construction materials, CONTRACTOR shall prepare and forward to OWNER a separate 
Purchasing Requisition Request Form for each supplier in the form attached hereto as Attachment 
1, specifically identifying the construction materials which CONTRACTOR plans to order from each 
supplier so that OWNER may, in its sole discretion, elect to purchase directly such construction 
materials.  
 
2. Purchase Orders.  After receipt of the Purchasing Requisition Request Form, the OWNER 
shall prepare Purchase Orders in the form attached hereto as Attachment 2, for construction 
materials which the OWNER wishes to purchase directly.  Purchase Orders shall require that the 
supplier provide required shipping and handling insurance.  Purchase Orders shall also require the 
delivery of the Direct Purchase Materials (also referred to as “Owner Purchased Material(s)”) on the 
delivery dates provided by the CONTRACTOR in the Purchasing Requisition Request Form.  Pursuant 
to the Purchase Order, the supplier will provide the CONTRACTOR the required quantities of 
construction material at the price established in the supplier’s quote less any associated sales tax.   
 
3. Certificate of Entitlement.  The OWNER shall execute a separate Certificate of Entitlement 
for each Purchase Order in the form attached hereto as Attachment 3, and furnish a copy of same 
to the supplier and to the CONTRACTOR in accordance with Section 4.  Each Certificate of 
Entitlement must have attached thereto the corresponding Purchase Order.    
 
 Each Certificate of Entitlement shall acknowledge that if the Department of Revenue 
determines the purchase is not a tax exempt purchase by a governmental entity, then the 
governmental entity will be responsible for any tax, penalties and interest determined to be due.   
 
 Each Certificate of Entitlement shall affirm that: (1) the attached Purchase Order is being 
issued directly to the vendor supplying the tangible personal property the CONTRACTOR will use in 
the identified public works; (2) the vendor’s invoice will be issued directly to the governmental 
entity; (3) payment of the vendor’s invoice will be made directly by the governmental entity to the 
vendor from public funds; (4) the governmental entity will take title to the tangible personal 
property from the vendor at the time of purchase or of delivery by the vendor; and (5) the 
governmental entity assumes the risk of damage or loss at the time of purchase or delivery by the 
vendor. 
 
4. Transmission of Certificate of Entitlement and Attached Purchase Order.  At least two (2) 
calendar days prior to CONTRACTOR placing OWNER’S order for the construction materials, OWNER 
shall forward each Certificate of Entitlement, together with the attached Purchase Order, to 
CONTRACTOR and to supplier.  Promptly upon receipt of the Direct Purchase Materials specified in 
each Purchase Order, CONTRACTOR shall verify the purchase of the Direct Purchase Materials in 



 

  

 
accordance with the terms of the Purchase Order and in a manner to assure timely delivery of the 
Direct Purchase Materials. 
 
5. Notice of Reduction in Contract Price.  On or about the last business day of each month, 
OWNER shall deliver to the CONTRACTOR a Notice of Reduction in Contract Price (hereinafter 
“Notice”).  Each Notice shall list all Direct Purchase Materials for the respective month and the total 
price for all such construction materials, plus all sales taxes which would have been associated with 
such construction materials had the CONTRACTOR purchased the construction materials.  Each 
Notice may also include the total price and sales tax (had CONTRACTOR purchased) for any 
previously purchased Direct Purchase Materials which for any reason were not previously deducted 
from the contract price.  The contract price will be reduced automatically and as a ministerial task 
by the amount set forth in each Notice.  Each Notice will also reflect the amended contract balance 
reflecting the deductions taken in said Notice.   
 
 The intent of this provision is to cause the contract price to be reduced automatically by the 
amount OWNER pays for Direct Purchase Materials plus the amount of applicable sales tax that 
would have been paid for such construction materials, had the CONTRACTOR or any other non-tax 
exempt entity purchased the construction materials.  All savings of sales taxes shall accrue solely to 
the benefit of OWNER, and CONTRACTOR shall not benefit whatsoever from savings of any such 
taxes.  
 
6. Payment for Direct Purchase Materials.  In order to arrange for the prompt payment to 
suppliers, the CONTRACTOR shall provide to the OWNER a list indicating on behalf of the owner of 
the Direct Purchase Materials within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of said Direct Purchase 
Materials.  The list shall include a copy of the applicable Purchase Orders, invoices, delivery tickets, 
written acceptance of the delivered items, and such other documentation as may be reasonably 
required by the OWNER.  Upon receipt of the appropriate documentation, the OWNER shall prepare 
a check drawn to the supplier based upon the receipt of data provided.  OWNER will make payment 
to each supplier.  The CONTRACTOR agrees to assist the OWNER to immediately obtain appropriate 
partial or final release of waivers. 
 
 OWNER shall be responsible for the full payment of all valid and due invoices for Direct 
Purchase Materials and shall not be entitled to retain the standard five percent (5%) to ten (10%) 
percent amount of the progress payment due to the CONTRACTOR as is otherwise provided for in 
the contract documents. 
 
 CONTRACTOR shall affirm that the vendor supplying the Direct Purchase Materials is not also 
the installer of the Direct Purchase Materials.  CONTRACTOR shall further affirm that the installer of 
the Direct Purchase Materials did not manufacture, fabricate or furnish the Direct Purchase 
Materials.     
 
7. CONTRACTOR Responsibilities.  CONTRACTOR shall be fully responsible for all matters 
relating to ordering, storing, protecting, receipt, and handling for all construction materials including 



 

  

 
Direct Purchase Materials, in accordance with these procedures including, but not limited to, 
verifying correct quantities, verifying documents of orders in a timely manner, coordinating 
purchases, providing and obtaining all warranties and guarantees required by the contract 
documents, inspection and acceptance on behalf of the owner of the construction materials at the 
time of delivery, and loss or damage to the construction materials following acceptance of 
construction materials, due to the negligence of the CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR shall serve as 
bailee with respect to such Direct Purchase Materials.  The CONTRACTOR shall coordinate delivery 
schedules, sequence of delivery, loading orientation, and other arrangements normally required by 
the CONTRACTOR for the construction materials furnished including Direct Purchase Materials.  The 
CONTRACTOR shall provide all services required for the unloading, handling and storage of 
construction materials through installation including Direct Purchase Materials.  The CONTRACTOR 
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the OWNER from any and all claims of whatever nature 
resulting from non-payment for Direct Purchase Materials arising from CONTRACTOR actions. 
 
 7.1 Inspection and Documentation.  As Direct Purchase Materials are delivered to the job 
site, CONTRACTOR shall visually inspect all shipments from the suppliers, and approve the vendor’s 
invoice for construction materials delivered.  The CONTRACTOR shall assure that each delivery of 
Direct Purchase Material is accompanied by documentation adequate to identify the Purchase 
Order against which the purchase is made.  This documentation may consist of a delivery ticket and 
an invoice from the supplier conforming to the Purchase Order together with such additional 
information as the OWNER may require.   All invoices for Direct Purchase Materials shall include the 
Owner’s consumer certificate of exemption number. The CONTRACTOR will then forward all such 
invoices to the OWNER.  On or about the fifteenth (15th) and last day of each month (or the next 
succeeding business day), CONTRACTOR shall review all invoices submitted by all suppliers of Direct 
Purchase Materials delivered to the Project site(s) during that month and either concur or object to 
the OWNER’s issuance of payment to the suppliers, based upon CONTRACTOR’s records of Direct 
Purchase Materials delivered to the site and whether any defects or non-conformities exist in such 
Direct Purchase Materials. 
 
 7.2 Warranties, Guarantees, Repairs and Maintenance.  The CONTRACTOR shall be 
responsible for obtaining and managing on behalf of the Owner all warranties and guarantees for 
all construction materials as required by the contract documents and shall fully warrant all 
construction materials including all Direct Purchase Materials.  OWNER’s purchase of various 
construction materials shall not in any manner impact or reduce CONTRACTOR’s duty to warrant 
said construction materials.   The OWNER may forward all repair, maintenance, non-conforming 
construction materials calls, or any other issues relating to the construction materials to the 
CONTRACTOR for resolution with the appropriate supplier, vendor, or subcontractor.  The 
CONTRACTOR shall resolve all such calls or issues. 
 
 7.3 Records and Accountings.  The CONTRACTOR shall maintain records of all Direct 
Purchase Materials it incorporates into the work from the stock of Direct Purchase Materials in its 
possession as bailee.  The CONTRACTOR shall account monthly to the OWNER for any Direct 



 

  

 
Purchase Materials delivered into the CONTRACTOR’s possession, indicating portions of all such 
construction materials which have been incorporated into the work. 
 
 7.4 Defective or Non-conforming Construction Materials.  The CONTRACTOR shall ensure 
that Direct Purchase Materials conform to specifications and determine prior to incorporation into 
the work if such construction materials are defective or non-conforming, whether such construction 
materials are identical to the construction materials ordered and match the description on the bill 
of lading.  If the CONTRACTOR discovers defective or non-conforming Direct Purchase Material 
upon such visual inspection, the CONTRACTOR shall not utilize such non-conforming or defective 
construction materials in the work and instead shall promptly notify the OWNER of the defective or 
non-conforming conditions so repair or replacement of such construction materials can occur 
without any undue delay or interruption to the Project.  If the CONTRACTOR fails to adequately and 
properly perform such inspection or otherwise incorporates into the Project defective or non-
conforming Direct Purchase Materials, the condition of which it either knew or should have known 
by performance of an inspection, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all damages to OWNER 
resulting from CONTRACTOR’s incorporation of such construction materials into the Project, 
including any available liquidated or delay damages. 
  
8. Title.  Notwithstanding the transfer of Direct Purchase Materials by the OWNER to the 
CONTRACTOR’s possession as bailee for the OWNER, the OWNER shall retain legal and equitable 
title to any and all Direct Purchase Materials. 
 
9. Insurance and Risk of Loss.  The OWNER shall purchase and maintain Builder’s Risk Insurance 
sufficient to protect against any loss or damage to Direct Purchase Materials.  Owner shall be the 
named insured and such insurance shall cover the full value of any Direct Purchase Materials not yet 
incorporated into the Project during the period between the time the OWNER first takes title to any 
such Direct Purchase Materials and the time when the last of such Direct Purchase Materials is 
incorporated into the Project or consumed in the process of completing the Project. 
 
10. No Damages for Delay.  The OWNER shall in no way be liable for, and CONTRACTOR waives 
all claims for, any damages relating to or caused by alleged interruption or delay due to ordering or 
arrival of Direct Purchase Materials, defects, or other problems of any nature with such construction 
materials, late payment for such construction materials, or any other circumstance associated with 
Direct Purchase Materials, regardless of whether OWNER’s conduct caused, in whole or in part, such 
alleged damages.  The foregoing waiver by CONTRACTOR includes damages for acceleration and 
inefficiencies.  CONTRACTOR accepts from OWNER as further and specific consideration for the 
foregoing waivers, OWNER's undertaking to pay for and finance all Direct Purchase Materials. 
 



 

  
 

Attachment 1 
  

PURCHASE REQUISITION REQUEST FORM 
      
1. Contact Person for the material supplier. 

NAME: ________________________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS: _____________________________________________________________  

TELEPHONE NUMBER: ____________________________________________________ 

2. Manufacturer or brand, model or specification number of the item. 

 ________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________ 

3. Quantity needed as estimated by CONTRACTOR. ____________________ 

4. The price quoted by the supplier for the construction materials identified above. 

 $_________________ 

5. The sales tax associated with the price quote. $_______________________ 

6. Shipping and handling insurance cost. $____________________________ 

7. Delivery dates as established by CONTRACTOR. ___________________ 

  

  
OWNER: Rolling Hills Community Development District        
     
  ___________________________    ______________ 
  Authorized Signature (Title)     Date 
 
 
CONTRACTOR:  ___________________________  
  
  ___________________________    _______________ 
  Authorized Signature (Title)     Date 

 



 

  
 

Attachment 2 

 
PURCHASE ORDER 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

                                     “Owner”                            “Seller”    
Owner: Rolling Hills Community Development District  

 
 

Seller:  

Address:  Address:  

Phone:  Phone:  

                                     
 “Project” 

Project Name: 
 

Contract 
Date: 

 

Project Address:  
 

Goods Receiving 
Point Address:  
(if different than 
Project Address) 

 

 
Description of Goods or Services – The Owner and Seller are entering into this Purchase Order Agreement (“Order”) 
for the purpose of the Owner purchasing the items (“Goods”) listed in the proposal attached as Exhibit A. 
Schedule – The Goods shall be delivered within                                  days from the date of this Order. 
Price – $_________________________ 
Certificate of Exemption #____________________________ 
 
IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have executed this Order effective as of the date executed below.  By 
executing this document below, Seller acknowledges that it has read all of the terms and provisions of this 
Order, including the Terms and Conditions attached hereto as Exhibit B, and agrees to deliver the Goods 
as described herein and comply fully with the terms and conditions hereof. 
 

  
 

Owner  Seller 

By:        
 
 
_______________________________________
_____________ 
 
 

 By: 

Name:   Name:    

Title:     Title:       

Date Executed:     Date Executed:       
 
EXHIBIT A:   Proposal 
EXHIBIT B: Terms and Conditions 

I I 



 

  
 

EXHIBIT A 

[attach proposal]



 

  
 

EXHIBIT B 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. PRICE. The Price set forth above includes all Goods, insurance, warranties and other materials or services (including without 
limitation all packing, loading or freight) necessary to produce and deliver the Goods.   

2. SCHEDULE.  Time is of the essence with respect to this Order, and all Goods shall be produced and delivered within the times 
set forth in the Schedule.  Owner may cancel this Order or any part thereof or reject delivery of Goods if such delivery or 
performance is not in material accordance with the specifications of this Order, including the Schedule.   

3. DELIVERY AND INSPECTION. 
a. All shipments of Goods are to be made, with all shipping costs prepaid by Seller (e.g., insurance, packing, loading, 

freight, etc.), to the receiving point specified above.  Title, and risk of loss, shall pass to Owner at the time such Goods 
are delivered at the Project site and accepted by Owner or Owner’s contractor, provided however that Owner shall 
have a reasonable opportunity to inspect such Goods prior to acceptance.   

b. All Goods are subject to inspection and approval by Owner at a reasonable time post-delivery.  Owner may return Goods 
not meeting specifications (including over-shipments) at the Seller’s expense and risk.  Owner will notify Seller of failure.  
Return authorizations for Goods not received within 30 days will deem such Goods as donations to Owner. 

4. TERMS OF PAYMENT.  Seller’s Invoice (“Invoice”) must be submitted before payment will be made by Owner pursuant to 
this Order.  Owner shall make payment within 30 days of receipt of a proper invoice, and pursuant to the Local Government 
Prompt Payment Act, Sections 218.70 et seq., Florida Statutes (2019).  Any indebtedness of Seller to Owner may, at Owner’s 
option, be credited against amounts owing by Owner hereunder.  

5. WARRANTY.  Seller shall take all necessary steps to assign any manufacturer’s warranties to the Owner.  Seller warrants that 
the title to Goods conveyed shall be good, that the transfer of the Goods shall be rightful, and that the Goods shall be free 
from any security interest, lien or encumbrance.  Seller further warrants that the Goods are free of any rightful claim of 
infringement, and shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Indemnitees (defined below) against any such claim.  
Further, the Goods shall be new, shall be free from defects, shall be of merchantable quality, and shall be fit for use on the 
District’s tennis courts.  Seller agrees, without prejudice to any other rights Owner may have, to replace or otherwise remedy 
any defective Goods without further cost to Owner or, at Owner’s option, to reimburse Owner for its cost of replacing 
defective Goods.  All Goods are subject to inspection by Owner before, upon, and within a reasonable time after delivery. 
Goods shall not be replaced without Owner’s prior written instructions. Any acceptance by Owner shall not prevent Owner 
from later rejecting non-conforming Goods. The warranty provided herein shall survive the completion or termination of 
this Order and is in addition to any warranties provided by law.  

6. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW.  Seller agrees that at all times it will comply with all applicable federal, state, municipal and local 
laws, orders and regulations. 

7. INDEMNITY.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, and in addition to any other obligations of Seller under the Order or 
otherwise, Seller shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend Owner, and Owner’s supervisors, staff, consultants, agents, 
subcontractors, and employees (together, “Indemnitees”) from all liabilities, damages, losses and costs, including, but not 
limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees, to the extent caused in whole or in part by the negligence, recklessness or intentional 
wrongful misconduct of the Seller, or any subcontractor, any supplier, or any individual or entity directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them, and arising out of or incidental to the performance of this Order.  The Seller shall ensure that any 
and all subcontractors include this express provision for the benefit of the Indemnitees.  The parties agree that this paragraph 
is fully enforceable pursuant to Florida law.  In the event that this section is determined to be unenforceable, this paragraph 
shall be reformed to give the paragraph the maximum effect allowed by Florida law and for the benefit of the Indemnitees.   
The provisions of this section shall survive the completion or earlier termination of this Order, and are not intended to limit 
any of the other rights and/or remedies provided to the District hereunder. 

8. INSURANCE.  At all times during the term of this Order agreement, Seller, at its sole cost and expense, shall maintain 
insurance coverages of the types and amounts set forth below: 

a. Commercial general liability insurance with minimum limits of liability not less than $1,000,000.  Such insurance shall include 
coverage for contractual liability.  

b. Workers’ Compensation Insurance covering all employees of Seller in statutory amounts, and employer's liability insurance 
with limits of not less than $100,000 each accident.   

c. Comprehensive automobile liability insurance covering all automobiles used by Seller, with limits of liability of not less than 
$1,000,000 each occurrence combined single limit bodily injury and property damage. 

9. DEFAULT.  Upon any material default by Seller hereunder, Owner may, in addition to any other remedies available to Owner 
at law or in equity, cancel this Order without penalty or liability by written notice to Seller.   

10. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  Nothing herein shall be construed to be a waiver of the Owner’s limit of liability contained in 
Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute or law. 



 

  
 

11. WAIVER.  Any failure of Owner to enforce at any time, or for any period of time, any of the provisions of this Order shall not 
constitute a waiver of such provisions or a waiver of Owner’s right to enforce each and every provision. 

12. MODIFICATIONS.  This Order supersedes all prior discussions, agreements and understandings between the parties and 
constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the transaction herein contemplated.  Changes, 
modifications, waivers, additions or amendments to the terms and conditions of this Order shall be binding on Owner only 
if such changes, modifications, waivers, additions or amendments are in writing and signed by a duly authorized 
representative of Owner.  

13. APPLICABLE LAW.  The validity, interpretation, and performance of this Order shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Florida, in force at the date of this Order.  Where not modified by the terms herein, the provisions of Florida’s enactment of 
Article 2 of the Uniform Commercial Code shall apply to this transaction. 

14. MECHANIC’S LIENS.  Notwithstanding that Owner is a local unit of special-purpose government and not subject to the lien 
provisions of Chapter 713, Florida Statutes, Seller agrees to keep the District’s property free of all liens, including equitable 
liens, claims or encumbrances (collectively, “Liens”) arising out of the delivery of any Goods by Seller, and shall furnish Owner 
with appropriate lien waivers from all potential claimants upon request of Owner. If any Liens are filed, Owner may without 
waiving its rights based on such breach by Seller or releasing Seller from any obligations hereunder, pay or satisfy the same 
and in such event the sums so paid by Owner shall be due and payable by Seller immediately and without notice or demand, 
with interest from the date paid by Owner through the date paid by Seller, at the highest rate permitted by law.  

15. PERMITS AND LICENSES.  Before commencing performance hereunder, Seller shall obtain all permits, approvals, certificates 
and licenses necessary for the proper performance of this Order and pay all fees and charges therefore.  The originals of all 
such documents shall be delivered to Owner upon receipt by Seller. 

16. PARTIAL INVALIDITY.  If in any instance any provision of this Order shall be determined to be invalid or unenforceable under 
any applicable law, such provision shall not apply in such instance, but the remaining provisions shall be given effect in 
accordance with their terms. 

17. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING.  This Order shall not be assigned or transferred by Seller without prior written 
approval by Owner, and any attempted assignment or transfer without such consent shall be void.   

18. RELATIONSHIP.  The relationship between Owner and Seller shall be that of independent contractor, and Seller, its agents 
and employees, shall under no circumstances be deemed employees, agents or representatives of Owner.   

19. NOTICES.  Any notice, approval or other communication required hereunder must be in writing and shall be deemed given 
if delivered by hand or mailed by registered mail or certified mail addressed to the parties hereto as indicated on page 1. 

20. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES. Seller certifies, by acceptance of this purchase order, that neither it nor its principals is presently 
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 
transaction per the provisions of section 287.133(2)(a), Florida Statutes. 

21. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES. Supplier certifies, by acceptance of this purchase order, that neither it nor any of its officers, 
directors, executives, partners, shareholders, members, or agents is on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List 
or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, created pursuant to section 215.473, 
Florida Statutes, and in the event such status changes, Seller shall immediately notify Owner. 

22. TERMINATION.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Owner shall have the right, at its sole election, to terminate 
this Order for any cause whatsoever upon the delivery of written notice to Seller.  Upon such termination, Seller shall have 
no remedy against Owner, other than for payment of Goods already produced pursuant to specific written direction by 
Owner pursuant to the terms herein, subject to any offsets or claims that Owner may have. 

23. PUBLIC RECORDS.  Seller acknowledges that this Agreement and all the documents pertaining thereto may be public records 
and subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. 

24. CONFLICTS.  To the extent of any conflict between this document and the Order or Exhibit A, this document shall control. 



 

  
 

Attachment 3 
 

CERTIFICATE OF ENTITLEMENT 
The undersigned authorized representative of Rolling Hills Community Development District (hereinafter 
“Governmental Entity”), Florida Consumer’s Certificate of Exemption Number 
_______________________________, affirms that the tangible personal property purchased pursuant to Purchase 
Order Number __________ from ___________________________ (Vendor) on or after _____________, 20__ (date) 
will be incorporated into or become a part of a public facility as part of a public works contract pursuant to Contract 
dated ___________________ with ______________________________ (Contractor) for the construction of 
_________________________________________________________. 
 
The Governmental Entity affirms that the purchase of the tangible personal property contained in the attached 
Purchase Order meets the following exemption requirements contained in Section 212.08(6), F.S., and Rule 12A-
1.094, F.A.C.: (You must initial each of the following requirements.) 
 
____ 1. The attached Purchase Order is issued directly to the vendor supplying the tangible personal property the 
Contractor will use in the identified public works. 
____ 2. The vendor’s invoice will be issued directly to Governmental Entity. 
____ 3. Payment of the vendor’s invoice will be made directly by Governmental Entity to the vendor from public 
funds. 
____ 4. Governmental Entity will take title to the tangible personal property from the vendor at the time of purchase 
or of delivery by the vendor.  
____ 5. Governmental Entity assumes the risk of damage or loss at the time of purchase or delivery by the vendor. 
 
The Governmental Entity affirms that if the tangible personal property identified in the attached Purchase Order 
does not qualify for the exemption provided in Section 212.08(6), F.S., and Rule 12A-1.094, F.A.C., the Governmental 
Entity will be subject to the tax, interest, and penalties due on the tangible personal property purchased. If the 
Florida Department of Revenue determines that the tangible personal property purchased tax-exempt by issuing 
this Certificate does not qualify for the exemption, the Governmental Entity will be liable for any tax, penalty, and 
interest determined to be due. 
 
I understand that if I fraudulently issue this certificate to evade the payment of sales tax I will be liable for payment 
of the sales tax plus a penalty of 200% of the tax and may be subject to conviction of a third degree felony. Under 
the penalties of perjury, I declare that I have read the foregoing Certificate of Entitlement and the facts stated in it 
are true. 
 
            
Signature of Authorized Representative            Title 
of Governmental Entity 
 
Rolling Hills Community Development District              
Purchaser’s Name                        Date 
 
Federal Employer Identification Number: ____________________________ 
Telephone Number: ___ ________________________________ 
 
You must attach a copy of the Purchase Order to this Certificate of Entitlement. Do not send to the Florida 
Department of Revenue. This Certificate of Entitlement must be retained in the Vendor’s and the Contractor’s 
books and records. This form supplements and supersedes (to the extent of any conflict) any prior certificates 
addressing the same purchase. 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



 

1 
 

Upon recording, this instrument should  
be returned to: 
 
Katie S. Buchanan, Esq. 
Hopping Green & Sams, P.A. 
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 (32301) 
Post Office Box 6526 
Tallahassee, FL 32314 
 

(This space reserved for Clerk) 

 
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION AND ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION AND ACCESS EASEMENT 
AGREEMENT (“Easement Agreement”) is made and entered into this ____ day of August, 
2020, by and between WALTHAM DEVELOPMENT CO., a Florida corporation, with a 
mailing address of 1569 Royal Fern Lane, Fleming Island, Florida 32003 (“Grantor”) in favor 
of ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, whose mailing 
address is 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (“District” or 
“Grantee”) (Grantor and Grantee are sometimes together referred to herein as “Parties”). 
 

W I T N E S S E T H :  
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner in fee simple of certain parcels of real property 
located in Clay County, Florida, within the boundaries of the District, being more particularly 
described on Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein (“Easement 
Area”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Grantee has requested a temporary, non-exclusive construction and access 
easement on, upon, over, under, across, and through the Easement Area for the purpose of 
constructing improvements constituting the Series 2020 Project as defined and described in the 
Supplemental Engineer’ Report dated ____________, 2020, prepared for Grantee 
(“Improvements”), and Grantor is agreeable to granting such an easement on the terms and 
conditions set forth herein. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) in 
hand paid by the Grantee to the Grantor, the mutual covenants and agreements herein set forth 
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and sufficiency of which are 
hereby expressly acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties do hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. RECITALS.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated 
herein by this reference. 

2. CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT.  Grantor does hereby grant, bargain, sell 
and convey to Grantee a temporary, non-exclusive easement on, upon, over, under, across and 
through the Easement Area for access, ingress, egress and to allow Grantee to complete the 



 

2 
 

design, construction and installation of the Improvements in accordance with the plans and 
permits for the Series 2020 Project (“Easement”). 

3. TERM OF EASEMENT.  Grantee shall be permitted to use the Easement 
until such time as construction of the Improvements is complete.  It is expressly understood and 
agreed that the Easement and this Easement Agreement shall terminate in its entirety and be of 
no further effect at such time as the construction of the Improvements is complete and final 
approval for the Improvements has been issued by Clay County.  It is the intent of the Parties 
that such termination shall be self-executing and no further instrument shall be required in order 
to evidence the termination of the Easement and this Easement Agreement; provided, however, 
that Grantor shall have the right, without the joinder or consent of Grantee, to record evidence of 
such final Clay County approval, thereby causing the termination of the Easement and this 
Easement Agreement, and Grantee shall cooperate with Grantor in executing a recordable 
termination instrument requested by Grantor. Without limiting the foregoing and 
notwithstanding anything set forth in this Easement Agreement to the contrary, the Easement and 
this Easement Agreement shall terminate automatically as to any platted single-family lot upon 
conveyance of such lot by Grantor to a homebuilder or homebuyer, and any title insurance 
examiner and insurer may rely upon such deed in insuring title to such lot without exception for 
the Easement or this Easement Agreement. 

4. INSURANCE.  Grantee and/or any contractors performing work for Grantee 
on the Easement Area shall at all times maintain general public liability insurance to afford 
protection against any and all claims for personal injury, death or property damage arising 
directly or indirectly out of the exercise of the rights and privileges granted.  Said insurance 
maintained by any contractors performing work for Grantee on the Easement Area shall be 
issued by solvent, reputable insurance companies authorized to do business in the State of 
Florida reasonably acceptable to Grantor, naming Grantor as insured, as their interests may 
appear, in a combined-single limit of not less than $1,000,000.00 with respect to bodily injury or 
death and property damage.  Prior to commencing any work within the Easement Area, Grantee 
shall furnish Grantor with evidence of such insurance and shall update such evidence upon any 
renewal thereof.  

5. OBLIGATIONS OF GRANTOR AND GRANTEE.  The Parties 
acknowledge and agree that any rights granted hereunder shall be exercised by the Parties only in 
accordance and compliance with any and all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, 
permits and approvals, and any future modifications or amendments thereto.  The Parties 
covenant and agree that neither party shall discharge into or within the Easement Area, any 
hazardous or toxic materials or substances, any pollutants, or any other substances or materials 
prohibited or regulated under any federal, state or local law, ordinance, rule, regulations or 
permit, except in accordance with such laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and permits.  Grantee 
agrees to leave the Easement Area in a commercially reasonable and acceptable state upon 
completion of all activities within the Easement Area. 

6. DEFAULT.  A default by either party under this Easement Agreement shall 
entitle the other party to all remedies available at law or in equity, which may include but not be 
limited to the right of actual damages, injunctive relief and/or specific performance. 



 

3 
 

7. ENFORCEMENT OF EASEMENT AGREEMENT.  In the event that 
either the Grantor or Grantee seeks to enforce this Easement Agreement by court proceedings or 
otherwise, then the substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs 
incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution or 
appellate proceedings. 

8. NOTICES.  Any notice, demand, consent, authorization, request, approval or 
other communication that any party is required, or may desire, to give to or make upon the other 
party pursuant to this Easement Agreement shall be effective and valid only if in writing, signed 
by the party giving notice and delivered personally to the other parties or sent by express 24-hour 
guaranteed courier or delivery service or by certified mail of the United States Postal Service, 
postage prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed to the other party as set forth in the 
preamble to this Easement Agreement (or to such other place as any party may by notice to the 
others specify). 

9. THIRD PARTIES.  This Easement Agreement is solely for the benefit of the 
Parties hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason to or for the benefit 
of any third party not a formal party to this Easement Agreement. Nothing in this Easement 
Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or 
corporation other than the Parties hereto any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this 
Easement Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions hereof.   

10. LIENS.  Grantee shall not permit (and shall promptly satisfy or bond) any 
construction, mechanic’s lien or encumbrance against the Easement Area in connection with the 
exercise of rights hereunder. 

11. ASSIGNMENT.  Grantee may not and shall not assign, transfer or license all 
or any portion of its rights under this Easement Agreement without the prior written consent of 
Grantor. 

12. CONTROLLING LAW.  This Easement Agreement shall be construed, 
interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida. 

13. PUBLIC RECORDS.  Grantor understands and agrees that all documents of 
any kind provided to the District or to District Staff in connection with this Easement Agreement 
are public records and are to be treated as such in accordance with Florida law. 

14. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Easement Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the 
remaining portions of this Easement Agreement, or any part of this Easement Agreement not 
held to be invalid or unenforceable. 

15. BINDING EFFECT.  This Easement Agreement and all of the provisions, 
representations, covenants, and conditions contained herein shall be binding upon and inure to 
the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns, subject to 
Section 11. 



 

4 
 

16. AUTHORIZATION.  By execution below, the undersigned represent that 
they have been duly authorized by the appropriate body or official of their respective entity to 
execute this Easement Agreement, and that each party has complied with all the requirements of 
law and has full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this Easement 
Agreement. 

17. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in 
this Easement Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by all 
parties hereto. 

18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This instrument shall constitute the final and 
complete expression of the agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this 
Easement Agreement. 

 

[signature pages follow] 
  



 

5 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Easement Agreement to be 
executed as of the day and year first written above. 
 
WITNESSES:  WALTHAM DEVELOPMENT CO., a 

Florida corporation 
 
 
 
              
Print Name:      By: L. William Huck    
       Its:  Manager 
 
 
       
Print Name:      
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ______________ 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me ▢	physical presence or ▢	online 
notarization this ___ day of __________, 2020, by L. William Huck as Manager of Waltham 
Development Co.  
 
              
        (Official Notary Signature) 
      Name:         
      Personally Known       
      OR Produced Identification      
  [notary seal]   Type of Identification      
 
 
 
 

[Signature page 1 of 2] 
  



 

6 
 

Signed, sealed and delivered     
in the presence of:     ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY  
       DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit  
       of special-purpose government established  
       pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes 
 
 
              
Print Name:      By: Bill Tew     
       Its:  Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
       
Print Name:      
 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ______________ 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me ▢	physical presence or ▢	online 
notarization this ___ day of __________, 2020, by Bill Tew as Chairman of Rolling Hills 
Community Development District, a local unit of special-purpose government established 
pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes. 

 
              
        (Official Notary Signature) 
      Name:         
      Personally Known       
      OR Produced Identification      

[notary seal]   Type of Identification      
 
 
 

[Signature page 2 of 2] 
 



 

7 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE EASEMENT AREA 
 
Parcel Id. No.:  27-05-25-010109-001-00 (portion) 
 
The land referred to herein below is situated in the County of Clay, State of Florida, and 
described as follows: 
 
A parcel of land situated in Section 27, Township 5 South, Range 25 East, Clay County, Florida, 
said parcel being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Begin at the Northwest corner of Lot 55, Cedar Creek at Rolling Hills, according to plat thereof 
recorded in Plat Book 55, Pages 44 through 52 of the Public Records of said County; thence on 
the Westerly line of said Cedar Creek at Rolling Hills, run the following 10 courses: 1) South 18 
degrees 12 minutes 01 second West, 135.35 feet; 2) South 27 degrees 25 minutes 49 seconds 
West, 133.19 feet; 3) South 36 degrees 39 minutes 37 seconds West, 133.19 feet; 4) South 45 
degrees 53 minutes 24 seconds West, 193.76 feet; 5) South 23 degrees 32 minutes 13 seconds 
West, 69.83 feet; 6) South 20 degrees 25 minutes 21 seconds West, 100.15 feet; 7) South 22 
degrees 21 minutes 35 seconds West, 74.51 feet; 8) South 04 degrees 48 minutes 25 seconds 
East, 350.96 feet; 9) South 03 degrees 57 minutes 41 seconds West, 143.85 feet; 10) South 14 
degrees 50 minutes 18 seconds West, 164.27 feet; thence North 73 degrees 09 minutes 23 
seconds West, 66.81 feet; thence North 68 degrees 13 minutes 32 seconds West, 56.87 feet; 
thence North 73 degrees 01 minute 29 seconds West, 71.53 feet; thence North 58 degrees 35 
minutes 46 seconds West, 98.36 feet; thence North 80 degrees 16 minutes 10 seconds West, 
42.49 feet; thence North 53 degrees 01 minute 51 seconds West, 45.27 feet; thence North 56 
degrees 28 minutes 31 seconds West, 87.71 feet; thence South 87 degrees 03 minutes 45 seconds 
West, 52.36 feet; thence South 81 degrees 18 minutes 55 seconds West, 80.92 feet; thence North 
85 degrees 56 minutes 08 seconds West, 51.98 feet; thence South 89 degrees 19 minutes 50 
seconds West, 66.81 feet; thence North 28 degrees 32 minutes 23 seconds West, 55.22 feet; 
thence North 28 degrees 52 minutes 47 seconds West, 49.09 feet; thence North 41 degrees 41 
minutes 10 seconds West, 77.84 feet; thence North 65 degrees 44 minutes 32 seconds West, 
94.25 feet; thence North 80 degrees 45 minutes 00 seconds West, 60.51 feet; thence North 75 
degrees 39 minutes 31 seconds West, 82.24 feet; thence North 44 degrees 53 minutes 27 seconds 
West, 37.96 feet; thence North 52 degrees 48 minutes 19 seconds West, 40.38 feet; thence South 
72 degrees 07 minutes 37 seconds West 32.48 feet; thence South 30 degrees 20 minutes 55 
seconds West, 338.84 feet; thence South 74 degrees 15 minutes 21 seconds West, 294.61 feet; 
thence South 71 degrees 13 minutes 19 seconds West, 271.28 feet, thence South 39 degrees 44 
minutes 45 seconds West, 169.43 feet; thence South 08 degrees 30 minutes 35 seconds West, 
114.56 feet; thence South 79 degrees 46 minutes 40 seconds East, 18.39 feet; thence South 10 
degrees 13 minutes 20 seconds West, 60.00 feet; thence North 79 degrees 46 minutes 40 seconds 
East, 16.60 feet; thence South 08 degrees 30 minutes 35 seconds West, 21.95 feet; thence 
Westerly along the arc of a curve concave Southerly and having a radius of 372.50 feet, an arc 
distance of 63.71 feet, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of North 81 
degrees 03 minutes 25 seconds West, 63.63 feet; thence North 85 degrees 57 minutes 23 seconds 
West, 562.21 feet; thence Westerly along the arc of a curve concave Northerly and having a 



 

8 
 

radius of 377.50 feet, an arc distance of 81.83 feet, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing 
and distance of North 79 degrees 44 minutes 47 seconds West, 81.67 feet; thence North 73 
degrees 32 minutes 12 seconds West, 105.13 feet; thence Westerly along the arc of a curve 
concave Southerly and having a radius of 422.50 feet, an arc distance of 221.84 feet, said arc 
being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of North 88 degrees 34 minutes 43 seconds 
West, 219.30 feet; thence Westerly along the arc of a curve concave Northerly and having a 
radius of 182.35 feet, an arc distance of 73.45 feet, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing 
and distance of South 87 degrees 55 minutes 06 seconds West, 72.95 feet; thence Northwesterly 
along the arc of a curve concave Northeasterly and having a radius of 41.22 feet, an arc distance 
of 24.95 feet, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of North 63 degrees 12 
minutes 10 seconds West, 24.57 feet; thence Westerly along the arc of a curve concave Southerly 
and having a radius of 48.72 feet, an arc distance of 73.25 feet, said arc being subtended by a 
chord bearing and distance of North 88 degrees 55 minutes 58 seconds West, 66.54 feet; thence 
North 07 degrees 27 minutes 23 seconds West, 808.30 feet to the Southeasterly line of Silver 
Creek, according to plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 44, Pages 52 through 72 of said Public 
Records; thence on said Southeasterly line, North 52 degrees 37 minutes 10 seconds East, 28.85 
feet; thence South 07 degrees 27 minutes 23 seconds East, 789.14 feet; thence Easterly along the 
arc of a curve concave Southerly and having a radius of 73.72 feet, an arc distance of 69.02 feet, 
said arc being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of South 72 degrees 40 minutes 51 
seconds East, 66.52 feet; thence Southeasterly along the arc of a curve concave Northeasterly 
and having a radius of 16.22 feet, an arc distance of 9.82 feet, said arc being subtended by a 
chord bearing and distance of South 63 degrees 12 minutes 07 seconds East, 9.67 feet; thence 
Easterly along the arc of a curve concave Northerly and having a radius of 157.35 feet, an arc 
distance of 63.38 feet, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of North 87 
degrees 55 minutes 07 seconds East, 62.95 feet; thence Easterly along the arc of a curve concave 
Southerly and having a radius of 447.50 feet, an arc distance of 234.96 feet, said arc being 
subtended by a chord bearing and distance of South 88 degrees 34 minutes 43 seconds East, 
232.27 feet; thence South 73 degrees 32 minutes 12 seconds East, 105.13 feet; thence Easterly 
along the arc of a curve concave Northerly and having a radius of 352.50 feet, an arc distance of 
76.41 feet, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of South 79 degrees 44 
minutes 47 seconds East, 76.26 feet; thence South 85 degrees 57 minutes 23 seconds East, 
562.21 feet; thence Easterly along the arc of a curve concave Southerly and having a radius of 
397.50 feet, an arc distance of 22.32 feet, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing and 
distance of South 84 degrees 20 minutes 52 seconds East, 22.32 feet; thence North 10 degrees 13 
minutes 20 seconds East, 56.73 feet; thence South 79 degrees 46 minutes 40 seconds East, 16.60 
feet; thence North 08 degrees 30 minutes 35 seconds East, 120.80 feet; thence North 39 degrees 
44 minutes 45 seconds East, 183.47 feet; thence North 71 degrees 13 minutes 19 seconds East, 
278.99 feet; thence North 74 degrees 15 minutes 21 seconds East, 285.19 feet; thence North 30 
degrees 20 minutes 55 seconds East, 338.30 feet; thence North 71 degrees 54 minutes 46 seconds 
East, 24.50 feet; thence North 52 degrees 48 minutes 19 seconds West, 65.96 feet; thence North 
57 degrees 09 minutes 39 seconds West, 286.83 feet; thence North 29 degrees 38 minutes 44 
seconds West, 222.93 feet; thence North 41 degrees 12 minutes 35 seconds East, 215.26 feet; 
thence North 17 degrees 35 minutes 09 seconds East, 278.03 feet; thence North 45 degrees 16 
minutes 43 seconds East, 66.35 feet; thence North 61 degrees 07 minutes 48 seconds East, 
202.01 feet; thence North 76 degrees 27 minutes 41 seconds East, 290.31 feet; thence North 49 
degrees 37 minutes 21 seconds East, 51.50 feet; thence North 77 degrees 14 minutes 13 seconds 



 

9 
 

East, 3.31 feet; thence North 23 degrees 28 minutes 07 seconds East, 131.04 feet; thence North 
12 degrees 08 minutes 35 seconds West, 107.32 feet; thence North 52 degrees 17 minutes 35 
seconds East, 187.50 feet; thence North 64 degrees 19 minutes 03 seconds East, 28.34 feet; 
thence North 77 degrees 51 minutes 06 seconds East, 142.49 feet; thence South 34 degrees 37 
minutes 11 seconds East, 19.31 feet; thence South 16 degrees 58 minutes 40 seconds East, 51.52 
feet; thence South 25 degrees 09 minutes 51 seconds East, 65.24 feet; thence South 17 degrees 
15 minutes 44 seconds East, 77.20 feet; thence South 61 degrees 36 minutes 53 seconds East, 
245.78 feet; thence South 56 degrees 03 minutes 17 seconds East, 42.59 feet; thence North 82 
degrees 56 minutes 53 seconds East, 9.36 feet; thence South 50 degrees 01 minute 54 seconds 
East, 18.88 feet; thence South 78 degrees 57 minutes 10 seconds East, 89.23 feet; thence North 
77 degrees 32 minutes 02 seconds East, 80.05 feet; thence South 88 degrees 23 minutes 03 
seconds East, 31.89 feet; thence South 69 degrees 54 minutes 37 seconds East, 72.94 feet; thence 
South 48 degrees 51 minutes 28 seconds East, 41.53 feet; thence South 20 degrees 27 minutes 05 
seconds West, 66.64 feet; thence South 09 degrees 02 minutes 31 seconds West, 56.10 feet; 
thence South 81 degrees 51 minutes 54 seconds East, 99.73 feet; thence North 36 degrees 53 
minutes 45 seconds East, 7.23 feet; thence South 76 degrees 33 minutes 51 seconds East, 86.26 
feet to the Point of Beginning. 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



 

 Page 1 of 4 

CONSTRUCTION FUNDING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

AND WALTHAM DEVELOPMENT CO. 
 

[SERIES 2020 PROJECT] 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this ___ day of August, 
2020, by and between: 
 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, and 
located in Clay County, Florida whose mailing address is 475 West Town Place, 
Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (“District"), and 

 
WALTHAM DEVELOPMENT CO., a Florida corporation, whose mailing address is 
1569 Royal Fern Lane, Fleming Island, Florida 32003 (“Landowner”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the District was established by an ordinance adopted by the County 

Commission of the Clay County, Florida, for the purposes of planning, financing, constructing, 
acquiring, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Landowner is the owner of certain undeveloped lands located within the 

boundaries of the District ("Development") upon which the District's improvements have been 
or will be made; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District, pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, is authorized to levy 

such taxes, special assessments, fees, and other charges as may be necessary in furtherance of the 
District's activities and services; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District is anticipated to be without sufficient funds available to provide 
for the construction of anticipated master improvements and facilities benefitting the 
Development, which are described in Exhibit A, including construction and design, engineering, 
legal, or other construction, professional, or administrative costs (collectively, “Series 2020 
Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, in order to induce the District to proceed at this time with the construction of 

the necessary or desired Series 2020 Project, the Landowner desires to provide the funds 
necessary to enable the District to proceed with such Series 2020 Project if and when the District 
exhausts the funds on deposit in the construction account; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District anticipates accessing the public bond market in the future to 

obtain financing for the construction of the Series 2020 Project as described in Exhibit A, and 
the parties agree that, in the event that bonds are issued, the funds provided under this Agreement 
will be reimbursable from those bonds. 



 

 Page 2 of 4 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 

contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the parties, the parties agree as follows: 
 
 1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The recitals stated above are true and correct and by 
this reference are incorporated herein as a material part of this Agreement. 
 
 2. Funding.  Landowner agrees to make available to the District such monies as are 
necessary to enable the District to proceed with, and expedite, the design, engineering, and 
construction of the Series 2020 Project.  Landowner will make such funds available on a monthly 
basis, within fifteen (15) days of a written request by the District.  The funds shall be placed in 
the District's depository as determined by the District. 
 

3.   Repayment.  The parties agree that the funds provided by Landowner pursuant to 
this Agreement will be properly reimbursable from proceeds of the District's issuance of tax-
exempt bonds.  Within forty-five (45) days of receipt from time to time of sufficient funds by the 
District for the financing of some or all of the Series 2020 Project, the District shall reimburse 
Landowner until full reimbursement is made or until all funds generated by the anticipated 
financing are exhausted, exclusive of interest, for the funds advanced under Section 2 above; 
provided, however, that in the event bond counsel engaged in connection with the District’s 
issuance of bonds providing such financing determines that any such monies advanced or 
expenses incurred are not properly reimbursable for any reason, including, but not limited to 
federal tax restrictions imposed on tax-exempt financing, the District shall not be obligated to 
reimburse such monies advanced or expenses incurred.  If the District does not or cannot issue 
bonds to provide the funds for the Series 2020 Project within five (5) years of the date of this 
Agreement, and, thus does not reimburse the Landowner for the funds advanced, then the parties 
agree that such funds shall be deemed paid in lieu of taxes, fees, or assessments which might be 
levied or imposed by the District. 
 

4. Default.  A default by either party to this Agreement shall entitle the other to all 
remedies available at law or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of 
actual damages, injunctive relief and/or specific performance, but shall exclude, in any event, 
consequential, incidental, special or punitive damages. 
 

5. Enforcement of Agreement.  In the event that either party is required to enforce 
this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
recover all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs for trial, 
alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings. 
 
 6. Agreement.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete expression of 
this Agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
 7. Amendments.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both of the 
parties hereto. 



 

 Page 3 of 4 

 
 8. Authorization.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by the 
appropriate body or official of all parties hereto, each party has complied with all of the 
requirements of law, and each party has full power and authority to comply with the terms and 
provisions of this instrument. 
 
 9. Notices.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications hereunder 
("Notices") shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, postage 
prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the parties, as follows: 
 
 A. If to District:   Rolling Hills Community Development District 

475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092   

 Attn: District Manager 
 
  With a copy to:  Hopping Green & Sams, P.A. 

119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 
      Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
      Attn: Katie S. Buchanan 
      
 B. If to Landowner:  Waltham Development Co.  
      1569 Royal Fern Lane 
      Fleming Island, Florida 32003    
      Attn: L. William Huck 
 
  With a copy to:       
           
           
      Attn:      
  
 Except as otherwise provided herein, any Notice shall be deemed received only upon 
actual delivery at the address set forth herein.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place of 
delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  If any 
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business 
day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, 
Sundays and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as 
business days.  Counsel for the parties may deliver Notice on behalf of the parties.  Any party or 
other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify the other parties and 
addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the 
same on five (5) days written notice to the parties and addressees set forth herein. 
 

10. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the 
formal parties herein and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason hereof, to or 
for the benefit of any third party not a formal party hereto.  Nothing in this Agreement expressed 
or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation other than 
the parties hereto any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any 



 

 Page 4 of 4 

provisions or conditions hereof; and all of the provisions, representations, covenants and 
conditions herein contained shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the parties 
hereto and their respective representatives, successors and assigns. 
 

11. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither party may assign this Agreement or any monies to become 
due hereunder without the prior written approval of the other party. 
 

12. CONTROLLING LAW.  This Agreement and the provisions contained herein shall 
be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida. 
 

13. EFFECTIVE DATE.  The Agreement shall be effective after execution by all parties 
hereto and shall remain in effect unless terminated by any of the parties hereto. 
 

14. PUBLIC RECORDS.   Landowner understands and agrees that all documents of any 
kind provided to the District or to District staff in connection with the work contemplated under 
this Agreement are public records and are treated as such in accordance with Florida law and the 
District’s Record Retention Schedule. 

 
15. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts 

which, when taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this Agreement the day and year first 
written above. 
 
Attest:       ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
       DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
        
 
____________________________   ____________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    By: Bill Tew 
       Its: Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 

WALTHAM DEVELOPMENT CO. 
    
 

 
___________________________   _____________________________  
Witness      By: L. William Huck 

      Its: Manager  
 
 
EXHIBIT A: Contract for Series 2020 Project 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



RESOLUTION 2020-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT ADOPTING RULES OF PROCEDURE; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  
 WHEREAS, Rolling Hills Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit 
of special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
being situated entirely within Clay County, Florida; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to adopt rules to govern 
the administration of the District and to adopt resolutions as may be necessary for the conduct of 
District business; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to provide for efficient and effective District operations and to maintain 
compliance with recent changes to Florida law, the Board of Supervisors finds that it is in the best 
interests of the District to adopt by resolution the Rules of Procedure attached hereto as Exhibit A 
for immediate use and application; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has complied with applicable Florida law 
concerning rule development and adoption. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. The attached Rules of Procedure are hereby adopted pursuant to this 
resolution as necessary for the conduct of District business.  These Rules of Procedure replace all 
prior versions of the Rules of Procedure, and shall stay in full force and effect until such time as 
the Board of Supervisors may amend these rules in accordance with Chapter 190, Florida Statutes. 
 
 SECTION 2.  If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 3. This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of August, 2020. 
 
ATTEST:     ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary     Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
Exhibit A:  Rules of Procedure 
  



EXHIBIT A:  
RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 



 

1 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 
ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

  
EFFECTIVE AS OF _________________, 2020 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Rule  1.0 General. ......................................................................................................................... 2 

Rule 1.1 Board of Supervisors; Officers and Voting. ............................................... 3 

Rule 1.2  District Offices; Public Information and Inspection of Records; Policies; 
Service Contract Requirements; Financial Disclosure Coordination. ........ 7 

Rule 1.3 Public Meetings, Hearings, and Workshops. ............................................ 10 

Rule 1.4 Internal Controls to Prevent Fraud, Waste and Abuse .............................. 15 

Rule 2.0  Rulemaking Proceedings. ........................................................................................... 16 

Rule 3.0 Competitive Purchase. ................................................................................................ 22 

Rule 3.1 Procedure Under the Consultants' Competitive Negotiations Act. ........... 27 

Rule 3.2 Procedure Regarding Auditor Selection. .................................................. 31 

Rule 3.3 Purchase of Insurance. .............................................................................. 36 

Rule 3.4 Pre-qualification ........................................................................................ 38 

Rule 3.5 Construction Contracts, Not Design-Build. .............................................. 43 

Rule 3.6 Construction Contracts, Design-Build. ..................................................... 47 

Rule 3.7  Payment and Performance Bonds. ............................................................ 52 

Rule 3.8 Goods, Supplies, and Materials. ............................................................... 53 

Rule 3.9 Maintenance Services. .............................................................................. 57 

Rule 3.10 Contractual Services. ................................................................................ 60 

Rule 3.11 Protests with Respect to Proceedings under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 
3.6, 3.8, and 3.9. ........................................................................................ 61 

Rule 4.0 Effective Date. ............................................................................................................ 64 



 

2 
 

Rule  1.0 General. 

 
(1) The Rolling Hills Community Development District (“District”) was created 

pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes, and was 
established to provide for the ownership, operation, maintenance, and provision of 
various capital facilities and services within its jurisdiction. The purpose of these 
rules (“Rules”) is to describe the general operations of the District. 

 
(2) Definitions located within any section of these Rules shall be applicable within all 

other sections, unless specifically stated to the contrary. 
 
(3) Unless specifically permitted by a written agreement with the District, the District 

does not accept documents filed by electronic mail or facsimile transmission.  
Filings are only accepted during normal business hours. 

 
(4) A Rule of the District shall be effective upon adoption by affirmative vote of the 

District Board.  After a Rule becomes effective, it may be repealed or amended 
only through the rulemaking procedures specified in these Rules.  
Notwithstanding, the District may immediately suspend the application of a Rule 
if the District determines that the Rule conflicts with Florida law.  In the event 
that a Rule conflicts with Florida law and its application has not been suspended 
by the District, such Rule should be interpreted in the manner that best effectuates 
the intent of the Rule while also complying with Florida law.  If the intent of the 
Rule absolutely cannot be effectuated while complying with Florida law, the Rule 
shall be automatically suspended. 

 
Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
 



 

3 
 

Rule 1.1 Board of Supervisors; Officers and Voting. 
 

(1) Board of Supervisors. The Board of Supervisors of the District (“Board”) shall 
consist of five (5) members. Members of the Board (“Supervisors”) appointed by 
ordinance or rule or elected by landowners must be citizens of the United States 
of America and residents of the State of Florida.  Supervisors elected or appointed 
by the Board to elector seats must be citizens of the United States of America, 
residents of the State of Florida and of the District and registered to vote with the 
Supervisor of Elections of the county in which the District is located and for those 
elected, shall also be qualified to run by the Supervisor of Elections.  The Board 
shall exercise the powers granted to the District under Florida law. 
 
(a)  Supervisors shall hold office for the term specified by Section 190.006 of 

the Florida Statutes. If, during the term of office, any Board member(s) 
vacates their office, the remaining member(s) of the Board shall fill the 
vacancies by appointment for the remainder of the term(s). If three or 
more vacancies exist at the same time, a quorum, as defined herein, shall 
not be required to appoint replacement Board members. 

 
(b)  Three (3) members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the purposes 

of conducting business, exercising powers and all other purposes.  A 
Board member shall be counted toward the quorum if physically present at 
the meeting, regardless of whether such Board member is prohibited from, 
or abstains from, participating in discussion or voting on a particular item.   

 
(c)   Action taken by the Board shall be upon a majority vote of the members 

present, unless otherwise provided in the Rules or required by law.  
Subject to Rule 1.3(10), a Board member participating in the Board 
meeting by teleconference or videoconference shall be entitled to vote and 
take all other action as though physically present. 

 
(d)   Unless otherwise provided for by an act of the Board, any one Board 

member may attend a mediation session on behalf of the Board.  Any 
agreement resulting from such mediation session must be approved 
pursuant to subsection (1)(c) of this Rule. 

 
(2) Officers. At the first Board meeting held after each election where the newly 

elected members take office, the Board shall select a Chairperson, Vice-
Chairperson, Secretary, Assistant Secretary, and Treasurer. 

 
(a)  The Chairperson must be a member of the Board.  If the Chairperson 

resigns from that office or ceases to be a member of the Board, the Board 
shall select a Chairperson.  The Chairperson serves at the pleasure of the 
Board.  The Chairperson shall be authorized to execute resolutions and 
contracts on the District’s behalf.  The Chairperson shall convene and 
conduct all meetings of the Board.  In the event the Chairperson is unable 



 

4 
 

to attend a meeting, the Vice-Chairperson shall convene and conduct the 
meeting.  The Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson may delegate the 
responsibility of conducting the meeting to the District’s manager 
(“District Manager”) or District Counsel, in whole or in part. 

 
(b)  The Vice-Chairperson shall be a member of the Board and shall have such 

duties and responsibilities as specifically designated by the Board from 
time to time. The Vice-Chairperson has the authority to execute 
resolutions and contracts on the District’s behalf in the absence of the 
Chairperson.  If the Vice-Chairperson resigns from office or ceases to be a 
member of the Board, the Board shall select a Vice-Chairperson. The 
Vice-Chairperson serves at the pleasure of the Board. 

 
(c)  The Secretary of the Board serves at the pleasure of the Board and need 

not be a member of the Board.  The Secretary shall be responsible for 
maintaining the minutes of Board meetings and may have other duties 
assigned by the Board from time to time.  An employee of the District 
Manager may serve as Secretary.  The Secretary shall be bonded by a 
reputable and qualified bonding company in at least the amount of one 
million dollars ($1,000,000), or have in place a fidelity bond, employee 
theft insurance policy, or a comparable product in at least the amount of 
one million dollars ($1,000,000) that names the District as an additional 
insured. 

 
(d)  The Treasurer need not be a member of the Board but must be a resident 

of the State of Florida.  The Treasurer shall perform duties described in 
Section 190.007(2) and (3) of the Florida Statutes, as well as those 
assigned by the Board from time to time.  The Treasurer shall serve at the 
pleasure of the Board. The Treasurer shall either be bonded by a reputable 
and qualified bonding company in at least the amount of one million 
dollars ($1,000,000), or have in place a fidelity bond, employee theft 
insurance policy, or a comparable product in at least the amount of one 
million dollars ($1,000,000) that names the District as an additional 
insured. 

 
(e)  In the event that both the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson are absent 

from a Board meeting and a quorum is present, the Board may designate 
one of its members or a member of District staff to convene and conduct 
the meeting.  In such circumstances, any of the Board members present are 
authorized to execute agreements, resolutions, and other documents 
approved by the Board at such meeting.  In the event that the Chairperson 
and Vice-Chairperson are both unavailable to execute a document 
previously approved by the Board, the Secretary or any Assistant 
Secretary may execute such document. 

 



 

5 
 

(f)  The Board may assign additional duties to District officers from time to 
time, which include, but are not limited to, executing documents on behalf 
of the District. 

 
(g)  The Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and any other person authorized by 

District Resolution may sign checks and warrants for the District, 
countersigned by the Treasurer or other persons authorized by the Board. 

 
(3) Committees. The Board may establish committees of the Board, either on a 

permanent or temporary basis, to perform specifically designated functions. 
Committees may include individuals who are not members of the Board.  Such 
functions may include, but are not limited to, review of bids, proposals, and 
qualifications, contract negotiations, personnel matters, and budget preparation. 

 
(4) Record Book. The Board shall keep a permanent record book entitled “Record of 

Proceedings,” in which shall be recorded minutes of all meetings, resolutions, 
proceedings, certificates, and corporate acts.  The Records of Proceedings shall be 
located at a District office and shall be available for inspection by the public.   

 
(5) Meetings. For each fiscal year, the Board shall establish a schedule of regular 

meetings, which shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
county in which the District is located and filed with the local general-purpose 
governments within whose boundaries the District is located.  All meetings of the 
Board and Committees serving an advisory function shall be open to the public in 
accord with the provisions of Chapter 286 of the Florida Statutes.   

 
(6) Voting Conflict of Interest.  The Board shall comply with Section 112.3143 of the 

Florida Statutes, so as to ensure the proper disclosure of conflicts of interest on 
matters coming before the Board for a vote.  For the purposes of this section, 
"voting conflict of interest" shall be governed by the Florida Constitution and 
Chapters 112 and 190 of the Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time.  
Generally, a voting conflict exists when a Board member is called upon to vote on 
an item which would inure to the Board member’s special private gain or loss or 
the Board member knows would inure to the special private gain or loss of a 
principal by whom the Board member is retained, the parent organization or 
subsidiary of a corporate principal, a business associate, or a relative including 
only a father, mother, son, daughter, husband, wife, brother, sister, father-in-law, 
mother-in-law, son-in-law, and daughter-in-law. 

 
(a)  When a Board member knows the member has a conflict of interest on a 

matter coming before the Board, the member should notify the Board’s 
Secretary prior to participating in any discussion with the Board on the 
matter.  The member shall publicly announce the conflict of interest at the 
meeting.  This announcement shall appear in the minutes.   

 



 

6 
 

  If the Board member was elected at a landowner’s election or appointed to 
fill a vacancy of a seat last filled at a landowner’s election, the Board 
member may vote or abstain from voting on the matter at issue.  If the 
Board member was elected by electors residing within the District, the 
Board member is prohibited from voting on the matter at issue.  In the 
event that the Board member intends to abstain or is prohibited from 
voting, such Board member shall not participate in the discussion on the 
item subject to the vote. 

  
  The Board’s Secretary shall prepare a Memorandum of Voting Conflict 

(Form 8B) which shall then be signed by the Board member, filed with the 
Board’s Secretary, and provided for attachment to the minutes of the 
meeting within fifteen (15) days of the meeting.    

 
(b)  If a Board member inadvertently votes on a matter and later learns he or 

she has a conflict on the matter, the member shall immediately notify the 
Board’s Secretary. Within fifteen (15) days of the notification, the member 
shall file the appropriate Memorandum of Voting Conflict, which will be 
attached to the minutes of the Board meeting during which the vote on the 
matter occurred. The Memorandum of Voting Conflict shall immediately 
be provided to other Board members and shall be read publicly at the next 
meeting held subsequent to the filing of the Memorandum of Voting 
Conflict.  The Board member’s vote is unaffected by this filing. 

 
(c)  It is not a conflict of interest for a Board member, the District Manager, or 

an employee of the District to be a stockholder, officer or employee of a 
landowner or of an entity affiliated with a landowner.   

 
(d)  In the event that a Board member elected at a landowner’s election or 

appointed to fill a vacancy of a seat last filled at a landowner’s election, 
has a continuing conflict of interest, such Board member is permitted to 
file a Memorandum of Voting Conflict at any time in which it shall state 
the nature of the continuing conflict.  Only one such continuing 
Memorandum of Voting Conflict shall be required to be filed for each 
term the Board member is in office. 

 
Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  §§ 112.3143, 190.006, 190.007, Fla. Stat. 
 



 

7 
 

Rule 1.2  District Offices; Public Information and Inspection of Records; Policies; 
Service Contract Requirements; Financial Disclosure Coordination. 

 
(1) District Offices.  Unless otherwise designated by the Board, the official District 

office shall be the District Manager’s office identified by the District Manager.  If 
the District Manager’s office is not located within the county in which the District 
is located, the Board shall designate a local records office within such county 
which shall at a minimum contain, but not be limited to, the following documents: 

 
 (a)  Agenda packages for prior 24 months and next meeting; 
 
 (b)  Official minutes of meetings, including adopted resolutions of the Board; 
 
 (c)  Names and addresses of current Board members and District Manager, 

unless such addresses are protected from disclosure by law; 
 
 (d)  Adopted engineer’s reports; 
 
 (e)  Adopted assessment methodologies/reports; 
 
 (f)  Adopted disclosure of public financing; 
 
 (g)  Limited Offering Memorandum for each financing undertaken by the 

District; 
 
 (h)  Proceedings, certificates, bonds given by all employees, and any and all 

corporate acts; 
 
 (i)  District policies and rules; 
 
 (j) Fiscal year end audits; and 
 
 (k) Adopted budget for the current fiscal year. 
 
 The District Manager shall ensure that each District records office contains the 

documents required by Florida law. 
 
(2) Public Records.  District public records include all documents, papers, letters, 

maps, books, tapes, photographs, films, sound recordings, data processing 
software, or other material, regardless of the physical form, characteristics, or 
means of transmission, made or received in connection with the transaction of 
official business of the District. All District public records not otherwise restricted 
by law may be copied or inspected at the District Manager’s office during regular 
business hours.  Certain District records can also be inspected and copied at the 
District’s local records office during regular business hours.  All written public 
records requests shall be directed to the Secretary who by these rules is appointed 



 

8 
 

as the District’s records custodian.  Regardless of the form of the request, any 
Board member or staff member who receives a public records request shall 
immediately forward or communicate such request to the Secretary for 
coordination of a prompt response.  The Secretary, after consulting with District 
Counsel as to the applicability of any exceptions under the public records laws, 
shall be responsible for responding to the public records request.  At no time can 
the District be required to create records or summaries of records, or prepare 
opinions regarding District policies, in response to a public records request. 

 
(3)  Service Contracts.  Any contract for services, regardless of cost, shall include 

provisions required by law that require the contractor to comply with public 
records laws.  The District Manager shall be responsible for initially enforcing all 
contract provisions related to a contractor’s duty to comply with public records 
laws. 

 
(4) Fees; Copies. Copies of public records shall be made available to the requesting 

person at a charge of $0.15 per page for one-sided copies and $0.20 per page for 
two-sided copies if not more than 8 ½ by 14 inches.  For copies of public records 
in excess of the sizes listed in this section and for outside duplication services, the 
charge shall be equal to the actual cost of reproduction. Certified copies of public 
records shall be made available at a charge of one dollar ($1.00) per page. If the 
nature or volume of records requested requires extensive use of information 
technology resources or extensive clerical or supervisory assistance, the District 
may charge, in addition to the duplication charge, a special service charge that is 
based on the cost the District incurs to produce the records requested.  This charge 
may include, but is not limited to, the cost of information technology resource, 
employee labor, and fees charged to the District by consultants employed in 
fulfilling the request.  In cases where the special service charge is based in whole 
or in part on the costs incurred by the District due to employee labor, consultant 
fees, or other forms of labor, those portions of the charge shall be calculated based 
on the lowest labor cost of the individual(s) who is/are qualified to perform the 
labor, taking into account the nature or volume of the public records to be 
inspected or copied. The charge may include the labor costs of supervisory and/or 
clerical staff whose assistance is required to complete the records request, in 
accordance with Florida law.  For purposes of this Rule, the word “extensive” 
shall mean that it will take more than 15 minutes to locate, review for confidential 
information, copy and re-file the requested material.  In cases where extensive 
personnel time is determined by the District to be necessary to safeguard original 
records being inspected, the special service charge provided for in this section 
shall apply.  If the total fees, including but not limited to special service charges, 
are anticipated to exceed twenty-five dollars ($25.00), then, prior to commencing 
work on the request, the District will inform the person making the public records 
request of the estimated cost, with the understanding that the final cost may vary 
from that estimate.  If the person making the public records request decides to 
proceed with the request, payment of the estimated cost is required in advance. 
Should the person fail to pay the estimate, the District is under no duty to produce 



 

9 
 

the requested records.  After the request has been fulfilled, additional payments or 
credits may be due. The District is under no duty to produce records in response 
to future records requests if the person making the request owes the District for 
past unpaid duplication charges, special service charges, or other required 
payments or credits. 

 
(5) Records Retention.  The Secretary of the District shall be responsible for retaining 

the District’s records in accordance with applicable Florida law. 
 
(6) Policies.  The Board may adopt policies related to the conduct of its business and 

the provision of services either by resolution or motion.   
 
(7) Financial Disclosure Coordination.  Unless specifically designated by Board 

resolution otherwise, the Secretary shall serve as the Financial Disclosure 
Coordinator (“Coordinator”) for the District as required by the Florida 
Commission on Ethics (“Commission”).  The Coordinator shall create, maintain 
and update a list of the names, e-mail addresses, physical addresses, and names of 
the agency of, and the office or position held by, all Supervisors and other persons 
required by Florida law to file a statement of financial interest due to his or her 
affiliation with the District (“Reporting Individual”).  The Coordinator shall 
provide this list to the Commission by February 1 of each year, which list shall be 
current as of December 31 of the prior year.  Each Supervisor and Reporting 
Individual shall promptly notify the Coordinator in writing if there are any 
changes to such person’s name, e-mail address, or physical address. Each 
Supervisor and Reporting Individual shall promptly notify the Commission in the 
manner prescribed by the Commission if there are any changes to such person’s e-
mail address. 

 
Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  §§ 112.31446(3), 112.3145(8)(a)1., 119.07, 119.0701, 190.006, Fla. Stat. 



 

10 
 

Rule 1.3 Public Meetings, Hearings, and Workshops. 
 

(1) Notice. Except in emergencies, or as otherwise required by statute or these Rules, 
at least seven (7) days, but no more than thirty (30) days public notice shall be 
given of any public meeting, hearing or workshop of the Board. Public notice 
shall be given by publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the District 
and in the county in which the District is located.  “General circulation” means a 
publication that is printed and published at least once a week for the preceding 
year, offering at least 25% of its words in the English language, qualifies as a 
periodicals material for postal purposes in the county in which the District is 
located, is for sale to the public generally, is available to the public generally for 
the publication of official or other notices, and is customarily containing 
information of a public character or of interest or of value to the residents or 
owners of property in the county where published, or of interest or of value to the 
general public.  The annual meeting notice required to be published by Section 
189.015 of the Florida Statutes, shall be published in a newspaper not of limited 
subject matter, which is published at least five days a week, unless the only 
newspaper in the county is published less than five days a week.  Each Notice 
shall state, as applicable: 

 
(a)  The date, time and place of the meeting, hearing or workshop; 
 
(b)  A brief description of the nature, subjects, and purposes of the meeting, 

hearing, or workshop; 
 

(c)  The District office address for the submission of requests for copies of the 
agenda, as well as a contact name and telephone number for verbal 
requests for copies of the agenda; and 

 
(d)  The following or substantially similar language: “Pursuant to provisions of 

the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 
accommodations to participate in this meeting/hearing/workshop is asked 
to advise the District Office at least forty-eight (48) hours before the 
meeting/hearing/workshop by contacting the District Manager at (___) 
_______________. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact 
the Florida Relay Service at 1 (800) 955-8770 or 1 (800) 955-8771, who 
can aid you in contacting the District Office.” 

 
(e)  The following or substantially similar language: “A person who decides to 

appeal any decision made at the meeting/hearing/workshop with respect to 
any matter considered at the meeting/hearing/workshop is advised that 
person will need a record of the proceedings and that accordingly, the 
person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 
made including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be 
based.” 

 



 

11 
 

(f)  The following or substantially similar language: “The meeting [or hearing 
or workshop] may be continued in progress without additional notice to a 
time, date, and location stated on the record.” 

 
 (2) Mistake.  In the event that a meeting is held under the incorrect assumption that 

notice required by law and these Rules has been given, the Board at its next 
properly noticed meeting shall cure such defect by considering the agenda items 
from the prior meeting individually and anew.   

 
(3) Agenda. The District Manager, under the guidance of District Counsel and the 

Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson, shall prepare an agenda of the 
meeting/hearing/workshop.  The agenda and any meeting materials available in an 
electronic format, excluding any confidential and any confidential and exempt 
information, shall be available to the public at least seven days before the 
meeting/hearing/workshop, except in an emergency.  Meeting materials shall be 
defined as, and limited to, the agenda, meeting minutes, resolutions, and 
agreements of the District that District staff deems necessary for Board approval. 
Inclusion of additional materials for Board consideration other than those defined 
herein as “meeting materials” shall not convert such materials into “meeting 
materials.” For good cause, the agenda may be changed after it is first made 
available for distribution, and additional materials may be added or provided 
under separate cover at the meeting.  The requirement of good cause shall be 
liberally construed to allow the District to efficiently conduct business and to 
avoid the expenses associated with special meetings. 
 
The District may, but is not required to, use the following format in preparing its 
agenda for its regular meetings: 

 
Call to order 
Roll call 
Public comment 
Organizational matters 
Review of minutes 
Specific items of old business 
Specific items of new business 
Staff reports 

(a)  District Counsel 
(b)  District Engineer 
(c)  District Manager 

1.  Financial Report 
2.  Approval of Expenditures 

Supervisor’s requests and comments 
Public comment 
Adjournment 
 



 

12 
 

(4) Minutes. The Secretary shall be responsible for preparing and keeping the minutes 
of each meeting of the Board. Minutes shall be corrected and approved by the 
Board at a subsequent meeting.  The Secretary may work with other staff 
members in preparing draft minutes for the Board’s consideration. 

 
(5) Special Requests.  Persons wishing to receive, by mail, notices or agendas of 

meetings, may so advise the District Manager or Secretary at the District Office. 
Such persons shall furnish a mailing address in writing and shall be required to 
pre-pay the cost of the copying and postage. 

 
(6) Emergency Meetings. The Chairperson, or Vice-Chairperson if the Chairperson is 

unavailable, upon consultation with the District Manager and District Counsel, if 
available, may convene an emergency meeting of the Board without first having 
complied with sections (1) and (3) of this Rule, to act on emergency matters that 
may affect the public health, safety, or welfare.  Whenever possible, the District 
Manager shall make reasonable efforts to provide public notice and notify all 
Board members of an emergency meeting twenty-four (24) hours in advance.  
Reasonable efforts may include telephone notification.  Notice of the emergency 
meeting must be provided both before and after the meeting on the District’s 
website, if it has one.  Whenever an emergency meeting is called, the District 
Manager shall be responsible for notifying at least one newspaper of general 
circulation in the District. After an emergency meeting, the Board shall publish in 
a newspaper of general circulation in the District, the time, date and place of the 
emergency meeting, the reasons why an emergency meeting was necessary, and a 
description of the action taken.  Actions taken at an emergency meeting may be 
ratified by the Board at a regularly noticed meeting subsequently held. 

 
(7) Public Comment. The Board shall set aside a reasonable amount of time at each 

meeting for public comment and members of the public shall be permitted to 
provide comment on any proposition before the Board.  The portion of the 
meeting generally reserved for public comment shall be identified in the agenda.  
Policies governing public comment may be adopted by the Board in accordance 
with Florida law. 

 
(8) Budget Hearing. Notice of hearing on the annual budget(s) shall be in accord with 

Section 190.008 of the Florida Statutes.  Once adopted in accord with Section 
190.008 of the Florida Statutes, the annual budget(s) may be amended from time 
to time by action of the Board.  Approval of invoices by the Board in excess of 
the funds allocated to a particular budgeted line item shall serve to amend the 
budgeted line item.  

 
(9) Public Hearings.  Notice of required public hearings shall contain the information 

required by applicable Florida law and by these Rules applicable to meeting 
notices and shall be mailed and published as required by Florida law.  The District 
Manager shall ensure that all such notices, whether mailed or published, contain 
the information required by Florida law and these Rules and are mailed and 



 

13 
 

published as required by Florida law.  Public hearings may be held during Board 
meetings when the agenda includes such public hearing. 

 
 (10) Participation by Teleconference/Videoconference.  District staff may participate 

in Board meetings by teleconference or videoconference.  Board members may 
also participate in Board meetings by teleconference or videoconference if in the 
good judgment of the Board extraordinary circumstances exist; provided however, 
at least three Board members must be physically present at the meeting location to 
establish a quorum.  Such extraordinary circumstances shall be presumed when a 
Board member participates by teleconference or videoconference, unless a 
majority of the Board members physically present determines that extraordinary 
circumstances do not exist. 

 
 (11) Board Authorization.  The District has not adopted Robert’s Rules of Order.  For 

each agenda item, there shall be discussion permitted among the Board members 
during the meeting.  Unless such procedure is waived by the Board, approval or 
disapproval of resolutions and other proposed Board actions shall be in the form 
of a motion by one Board member, a second by another Board member, and an 
affirmative vote by the majority of the Board members present.  Any Board 
member, including the Chairperson, can make or second a motion. 

 
(12) Continuances. Any meeting or public hearing of the Board may be continued 

without re-notice or re-advertising provided that: 
 

(a) The Board identifies on the record at the original meeting a reasonable 
need for a continuance; 

 
(b) The continuance is to a specified date, time, and location publicly 

announced at the original meeting; and 
 
(c) The public notice for the original meeting states that the meeting may be 

continued to a date and time and states that the date, time, and location of 
any continuance shall be publicly announced at the original meeting and 
posted at the District Office immediately following the original meeting. 

 
(13) Attorney-Client Sessions.  An Attorney-Client Session is permitted when the 

District’s attorneys deem it necessary to meet in private with the Board to discuss 
pending litigation to which the District is a party before a court or administrative 
agency or as may be authorized by law. The District’s attorney must request such 
session at a public meeting. Prior to holding the Attorney-Client Session, the 
District must give reasonable public notice of the time and date of the session and 
the names of the persons anticipated to attend the session. The session must 
commence at an open meeting in which the Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson 
announces the commencement of the session, the estimated length of the session, 
and the names of the persons who will be attending the session.  The discussion 
during the session is confined to settlement negotiations or strategy related to 



 

14 
 

litigation expenses or as may be authorized by law.  Only the Board, the District’s 
attorneys (including outside counsel), the District Manager, and the court reporter 
may attend an Attorney-Client Session.  During the session, no votes may be 
taken and no final decisions concerning settlement can be made.  Upon the 
conclusion of the session, the public meeting is reopened, and the Chairperson or 
Vice-Chairperson must announce that the session has concluded.  The session 
must be transcribed by a court-reporter and the transcript of the session filed with 
the District Secretary within a reasonable time after the session.  The transcript 
shall not be available for public inspection until after the conclusion of the 
litigation.  

 
(14) Security and Firesafety Board Discussions. Portions of a meeting which relate to 

or would reveal a security or firesafety system plan or portion thereof made 
confidential and exempt by section 119.071(3)(a), Florida Statutes, are exempt 
from the public meeting requirements and other requirements of section 286.011, 
Florida Statutes, and section 24(b), Article 1 of the State Constitution. Should the 
Board wish to discuss such matters, members of the public shall be required to 
leave the meeting room during such discussion. Any records of the Board’s 
discussion of such matters, including recordings or minutes, shall be maintained 
as confidential and exempt records in accordance with Florida law. 

 
Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  §§ 189.069(2)(a)16, 190.006, 190.007, 190.008, 286.0105, 286.011, 286.0113, 286.0114, Fla. Stat. 



 

15 
 

Rule 1.4 Internal Controls to Prevent Fraud, Waste and Abuse 
 

(1) Internal Controls.  The District shall establish and maintain internal 
controls designed to: 

 
(a) Prevent and detect “fraud,” “waste” and “abuse” as those terms are 

defined in section 11.45(1), Florida Statutes; and 
(b) Promote and encourage compliance with applicable laws, rules 

contracts, grant agreements, and best practices; and 
(c) Support economical and efficient operations; and 
(d) Ensure reliability of financial records and reports; and 
(e) Safeguard assets. 

 
(2) Adoption.  The internal controls to prevent fraud, waste and abuse shall be 

adopted and amended by the District in the same manner as District 
policies.  

 
 
Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  § 218.33(3), Fla. Stat. 
 



 

16 
 

Rule 2.0  Rulemaking Proceedings.   
 

(1) Commencement of Proceedings.  Proceedings held for adoption, amendment, or 
repeal of a District rule shall be conducted according to these Rules.  Rulemaking 
proceedings shall be deemed to have been initiated upon publication of notice by 
the District. A “rule” is a District statement of general applicability that 
implements, interprets, or prescribes law or policy, or describes the procedure or 
practice requirements of the District (“Rule”).  Nothing herein shall be construed 
as requiring the District to consider or adopt rules unless required by Chapter 190 
of the Florida Statutes.  Policies adopted by the District which do not consist of 
rates, fees, rentals or other monetary charges may be, but are not required to be, 
implemented through rulemaking proceedings. 

 
(2) Notice of Rule Development. 

 
(a)  Except when the intended action is the repeal of a Rule, the District shall 

provide notice of the development of a proposed rule by publication of a 
Notice of Rule Development in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
District before providing notice of a proposed rule as required by section 
(3) of this Rule.  Consequently, the Notice of Rule Development shall be 
published at least twenty-nine (29) days prior to the public hearing on the 
proposed Rule.  The Notice of Rule Development shall indicate the subject 
area to be addressed by rule development, provide a short, plain 
explanation of the purpose and effect of the proposed rule, cite the specific 
legal authority for the proposed rule, and include a statement of how a 
person may promptly obtain, without cost, a copy of any preliminary draft, 
if available. 

 
    (b) All rules as drafted shall be consistent with Sections 120.54(1)(g) and 

120.54(2)(b) of the Florida Statutes. 
 

(3) Notice of Proceedings and Proposed Rules. 
 

(a) Prior to the adoption, amendment, or repeal of any rule other than an 
emergency rule, the District shall give notice of its intended action, setting 
forth a short, plain explanation of the purpose and effect of the proposed 
action, a reference to the specific rulemaking authority pursuant to which 
the rule is adopted, and a reference to the section or subsection of the 
Florida Statutes being implemented, interpreted, or made specific.  The 
notice shall include a summary of the District’s statement of the estimated 
regulatory costs, if one has been prepared, based on the factors set forth in 
Section 120.541(2) of the Florida Statutes, and a statement that any person 
who wishes to provide the District with a lower cost regulatory alternative 
as provided by Section 120.541(1), must do so in writing within twenty-
one (21) days after publication of the notice.  The notice shall additionally 
include a statement that any affected person may request a public hearing 



 

17 
 

by submitting a written request within twenty-one (21) days after the date 
of publication of the notice.  Except when intended action is the repeal of 
a rule, the notice shall include a reference to both the date on which and 
the place where the Notice of Rule Development required by section (2) of 
this Rule appeared. 

 
(b) The notice shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the 

District and each county in which the District is located not less than 
twenty-eight (28) days prior to the intended action. The proposed rule 
shall be available for inspection and copying by the public at the time of 
the publication of notice. 

 
(c) The notice shall be mailed to all persons named in the proposed rule and to 

all persons who, at least fourteen (14) days prior to such mailing, have 
made requests of the District for advance notice of its rulemaking 
proceedings.  Any person may file a written request with the District 
Manager to receive notice by mail of District proceedings to adopt, 
amend, or repeal a rule.  Such persons must furnish a mailing address and 
may be required to pay the cost of copying and mailing.   

 
(4) Rule Development Workshops.  Whenever requested in writing by any affected 

person, the District must either conduct a rule development workshop prior to 
proposing rules for adoption or the Chairperson must explain in writing why a 
workshop is unnecessary.  The District may initiate a rule development workshop 
but is not required to do so. 

 
(5) Petitions to Initiate Rulemaking.  All Petitions to Initiate Rulemaking proceedings 

must contain the name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner, the 
specific action requested, the specific reason for adoption, amendment, or repeal, 
the date submitted, the text of the proposed rule, and the facts showing that the 
petitioner is regulated by the District or has a substantial interest in the 
rulemaking.  Not later than sixty (60) calendar days following the date of filing a 
petition, the Board shall initiate rulemaking proceedings or deny the petition with 
a written statement of its reasons for the denial.  If the petition is directed to an 
existing policy that the District has not formally adopted as a rule, the District 
may, in its discretion, notice and hold a public hearing on the petition to consider 
the comments of the public directed to the policy, its scope and application, and to 
consider whether the public interest is served adequately by the application of the 
policy on a case-by-case basis, as contrasted with its formal adoption as a rule.  
However, this section shall not be construed as requiring the District to adopt a 
rule to replace a policy. 

 
(6) Rulemaking Materials.  After the publication of the notice referenced in section 

(3) of this Rule, the Board shall make available for public inspection and shall 
provide, upon request and payment of the cost of copies, the following materials: 
 



 

18 
 

(a) The text of the proposed rule, or any amendment or repeal of any existing 
rules; 

 
(b) A detailed written statement of the facts and circumstances justifying the   
 proposed rule; 

 
  (c) A copy of the statement of estimated regulatory costs if required by 

Section 120.541 of the Florida Statutes; and 
 

(d) The published notice. 
 

(7) Hearing.  The District may, or, upon the written request of any affected person 
received within twenty-one (21) days after the date of publication of the notice 
described in section (3) of this Rule, shall, provide a public hearing for the 
presentation of evidence, argument, and oral statements, within the reasonable 
conditions and limitations imposed by the District to avoid duplication, irrelevant 
comments, unnecessary delay, or disruption of the proceedings.  The District shall 
publish notice of the public hearing in a newspaper of general circulation within 
the District either in the text of the notice described in section (3) of this Rule or in 
a separate publication at least seven (7) days before the scheduled public hearing.  
The notice shall specify the date, time, and location of the public hearing, and the 
name, address, and telephone number of the District contact person who can 
provide information about the public hearing. Written statements may be submitted 
by any person prior to or at the public hearing.  All timely submitted written 
statements shall be considered by the District and made part of the rulemaking 
record. 

 
(8) Emergency Rule Adoption.  The Board may adopt an emergency rule if it finds 

that immediate danger to the public health, safety, or welfare exists which 
requires immediate action. Prior to the adoption of an emergency rule, the District 
Manager shall make reasonable efforts to notify a newspaper of general 
circulation in the District. Notice of emergency rules shall be published as soon as 
possible in a newspaper of general circulation in the District.  The District may 
use any procedure which is fair under the circumstances in the adoption of an 
emergency rule as long as it protects the public interest as determined by the 
District and otherwise complies with these provisions. 

 
(9) Negotiated Rulemaking.  The District may use negotiated rulemaking in 

developing and adopting rules pursuant to Section 120.54(2)(d) of the Florida 
Statutes, except that any notices required under Section 120.54(2)(d) of the 
Florida Statutes, may be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
county in which the District is located. 

 
(10) Rulemaking Record.  In all rulemaking proceedings, the District shall compile 

and maintain a rulemaking record.  The record shall include, if applicable: 
 



 

19 
 

 (a) The texts of the proposed rule and the adopted rule;  
 
 (b) All notices given for a proposed rule;  
 
 (c) Any statement of estimated regulatory costs for the rule;  
 
 (d) A written summary of hearings, if any, on the proposed rule;  
 
 (e) All written comments received by the District and responses to those 

written comments; and 
 
 (f) All notices and findings pertaining to an emergency rule. 
 

 (11)  Petitions to Challenge Existing Rules.   
 
  (a)   Any person substantially affected by a rule may seek an administrative 

determination of the invalidity of the rule on the ground that the rule is an 
invalid exercise of the District’s authority.  

(b)   The petition seeking an administrative determination must state with 
particularity the provisions alleged to be invalid with sufficient 
explanation of the facts or grounds for the alleged invalidity and facts 
sufficient to show that the person challenging a rule is substantially 
affected by it.  

(c)   The petition shall be filed with the District. Within 10 days after receiving 
the petition, the Chairperson shall, if the petition complies with the 
requirements of subsection (b) of this section, designate any member of 
the Board (including the Chairperson), District Manager, District Counsel, 
or other person as a hearing officer who shall conduct a hearing within 30 
days thereafter, unless the petition is withdrawn or a continuance is 
granted by agreement of the parties.  The failure of the District to follow 
the applicable rulemaking procedures or requirements in this Rule shall be 
presumed to be material; however, the District may rebut this presumption 
by showing that the substantial interests of the petitioner and the fairness 
of the proceedings have not been impaired.  

(d)   Within 30 days after the hearing, the hearing officer shall render a 
decision and state the reasons therefor in writing.   

(e)   Hearings held under this section shall be de novo in nature. The petitioner 
has a burden of proving by a preponderance of the evidence that the 
existing rule is an invalid exercise of District authority as to the objections 
raised. The hearing officer may: 

   (i) Administer oaths and affirmations; 



 

20 
 

 
   (ii) Rule upon offers of proof and receive relevant evidence; 
 
   (iii) Regulate the course of the hearing, including any pre-hearing 

matters; 
 
   (iv) Enter orders; and 
 
   (v) Make or receive offers of settlement, stipulation, and adjustment. 

(f) The petitioner and the District shall be adverse parties. Other substantially 
affected persons may join the proceedings as intervenors on appropriate 
terms which shall not unduly delay the proceedings.  

(12) Variances and Waivers.  A “variance” means a decision by the District to grant a 
modification to all or part of the literal requirements of a rule to a person who is 
subject to the rule.  A “waiver” means a decision by the District not to apply all or 
part of a rule to a person who is subject to the rule.  Variances and waivers from 
District rules may be granted subject to the following: 

 
 (a)  Variances and waivers shall be granted when the person subject to the rule 

demonstrates that the purpose of the underlying statute will be or has been 
achieved by other means by the person, and when application of the rule 
would create a substantial hardship or would violate principles of fairness. 
For purposes of this section, "substantial hardship" means a demonstrated 
economic, technological, legal, or other type of hardship to the person 
requesting the variance or waiver. For purposes of this section, "principles 
of fairness" are violated when the literal application of a rule affects a 
particular person in a manner significantly different from the way it affects 
other similarly situated persons who are subject to the rule. 

 
 (b)  A person who is subject to regulation by a District Rule may file a petition 

with the District, requesting a variance or waiver from the District’s Rule. 
Each petition shall specify:  

 
  (i)  The rule from which a variance or waiver is requested; 
 
  (ii)  The type of action requested; 
 

 (iii)  The specific facts that would justify a waiver or variance for the 
petitioner; and 

 (iv)   The reason why the variance or the waiver requested would serve 
the purposes of the underlying statute.  

 
(c)  The District shall review the petition and may request only that 

information needed to clarify the petition or to answer new questions 



 

21 
 

raised by or directly related to the petition. If the petitioner asserts that any 
request for additional information is not authorized by law or by Rule of 
the District, the District shall proceed, at the petitioner’s written request, to 
process the petition. 

 
(d)  The Board shall grant or deny a petition for variance or waiver and shall 

announce such disposition at a publicly held meeting of the Board, within 
ninety (90) days after receipt of the original petition, the last item of 
timely requested additional material, or the petitioner's written request to 
finish processing the petition. The District’s statement granting or denying 
the petition shall contain a statement of the relevant facts and reasons 
supporting the District's action. 

 
(13)  Rates, Fees, Rentals and Other Charges.  All rates, fees, rentals, or other charges 

shall be subject to rulemaking proceedings.  Policies adopted by the District 
which do not consist of rates, fees, rentals or other charges may be, but are not 
required to be, implemented through rulemaking proceedings.   

 
Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), 190.035, Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.035(2), Fla. Stat. 
 



 

22 
 

Rule 3.0 Competitive Purchase. 
 
(1)  Purpose and Scope.  In order to comply with Sections 190.033(1) through (3), 

287.055 and 287.017 of the Florida Statutes, the following provisions shall apply 
to the purchase of Professional Services, insurance, construction contracts, 
design-build services, goods, supplies, and materials, Contractual Services, and 
maintenance services. 

 
 (2) Board Authorization.   Except in cases of an Emergency Purchase, a competitive 

purchase governed by these Rules shall only be undertaken after authorization by 
the Board. 

 
(3)  Definitions. 

 
(a) “Competitive Solicitation” means a formal, advertised procurement 

process, other than an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, or 
Invitation to Negotiate, approved by the Board to purchase commodities 
and/or services which affords vendors fair treatment in the competition for 
award of a District purchase contract. 

 
(b) “Continuing Contract” means a contract for Professional Services entered 

into in accordance with Section 287.055 of the Florida Statutes, between 
the District and a firm, whereby the firm provides Professional Services to 
the District for projects in which the costs do not exceed two million 
dollars ($2,000,000), for a study activity when the fee for such 
Professional Services to the District does not exceed two hundred 
thousand dollars ($200,000), or for work of a specified nature as outlined 
in the contract with the District, with no time limitation except that the 
contract must provide a termination clause (for example, a contract for 
general District engineering services).  Firms providing Professional 
Services under Continuing Contracts shall not be required to bid against 
one another.  
 

(c) “Contractual Service” means the rendering by a contractor of its time and 
effort rather than the furnishing of specific commodities.  The term applies 
only to those services rendered by individuals and firms who are 
independent contractors.  Contractual Services do not include auditing 
services, Maintenance Services, or Professional Services as defined in 
Section 287.055(2)(a) of the Florida Statutes, and these Rules.  
Contractual Services also do not include any contract for the furnishing of 
labor or materials for the construction, renovation, repair, modification, or 
demolition of any facility, building, portion of building, utility, park, 
parking lot, or structure or other improvement to real property entered into 
pursuant to Chapter 255 of the Florida Statutes, and Rules 3.5 or 3.6. 

 



 

23 
 

(d) “Design-Build Contract” means a single contract with a Design-Build 
Firm for the design and construction of a public construction project. 
 

(e) “Design-Build Firm” means a partnership, corporation or other legal entity 
that: 

 
(i)  Is certified under Section 489.119 of the Florida Statutes, to 

engage in contracting through a certified or registered general 
contractor or a certified or registered building contractor as the 
qualifying agent; or 

 
(ii)  Is certified under Section 471.023 of the Florida Statutes, to 

practice or to offer to practice engineering; certified under Section 
481.219 of the Florida Statutes, to practice or to offer to practice 
architecture; or certified under Section 481.319 of the Florida 
Statutes, to practice or to offer to practice landscape architecture. 

 
(f) “Design Criteria Package” means concise, performance-oriented drawings 

or specifications for a public construction project.  The purpose of the 
Design Criteria Package is to furnish sufficient information to permit 
Design-Build Firms to prepare a bid or a response to the District’s Request 
for Proposals, or to permit the District to enter into a negotiated Design-
Build Contract.  The Design Criteria Package must specify performance-
based criteria for the public construction project, including the legal 
description of the site, survey information concerning the site, interior 
space requirements, material quality standards, schematic layouts and 
conceptual design criteria of the project, cost or budget estimates, design 
and construction schedules, site development requirements, provisions for 
utilities, stormwater retention and disposal, and parking requirements 
applicable to the project. Design Criteria Packages shall require firms to 
submit information regarding the qualifications, availability, and past 
work of the firms, including the partners and members thereof. 

 
(g) “Design Criteria Professional” means a firm who holds a current 

certificate of registration under Chapter 481 of the Florida Statutes, to 
practice architecture or landscape architecture, or a firm who holds a 
current certificate as a registered engineer under Chapter 471 of the 
Florida Statutes, to practice engineering, and who is employed by or under 
contract to the District to provide professional architect services, 
landscape architect services, or engineering services in connection with 
the preparation of the Design Criteria Package. 

 
(h) “Emergency Purchase” means a purchase necessitated by a sudden 

unexpected turn of events (for example, acts of God, riot, fires, floods, 
hurricanes, accidents, or any circumstances or cause beyond the control of 
the Board in the normal conduct of its business), where the Board finds 



 

24 
 

that the delay incident to competitive purchase would be detrimental to the 
interests of the District. This includes, but is not limited to, instances 
where the time to competitively award the project will jeopardize the 
funding for the project, will materially increase the cost of the project, or 
will create an undue hardship on the public health, safety, or welfare. 

 
(i)  “Invitation to Bid” is a written solicitation for sealed bids with the title, 

date, and hour of the public bid opening designated specifically and 
defining the commodity or service involved.  It includes printed 
instructions prescribing conditions for bidding, qualification, evaluation 
criteria, and provides for a manual signature of an authorized 
representative.  It may include one or more bid alternates. 
 

(j) “Invitation to Negotiate” means a written solicitation for competitive 
sealed replies to select one or more vendors with which to commence 
negotiations for the procurement of commodities or services.   

 
(k)  “Negotiate” means to conduct legitimate, arm’s length discussions and 

conferences to reach an agreement on a term or price.   
 
(l) “Professional Services” means those services within the scope of the 

practice of architecture, professional engineering, landscape architecture, 
or registered surveying and mapping, as defined by the laws of Florida, or 
those services performed by any architect, professional engineer, 
landscape architect, or registered surveyor and mapper, in connection with 
the firm's or individual's professional employment or practice. 

 
(m) “Proposal (or Reply or Response) Most Advantageous to the District” 

means, as determined in the sole discretion of the Board, the proposal, 
reply, or response that is: 

 
(i)  Submitted by a person or firm capable and qualified in all respects 

to perform fully the contract requirements, who has the integrity 
and reliability to assure good faith performance; 

 
(ii)  The most responsive to the Request for Proposals, Invitation to 

Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation as determined by the Board; 
and 

 
(iii)  For a cost to the District deemed by the Board to be reasonable. 

 
(n) “Purchase” means acquisition by sale, rent, lease, lease/purchase, or 

installment sale. It does not include transfer, sale, or exchange of goods, 
supplies, or materials between the District and any federal, state, regional 
or local governmental entity or political subdivision of the State of 
Florida. 



 

25 
 

 
(o) “Request for Proposals” or “RFP” is a written solicitation for sealed 

proposals with the title, date, and hour of the public opening designated 
and requiring the manual signature of an authorized representative.  It may 
provide general information, applicable laws and rules, statement of work, 
functional or general specifications, qualifications, proposal instructions, 
work detail analysis, and evaluation criteria as necessary.   
 

(p) “Responsive and Responsible Bidder” means an entity or individual that 
has submitted a bid that conforms in all material respects to the Invitation 
to Bid and has the capability in all respects to fully perform the contract 
requirements and the integrity and reliability that will assure good faith 
performance.  “Responsive and Responsible Vendor” means an entity or 
individual that has submitted a proposal, reply, or response that conforms 
in all material respects to the Request for Proposals, Invitation to 
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation and has the capability in all respects 
to fully perform the contract requirements and the integrity and reliability 
that will assure good faith performance.  In determining whether an entity 
or individual is a Responsive and Responsible Bidder (or Vendor), the 
District may consider, in addition to factors described in the Invitation to 
Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive 
Solicitation, the following: 

 
(i) The ability and adequacy of the professional personnel employed 

by the entity/individual; 
 
(ii) The past performance of the entity/individual for the District and in 

other professional employment; 
 
(iii) The willingness of the entity/individual to meet time and budget 

requirements; 
 
(iv) The geographic location of the entity’s/individual’s headquarters 

or office in relation to the project; 
 
(v) The recent, current, and projected workloads of the 

entity/individual; 
 
(vi) The volume of work previously awarded to the entity/individual; 
 
(vii) Whether the cost components of the bid or proposal are 

appropriately balanced; and 
  

 (viii) Whether the entity/individual is a certified minority business 
enterprise. 

 



 

26 
 

(q) “Responsive Bid,” “Responsive Proposal,” “Responsive Reply,” and 
“Responsive Response” all mean a bid, proposal, reply, or response which 
conforms in all material respects to the specifications and conditions in the 
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, or 
Competitive Solicitation document and these Rules, and the cost 
components of which, if any, are appropriately balanced.  A bid, proposal, 
reply or response is not responsive if the person or firm submitting it fails 
to meet any material requirement relating to the qualifications, financial 
stability, or licensing of the bidder. 

 
  Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
  Law Implemented:  §§ 190.033, 255.20, 287.055, Fla. Stat. 
 



 

27 
 

Rule 3.1 Procedure Under the Consultants' Competitive Negotiations Act. 
 
 (1) Scope.  The following procedures are adopted for the selection of firms or 

individuals to provide Professional Services exceeding the thresholds herein 
described, for the negotiation of such contracts, and to provide for protest of 
actions of the Board under this Rule.  As used in this Rule, “Project” means that 
fixed capital outlay study or planning activity when basic construction cost is 
estimated by the District to exceed the threshold amount provided in Section 
287.017 of the Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY FIVE, or for a planning study 
activity when the fee for Professional Services is estimated by the District to 
exceed the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017 for CATEGORY TWO, 
as such categories may be amended or adjusted from time to time. 

 
 (2) Qualifying Procedures.  In order to be eligible to provide Professional Services to 

the District, a consultant must, at the time of receipt of the firm’s qualification 
submittal: 

    
  (a) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good standing; 
   
  (b) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if any; 
 
  (c) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized to do 

business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 of the 
Florida Statutes, if the consultant is a corporation; and 

 
  (d) Meet any qualification requirements set forth in the District’s Request for 

Qualifications.   
 
  Evidence of compliance with this Rule may be submitted with the qualifications, 

if requested by the District. In addition, evidence of compliance must be 
submitted any time requested by the District. 

 
 (3) Public Announcement.  Except in cases of valid public emergencies as certified 

by the Board, the District shall announce each occasion when Professional 
Services are required for a Project or a Continuing Contract by publishing a notice 
providing a general description of the Project, or the nature of the Continuing 
Contract, and the method for interested consultants to apply for consideration.  
The notice shall appear in at least one (1) newspaper of general circulation in the 
District and in such other places as the District deems appropriate.  The notice 
must allow at least fourteen (14) days for submittal of qualifications from the date 
of publication. The District may maintain lists of consultants interested in 
receiving such notices. These consultants are encouraged to submit annually 
statements of qualifications and performance data.  The District shall make 
reasonable efforts to provide copies of any notices to such consultants, but the 
failure to do so shall not give such consultants any bid protest or other rights or 
otherwise disqualify any otherwise valid procurement process.  The Board has the 



 

28 
 

right to reject any and all qualifications, and such reservation shall be included in 
the published notice.  Consultants not receiving a contract award shall not be 
entitled to recover from the District any costs of qualification package preparation 
or submittal. 

 
 (4) Competitive Selection. 
 
  (a) The Board shall review and evaluate the data submitted in response to the 

notice described in section (3) of this Rule regarding qualifications and 
performance ability, as well as any statements of qualifications on file.  
The Board shall conduct discussions with, and may require public 
presentation by consultants regarding their qualifications, approach to the 
Project, and ability to furnish the required services.  The Board shall then 
select and list the consultants, in order of preference, deemed to be the 
most highly capable and qualified to perform the required Professional 
Services, after considering these and other appropriate criteria: 

 
   (i) The ability and adequacy of the professional personnel employed 

by each consultant; 
    
   (ii)  Whether a consultant is a certified minority business enterprise; 
 
   (iii) Each consultant’s past performance; 
 
   (iv) The willingness of each consultant to meet time and budget 

requirements; 
 
   (v)    The geographic location of each consultant's headquarters, office 

and personnel in relation to the project; 
 

   (vi) The recent, current, and projected workloads of each consultant; 
and 

 
   (vii) The volume of work previously awarded to each consultant by the 

District. 
 
  (b) Nothing in these Rules shall prevent the District from evaluating and 

eventually selecting a consultant if less than three (3) Responsive 
qualification packages, including packages indicating a desire not to 
provide Professional Services on a given Project, are received. 

 
  (c) If the selection process is administered by any person or committee other 

than the full Board, the selection made will be presented to the full Board 
with a recommendation that competitive negotiations be instituted with the 
selected firms in order of preference listed. 

 



 

29 
 

  (d) Notice of the rankings adopted by the Board, including the rejection of 
some or all qualification packages, shall be provided in writing to all 
consultants by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight 
delivery service. The notice shall include the following statement:  
"Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the 
Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those 
Rules," or wording to that effect. Protests of the District’s ranking 
decisions under this Rule shall be in accordance with the procedures set 
forth in Rule 3.11. 

 
 (5) Competitive Negotiation. 
 
  (a) After the Board has authorized the beginning of competitive negotiations, 

the District may begin such negotiations with the firm listed as most 
qualified to perform the required Professional Services at a rate or amount 
of compensation which the Board determines is fair, competitive, and 
reasonable. 

 
  (b) In negotiating a lump-sum or cost-plus-a-fixed-fee professional contract 

for more than the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017 of the 
Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY FOUR, the firm receiving the award 
shall be required to execute a truth-in-negotiation certificate stating that 
"wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation are 
accurate, complete and current at the time of contracting."  In addition, 
any professional service contract under which such a certificate is 
required, shall contain a provision that "the original contract price and any 
additions thereto, shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums by 
which the Board determines the contract price was increased due to 
inaccurate, incomplete, or noncurrent wage rates and other factual unit 
costs."  

 
  (c) Should the District be unable to negotiate a satisfactory agreement with 

the firm determined to be the most qualified at a price deemed by the 
District to be fair, competitive, and reasonable, then negotiations with that 
firm shall be terminated and the District shall immediately begin 
negotiations with the second most qualified firm.  If a satisfactory 
agreement with the second firm cannot be reached, those negotiations 
shall be terminated and negotiations with the third most qualified firm 
shall be undertaken. 

 
  (d) Should the District be unable to negotiate a satisfactory agreement with 

one of the top three (3) ranked consultants, additional firms shall be 
selected by the District, in order of their competence and qualifications.  
Negotiations shall continue, beginning with the first-named firm on the 
list, until an agreement is reached or the list of firms is exhausted. 

 



 

30 
 

 (6) Contracts; Public Records.  In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered 
into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the 
contractor to comply with public records laws.  

 
 (7)  Continuing Contract.  Nothing in this Rule shall prohibit a Continuing Contract 

between a consultant and the District. 
 
 (8) Emergency Purchase.  The District may make an Emergency Purchase without 

complying with these Rules.  The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred 
or is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting. 

 
Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  §§ 119.0701, 190.011(3), 190.033, 287.055, Fla. Stat. 
 
 



 

31 
 

Rule 3.2 Procedure Regarding Auditor Selection. 
 
 In order to comply with the requirements of Section 218.391 of the Florida Statutes, the 

following procedures are outlined for selection of firms or individuals to provide 
Auditing Services and for the negotiation of such contracts.  For audits required under 
Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes but not meeting the thresholds of Chapter 218 of the 
Florida Statutes, the District need not follow these procedures but may proceed with the 
selection of a firm or individual to provide Auditing Services and for the negotiation of 
such contracts in the manner the Board determines is in the best interests of the District. 

 
 (1) Definitions. 
 
  (a) "Auditing Services" means those services within the scope of the practice 

of a certified public accounting firm licensed under Chapter 473 of the 
Florida Statutes, and qualified to conduct audits in accordance with 
government auditing standards as adopted by the Florida Board of 
Accountancy.   

 
  (b) "Committee" means the auditor selection committee appointed by the 

Board as described in section (2) of this Rule. 
 

(2) Establishment of Auditor Selection Committee.  Prior to a public announcement 
under section (4) of this Rule that Auditing Services are required, the Board shall 
establish an auditor selection committee (“Committee”), the primary purpose of 
which is to assist the Board in selecting an auditor to conduct the annual financial 
audit required by Section 218.39 of the Florida Statutes. The Committee shall 
include at least three individuals, at least one of which must also be a member of 
the Board.  The establishment and selection of the Committee must be conducted 
at a publicly noticed and held meeting of the Board.  The Chairperson of the 
Committee must be a member of the Board.  An employee, a chief executive 
officer, or a chief financial officer of the District may not serve as a member of 
the Committee; provided however such individual may serve the Committee in an 
advisory capacity. 

 
(3) Establishment of Minimum Qualifications and Evaluation Criteria.  Prior to a 

public announcement under section (4) of this Rule that Auditing Services are 
required, the Committee shall meet at a publicly noticed meeting to establish 
minimum qualifications and factors to use for the evaluation of Auditing Services 
to be provided by a certified public accounting firm licensed under Chapter 473 of 
the Florida Statutes, and qualified to conduct audits in accordance with 
government auditing standards as adopted by the Florida Board of Accountancy. 

 
(a)  Minimum Qualifications. In order to be eligible to submit a proposal, a 

firm must, at all relevant times including the time of receipt of the 
proposal by the District: 

 



 

32 
 

(i)  Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good 
standing; 

 
(ii)  Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if 

any; 
 
(iii)  Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be 

authorized to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with 
Chapter 607 of the Florida Statutes, if the proposer is a 
corporation; and 

 
(iv)  Meet any pre-qualification requirements established by the 

Committee and set forth in the RFP or other specifications.   
 

If requested in the RFP or other specifications, evidence of compliance 
with the minimum qualifications as established by the Committee must be 
submitted with the proposal. 

 
(b)  Evaluation Criteria.  The factors established for the evaluation of Auditing 

Services by the Committee shall include, but are not limited to: 
 

(i)  Ability of personnel; 
 
(ii)  Experience; 
 
(iii)  Ability to furnish the required services; and  
 
(iv)  Such other factors as may be determined by the Committee to be 

applicable to its particular requirements. 

The Committee may also choose to consider compensation as a factor.  If the 
Committee establishes compensation as one of the factors, compensation shall not 
be the sole or predominant factor used to evaluate proposals. 

(4) Public Announcement.  After identifying the factors to be used in evaluating the 
proposals for Auditing Services as set forth in section (3) of this Rule, the 
Committee shall publicly announce the opportunity to provide Auditing Services.  
Such public announcement shall include a brief description of the audit and how 
interested firms can apply for consideration and obtain the RFP.  The notice shall 
appear in at least one (1) newspaper of general circulation in the District and the 
county in which the District is located.  The public announcement shall allow for 
at least seven (7) days for the submission of proposals.  

 
(5) Request for Proposals.  The Committee shall provide interested firms with a 

Request for Proposals (“RFP”).  The RFP shall provide information on how 
proposals are to be evaluated and such other information the Committee 



 

33 
 

determines is necessary for the firm to prepare a proposal.  The RFP shall state the 
time and place for submitting proposals.   

 
(6) Committee’s Evaluation of Proposals and Recommendation.  The Committee 

shall meet at a publicly held meeting that is publicly noticed for a reasonable time 
in advance of the meeting to evaluate all qualified proposals and may, as part of 
the evaluation, require that each interested firm provide a public presentation 
where the Committee may conduct discussions with the firm, and where the firm 
may present information, regarding the firm’s qualifications.  At the public 
meeting, the Committee shall rank and recommend in order of preference no 
fewer than three firms deemed to be the most highly qualified to perform the 
required services after considering the factors established pursuant to subsection 
(3)(b) of this Rule.  If fewer than three firms respond to the RFP or if no firms 
respond to the RFP, the Committee shall recommend such firm as it deems to be 
the most highly qualified.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may 
recommend that any and all proposals be rejected. 

 
(7) Board Selection of Auditor. 

 
(a)  Where compensation was not selected as a factor used in evaluating the 

proposals, the Board shall negotiate with the firm ranked first and inquire 
of that firm as to the basis of compensation.  If the Board is unable to 
negotiate a satisfactory agreement with the first ranked firm at a price 
deemed by the Board to be fair, competitive, and reasonable, then 
negotiations with that firm shall be terminated and the Board shall 
immediately begin negotiations with the second ranked firm.  If a 
satisfactory agreement with the second ranked firm cannot be reached, 
those negotiations shall be terminated and negotiations with the third 
ranked firm shall be undertaken.  The Board may reopen formal 
negotiations with any one of the three top-ranked firms, but it may not 
negotiate with more than one firm at a time.  If the Board is unable to 
negotiate a satisfactory agreement with any of the selected firms, the 
Committee shall recommend additional firms in order of the firms’ 
respective competence and qualifications.  Negotiations shall continue, 
beginning with the first-named firm on the list, until an agreement is 
reached or the list of firms is exhausted. 

 
(b)  Where compensation was selected as a factor used in evaluating the 

proposals, the Board shall select the highest-ranked qualified firm or 
document in its public records the reason for not selecting the highest-
ranked qualified firm.   

 
(c)  In negotiations with firms under this Rule, the Board may allow the 

District Manager, District Counsel, or other designee to conduct 
negotiations on its behalf. 

 



 

34 
 

(d)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may reject any or all proposals.  
The Board shall not consider any proposal, or enter into any contract for 
Auditing Services, unless the proposed agreed-upon compensation is 
reasonable to satisfy the requirements of Section 218.39 of the Florida 
Statutes, and the needs of the District. 

 
(8) Contract.  Any agreement reached under this Rule shall be evidenced by a written 

contract, which may take the form of an engagement letter signed and executed by 
both parties.  The written contract shall include all provisions and conditions of 
the procurement of such services and shall include, at a minimum, the following: 

 
(a)  A provision specifying the services to be provided and fees or other 

compensation for such services; 
 
(b)  A provision requiring that invoices for fees or other compensation be 

submitted in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the terms of 
the contract; 

 
(c)  A provision setting forth deadlines for the auditor to submit a preliminary 

draft audit report to the District for review and to submit a final audit 
report no later than June 30 of the fiscal year that follows the fiscal year 
for which the audit is being conducted; 

 
(d)  A provision specifying the contract period, including renewals, and 

conditions under which the contract may be terminated or renewed.  The 
maximum contract period including renewals shall be five (5) years. A 
renewal may be done without the use of the auditor selection procedures 
provided in this Rule but must be in writing.   

 
(e)  Provisions required by law that require the auditor to comply with public 

records laws. 
 

(9) Notice of Award.  Once a negotiated agreement with a firm or individual is 
reached, or the Board authorizes the execution of an agreement with a firm where 
compensation was a factor in the evaluation of proposals, notice of the intent to 
award, including the rejection of some or all proposals, shall be provided in 
writing to all proposers by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or 
overnight delivery service. The notice shall include the following statement:  
"Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of 
the District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules," or 
wording to that effect.  Protests regarding the award of contracts under this Rule 
shall be as provided for in Rule 3.11.  No proposer shall be entitled to recover any 
costs of proposal preparation or submittal from the District. 

 
Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  §§ 119.0701, 218.33, 218.391, Fla. Stat. 
 



 

35 
 

 



 

36 
 

Rule 3.3 Purchase of Insurance. 
 

(1) Scope.  The purchases of life, health, accident, hospitalization, legal expense, or 
annuity insurance, or all of any kinds of such insurance for the officers and 
employees of the District, and for health, accident, hospitalization, and legal 
expenses upon a group insurance plan by the District, shall be governed by this 
Rule. This Rule does not apply to the purchase of any other type of insurance by 
the District, including but not limited to liability insurance, property insurance, 
and directors and officers insurance. Nothing in this Rule shall require the District 
to purchase insurance.   

 
 (2) Procedure.  For a purchase of insurance within the scope of these Rules, the 

following procedure shall be followed: 
 

(a) The Board shall cause to be prepared a Notice of Invitation to Bid. 
 
(b) Notice of the Invitation to Bid shall be advertised at least once in a 

newspaper of general circulation within the District. The notice shall allow 
at least fourteen (14) days for submittal of bids. 

 
(c) The District may maintain a list of persons interested in receiving notices 

of Invitations to Bid.  The District shall make reasonable efforts to provide 
copies of any notices to such persons, but the failure to do so shall not give 
such consultants any bid protest or other rights or otherwise disqualify any 
otherwise valid procurement process.   

 
(d) Bids shall be opened at the time and place noted in the Invitation to Bid. 
 
(e) If only one (1) response to an Invitation is received, the District may 

proceed with the purchase.  If no response to an Invitation to Bid is 
received, the District may take whatever steps are reasonably necessary in 
order to proceed with the purchase. 

 
(f) The Board has the right to reject any and all bids and such reservations 

shall be included in all solicitations and advertisements. 
 
(g) Simultaneously with the review of the submitted bids, the District may 

undertake negotiations with those companies that have submitted 
reasonable and timely bids and, in the opinion of the District, are fully 
qualified and capable of meeting all services and requirements.  Bid 
responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the specifications and 
criteria contained in the Invitation to Bid; in addition, the total cost to the 
District, the cost, if any, to the District officers, employees, or their 
dependents, the geographic location of the company’s headquarters and 
offices in relation to the District, and the ability of the company to 
guarantee premium stability may be considered.  A contract to purchase 



 

37 
 

insurance shall be awarded to that company whose response to the 
Invitation to Bid best meets the overall needs of the District, its officers, 
employees, and/or dependents. 

 
(h) Notice of the intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids, shall 

be provided in writing to all bidders by United States Mail, by hand 
delivery, or by overnight delivery service. The notice shall include the 
following statement:  "Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed 
in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of 
proceedings under those Rules," or wording to that effect.  Protests of the 
District’s procurement of insurance under this Rule shall be in accordance 
with the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11. 

 
Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  § 112.08, Fla. Stat. 
 



 

38 
 

Rule 3.4 Pre-qualification 
 
  (1) Scope.  In its discretion, the District may undertake a pre-qualification process in 

accordance with this Rule for vendors to provide construction services, goods, 
supplies, and materials, Contractual Services, and maintenance services.    

 
(2) Procedure.  When the District seeks to pre-qualify vendors, the following 

procedures shall apply: 
 

(a) The Board shall cause to be prepared a Request for Qualifications. 
 
(b) For construction services exceeding the thresholds described in Section 

255.20 of the Florida Statutes, the Board must advertise the proposed pre-
qualification criteria and procedures and allow at least seven (7) days 
notice of the public hearing for comments on such pre-qualification 
criteria and procedures.  At such public hearing, potential vendors may 
object to such pre-qualification criteria and procedures.  Following such 
public hearing, the Board shall formally adopt pre-qualification criteria 
and procedures prior to the advertisement of the Request for Qualifications 
for construction services. 

 
(c) The Request for Qualifications shall be advertised at least once in a 

newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county 
in which the District is located.  The notice shall allow at least seven (7) 
days for submittal of qualifications for goods, supplies and materials, 
Contractual Services, maintenance services, and construction services 
under two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000).  The notice shall 
allow at least twenty-one (21) days for submittal of qualifications for 
construction services estimated to cost over two hundred fifty thousand 
dollars ($250,000) and thirty (30) days for construction services estimated 
to cost over five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000).   

 
(d) The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices 

of Requests for Qualifications.  The District shall make a good faith effort 
to provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand 
delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to 
the District Manager for inclusion on the list.  However, failure of a 
person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any pre-qualification 
determination or contract awarded in accordance with these Rules and 
shall not be a basis for a protest of any pre-qualification determination or 
contract award. 

 
(e) If the District has pre-qualified vendors for a particular category of 

purchase, at the option of the District, only those persons who have been 
pre-qualified will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies or 



 

39 
 

responses in response to the applicable Invitation to Bid, Request for 
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. 

 
(f) In order to be eligible to submit qualifications, a firm or individual must, 

at the time of receipt of the qualifications: 
 

(i)  Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good 
standing; 

 
(ii)  Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if 

any; 
 
(iii)  Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be 

authorized to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with 
Chapter 607 of the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation; 
and 

 
(iv)  Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the 

Request for Qualifications. 
 

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the 
qualifications if required by the District.  Failure to submit evidence of 
compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the 
qualifications. 

 
(g) Qualifications shall be presented to the Board, or a committee appointed 

by the Board, for evaluation in accordance with the Request for 
Qualifications and this Rule.  Minor variations in the qualifications may be 
waived by the Board. A variation is minor if waiver of the variation does 
not create a competitive advantage or disadvantage of a material nature.   

 
(h) All vendors determined by the District to meet the pre-qualification 

requirements shall be pre-qualified.  To assure full understanding of the 
responsiveness to the requirements contained in a Request for 
Qualifications, discussions may be conducted with qualified vendors.  
Vendors shall be accorded fair treatment prior to the submittal date with 
respect to any opportunity for discussion and revision of qualifications.  
For construction services, any contractor pre-qualified and considered 
eligible by the Department of Transportation to bid to perform the type of 
work the project entails shall be presumed to be qualified to perform the 
project. 

 
(i) The Board shall have the right to reject all qualifications if there are not 

enough to be competitive or if rejection is determined to be in the best 
interest of the District.  No vendor shall be entitled to recover any costs of 
qualification preparation or submittal from the District. 



 

40 
 

 
(j) Notice of intent to pre-qualify, including rejection of some or all 
qualifications, shall be provided in writing to all vendors by United States Mail, 
electronic mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery service.  The 
notice shall include the following statement:  "Failure to file a protest within the 
time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver 
of proceedings under those Rules," or wording to that effect.  Protests of the 
District’s pre-qualification decisions under this Rule shall be in accordance with 
the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11; provided however, protests related to the 
pre-qualification criteria and procedures for construction services shall be 
resolved in accordance with section (2)(b) of this Rule and Section 255.20(1)(b) 
of the Florida Statutes. 
 

(3) Suspension, Revocation, or Denial of Qualification 

(a) The District, for good cause, may deny, suspend, or revoke a prequalified 
vendor’s pre-qualified status. A suspension, revocation, or denial for good 
cause shall prohibit the vendor from bidding on any District construction 
contract for which qualification is required, shall constitute a determination of 
non-responsibility to bid on any other District construction or maintenance 
contract, and shall prohibit the vendor from acting as a material supplier or 
subcontractor on any District contract or project during the period of 
suspension, revocation, or denial. Good cause shall include the following: 

i. One of the circumstances specified under Section 337.16(2), Fla. Stat., 
has occurred. 

ii. Affiliated contractors submitted more than one proposal for the same 
work. In this event the pre-qualified status of all of the affiliated 
bidders will be revoked, suspended, or denied. All bids of affiliated 
bidders will be rejected. 

iii. The vendor made or submitted false, deceptive, or fraudulent 
statements, certifications, or materials in any claim for payment or any 
information required by any District contract. 

iv. The vendor or its affiliate defaulted on any contract or a contract 
surety assumed control of financial responsibility for any contract of 
the vendor. 

v. The vendor’s qualification to bid is suspended, revoked, or denied by 
any other public or semi-public entity, or the vendor has been the 
subject of a civil enforcement proceeding or settlement involving a 
public or semi-public entity. 

vi. The vendor failed to comply with contract or warranty requirements or 
failed to follow District direction in the performance of a contract. 



 

41 
 

vii. The vendor failed to timely furnish all contract documents required by 
the contract specifications, special provisions, or by any state or 
federal statutes or regulations. If the vendor fails to furnish any of the 
subject contract documents by the expiration of the period of 
suspension, revocation, or denial set forth above, the vendor’s pre-
qualified status shall remain suspended, revoked, or denied until the 
documents are furnished. 

viii. The vendor failed to notify the District within 10 days of the vendor, 
or any of its affiliates, being declared in default or otherwise not 
completing work on a contract or being suspended from qualification 
to bid or denied qualification to bid by any other public or semi-public 
agency. 

ix. The vendor did not pay its subcontractors or suppliers in a timely 
manner or in compliance with contract documents. 

x. The vendor has demonstrated instances of poor or unsatisfactory 
performance, deficient management resulting in project delay, poor 
quality workmanship, a history of payment of liquidated damages, 
untimely completion of projects, uncooperative attitude, contract 
litigation, inflated claims or defaults. 

xi. An affiliate of the vendor has previously been determined by the 
District to be non-responsible, and the specified period of suspension, 
revocation, denial, or non-responsibility remains in effect. 

xii. The vendor or affiliate(s) has been convicted of a contract crime. 

1. The term “contract crime” means any violation of state or 
federal antitrust laws with respect to a public contract or any 
violation of any state or federal law involving fraud, bribery, 
collusion, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation with 
respect to a public contract. 

2. The term “convicted” or “conviction” means a finding of guilt 
or a conviction of a contract crime, with or without an 
adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record 
as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or entry of a plea of 
guilty or nolo contendere. 

(b) A denial, suspension, or revocation shall prohibit the vendor from being a 
subcontractor on District work during the period of denial, suspension, or 
revocation, except when a prime contractor’s bid has used prices of a 
subcontractor who becomes disqualified after the bid, but before the request 
for authorization to sublet is presented. 



 

42 
 

(c) The District shall inform the vendor in writing of its intent to deny, suspend, 
or revoke its pre-qualified status and inform the vendor of its right to a 
hearing, the procedure which must be followed, and the applicable time limits. 
If a hearing is requested within 10 days after the receipt of the notice of intent, 
the hearing shall be held within 30 days after receipt by the District of the 
request for the hearing. The decision shall be issued within 15 days after the 
hearing.  

(d) Such suspension or revocation shall not affect the vendor’s obligations under 
any preexisting contract. 

(e) In the case of contract crimes, the vendor’s pre-qualified status under this 
Rule shall be revoked indefinitely. For all violations of Rule 3.4(3)(a) other 
than for the vendor’s conviction for contract crimes, the revocation, denial, or 
suspension of a vendor’s pre-qualified status under this Rule shall be for a 
specific period of time based on the seriousness of the deficiency. 

Examples of factors affecting the seriousness of a deficiency are: 

i. Impacts on project schedule, cost, or quality of work; 

ii. Unsafe conditions allowed to exist; 

iii. Complaints from the public; 

iv. Delay or interference with the bidding process; 

v. The potential for repetition; 

vi. Integrity of the public contracting process; 

vii. Effect on the health, safety, and welfare of the public. 

 
Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  §§ 190.033, 255.0525, 255.20, Fla. Stat. 



 

43 
 

Rule 3.5 Construction Contracts, Not Design-Build. 
 

(1)  Scope.  All contracts for the construction or improvement of any building, 
structure, or other public construction works authorized by Chapter 190 of the 
Florida Statutes, the costs of which are estimated by the District in accordance 
with generally accepted cost accounting principles to be in excess of the threshold 
amount for applicability of Section 255.20 of the Florida Statutes, as that amount 
may be indexed or amended from time to time, shall be let under the terms of 
these Rules and the procedures of Section 255.20 of the Florida Statutes, as the 
same may be amended from time to time.  A project shall not be divided solely to 
avoid the threshold bidding requirements. 

 
(2) Procedure.  When a purchase of construction services is within the scope of this 

Rule, the following procedures shall apply: 
 

 (a) The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for 
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. 

 
 (b) Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to 

Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the District and in the county in which 
the District is located.  The notice shall also include the amount of the bid 
bond, if one is required.  The notice shall allow at least twenty-one (21) 
days for submittal of sealed bids, proposals, replies, or responses, unless 
the Board, for good cause, determines a shorter period of time is 
appropriate. Any project projected to cost more than five hundred 
thousand dollars ($500,000) must be noticed at least thirty (30) days prior 
to the date for submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses.  If the 
Board has previously pre-qualified contractors pursuant to Rule 3.4 and 
determined that only the contractors that have been pre-qualified will be 
permitted to submit bids, proposals, replies, and responses, the Notice of 
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or 
Competitive Solicitation need not be published.  Instead, the Notice of 
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or 
Competitive Solicitation shall be sent to the pre-qualified contractors by 
United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery service. 

 
 (c) The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices 

of Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and 
Competitive Solicitations.  The District shall make a good faith effort to 
provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand 
delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to 
the District Manager for inclusion on the list.  However, failure of a 
person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in 
accordance with this Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any 
contract award.   



 

44 
 

 
(d) If the District has pre-qualified providers of construction services, then, at 

the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-qualified 
will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, or responses to 
Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and 
Competitive Solicitations. 

 
(e) In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm 

or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or 
responses: 

 
(i) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good 

standing; 
 

(ii) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if 
any; 

 
(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be 

authorized to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with 
Chapter 607 of the Florida Statutes, if the bidder is a corporation; 
and 

 
     (iv)  Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the 

Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or 
Competitive Solicitation. 

 
Any contractor that has been found guilty by a court of any violation of 
federal labor or employment tax laws regarding subjects including but not 
limited to, reemployment assistance, safety, tax withholding, worker’s 
compensation, unemployment tax, social security and Medicare tax, wage 
or hour, or prevailing rate laws within the past 5 years may be considered 
ineligible by the District to submit a bid, response, or proposal for a 
District project. 

 
Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid, 
proposal, reply, or response, if required by the District.  Failure to submit 
evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the 
bid, proposal, reply, or response. 

 
(f) Bids, proposals, replies, and responses, or the portions of which that 

include the price, shall be publicly opened at a meeting noticed in 
accordance with Rule 1.3, and at which at least one district representative 
is present.  The name of each bidder and the price submitted in the bid 
shall be announced at such meeting and shall be made available upon 
request. Minutes should be taken at the meeting and maintained by the 
District. Bids, proposals, replies, and responses shall be evaluated in 



 

45 
 

accordance with the respective Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, 
Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation and these Rules.  
Minor variations in the bids, proposals, replies, or responses may be 
waived by the Board.  A variation is minor if waiver of the variation does 
not create a competitive advantage or disadvantage of a material nature.  
Mistakes in arithmetic extension of pricing may be corrected by the Board.  
Bids and proposals may not be modified or supplemented after opening; 
provided however, additional information may be requested and/or 
provided to evidence compliance, make non-material modifications, 
clarifications, or supplementations, and as otherwise permitted by Florida 
law. 

 
(g) The lowest Responsive Bid submitted by a Responsive and Responsible 

Bidder in response to an Invitation to Bid shall be accepted.  In relation to 
a Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive 
Solicitation, the Board shall select the Responsive Proposal, Reply, or 
Response submitted by a Responsive and Responsible Vendor which is 
most advantageous to the District. To assure full understanding of the 
responsiveness to the solicitation requirements contained in a Request for 
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions 
may be conducted with qualified vendors.  Vendors shall be accorded fair 
treatment prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for 
discussion, preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, and 
responses.   

 
 (h) The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or 

responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the 
purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is 
determined to be in the best interest of the District.  No contractor shall be 
entitled to recover any costs of bid, proposal, response, or reply 
preparation or submittal from the District. 

 
 (i) The Board may require potential contractors to furnish bid bonds, 

performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be 
approved by the Board. 

 
(j) Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids, 

proposals, replies, or responses, shall be provided in writing to all 
contractors by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight 
delivery service. The notice shall include the following statement:  
"Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the 
Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those 
Rules," or wording to that effect.  Protests of the District’s purchase of 
construction services under this Rule shall be in accordance with the 
procedures set forth in Rule 3.11. 

 



 

46 
 

(k) If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses 
are received, the District may purchase construction services or may reject 
the bids, proposals, replies, or responses for a lack of competitiveness. If 
no Responsive Bid, Proposal, Reply, or Response is received, the District 
may proceed with the procurement of construction services, in the manner 
the Board determines is in the best interests of the District, which may 
include but is not limited to a direct purchase of the construction services 
without further competitive selection processes.  
 

 (3) Sole Source; Government.  Construction services that are only available from a 
single source are exempt from this Rule.  Construction services provided by 
governmental agencies are exempt from this Rule.  This Rule shall not apply to 
the purchase of construction services, which may include goods, supplies, or 
materials, that are purchased under a federal, state, or local government contract 
that has been competitively procured by such federal, state, or local government 
in a manner consistent with the material procurement requirements of these Rules.  
A contract for construction services is exempt from this Rule if state or federal 
law prescribes with whom the District must contract or if the rate of payment is 
established during the appropriation process.    

 
(4) Contracts; Public Records.  In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered 

into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the 
contractor to comply with public records laws. 

 
(5)  Emergency Purchases. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without 

complying with these rules.  The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or 
is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board Meeting.   

 
 (6) Exceptions.  This Rule is inapplicable when: 
 

(a)  The project is undertaken as repair or maintenance of an existing public 
facility; 

 
(b)  The funding source of the project will be diminished or lost because the 

time required to competitively award the project after the funds become 
available exceeds the time within which the funding source must be spent; 

 
(c)  The District has competitively awarded a project and the contractor has 

abandoned the project or the District has terminated the contract; or 
 
(d)  The District, after public notice, conducts a public meeting under Section 

286.011 of the Florida Statutes, and finds by a majority vote of the Board 
that it is in the public’s best interest to perform the project using its own 
services, employees, and equipment. 

 
Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  §§ 119.0701, 189.053, 190.033, 255.0518, 255.0525, 255.20, 287.055, Fla. Stat. 



 

47 
 

Rule 3.6 Construction Contracts, Design-Build. 
 
 (1) Scope.  The District may utilize Design-Build Contracts for any public 

construction project for which the Board determines that use of such contract is in 
the best interest of the District. When letting a Design-Build Contract, the District 
shall use the following procedure: 

 
(2) Procedure. 

 
(a)    The District shall utilize a Design Criteria Professional meeting the 

requirements of Section 287.055(2)(k) of the Florida Statutes, when 
developing a Design Criteria Package, evaluating the proposals and 
qualifications submitted by Design-Build Firms, and determining 
compliance of the project construction with the Design Criteria Package.  
The Design Criteria Professional may be an employee of the District, may 
be the District Engineer selected by the District pursuant to Section 
287.055 of the Florida Statutes, or may be retained pursuant to Rule 3.1.  
The Design Criteria Professional is not eligible to render services under a 
Design-Build Contract executed pursuant to the Design Criteria Package. 

 
  (b) A Design Criteria Package for the construction project shall be prepared 

and sealed by the Design Criteria Professional.  If the project utilizes 
existing plans, the Design Criteria Professional shall create a Design 
Criteria Package by supplementing the plans with project specific 
requirements, if any.     

 
  (c)  The Board may either choose to award the Design-Build Contract pursuant 

to the competitive proposal selection process set forth in Section 
287.055(9) of the Florida Statutes, or pursuant to the qualifications-based 
selection process pursuant to Rule 3.1.  

 
   (i) Qualifications-Based Selection.  If the process set forth in Rule 3.1 

is utilized, subsequent to competitive negotiations, a guaranteed 
maximum price and guaranteed completion date shall be 
established.  

 
(ii)   Competitive Proposal-Based Selection. If the competitive proposal 

selection process is utilized, the Board, in consultation with the 
Design Criteria Professional, shall establish the criteria, standards 
and procedures for the evaluation of Design-Build Proposals based 
on price, technical, and design aspects of the project, weighted for 
the project.  After a Design Criteria Package and the standards and 
procedures for evaluation of proposals have been developed, 
competitive proposals from qualified firms shall be solicited 
pursuant to the design criteria by the following procedure: 

 



 

48 
 

    1. A Request for Proposals shall be advertised at least once in 
a newspaper of general circulation in the county in which 
the District is located.  The notice shall allow at least 
twenty-one (21) days for submittal of sealed proposals, 
unless the Board, for good cause, determines a shorter 
period of time is appropriate.  Any project projected to cost 
more than five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) must 
be noticed at least thirty (30) days prior to the date for 
submittal of proposals.   

   
    2. The District may maintain lists of persons interested in 

receiving notices of Requests for Proposals.  The District 
shall make a good faith effort to provide written notice, by 
electronic mail, United States Mail, hand delivery, or 
facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to 
the District Manager for inclusion on the list.  However, 
failure of a person to receive the notice shall not invalidate 
any contract awarded in accordance with this Rule and 
shall not be a basis for a protest of any contract award. 

 
    3. In order to be eligible to submit a proposal, a firm must, at 

the time of receipt of the proposals: 
    
     a. Hold the required applicable state professional 

licenses in good standing, as defined by Section 
287.055(2)(h) of the Florida Statutes; 

 
     b.  Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good 

standing, if any; 
 
     c. Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter 

or be authorized to do business in the State of 
Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 of the 
Florida Statutes, if the proposer is a corporation; 

 
     d. Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set 

forth in the Request for Proposals and Design 
Criteria Package. 

 
Any contractor that has been found guilty by a court of any 
violation of federal labor or employment tax laws regarding 
subjects including but not limited to reemployment 
assistance, safety, tax withholding, worker’s compensation, 
unemployment tax, social security and Medicare tax, wage 
or hour, or prevailing rate laws within the past 5 years may 



 

49 
 

be considered ineligible by the District to submit a bid, 
response, or proposal for a District project. 

 
Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be 
submitted with the proposal if required by the District.  
Failure to submit evidence of compliance when required 
may be grounds for rejection of the proposal. 

 
    4.  The proposals, or the portions of which that include the 

price, shall be publicly opened at a meeting noticed in 
accordance with Rule 1.3, and at which at least one district 
representative is present.  The name of each bidder and the 
price submitted in the bid shall be announced at such 
meeting and shall be made available upon request.  Minutes 
should be taken at the meeting and maintained by the 
District.  In consultation with the Design Criteria 
Professional, the Board shall evaluate the proposals 
received based on evaluation criteria and procedures 
established prior to the solicitation of proposals, including 
but not limited to qualifications, availability, and past work 
of the firms and the partners and members thereof.  The 
Board shall then select no fewer than three (3) Design-
Build Firms as the most qualified. 

 
    5. The Board shall have the right to reject all proposals if the 

proposals are too high, or rejection is determined to be in 
the best interest of the District. No vendor shall be entitled 
to recover any costs of proposal preparation or submittal 
from the District. 

 
    6. If less than three (3) Responsive Proposals are received, the 

District may purchase design-build services or may reject 
the proposals for lack of competitiveness. If no Responsive 
Proposals are received, the District may proceed with the 
procurement of design-build services in the manner the 
Board determines is in the best interests of the District, 
which may include but is not limited to a direct purchase of 
the design-build services without further competitive 
selection processes. 

 
    7. Notice of the rankings adopted by the Board, including the 

rejection of some or all proposals, shall be provided in 
writing to all consultants by United States Mail, hand 
delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery service.  The 
notice shall include the following statement:  "Failure to 
file a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the 



 

50 
 

Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of 
proceedings under those Rules," or wording to that effect.  
Protests of the District’s rankings under this Rule shall be 
in accordance with the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11. 

 
    8. The Board shall negotiate a contract with the firm ranking 

the highest based on the evaluation standards and shall 
establish a price which the Board determines is fair, 
competitive and reasonable.  Should the Board be unable to 
negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm considered to 
be the most qualified at a price considered by the Board to 
be fair, competitive, and reasonable, negotiations with that 
firm must be terminated. The Board shall then undertake 
negotiations with the second most qualified firm, based on 
the ranking by the evaluation standards.  Should the Board 
be unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm 
considered to be the second most qualified at a price 
considered by the Board to be fair, competitive, and 
reasonable, negotiations with that firm must be terminated. 
The Board shall then undertake negotiations with the third 
most qualified firm. Should the Board be unable to 
negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm considered to 
be the third most qualified at a price considered by the 
Board to be fair, competitive, and reasonable, negotiations 
with that firm must be terminated.   Should the Board be 
unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with any of the 
selected firms, the Board shall select additional firms in 
order of their rankings based on the evaluation standards 
and continue negotiations until an agreement is reached or 
the list of firms is exhausted. 

 
    9.  After the Board contracts with a firm, the firm shall bring 

to the Board for approval, detailed working drawings of the 
project.   

 
    10.  The Design Criteria Professional shall evaluate the 

compliance of the detailed working drawings and project 
construction with the Design Criteria Package and shall 
provide the Board with a report of the same.   

 
(3) Contracts; Public Records.  In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered 

into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the 
contractor to comply with public records laws. 
 

(4) Emergency Purchase.  The Board may, in case of public emergency, declare an 
emergency and immediately proceed with negotiations with the best qualified 



 

51 
 

Design-Build Firm available at the time.  The fact that an Emergency Purchase 
has occurred shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting. 

 
 (5) Exceptions.  This Rule is inapplicable when: 
 

(a)  The project is undertaken as repair or maintenance of an existing public 
facility; 

 
(b)  The funding source of the project will be diminished or lost because the 

time required to competitively award the project after the funds become 
available exceeds the time within which the funding source must be spent; 

 
(c)  The District has competitively awarded a project and the contractor has 

abandoned the project or the District has terminated the contractor; or 
 
(d)  The District, after public notice, conducts a public meeting under Section 

286.011 of the Florida Statutes, and finds by a majority vote of the Board 
that it is in the public’s best interest to perform the project using its own 
services, employees, and equipment. 

 
Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  §§ 119.0701, 189.053, 190.033, 255.0518, 255.0525, 255.20, 287.055, Fla. Stat. 
 



 

52 
 

Rule 3.7  Payment and Performance Bonds. 
 

(1)  Scope.  This Rule shall apply to contracts for the construction of a public 
building, for the prosecution and completion of a public work, or for repairs upon 
a public building or public work and shall be construed in addition to terms 
prescribed by any other Rule that may also apply to such contracts. 

 
(2)  Required Bond.  Upon entering into a contract for any of the services described in 

section (1) of this Rule in excess of $200,000, the Board should require that the 
contractor, before commencing the work, execute and record a payment and 
performance bond in an amount equal to the contract price.  Notwithstanding the 
terms of the contract or any other law, the District may not make payment to the 
contractor until the contractor has provided to the District a certified copy of the 
recorded bond. 

 
(3)  Discretionary Bond.  At the discretion of the Board, upon entering into a contract 

for any of the services described in section (1) of this Rule for an amount not 
exceeding $200,000, the contractor may be exempted from executing a payment 
and performance bond. 

 
Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  § 255.05, Fla. Stat. 

 



 

53 
 

Rule 3.8 Goods, Supplies, and Materials. 
 
  (1) Purpose and Scope.  All purchases of goods, supplies, or materials exceeding the 

amount provided in Section 287.017 of the Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY 
FOUR, shall be purchased under the terms of this Rule.  Contracts for purchases 
of “goods, supplies, and materials” do not include printing, insurance, advertising, 
or legal notices.  A contract involving goods, supplies, or materials plus 
maintenance services may, in the discretion of the Board, be treated as a contract 
for maintenance services.  However, a purchase shall not be divided solely in 
order to avoid the threshold bidding requirements. 

 
(2) Procedure.  When a purchase of goods, supplies, or materials is within the scope 

of this Rule, the following procedures shall apply: 
 

(a) The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for 
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. 

 
(b) Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to 

Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a 
newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county 
in which the District is located.  The notice shall also include the amount 
of the bid bond, if one is required.  The notice shall allow at least seven (7) 
days for submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses. 

 
(c) The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices 

of Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, or 
Competitive Solicitations.  The District shall make a good faith effort to 
provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand 
delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to 
the District Manager for inclusion on the list.  However, failure of a 
person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in 
accordance with this Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any 
contract award. 

 
(d) If the District has pre-qualified suppliers of goods, supplies, and materials, 

then, at the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-
qualified will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, or responses. 

 
(e) In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm 

or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or 
responses: 

 
(i) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good 

standing; 
 

(ii) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if any; 



 

54 
 

 
(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized 

to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 
of the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation; and 

 
     (iv) Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the 

Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or 
Competitive Solicitation. 

 
Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid, 
proposal, reply or response if required by the District.  Failure to submit 
evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the 
bid, proposal, reply, or response. 
 
Any firm or individual whose principal place of business is outside the 
State of Florida must also submit a written opinion of an attorney at law 
licensed to practice law in that foreign state, as to the preferences, if any or 
none, granted by the law of that foreign state to business entities whose 
principal places of business are in that foreign state, in the letting of any or 
all public contracts.  Failure to submit such a written opinion or 
submission of a false or misleading written opinion may be grounds for 
rejection of the bid, proposal, reply, or response. 

 
(f) Bids, proposals, replies, and responses shall be publicly opened at the time 

and place noted on the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation 
to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. Bids, proposals, replies, and 
responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the respective Invitation 
to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive 
Solicitation, and this Rule.  Minor variations in the bids, proposals, replies, 
or responses may be waived by the Board. A variation is minor if waiver 
of the variation does not create a competitive advantage or disadvantage of 
a material nature. Mistakes in arithmetic extension of pricing may be 
corrected by the Board.  Bids and proposals may not be modified or 
supplemented after opening; provided however, additional information 
may be requested and/or provided to evidence compliance, make non-
material modifications, clarifications, or supplementations, and as 
otherwise permitted by Florida law. 

 
(g) The lowest Responsive Bid, after taking into account the preferences 

provided for in this subsection, submitted by a Responsive and 
Responsible Bidder in response to an Invitation to Bid, Request for 
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be 
accepted.  If the lowest Responsive Bid is submitted by a Responsive and 
Responsible Bidder whose principal place of business is located in a 
foreign state which does not grant a preference in competitive purchase to 
businesses whose principal place of business are in that foreign state, the 



 

55 
 

lowest Responsible and Responsive Bidder whose principal place of 
business is in the State of Florida shall be awarded a preference of five (5) 
percent.  If the lowest Responsive Bid is submitted by a Responsive and 
Responsible Bidder whose principal place of business is located in a 
foreign state which grants a preference in competitive purchase to 
businesses whose principal place of business are in that foreign state, the 
lowest Responsible and Responsive Bidder whose principal place of 
business is in the State of Florida shall be awarded a preference equal to 
the preference granted by such foreign state. 

 
 To assure full understanding of the responsiveness to the solicitation 

requirements contained in an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, 
Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions may be 
conducted with qualified vendors.  Vendors shall be accorded fair 
treatment prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for 
discussion, preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, and 
responses.   

 
(h) The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or 

responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the 
purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is 
determined to be in the best interest of the District.  No vendor shall be 
entitled to recover any costs of bid, proposal, reply, or response 
preparation or submittal from the District. 

 
 (i) The Board may require bidders and proposers to furnish bid bonds, 

performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be 
approved by the Board. 

 
(j) Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids, 

proposals, replies, or responses shall be provided in writing to all vendors 
by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery 
service.  The notice shall include the following statement:  "Failure to file 
a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the 
District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules," or 
wording to that effect.  Protests of the District’s purchase of goods, 
supplies, and materials under this Rule shall be in accordance with the 
procedures set forth in Rule 3.11. 

 
(k) If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses 

are received, the District may purchase goods, supplies, or materials, or 
may reject the bids, proposals, replies, or responses for a lack of 
competitiveness. If no Responsive Bid, Proposal, Reply, or Response is 
received, the District may proceed with the procurement of goods, 
supplies, and materials, in the manner the Board determines is in the best 
interests of the District, which may include but is not limited to a direct 



 

56 
 

purchase of the goods, supplies, and materials without further competitive 
selection processes.  

 
 (3) Goods, Supplies, and Materials included in a Construction Contract Awarded 

Pursuant to Rule 3.5 or 3.6.  There may be occasions where the District has 
undergone the competitive purchase of construction services which contract may 
include the provision of goods, supplies, or materials.  In that instance, the 
District may approve a change order to the contract and directly purchase the 
goods, supplies, and materials.  Such purchase of goods, supplies, and materials 
deducted from a competitively purchased construction contract shall be exempt 
from this Rule. 

  
 (4) Exemption.  Goods, supplies, and materials that are only available from a single 

source are exempt from this Rule.  Goods, supplies, and materials provided by 
governmental agencies are exempt from this Rule.  A contract for goods, supplies, 
or materials is exempt from this Rule if state or federal law prescribes with whom 
the District must contract or if the rate of payment is established during the 
appropriation process.  This Rule shall not apply to the purchase of goods, 
supplies or materials that are purchased under a federal, state, or local government 
contract that has been competitively procured by such federal, state, or local 
government in a manner consistent with the material procurement requirements of 
these Rules. 

 
 (5) Renewal.  Contracts for the purchase of goods, supplies, and/or materials subject 

to this Rule may be renewed for a maximum period of five (5) years.   
 
 (6) Emergency Purchases.  The District may make an Emergency Purchase without 

complying with these rules.  The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or 
is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting. 

 
Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  §§ 189.053, 190.033, 287.017, 287.084, Fla. Stat. 



 

57 
 

Rule 3.9 Maintenance Services. 
 

(1)      Scope.  All contracts for maintenance of any District facility or project shall be set 
under the terms of this Rule if the cost exceeds the amount provided in Section 
287.017 of the Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY FOUR.  A contract involving 
goods, supplies, and materials plus maintenance services may, in the discretion of 
the Board, be treated as a contract for maintenance services.  However, a purchase 
shall not be divided solely in order to avoid the threshold bidding requirements. 

 
(2) Procedure.  When a purchase of maintenance services is within the scope of this 

Rule, the following procedures shall apply: 
 

 (a) The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for 
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. 

 
(b) Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to 

Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a 
newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county 
in which the District is located.  The notice shall also include the amount 
of the bid bond, if one is required.  The notice shall allow at least seven (7) 
days for submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses. 

 
 (c) The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices 

of Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and 
Competitive Solicitations.  The District shall make a good faith effort to 
provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, hand 
delivery, or facsimile, to persons who provide their name and address to 
the District Manager for inclusion on the list.  However, failure of a 
person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in 
accordance with this Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any 
contract award. 

 
(d) If the District has pre-qualified suppliers of maintenance services, then, at 

the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-qualified 
will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, and responses. 

 
(e) In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm 

or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or 
responses: 

 
(i) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good 

standing; 
 

(ii) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if any; 
 



 

58 
 

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized 
to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 
of the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation; and 

 
     (iv) Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the 

Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or 
Competitive Solicitation. 

 
Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid, 
proposal, reply, or response if required by the District.  Failure to submit 
evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the 
bid, proposal, reply, or response. 

 
(f) Bids, proposals, replies, and responses shall be publicly opened at the time 

and place noted on the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation 
to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation.  Bids, proposals, replies, and 
responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the respective Invitation 
to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive 
Solicitation, and these Rules. Minor variations in the bids, proposals, 
replies, and responses may be waived by the Board.  A variation is minor 
if waiver of the variation does not create a competitive advantage or 
disadvantage of a material nature.  Mistakes in arithmetic extension of 
pricing may be corrected by the Board.  Bids and proposals may not be 
modified or supplemented after opening; provided however, additional 
information may be requested and/or provided to evidence compliance, 
make non-material modifications, clarifications, or supplementations, and 
as otherwise permitted by Florida law. 

 
(g) The lowest Responsive Bid submitted in response to an Invitation to Bid 

by a Responsive and Responsible Bidder shall be accepted.  In relation to 
a Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate or Competitive 
Solicitation the Board shall select the Responsive Proposal, Reply, or 
Response submitted by a Responsive and Responsible Vendor which is 
most advantageous to the District.  To assure full understanding of the 
responsiveness to the solicitation requirements contained in a Request for 
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions 
may be conducted with qualified vendors.  Vendors shall be accorded fair 
treatment prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for 
discussion, preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, or 
responses.   

 
(h) The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or 

responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the 
purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is 
determined to be in the best interest of the District.  No Vendor shall be 



 

59 
 

entitled to recover any costs of bid, proposal, reply, or response 
preparation or submittal from the District. 

 
(i) The Board may require bidders and proposers to furnish bid bonds, 

performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be 
approved by the Board. 

 
(j) Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids, 

proposals, replies, or responses shall be provided in writing to all vendors 
by United States Mail, hand delivery, facsimile, or overnight delivery 
service. The notice shall include the following statement:  "Failure to file a 
protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District 
shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules," or wording to 
that effect.  Protests of the District’s procurement of maintenance services 
under this Rule shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth in 
Rule 3.11. 

 
(k) If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses 

are received, the District may purchase the maintenance services or may 
reject the bids, proposals, replies, or responses for a lack of 
competitiveness. If no Responsive Bid, Proposal, Reply, or Response is 
received, the District may proceed with the procurement of maintenance 
services, in the manner the Board determines is in the best interests of the 
District, which may include but is not limited to a direct purchase of the 
maintenance services without further competitive selection processes.  

 
 (3) Exemptions.  Maintenance services that are only available from a single source 

are exempt from this Rule.  Maintenance services provided by governmental 
agencies are exempt from this Rule.  A contract for maintenance services is 
exempt from this Rule if state or federal law prescribes with whom the District 
must contract or if the rate of payment is established during the appropriation 
process.    

 
 (4) Renewal.  Contracts for the purchase of maintenance services subject to this Rule 

may be renewed for a maximum period of five (5) years. 
 
(5) Contracts; Public Records.  In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered 

into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the 
contractor to comply with public records laws. 

 
 (6) Emergency Purchases.  The District may make an Emergency Purchase without 

complying with these rules.  The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or 
is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting. 

 
Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), 190.033, Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  §§ 119.0701, 190.033, 287.017, Fla. Stat. 



 

60 
 

Rule 3.10 Contractual Services. 
 

(1)  Exemption from Competitive Purchase.  Pursuant to Section 190.033(3) of the 
Florida Statutes, Contractual Services shall not be subject to competitive 
purchasing requirements.  If an agreement is predominantly for Contractual 
Services, but also includes maintenance services or the purchase of goods and 
services, the contract shall not be subject to competitive purchasing requirements.  
Regardless of whether an advertisement or solicitation for Contractual Services is 
identified as an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, 
or Competitive Solicitation, no rights or remedies under these Rules, including 
but not limited to protest rights, are conferred on persons, firms, or vendors 
proposing to provide Contractual Services to the District.   

 
(2)  Contracts; Public Records.  In accordance with Florida law, each contract for 

Contractual Services shall include provisions required by law that require the 
contractor to comply with public records laws. 

 
Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  §§ 119.0701, 190.011(3), 190.033, Fla. Stat. 



 

61 
 

Rule 3.11 Protests with Respect to Proceedings under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 
3.8, and 3.9. 

 
The resolution of any protests with respect to proceedings under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 
3.8, and 3.9 shall be in accordance with this Rule. 
 
 (1) Filing. 
 
  (a)  With respect to a protest regarding qualifications, specifications, 

documentation, or other requirements contained in a Request for 
Qualifications, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Bid, or Competitive 
Solicitation issued by the District, the notice of protest shall be filed in 
writing within seventy-two (72) calendar hours (excluding Saturdays, 
Sundays, and state holidays) after the first advertisement of the Request 
for Qualifications, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Bid, or Competitive 
Solicitation.  A formal protest setting forth with particularity the facts and 
law upon which the protest is based shall be filed within seven (7) 
calendar days (including Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays) after the 
initial notice of protest was filed. For purposes of this Rule, wherever 
applicable, filing will be perfected and deemed to have occurred upon 
receipt by the District. Failure to file a notice of protest shall constitute a 
waiver of all rights to protest the District’s intended decision.  Failure to 
file a formal written protest shall constitute an abandonment of the protest 
proceedings and shall automatically terminate the protest proceedings. 

 
  (b) Except for those situations covered by subsection (1)(a) of this Rule, any 

firm or person who is affected adversely by a District’s ranking or 
intended award under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 3.8, or 3.9 and 
desires to contest the District’s ranking or intended award, shall file with 
the District a written notice of protest within seventy-two (72) calendar 
hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays) after receipt of 
the notice of the District’s ranking or intended award.  A formal protest 
setting forth with particularity the facts and law upon which the protest is 
based shall be filed within seven (7) calendar days (including Saturdays, 
Sundays, and state holidays) after the initial notice of protest was filed. 
For purposes of this Rule, wherever applicable, filing will be perfected 
and deemed to have occurred upon receipt by the District. Failure to file a 
notice of protest shall constitute a waiver of all rights to protest the 
District’s ranking or intended award.  Failure to file a formal written 
protest shall constitute an abandonment of the protest proceedings and 
shall automatically terminate the protest proceedings.   

 
  (c)  If the requirement for the posting of a protest bond and the amount of the 

protest bond, which may be expressed by a percentage of the contract to 
be awarded or a set amount, is disclosed in the District’s competitive 
solicitation documents for a particular purchase under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 



 

62 
 

3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 3.8, or 3.9, any person who files a notice of protest must post 
the protest bond. The amount of the protest bond shall be determined by 
District staff after consultation with the Board and within the limits, if any, 
imposed by Florida law.  In the event the protest is successful, the protest 
bond shall be refunded to the protestor.  In the event the protest is 
unsuccessful, the protest bond shall be applied towards the District’s costs, 
expenses, and attorney’s fees associated with hearing and defending the 
protest.  In the event the protest is settled by mutual agreement of the 
parties, the protest bond shall be distributed as agreed to by the District 
and protestor. 

 
  (d) The District does not accept documents filed by electronic mail or 

facsimile transmission.  Filings are only accepted during normal business 
hours. 

 
 (2) Contract Execution.  Upon receipt of a notice of protest which has been timely 

filed, the District shall not execute the contract under protest until the subject of 
the protest is resolved.  However, if the District sets forth in writing particular 
facts and circumstances showing that delay incident to protest proceedings will 
jeopardize the funding for the project, will materially increase the cost of the 
project, or will create an immediate and serious danger to the public health, 
safety, or welfare, the contract may be executed.   

 
 (3) Informal Proceeding. If the Board determines a protest does not involve a 

disputed issue of material fact, the Board may, but is not obligated to, schedule an 
informal proceeding to consider the protest.  Such informal proceeding shall be at 
a time and place determined by the Board.  Notice of such proceeding shall be 
sent via facsimile, United States Mail, or hand delivery to the protestor and any 
substantially affected persons or parties not less than three (3) calendar days prior 
to such informal proceeding.  Within thirty (30) calendar days following the 
informal proceeding, the Board shall issue a written decision setting forth the 
factual, legal, and policy grounds for its decision. 

 
(4) Formal Proceeding. If the Board determines a protest involves disputed issues of 

material fact or if the Board elects not to use the informal proceeding process 
provided for in section (3) of this Rule, the District shall schedule a formal 
hearing to resolve the protest.  The Chairperson shall designate any member of the 
Board (including the Chairperson), District Manager, District Counsel, or other 
person as a hearing officer to conduct the hearing.  The hearing officer may: 

 
  (a) Administer oaths and affirmations; 
 
  (b) Rule upon offers of proof and receive relevant evidence; 
 
  (c) Regulate the course of the hearing, including any pre-hearing matters; 
 



 

63 
 

  (d) Enter orders; and 
 
  (e) Make or receive offers of settlement, stipulation, and adjustment. 
 

The hearing officer shall, within thirty (30) days after the hearing or receipt of the 
hearing transcript, whichever is later, file a recommended order which shall 
include a caption, time and place of hearing, appearances entered at the hearing, 
statement of the issues, findings of fact and conclusions of law, separately stated, 
and a recommendation for final District action.  The District shall allow each 
party fifteen (15) days in which to submit written exceptions to the recommended 
order.  The District shall issue a final order within sixty (60) days after the filing 
of the recommended order. 

 
 (5)  Intervenors. Other substantially affected persons may join the proceedings as 

intervenors on appropriate terms which shall not unduly delay the proceedings.  
 
 (6) Rejection of all Qualifications, Bids, Proposals, Replies and Responses after 

Receipt of Notice of Protest.  If the Board determines there was a violation of law, 
defect, or an irregularity in the competitive solicitation process, the Bids, 
Proposals, Replies, and Responses are too high, or if the Board determines it is 
otherwise in the District’s best interest, the Board may reject all qualifications, 
bids, proposals, replies, and responses and start the competitive solicitation 
process anew.  If the Board decides to reject all qualifications, bids, proposals, 
replies, and responses and start the competitive solicitation process anew, any 
pending protests shall automatically terminate. 

 
 (7) Settlement.  Nothing herein shall preclude the settlement of any protest under this 

Rule at any time. 
 
Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  § 190.033, Fla. Stat. 
 



 

64 
 

Rule 4.0 Effective Date. 
 
 These Rules shall be effective _____________, 2020, except that no election of officers 
required by these Rules shall be required until after the next regular election for the Board. 
 
Specific Authority:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
Law Implemented:  §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVIC S, INC. 
9655 Florida Mining Boulevard West - Building 300 - Suite 305 - Jacksonv ille, Florida - 32257 

June 19, 2020 

Jim Oliver 
Rolling Hills Community Developm ent District 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
World Golf Village 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 

Re: Amenity Manager, Operations Manager, Pool Service, Janitorial, and Lifeguard/Deck Monitor 
Services . 

Dear Jim: 

Please consider this proposal for Riverside Management Services, Inc. to continue providing the 
following services for the Rolling Hills Community Developm ent District: 

Adopted Budget Actual Fee Proposed Fee 
Services FY2020 FY 2020 FY2021 

Amenity Manager $55,533 $53,533 $56,210 
Operations Manager $20,500 $20 ,500 $21,525 
Pool Service $13,650 $13,65 0 $13,650 
Janitorial Service $12,840 $12,84 0 $12,840 
Lifeguard s and Deck Monitors $35,000 $31,888 $35,000 

The proposed fees will remain static for Pool Service, Janitorial Service, and Lifeguard s/Deck 
Monitors, but are asking for a cost of living increas e for the Amenity Manager and Opera tions 
Manager positions. Should you have any questions or comments, please feel free to give me a call. 

Sincerely, 

Rich Whetsel 
President 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



~.~ 
YELLOWSTONE 

W·ll~■•A-W!MM 

August 5, 2020 

904.268.2626 tel 
904.683.7327 fax 

2662 Robert Street 
Jacksonville, FL 32207 

www.yellowstonelandscape.com 

The Rolling Hills CDD - Landscape Maintenance Services 

To: Pat Szozda 

We greatly value our long-standing relationship and look forward to continuing our 
partnership with you all at The Rolling Hills CDD. 

An expectation that we know is important to you is value. Our team knows exactly 
what it takes to meet the site specific needs and our price is based on the labor and 
material that is required to properly fulfill The Rolling Hills CDD 's expectations. 
Our partnership has always been built on trust, value and reliability. Something we 
need to share with you is a challenge we are faced with, that is making business 
difficult to continue without communicating the challenges to you. 
For years we have battled increasing labor costs (Affordable Care Act), and more 
recently, substantial labor wage increases due to the general improvement of the 

economy. 

In commercial landscape, field personnel is over 50% of our costs. By far and away 
the largest cost in our industry/business. 

In 2018, the entry level commercial landscaping minimum wage (ex any benefits) 
mandated by the US Dept of Labor in Jacksonville MSA was $8.90 per hour. This 
spring it will be $12.88 per hour - a 45% increase in 2 years. 

We always strive to offer the greatest value - seeking to offer superior results both on 
the landscape and with the experience, while at a very competitive price. It has been 
challenging and our intent has always been to simply cover those expected additional 
costs, not to generate additional profits. 

Given both where we have been, and the cost increases we are experiencing in our 
largest cost and most difficult resource(labor), we will not be able to continue to 
deliver the current specifications at the current price. 



Our current annual billing amount is $72,621.60. Unfortunately, we will only be able 
to hold this pricing through September 30, 2020. As of October 1, 2020, our updated 
annual billing will be $74,800.25. It has become impossible to simply continue 
absorbing the additional cost increases that our industry has been experiencing, 
specifically labor costs. We sincerely apologize for putting you all in this position 
and hope that we can work together through this economic challenge. 

The Rolling Hills CDD is a premier property that is an integral part of Yellowstone 
Landscape's success. Please let us know if you would like to discuss this in further 
detail. We appreciate the opportunity to serve The Rolling Hills CDD and we look 
forward to working with you in the years ahead. 

Please indicate your acceptance of these terms by signing and returning this letter via 
email to account manager Garrett Cannady (ccannady@yellowstonelandscape.com); if 
you have any questions or would like to discuss your thoughts please contact Branch 
Manager Cheyne Solesbee at 904.813.2167. 

Respectfully, 

Cheyne Solesbee 
Yellowstone Landscape 
Branch Manager 

Accepted: 

By: __________ _ 

Title: __________ _ 

Date: __________ _ 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



 
January 22, 2020 
 
 
 

Mr. Chris Hall 
Rolling Hills CDD 
c/o GMS 
475 West Town Place, #114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
 
Dear Mr. Hall: 
 

The anniversary date of your Lake Doctors, Inc., Water Management 
Program for Rolling Hills CDD is March 1, 2020 at which time your program is 
due to automatically extend. Due to the rising costs of professionally managing 
your account, including aquatic products, vehicles, equipment, insurance and 
supplies, we would like to ask for a modest adjustment to your monthly 
investment amount, from $400.00/per month to $420.00/per month.   
 
 If you have any questions or concerns regarding your proposed 
adjustment or your Lake Doctors Water Management Program, please feel free 
to give me a call at (904)626-0287) or contact me by email at 
mark.seymour@lakedoctors.com. Otherwise, no action is required at this time. 
  
 As always, we will continue to focus upon fully satisfying your water 
management needs by providing excellent, quality service, quick response to 
questions or problems and deep concern for the health of your pond, lake or 
waterway. 
 
 We at The Lake Doctors very much appreciate your current business and 
look forward to continuing to work with you to keep your waterway(s) in excellent 
condition. 
       

Sincerely, 

      
      Mark A. Seymour 
      Sales Manager 
 
MAS/jkw 
718674      

The Lake Doctors, Inc. 
Aquatic Management Services • 

Co rpo rate O ffices 
3543S ta te Roa d 419 

W int e r Sprin gs, Fl 32708 
1-800-666-5253 

lakes@lakedoc to rs.co m 
www. lakedocto rs.co m 



-• -- a.............. 

FLORIDA WATERWAYS 
---- - INC. -----

WATERWAY MANAGEMENT SERVICE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement made the date set forth below, by and between Florida Waterways, Inc., a Florida Corporation, hereinafter called 
"FLORIDA WATERWAYS", and 

Rolling Hills COD 
c/o Riverside Management Services 
Attn: Christopher Hall 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd W. Bldg. 300 Suite 305 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

hereinafter called "CUSTOMER". n1e parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. FLORIDA WATERWAYS agrees to manage certain lake(s), pond(s), and/or waterway(s) in accordance with the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement for a period of twelve (12) months from the date of receipt in the following location: 

Twelve (12) annual treatments and/or inspections of six (6) wet detention ponds (15.30± acres) as shown on Waterway Map 

2. CUSTOMER agrees to pay FLORIDA WATERWAYS, its agents or assigns, each month the following sum for specified waterway 
management services: 

Algae and Aquatic Vegetation Control (including Floating Vegetation) 
Shoreline Grass Control 
Debris Removal 
Management Reporting 
Triploid Grass Carp Stocking & Permitting· 
Water Quality & Chemistry Monitoring • 
Florida Waterways 100% Control Guarantee 

(Free Callback Service & Additional Treatments, if required) 

Total Recurring Service Charges 

$ 365.00 
$ INCLUDED 
$ INCLUDED 
$ INCLUDED 
$ INCLUDED 
$ INCLUDED 
$ INCLUDED 

$ 365 .00 

*Services performed at FLORIDA WATERWAYS' sole discretion for the success of the Waterway Management Services 
Agreement 

3. FLORIDA WATERWAYS agrees to commence Waterway Management Services within fifteen (15) business days, weather permitting, 
from the date of receipt of t his executed Agreement plus initial deposit and/or issuance of required government permits. 

4. The terms and conditions appearing on the reverse side form an integral part of this Agreement, and CUSTOMER hereby 
acknowledges that they have read and are familiar with the contents thereof. Agreement must be accepted in its entirety to be 
considered valid. 

By: 
FLORIDA WATERWAYS 

-~ / . 

" '-_£_ ✓-J 
Jim Schwartz z/ 
Email: Jim@FloridaPond.com 

CUSTOMER 

Printed: 

Proposal Date: May 26. 2020 Dated: 
The offer contained herein is withdrawn and this Agreement shall have no further force and effect un:ess executed and returned by CUSTOMER to FLORJDA WATER\'IAYS within 
th irty (30) days from the effective Proposal Date. 

www.FloridaLake.com 



TERMS & CONDITIONS 

1) The Algae and Aquatic Vegetation Control and Shoreline Grass Control Programs will be conducted in a manner consistent with Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) intended to prevent the stormwater management facility (SWMF) and associated control structures 
from becoming clogged or choked with vegetative or aquatic growth to such an extent as to render them inoperable. Control of 
vegetative and aquatic growth may take 30·90 days depending upon species, materials used and environmental factors. 

2) FLORIDA WATERWAYS, in its sole discretion, will implement an Integrated Pest Management (1PM) Plan for CUSTOMERS site which 
may utilize chemical, mechanical-physical, biological and/or cultural procedures (as applicable) for controlling aquatic plants, including: 

a. 

b. 

Class I Prohibited Aquatic Plants listed by the Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services as 
cited Rule SB-64.011, F.A.C. 
category I & II Invasive Plant Species listed by Florida Exotic Pest Plan Council (FLEPPC) 

These listed plants have a tendency to spread or become invasive in an ecosystem, sometimes in a rapid 
manner, so as to impair the ecosystem's ability to function by altering its productivity, decomposition, water 
fluxes, nutrient cycling and loss, soil fertility, erosion, dissolved oxygen concentrations, or its ability to maintain 
its exist ing species diversity. These plants also have the ability to create dense, monospecific stands or 
monotypic stands which displace or destroy native plant habitat, destroy fish and wildlife habitats, inhibit water 
circulation, hinder navigation and irrigation, or severely restrict the recreational use of waterways. 

3) Triploid grass carp stocking, if included, will be performed at stocking rates determined by FLORIDA WATERWAYS, within Florida Fish 
and Wildlife Conservation Commission permit guidelines. The initial carp containment barrier is included in this service contract; 
however, replacement barriers due to theft or vandalism of the barrier will incur an additional charge. FLORIDA WATERWAYS designs 
and fabricates the industry's best custom carp containment barriers out of welded aluminum construction. Barriers built by FLORIDA 
WATERWAYS are guaranteed to meet FWC's specifications. 

4 ) CUSTOMER agrees to provide adequate access to the SWMF, including boat access. Failure to provide boat access may require re· 
negation or termination of this Agreement. If, at t ime of treatment, access to the site has been restricted and FLORIDA WATERWAYS 
is unable to provide services, FLORIDA WATERWAYS reserves the right to impose a fuel surcharge as may be necessary. 

5) CUSTOMER agrees that the system will be kept free of debris, trash, garbage, oils and greases, and other refuse. Included debris 
removal by FLORIDA WATERWAYS is limited to small, incidental litter that may accumulate within the SWMF. Removal of large debris 
resulting from intentional or unintentional dumping, vandalism, or weather events may result in additional service charges. 

6) Under the Shoreline Grass Control Program, FLORIDA WATERWAYS will treat border vegetation to the SWMF's Normal Water Level 
(NWL) including, but not limited to torpedograss, cattails and other emergent vegetation such as woody brush and broadleaf weeds. 
Many of these species leave visible structure which may take several seasons to decompose. CUSTOMER is responsible for removing 
such structure if desired. CUSTOMER understands that during periods of prolonged drought, or due to a change in hydrological 
conditions, the SWMF's water level may fall below the NWL elevation. Treatment of border vegetation below the NWL will be 
coordinated between CUSTOMER and FLORIDA WATERWAYS and may result in a service surcharge. 

7) CUSTOMER understands, that, for convenience, the annual service charge has been spread over a twelve-month period and that 
individual monthly billings do not reflect the fluctuating seasonal costs of service. 

8) FLORIDA WATERWAYS, in implementing the 1PM, will use methods that protect or restore fish and wildlife habitat. CUSTOMER 
understands that some beneficial vegetation may be required in a body of water to maintain a balanced aquatic ecological system. 
When deemed necessary, FLORIDA WATERWAYS may plant and/or nurture certain variety of plants, which for various reasons, help 
to maintain ecological balance. 

9) FLORIDA WATERWAYS shall maintain the following insurance coverage: a) Automobile Liability; b) Comprehensive General Liability; 
c) comply with Florida's Workers Compensation Law (FSS Chapter 420). 

10) FLORIDA WATERWAYS agrees to hold CUSTOMER harmless from any loss, damage, or claims arising out of the sole negligence of 
FLORIDA WATERWAYS; however, FLORIDA WATERWAYS, shall in no event be liable to CUSTOMER, or others, for indirect special or 
consequential damages resulting from any cause whatsoever. 

11) If at any time during the term of this Agreement, CUSTOMER feels FLORIDA WATERWAYS is not performing in a satisfactory manner, 
or in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, CUSTOMER shall inform FLORIDA WATERWAYS, by certified mail, return-receipt 
requested, stating with particularity, the reasons for CUSTOMER'S dissatisfaction. FLORIDA WATERWAYS shall investigate and attempt 
to cure the defect. If, after 30 days from the giving of the original notice, CUSTOMER continues to feel FLORIDA WATERWAYS 
performance Is unsatisfactory, CUSTOMER may terminate this Agreement by giving notice ("Second Notice") to FLORIDA WATERWAYS 
and paying all monies owing to the effective date of termination. In this event, the effective date of termination shall be the last day 
of the month in which said second notice is received by FLORIDA WATERWAYS. 

12) Upon completion of the term of this Agreement, or any extension thereof, this Agreement shall be automatically extended for a period 
equal to its original term unless terminated by either party. If required, FLORIDA WATERWAYS may adjust the monthly recurring 
service charge amount after the original term. FLORIDA WATERWAYS will submit written notification to CUSTOMER thirty (30) days 
prior to effective date of adjustment. If CUSTOMER is unable to comply with the adjustment, FLORIDA WATERWAYS shall be notified 
immediately in order to seek a resolution. If necessary, CUSTOMER may terminate this Agreement according to the procedure outlined 
in #1 1 above. 

13) Should CUSTOMER become sixty (60) days delinquent, FLORIDA WATERWAYS may place the account on hold for non-payment and 
CUSTOMER will continue to be responsible for the monthly service charge even if the account is placed on hold. Service may be 
reinstated once the entire past due balance has been received in full. Should it become necessary for FLORIDA WATERWAYS to bring 
action for collection of monies due and owing under this Agreement, CUSTOMER agrees to pay collection costs, including, but not 
limited to reasonable attorney's fees (including those on appeal) and court costs, and all other expenses incurred by FLORIDA 
WATERWAYS resulting from such collection action. 

www.Floridalake.com . 



~,,/ Lalce&Wetland 
~ MANAGEMENT 

Rolling Hills 
Custom lake management proposal 

May 21, 2020 • Green Cove Springs, Clay County, Florida 

Prepared for: 
Mr. Christopher Hall, Operations Manager 

Riverside Management Services, Inc. 
9655 Florida Mining Boulevard West, Building 300 Suite 305 

Jacksonville, Florida 32257 

Prepared by: 
Adam Grayson 

Lake & Wetland Management 
3562 NW 97th Boulevard 
Gainesville, Florida 32606 

(352) 727-7696 Office• (352) 727-7697 Fax 
northflorida@ lakeandwetland.com • www.lakeandwetland.com 



~If/ Lal<e & Wetland 
~ MANAG E M E NT 

May 16, 2020 

Mr. Chri stoph er Hall, Op era tions Manager 
Rolling Hills Community Developm ent Distri ct 
c/o Riverside Management Services, Inc. 
9655 Florida Mining Boulevard West, Building 300 Suite 305 
Jacksonville, Florida 32257 

Dear Mr. Hall, 

We greatly app reciat e the opportunity to bid on thi s proj ect for you! Attached is the Agreement 
for the maintenan ce of the lakes at Rollin g Hills. 

During our survey, we found algae, slender spikerush, torpedograss, primro se, alligatonveed and 
variou s other aquatic plants. These species may become problemati c if not con trolled, which can 
create unsightly conditions and limit stormwater retention. Our program for your prop erty will 
be to imm ed iate ly get ahead of existing probl ems while looki ng toward the futur e by preventing 
other potential issues befo re they occur. We are very familiar with how important a featur e the 
lakes are to your commu nity and as a proactive par t of your team we will keep th e property in its 
best condition, yea r round. 

Our propos ed service includ es; 

•Monthly pond manag eme nt se rvice, with addit ional visits at no extra charge, 
•Debris rem oval during scheduled visits, 
•Fish and wildlife observations, 
•Wa ter testing (dissolved o:x)'gen, pH, cla rity, tem perature) during each serv ice visit. 

We pride ourselves on providin g th e high est level of service in the indu st t)' and look forward to 
the opportunity of exceeding your expectations! 

Respectfully your s, 

D MANAGEMENT 

Lake & Wetland Management• 3562 NW 97th Boulevard • Gainesville, Florido 32606 
(352) 727-7696 Ofrice · (352) 727 -7697 Fox • northAorido@lokeondwetlond.com 



~It/ Lalce & Wetland 
~ MANAGEMENT 

MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made between Lake & Wetland Ma11age111ent North Florida, Inc., and: 

May 21, 2020 

Rolling Hills Community Development District 
c/o Riverside Management Serv ices, In c. 
9655 Florida Mining Boulevard ·west, Building 300 Suite 305 
Jacksonville, Florida 32257 

Both Rolling Hills Co11111111nity Develop111e11t District (CUSTOMER) and Lake e!,~ Wetland 
Ma11age111ent North Florida, Ille. (LWM) agree to these terms and co nditions: 

De scr iption of Service 

A. Lake management service including algae, border grass, and invasive exotic plant co ntrol for 
six ( 6) lakes totaling 10,689 linear feet/ 16.09 ac res. 

I. LWM shall provide all supervision, labor, herbi cide, equipment, materials and 
incidentals necessa1y for th e maintenance treatment. 

2. LWM will visit the site monthly with treatments as necessa1y to contro l undesirable 
growth. A minimum of twelve (12) visits will be performed annually. Additiona l visits 
performed at no additional cha rge . 

3. All Florida Exo tic Pest Plant Co un cil (FLEPPC) listed in vasive exotic spec ies will be 
tre ated in place with EPA -cer tified herb icides . No vegetation or algae will be removed 
from the waterway unl ess otherwise requested. 

4. Debris will be removed during schedu led visits. Debris is defined as as cups, bottles, 
bags, wrappers and other items not natura l to the shor elin e. This does not includ e 
larg e items, or items that may pose a threat to our workers. 

5. Native vegeta tion will be left for the benefit of fish and wildlife, unless otherwise 
reque sted. 

6. A comprehensive mana gement report will be sub mitt ed detailing work performed 
upon comp letion of each service visit. 

Investment Schedule 

A. LWM agrees to perform th e lake management service sta ted above on a monthly basis for 
the total sum of $459.00 per month. 

Lake & Wetland Management - 356 2 NW 97th Boulevard - Gainesville, Florido 32606 
(352) 727-7696 Offl ce • (352) 727-7697 Fox northflorido @lokeondwetlond .com 



Ma int enan ce Ag reeme nt Page 2 

Conditions: 

I. Ownership of property is implied by CUSTOMER with acceptance of th is Agreement. In the even t that 
CUSTOMER does not express ly own the areas where the above stated services are to be provided, 
CUSTOMER represents that express permi ssion of the owner is given and tha t author ization to com mence 
the above ment ioned services is allowed. In the event of dispute of owne rship, CUSTOMER agrees to hold 
harmless L \VM for the conseq uences of such serv ices. 

2. L\VM shall not be responsible for acts be)'Ond its reaso nable control, includ ing adverse soil and/ or water 
conditio ns, adverse weather co nditi ons, unava ilable materials, Acts of God, war, acts of vandalism, theft or 
third party actions. CUSTOMER fur ther states the ne ither party shall be responsible in damages or 
pena lties for any failur e or de lay in pe rformance of any of its ob ligations caused by above named 
incidences. 

3. Any activity not explici tly mentioned in th is proposal is excluded from the scope of work. 

4. CUSTOMER must prov ide reasonable access to enter and exit from the wo rk area . W ithou t reasonable 
access, LWM may be limited in performing its duties presen ting a situat ion beyond our control. 

5. This proposal shall be valid for 30 days. Either party may cancel this con tract with 30-day written notice. 
Th is Agreeme nt automatically renews upon an niversat) ' of execution date, un less not ice is given by eith er 
party with at least 30 days written notice. 

6. If LWM is required to enro ll in any third-party compliance programs, invoicing or payment plans that 
assess fees in order to pe rform work for CUSTOMER, th ose charges will be invoiced back to CUSTOMER 
as invoiced to LWM. 

7. LWM will maint ain insurance coverage, which incl udes but is not lim ited to; General Liability Prope rty 
Damage, Automobile Liability, and Workman 's Compensat ion at its own expense. If LWM is required to 
add Additional Insured, Waiver of Subrogat ion, or any language that result in assessed fees in orde r to 
perform work for CUSTOMER, thos e charges will be invoiced back to CUSTOMER as invoiced to LWM. 

8. CUSTOMER shall pay interest to LWM on any pa st-du e paym ents at the rate of 1.5% per mon th ( 18% 
per ann um ) or the maximum amou nt permitted by law, whichever is less, from the applicab le due da te for 
such fees until pa id. 

9. No alte rations or modifications, oral or written, of the terms co ntained above sha ll be valid unless made 
in writin g, and wholly accepted by authorized represe ntatives of both LWM and the CUSTOMER. 

Adam Grayson as Vice President of 
Lake & Wet lan d Management 
North Florida, Inc. 

Custo m er accepta nce - Th e above p ri ces, 
spec ifi cat io n s and co n ditions are h ereby 
accep ted. 

Autho rized signatu re 
Rolling Hills C.D.D . 

Printe d name & Tille 

Da te 

Lake & Wetland Managemen t • 3562 NW 97th Boulevard• Gainesville, Florido 32606 
(352 ) 727-7696 Office - (352 ) 727-7697 Fox nor thnorida@lakeandwe tland.com 



CUSTOMER NAM E: Chris Hall 
PROPERTY NAME: Rolling Hills CDD 
CONTRACT EFFECTIVE DATE: 
SUBMITTED BY: Katie Caba nillas 

SERVICES CONTRACT 

This agree ment (the "Agree ment") is made as of the da te indica ted above, and is by and between 
so lit ude Lake Manageme nt, LLC {"So lit ude" or the "Com pany") and the customer ident ified above (the 
"Customer") on the terms and cond itions set forth in this Ag ree ment. 

l. The Services. Soli tude w ill provide services a t the Customer's pro perty as described in Schedu le A 
attache d hereto : 

2. PAYMENT TERMS. The Annual Con tract Price is $6,300.00 . So li tude shal l invoice Customer $525.00 
per month for the Services to be provided unde r this Agreemen t. The term of this agreement is for a 
period of twelve ( 12) mon ths, w ith payme nt to be ma de in twelve ( 12) equa l month ly payme nts due by 
the last day of each month. As a cou rtesy, the custo mer w ill be invoiced on the first day of each month, 
rem inding them tha t a con tract payment is due by the end of tha t same mont h. The customer is 
ob liga ted to pay eac h mon thly co ntract paymen t per the terms of this cont rac t, witho ut any obliga tion 
on the part of solitude to invoice or send any other sort of reminder or notice. The Annua l Con trac t Price 
is based on the to tal value of services to be provided ove r a period of twelve ( 12) mont hs. For the 
conve nience of the customer, we offer Monthly Co ntrac t Pric ing tho t is simply an even twelve ( 12) month 
amortization of the Annua l Co ntract Price . Due to the seasona lity o f these services, and the 
disproportionate amoun t of time and ma terials ded ica ted to providi ng these services dur ing some times 
of the ye ar as compared to o thers, based on the season, weat her pa tterns, and ot her natu ral fac tors, the 
amount billed and paid to date is not necessar ily equiva lent to the amoun t of wor k performed to da te. 
For this reason, should the Custome r cance l the contrac t early, or be in defau lt for any reason, Customer 
w ill be responsible for immed iately payi ng the rema ining portion of annua l co ntrac t work comple ted to 
da te. 
The Custome r will be liable for any returned check fe es and any co llect ion cos ts, including reasonable 
atto rney fees and cou rt costs, for any invo ices not otherwise time ly paid, an d interest at the rate of 1% per 
mon th may be added to a ll unpaid invo ices. Should the wo rk pe rformed be subject to any local, state, or 
fe deral jurisdict ion, agency, or other organizat io n of au thority for sales or ot her taxes or fees in add ition to 
those exp ressly cove red by this contract, customer will be invoiced and responsible for payi ng said 
additio na l taxes in addi tion to the co ntract price and o ther fees above. So lit ude shall be reimbursed by 
the custome r for any non-rou tine expe nses, adm inistrat ive fees, comp liance fees, or any other similar 
expense that are incu rred as a result of requiremen ts placed on the SOLitude by the c ustomer tha t are 
not covered speci fica lly by the written speci fica tions of this con tract. 

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Mat erials - The information contained herein is the intellectual property of SOLitude Lake Management . 
Recipient may not disclose to any outside party any proprietary informa tion, processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its 
attachments without t he prior w ritten consent of Soli tude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall 
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the information contained herein confiden tial . 

888.48 0.LAK E (5253) I SOLITU DELAKEMA NAGEME NT.COM 



Services Contract 

Page 2 of 7 

3. TERM AND EXPIRATION. This Agreement is for an annual management program as described in the 
Schedule A attached. Any additional services will be provided only upon additional terms as agreed to 
by the parties in writing. Contract will automatically renew annually at the end of the contract effective 
date for subsequent one ( l) year terms, with a three perce nt (3%) escalation in the Annual Contract Price 
each year, under the same terms, specifications, and conditions as set forth by this contract, unless either 
party gives written notice of cancellation thirty (30) days prior to the termination date of this contract, or 
subsequent renewal contracts. 

4. DISCLAIMER. solitude is not responsible for the failure of any treatment, equipment installation, or 
other work that result from dam or other structural failures, severe weather and storms, flooding, or other 
acts of God that are outside of the control of Solitude. 
Customer understands and acknowledges that there are irrigation restrictions associated with many of the 
products used to treat lakes and ponds. The customer is responsible for notifying solitude in advance of 
the contract signing and the start of the contract if they utilize any of the water in their lakes or ponds for 
irrigation purposes. The customer accepts full responsibility for any issues that may arise from the irrigation 
of turf, ornamentals, trees, crops, or any other plants as a result of trea ted water being used by the 
customer for irrigation without the consent or knowledge of solitude. 
Although there is rarely direct fish toxicity with the products used for treatment when applied at the 
labeled rate, or the installation and normal operation of the equipment we install, the re is a risk under 
certain circumstances of significant dissolved oxygen drops. This risk is most severe in time s of extremely 
hot weather and warm water temperatures, as these are the conditions during which dissolved oxygen 
levels are naturally at their lowest levels. Often times lakes and ponds will experience na tural fish kills 
under these conditions even if no work is performed. Every effort, to include the method and timing of 
application, the choice of products and equipment used, and the skill and training of the staff, is made to 
avoid such problems. However, the customer understands and accepts that there is always a slight risk of 
the occurrence of adverse conditions outside the control of solitude that will result in the deat h of some 
fish and other aquatic life. The customer also understands and accepts that similar risks would remain 
even if no work was perfo rmed. The customer agrees to hold solitude harmless for any issues with fish or 
other aquatic life which occur as described above, or are otherwise outside the direct cont rol of the 
solitude, unless there is willful negligence on the part of solitude. 

5. INSURANCE AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. SOLitude will maintain general liab ility and property 
damage insurance as necessary given the scope and nature of the Services. The Company will be 
responsible for those damages, claims, causes of action, injuries or legal costs to the extent of its own direct 
negligence or misconduct, and then only to an amount not to exceed the annual value of this Agreement. 
In no event will any party to this Agreement be liable to the other for incidental, co nsequentia l or purely 
economic damages. 

6. FORCE MAJEURE. The Company shall not be liable for any de lay in performing the Services, nor 
liable for any fai lure to provide the Services, due to any cause beyond its reasonable co ntrol. 

7. ANTI-CORRUPTION AND BRIBERY. Each party represents that neither it nor anyone acting on its be half 
has offered, given, requested or accepted any undue financial or other advantage of any kind in entering 
into this Agreement, and that it will comply with all applicable laws and regulations pertaining to co rruption , 
competition and bribery in carrying out the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Materials - The information contained herein is the intellectual property of SOLitude Lake Management. 
Recipient may not disclose to any outside party any proprietary information, processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its 
attachments without the prior written consent of SOLitude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall 
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the information contained herein confidential. 

888.480.LAKE (5253) I SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 



Services Contract 

Page 3 of 7 

8. GOVERNING LAW. This Ag reemen t shall be gove rned and const rued in accordance with the laws 
of the state in wh ich the Services are performed. 

9. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreemen t consti tutes the entire agreement between the parties wi th 
respect to the subject matter and replaces any prior agreements or understand ings, whe ther in writing or 
otherwise. This Agreemen t may not be modified or amended except by written agreement execu ted by 
both par ties. In the eve nt that any provision of this Agreemen t is determ ined to be void, invalid, or 
unenforceable, the val idity and enfo rceab ility of the remaining provisions of this Agreemen t sha ll no t be 
affected. 

10. NOTICE. Any wr itten no tice provided under this Ag reement may be sent via overnight ma il, certified 
mail, hand de livery or electronic mail with delivery conf irmation, to the ind ividuals and add resses listed 
below. 

11. BINDING. This Agreement shall inure to the benefi t o f a nd be b inding upon the legal represen tatives 
and successors of the parties. 

ACCEEPTED AND APPROVED: 

SOLITUDE LAKE MANAGEMENT, LLC. 

By: _________ _ 

Name: __________ _ 

Title: __________ _ 

Date : ________ _ 

Please Remit All Pa yments to: 

1320 Brookwood Drive Suite H 
Little Rock AR 72202 

Please Mail All Contracts to: 

2844 Crusader Circle, Suite 450 
Virginia Beach, VA 23451 

Rolling Hills COD 

By: ----------

Name: ___ __ __ ___ _ 

Title: ___________ _ 

Date: _________ _ 

Customer's Address for Notice Purposes: 

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Materials - The information contained herein is the intellectual property of Solitude Lake Management . 
Recipient may not disclose to any outside party any propr ietary information , processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its 
attachments without the prior written consent of Solitude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall 
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informat ion contained herein confidentia l. 

888.480.LAKE (5253) I SOLITUDELAKEMA NAGEME NT.COM 



Services Contra ct 

Page 4 of 7 

Mo nitoring: 

SCHEDULE A - ANNUAL MANAGEM ENT SERVICES 

1. A SOLitude Biolog ist wi ll visit the site a nd inspecf the pond(s ) on a two (2) times per 
month basis. 

2. Observa tions and data collected dur ing the inspect ions will be used to inform and 
guide al l act ivities req uired to fulfill the requirements of this cont ract as specified in the 
desc ript ion of services be low . 

Visual Inspect ions: 
1. A visual inspec tion of the pond(s) will be perfo rmed dur ing eac h visit to the site . The 

inspection s shall inclu de the fo llowing : 
• Wate r levels 
• Wa ter clarity or q uality 
• Turbid ity 
• Benefic ial Aq uat ic Vege tatio n 
• Nuisance, Invasive, or Exotic Aqu a tic Vege tation 
• Algae 
• Physical co mpone nts such as above grou nd pipes, inlet and outlet structures, 

trash racks, eme rge ncy spillways, and dams 
• Erosion 
• Issues with shore line an d bank stab ilization measures such as rip rap stone, 

bu lkheads, retaining wal ls, etc . 
• Forebays and inflowing or outf low ing swales, d itches, and stream channels 
• Veg et ated buffers 
• Sedimenta tion 
• Nuisance an ima l activ ity 
• Fish hab itat 
• Mosqu ito breed ing cond itions an d hab itat 
• Trash and debr is 

2. Any issues or def icie nc ies that are observed during this visual mon itoring wi ll be 
documen ted by our staff in the field notes of the service orde r completed at the time 
the issue was first observed a nd repor ted to the Customer in wr iting as part of that 
mo nth's service rep ort. 

3. Custome r will be noti fied immedia tely if there are any deficie ncies observed that 
appear in the judgmen t of our staff to be posing an immed iate risk or otherwise 
jeopar dizing the integrity of the pond(s) structures. 

4. The scope of these services is limited to wha t ca n be reasonab ly observed a t the 
surface of the wa ter and above the ground aro und the wa ter that ma kes up the 
physical struc ture of the pond(s ). These rou tine inspection services are not intended to 
replace any requireme nt or need for a more comp rehensive enginee red inspect ion, or 
any other type of inspect ion tha t wo uld req uire exper tise or eq uipmen t to survey the 
co ndition of the physica l compo nent s of the po nd(s) unde rground, underwa ter, or 
inside any of the associa ted struct ures. 

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Materials - The information contained herein is the inte llectual property of SOlit ude Lake Management. 
Recipient may not disclose to any outside party any propr ietary information, processes, or pricing contained in th is document or any of its 
attachments witho ut the prior written consent of SOlitude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall 
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the informat ion contained herein confident ial. 

888.480.LAKE (5253) I SOLITUDELAKEMA NAGEMENT.COM 



Services Contract 

Page 5 of 7 

Aquatic Weed Contro l: 
1. Pond(s) w ill be inspected on a two (2) times per month basis. 
2. Any growth of undes irable aquatic weeds and vege tat ion found in the pond(s) with 

each inspection shall be treated and con trolled through the application of aqua tic 
herbicides and aquatic surfactants as required to control the specific variet ies of 
aquatic weeds and vegetation found in the pond(s ) at the time of application. 

3. Invasive and unwanted submersed and floating vegeta tion wil l be treated and 
controlled preventative ly and curatively each spring and ear ly summe r through the use 
of systemic herbicides a t the rate appropriate for contro l of the target species. 
Application rates will be designed to al low for selective contro l of unwanted species 
while allowing for desirable species of submersed and emergent wetland plants to 
prosper. 

Shoreline Weed Cont ro l: 
1 . Shoreline areas will be inspected on a two (2) times per month basis. 
2. Any grow th of cattails, phragm ites, or other unwanted shoreline vege ta tion found 

wi thin the pond areas shall be treated and con trolled through the applica tion of 
aquatic herbicides and aquatic surfactants as requ ired for con trol of the plants present 
at time of app lica tion . 

3. Any grow th of unwanted plan ts or weeds growing in areas where stone has been 
insta lled for bank stabiliza tion and erosion con trol shall be treated and con trolled 
through the applicat ion of aqua tic herbicides and aquatic surfactan ts as required to 
control the unwanted grow th present at the time of application. 

Pond Algae Con trol: 
1. Pond(s) will be inspected on a two (2) times per month basis. 
2. Any a lgae found in the pond(s) wi th each inspection shall be trea ted and cont rol led 

through the applica tion of algaecides, aqua tic herbicides, and aqua tic surfactants as 
needed for contro l of the algae present a t the time of service. 

Trash Removal: 
1. Trash and light debris will be removed from the po nd(s) w ith each service and d isposed 

of f site. Any large item or debr is tha t is not easily and reasonably removable by one 
person during the routine visit wi ll be removed with the Customer's approva l for an 
additional fee. Routine trash and debris removal services are for the pond areas on ly, 
and do not include any trash or debris removal from the surround ing terrestrial (dry 
land) areas. 

Stocking for improved Weed Con trol : 
1. Quotes for the stocking of Triploid (Sterile) Grass Carp wi ll be provided as appropr ia te to 

help prevent and con trol outbreaks of certa in aqua tic vegeta tion species . Stocking of 
triploid grass carp should be considered as part of an Integrated Pest Management 
program . Gross carp in these programs will often times reduce the amount of pesticides 
required to properly maintain ponds, helping achieve our long-term goal s of quality 
management through the restoration of ecological balance. Grass Carp are regulated 
by each state . Repairing or replacing of old carp barriers will be complet ed at customer 

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Materials - The information contained herein is the intellectual property of SOLitude Lake Management. 
Recipient may not disclose to any outside party any propr ietary information , processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its 
attachments without the prior written consent of solit ude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall 
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the information cont ained herein confident ial. 

888.480.LAKE (5253) I SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEME NT.COM 



Services Cont ract 

Page 6 of 7 

request based on ports and labor, which may be required to amend the existing FWC 
permit. Corp quotes will be provided at approximately $8.50 per fish plus labor. 

Custome r Responsibilities: 
1. Customer wi ll be responsible for the following : 

a . Providing informatio n requ ired for the perm it applicat ion process upon request . 
b. Prov iding Cert ified Abu tters List for ab utter not ification whe re requi red. 
c. Perform any public filings or recordings with any age ncy or comm ission 

associated with the permitting process, if requ ired . 
d. Compliance wi th any Order of Cond itions or other special requ iremen ts or 

co ndi tions required by the local municipal ity. 
e. Compliance and enforcemen t of temporary water-use restrictions where 

applicab le. 

Service Repor ting: 
1 . Customer will be prov ided with a monthly service repo rt de tailing all of the work 

performed as part of this con tract. 

Gene ral Qualifications: 
1. Company is a licensed pesticide appl icator in the state in which service is to be 

provided. 
2. Indiv idua l Applica tors are Cer tified Pesticide App lica tors in Aquatics, Public Health, 

Forestry, Right of Way, and Turf/Orna men tal as requ ired in the sta te in which service is 
to be prov ided . 

3. Company is a SePRO Preferred App licato r and dedicated Steward of Wa ter. Each 
individual applicator has been trained and educated in the water qua lity testing and 
analysis required for site speci fic water quality management prescrip tions and utilizes 
an integrated approach that encompasses all aspec ts of eco logica lly ba lanced 
managemen t. Each applicator has rece ived extensive training in the proper selection, 
use, and app lica tion of all aquat ic herbicides, algaecides, adjuvan ts, and wa ter 
qua lity enhancement products necessary to properly treat our Customers' lakes and 
ponds as par t of an ove ra ll integrated pest managemen t program. 

4. Company guaran tees that all products used for treatment are EPA reg istered and 
labe led as appropr iate and safe for use in lakes, po nds, and other aquat ic sites, and 
are being appl ied in a ma nner consistent with their label ing. 

5. All pesticide app lications made directly to the wa ter or a long the shoreline for the 
cont rol of algae, aq uatic weeds, or other aquatic pests as specified in this con tract will 
mee t or exceed all of the Company 's lega l regu latory requirements as set forth by the 
EPA and related state agencies for NPDES and FIFRA. Company wi ll per form 
trea tments that are co nsistent wi th NP DES compliance standards as applicable in and 
determined by the specific state in which treatments are made. All staff w ill be fully 
tra ined to perform a ll app lications in comp liance with all federal, state, and local law. 

6. Company will cont inue to ma inta in all appropr iate training and licensing necessary to 
per form a ll speci fied work in a safe and lega l manner throughout the en tire contract 
period. 

Competitive ly Sensitive & Proprietary M ateria ls - The information contained herein is the intellectual property of SOLitude Lake Management. 
Recipient may not disclose to any outside party any proprietary information , processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its 
attachments without t he prior written consent of SOLitude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall 
be the responsibi lity of the recipient to keep the information contained herein confidentia l. 

888.480 .LAKE (5253) J SOLITUDELAKEMA NAGEMEN T.COM 



Services Contract 
Page 7 of 7 

7. Company will furnish personnel, equipment, boats, materia ls, and o ther items required 
to provide the forego ing at his expense. 

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Materials - The information contained herein is the intellectua l property of Solitude Lake Management. 
Recipient may not disclose to any outside party any proprietary information, processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its 
attachments without the prior written consent of SOLitude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall 
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the information contained herein confidential. 

888.480 .LAKE (5253) I SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Approved Budget
Fiscal Year 2021

Rolling Hills Community
Development District

August 11, 2020

 



Rolling Hills
Community Development District

General Fund
Budget Page 1
Budget Narrative Page 2-8

Capital Reserve
Budget Page 9

Debt Service Fund
2015 A1 Budget Page 10
Series 2015 A1 Amortization Schedule Page 11

2015 A2 Budget Page 12
Series 2015 A2 Amortization Schedule Page 13

2015 A3 Budget Page 14
Series 2015 A3 Amortization Schedule Page 15

TABLE OF CONTENTS



Rolling Hills
Community Development District General Fund

Adopted Actual Projected Total Approved
Budget thru Next Projected Budget

Description FY2020 6/30/20 3 Months Thru 9/30/20 FY2021
  

Revenues    
Assessments - On Roll $348,975 $349,675 $0 $349,675 $348,975
Assessments - Direct Platted $269,409 $202,057 $67,352 $269,409 $269,409
Swim & Tennis Revenue $800 $0 $800 $800 $800
Facility Rental Fees $3,500 $1,900 $200 $2,100 $3,500
Non-Resident Memberships $1,980 $0 $1,980 $1,980 $1,980

 
     Total Revenues $624,664 $553,632 $70,332 $623,964 $624,664

Expenditures

Administrative
Supervisor Fees $6,000 $2,400 $1,000 $3,400 $6,000
FICA Expense $459 $184 $77 $260 $459
Engineering $10,000 $0 $500 $500 $5,000
Arbitrage $1,200 $1,200 $0 $1,200 $1,200
Dissemination Agent $3,500 $2,625 $875 $3,500 $3,500
Assessment Roll $5,000 $5,000 $0 $5,000 $5,000
Attorney $22,500 $6,260 $4,471 $10,731 $22,500
Annual Audit $3,800 $3,800 $0 $3,800 $3,800
Trustee $8,081 $8,081 $0 $8,081 $8,081
Management Fees $40,000 $30,000 $10,000 $40,000 $41,200
Computer Time $1,000 $750 $250 $1,000 $1,000
Telephone $150 $37 $12 $49 $150
Postage $500 $222 $74 $296 $500
Printing & Binding $1,250 $762 $254 $1,016 $1,250
Travel & Per Diem $100 $82 $27 $109 $100
Insurance $8,427 $8,227 $0 $8,227 $8,427
Legal Advertising $1,000 $616 $205 $821 $1,000
Other Current Charges $1,500 $974 $325 $1,299 $1,500
Website Compliance $2,500 $1,875 $625 $2,500 $2,500
Office Supplies $100 $124 $41 $166 $100
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $175 $0 $175 $175

     Administrative Expenses $117,242 $73,394 $18,737 $92,131 $113,442

Field
Operations Management $20,500 $15,375 $5,125 $20,500 $21,525
Utilities - Irrigation & Streetlights $35,000 $22,696 $7,565 $30,261 $35,000
Repairs & Maintenance $40,000 $21,699 $7,233 $28,932 $40,000
Landscape  $73,000 $54,496 $18,165 $72,661 $74,800
Landscape - Contingency $6,800 $5,511 $1,837 $7,348 $6,800
Mulch $13,500 $10,530 $0 $10,530 $13,500
Lake Maintenance $4,800 $3,680 $1,227 $4,907 $4,800
Irrigation Repairs $7,500 $2,771 $924 $3,695 $7,500
Miscellaneous $1,264 $4,300 $500 $4,800 $1,264

     Field Expenses $202,364 $141,058 $42,576 $183,634 $205,189

1



Rolling Hills
Community Development District General Fund

Adopted Actual Projected Total Approved
Budget thru Next Projected Budget

Description FY2020 6/30/20 3 Months Thru 9/30/20 FY2021

Amenity Center
Facility Management $53,533 $40,150 $13,383 $53,533 $56,210
Pool Attendants $35,000 $1,260 $25,000 $26,260 $35,000
Refuse Service $8,300 $9,295 $3,098 $12,393 $8,300
Security $15,000 $9,820 $3,273 $13,093 $15,000
Utilities $45,000 $28,748 $9,583 $38,331 $45,000
Recreation Passes $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
Repairs & Maintenance $40,000 $35,641 $11,880 $47,521 $40,000
Janitorial $12,840 $9,630 $3,210 $12,840 $12,840
Pool Maintenance $13,650 $10,238 $3,413 $13,651 $13,650
Special Events $4,000 $2,125 $708 $2,833 $6,000
Operating Supplies $6,000 $3,412 $1,137 $4,549 $6,000
Pool Chemicals $9,000 $8,073 $2,691 $10,764 $9,000
Permit $375 $375 $0 $375 $375
Insurance $23,121 $22,681 $0 $22,681 $23,121

     Amenity Center $266,819 $181,448 $77,377 $258,825 $271,496

Total Expenses $586,425 $395,900 $138,690 $534,590 $590,127

Other Sources/Uses

Interfund Transfer Out ($38,239) $0 ($38,239) ($38,239) ($34,537)

     Total Other ($38,239) $0 ($38,239) ($38,239) ($34,537)

ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE $0 $157,732 ($106,597) $51,135 $0

FY 2020 FY 2021
Platted Lots:
Assessments - Platted Lots On Roll 375 375
Net-Assessment Rate $930.60 $930.60
Total Net Assessments $348,975.00 $348,975.00
Gross Assessment (6% Discount) $371,250.00 $371,250.00
Gross Assessment - Per Unit $990.00 $990.00

Planned Lots: 
Assessments - Direct Billed 386 386
Net-Assessment Rate per Unit (75%) $697.95 $697.95
Total Net Assessments $269,408.70 $269,408.70
Gross Assessment (6% Discount) $280,185.05 $280,185.05
Gross Assessment - Per Unit $725.87 $725.87

2



 
 

Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 
Fiscal Year 2021 

 
 

 

REVENUES: 
 
Assessments – Platted Lots 
 
The District will assess the platted lots within the District to fund a portion of the District’s operating budget 
for the fiscal year. 
 
Assessments – Planned Units 
 
The District will assess the undeveloped property at rate of 75% of Platted lots based on reduced benefits 
of undeveloped land. 
 
Swim & Tennis Revenue 
 
Fees collected for swim lessons, guest fees, room rentals and programs. 
 
Facility Rental Fees 
 
The residents may rent the facilities for personal use. 
 
Non-Resident Membership Fees 
 
Non-Resident have the opportunity to purchase access to the Amenity Center facilities.  The annual cost is 
$1,980. 
        
 
EXPENDITURES: 
 
Administrative: 
 
Supervisors Fees 
 
The District may compensate supervisors up to $200 per meeting with a maximum amount of $4,800 per 
year. 
 
FICA Expense 
 
Represents District’s share of Social Security and Medicare Taxes withheld from supervisor’s fees. 
 
Engineering 
 
The District will contract with an engineering firm to provide general engineering services to the District, 
including attendance and preparation for monthly board meetings, review invoices, etc. 
 
Arbitrage 
 
The District is required to annually have an arbitrage rebate calculation on the District’s Series 2015 
A1/A2/A3, Capital Improvements Revenue Bonds.  The District will contract with a certified public 
accounting firm to calculate the rebate liability and submit reports to the District.  
 

3 
 



 
 

Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 
Fiscal Year 2021 

 
 

 

  
Dissemination Agent 
 
The District is required by the Security and Exchange Commission to comply with Rule 15(c)(2)-12(b)(5), 
which relates to additional reporting requirements for unrelated bond issues.  The District has contracted 
with GMS, LLC to provide this service. 
 
Assessment Roll  
 
The District has contracted with Governmental Management Services for the certification of the District’s 
annual maintenance and debt service assessments to the County Tax Collector. 
 
Attorney 
 
The District's legal counsel, Hopping Green & Sams, will be providing general legal services to the District, 
including attendance and preparation for monthly meetings, preparation and review of agreements, 
resolutions, etc. 
 
Annual Audit 
 
The District is required annually to conduct an audit of its financial records by an Independent Certified 
Public Accounting Firm.  Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank currently serves as the District’s 
Independent Auditor.  
 
Trustee 
 
The District issued $2,500,000 of Series 2015A-1, $1,930,000 of Series 2015A-2, $3,850,000 of Series 
2015A-3 and $2,245,000 of Series 2015B Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bonds which are held 
by a Trustee at U.S. Bank.   
 
Management Fees   
 
The District receives Management, Accounting and Administrative services as part of a Management 
Agreement with Governmental Management Services, LLC. 
 
Travel & Per Diem   
 
Represents mileage reimbursement to Supervisors for use of their private vehicle to travel to Board of 
Supervisors meetings. 
 
Computer Time    
 
The District processes all of its financial activities, including accounts payable, financial statements, etc. on 
a main frame computer leased by Governmental Management Services, LLC.    
 
Telephone 
 
Telephone and fax machine. 
 
 

4 
 
 



 
 

Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 
Fiscal Year 2021 

 
 

 

Postage 
 
Mailing of agenda packages, overnight deliveries, correspondence, etc. 
 
Printing & Binding 
 
Printing and Binding agenda packages for board meetings, printing of computerized checks, stationary, 
envelopes etc. 
 
Insurance-Liability 
 
The District's General Liability & Public Officials Liability Insurance policy is with Preferred Governmental 
Insurance Trust (PGIT).  PGIT specializes in providing insurance coverage to governmental agencies. 
 
Legal Advertising 
 
The District is required to advertise various notices for monthly Board meetings, public hearings etc in the 
Florida Times Union. 
 
Other Current Charges  
 
Bank charges and any other miscellaneous expenses incurred during the year. 
 
Office Supplies 
 
Miscellaneous office supplies. 
 
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions 
 
The District is required to pay an annual fee to the Department of Economic Opportunity for $175.  This is 
the only expense under this category for the District. 
 
 
Field: 
 
Operations Management 
 
The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services to provide oversight of daily operations of 
the common areas, irrigation and maintenance contracts. 
 
Landscape Maintenance 
 
This represents landscape maintenance of all the District property, to include mowing, weeding, trimming, 
pruning etc. The District is contracted with Yellowstone Landscape. 
 
Landscape Contingency 
 
Represents a contingency for mulch installation, sod repairs/replacement, plant replacements and new 
common areas to maintain. 

 
5 

 
 



 
 

Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 
Fiscal Year 2021 

 
 

 

 
 
Utilities- Irrigation and Streetlights 
 
The District has utility accounts with the following providers for irrigation and lighting: 
  
Account No. Description Monthly Annually 

    
Clay Electric     
    
7182249 2404-1 Rolling View Blvd  $         55   $                  660  
7755259 3236-1 Bradley Creek Dr  $         35   $                  420  
7755275 3314-1 Bradly Creek Dr  $         33   $                  396  
7755283 2448 Rolling View Blvd  $         75   $                  900  

    
Clay County Utility Authority   
    
244686 3212-1 Bradley Creek Reclaim  $    1,422   $            17,064  
244869 3212-2 Bradley Creek Reclaim  $       128   $              1,536  
256584 3215-2 Bradley Creek Reclaim  $       301   $              3,612  
253042 3212-3 Bradley Creek Irrigation  $       630   $              7,560  
    
Contingency    $        2,852.00  

    
Total      $     35,000.00  
 
 
Lake Maintenance 
 
The District has contracted with The Lake Doctors for more aquatic plant management of the community’s 
lakes. Services provide labor, equipment, herbicides and technology to control invasive plants and algae.  
 
Miscellaneous 
 
Any unforeseen expense that is not included in the previous categories.  
 
Amenity Center: 
 
 
Facility Management 
 
The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services to staff the amenity center and manage the 
day to day operations in accordance with their contract.   
 
 
 
 

6 
 



 
 

Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 
Fiscal Year 2021 

 
 

 

 
 
Pool Attendants 
 
The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services to provide pool attendants for the District’s 
water slide, safety and enforcement of pool rules adopted by the District.  
 
Refuse Service 
 
The District has contracted with Waste Management for the refuse container removal. The contract is for one 2 
yard front load dumpster to be emptied once a week.  
 
Security 
 
The District has contracted with the Clay County Sheriff’s Office to provide part time security covering the 
community. 
 
Utilities- Electric, Water, Cable, Internet & Telephone 
 
The District has the following utility accounts for the Amenity Center: 
 

 
 
 
Repairs and Maintenance 
 
The District will incur various cost associated with the overall maintenance of the District’s amenity center to 
include: 
 
 •A/C unit quarterly maintenance by Mechanical Solutions 
 •Light repairs and new bulbs/ballasts 
 •Annual installation 
 •Quarterly pressure wash all facility areas 
 •Pumps and motor maintenance and repairs 
 •Painting 
 
 

7 

Account Number Description Monthly Annually

Clay Electric Cooperative
7751951 3212 Bradley Creek Dr 3,500.00$        42,000.00$  

Clay County Utility Authority
00260347 3212-4 Bradley Creek Dr 250.00$           3,000.00$    

Comcast
8495741231221030 Cable/Internet/Telephone 250.00$           3,000.00$    

48,000.00$  



 
 

Rolling Hills 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 
Fiscal Year 2021 

 
 

 

 
Janitorial 
 
The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services for the monthly cleaning of the clubhouse.   
 
Pool Maintenance 
 
The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services for the weekly cleaning and maintenance of 
the pools.   
 
Special Events 
 
The District will host certain special events throughout the year for the residents of the community.   
 
Operating Supplies 
 
Any supplies and chemicals needed for the daily upkeep and operation of the Amenity Center. 
 
Pool Chemicals 
 
The District purchases all necessary chemicals from Hawkins, Inc. for the swimming pool. 
 
Permits 
 
Represents cost for the various permits required for the operation of the amenity center. 
 
Insurance - Property 
 
The District’s Property Insurance policy is with Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (PGIT). PGIT 
specializes in providing insurance coverage to governmental agencies.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 



Rolling Hills
Community Development District Capital Reserve

Adopted Actual Projected Total Approved
Budget thru Next Projected Budget

Description FY2020 6/30/20 3 Months Thru 9/30/20 FY2021
  

Revenues    
Interest $0 $0 $0 $0 $500
Carry Forward Surplus $0 $0 $0 $0 $38,239

 
     Total Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $38,739

Expenditures

Capital Reserve $38,239 $0 $0 $0 $0

     Total Expenditures $38,239 $0 $0 $0 $0

Other Sources/Uses

Interfund Transfer In $38,239 $0 $38,239 $38,239 $34,537

     Total Other $38,239 $0 $38,239 $38,239 $34,537

ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE $0 $0 $38,239 $38,239 $73,276

9



Rolling Hills
Community Development District Debt Service Fund

Series 2015 A1

Adopted Actual Projected Total Approved
Budget thru Next Projected Budget

Description FY2020 6/30/20 3 Months Thru 9/30/20 FY2021

Revenues    

Assessments $174,001 $174,350 $0  $174,350 $174,001
Interest Income $0 $162 $50 $212 $0
Carry Forward Surplus $63,176 $65,300 $0 $65,300 $58,614

Total Revenues $174,001 $239,812 $50 $239,862 $232,615

Expenditures

Series 2015 A-1

Interest 11/1 $53,192 $53,192 $0 $53,192 $51,394
Special Call - 11/1 $0 $5,000 $0 $5,000 $0
Interest 5/1 $65,000 $65,000 $0 $65,000 $70,000
Principal 5/1 $53,192 $53,056 $0 $53,056 $51,394
Special Call - 5/1 $0 $5,000 $0 $5,000 $0

Total Debt Service Expenditures $171,384 $181,248 $0 $181,248 $172,788

EXCESS REVENUES / (EXPENDITURES) $2,617 $58,564 $50 $58,614 $59,828

11/1/21 Interest 49,783.75$          

10



       DATE  RATE  INTEREST  
11/01/20 1,900,000.00$                                 4.30% 51,393.75$                         51,393.75$                   
05/01/21 1,900,000.00$                                 4.60% 70,000.00$                        51,393.75$                         
11/01/21 1,830,000.00$                                 4.60% 49,783.75$                         171,177.50$                 
05/01/22 1,830,000.00$                                 5.13% 75,000.00$                        49,783.75$                         
11/01/22 1,755,000.00$                                 5.13% 47,861.88$                         172,645.63$                 
05/01/23 1,755,000.00$                                 5.13% 80,000.00$                        47,861.88$                         
11/01/23 1,675,000.00$                                 5.13% 45,811.88$                         173,673.76$                 
05/01/24 1,675,000.00$                                 5.13% 85,000.00$                        45,811.88$                         
11/01/24 1,590,000.00$                                 5.13% 43,633.75$                         174,445.63$                 
05/01/25 1,590,000.00$                                 5.13% 95,000.00$                        43,633.75$                         
11/01/25 1,495,000.00$                                 5.13% 41,199.38$                         179,833.13$                 
05/01/26 1,495,000.00$                                 5.13% 95,000.00$                        41,199.38$                         
11/01/26 1,400,000.00$                                 5.13% 38,765.00$                         174,964.38$                 
05/01/27 1,400,000.00$                                 5.45% 105,000.00$                      38,765.00$                         
11/01/27 1,295,000.00$                                 5.45% 35,903.75$                         179,668.75$                 
05/01/28 1,295,000.00$                                 5.45% 110,000.00$                      35,903.75$                         
11/01/28 1,185,000.00$                                 5.45% 32,906.25$                         178,810.00$                 
05/01/29 1,185,000.00$                                 5.45% 115,000.00$                      32,906.25$                         
11/01/29 1,070,000.00$                                 5.45% 29,772.50$                         177,678.75$                 
05/01/30 1,070,000.00$                                 5.45% 120,000.00$                      29,772.50$                         
11/01/30 950,000.00$                                    5.45% 26,502.50$                         176,275.00$                 
05/01/31 950,000.00$                                    5.45% 130,000.00$                      26,502.50$                         
11/01/31 820,000.00$                                    5.45% 22,960.00$                         179,462.50$                 
05/01/32 820,000.00$                                    5.60% 120,000.00$                      22,960.00$                         
11/01/32 700,000.00$                                    5.60% 19,600.00$                         162,560.00$                 
05/01/33 700,000.00$                                    5.60% 125,000.00$                      19,600.00$                         
11/01/33 575,000.00$                                    5.60% 16,100.00$                         160,700.00$                 
05/01/34 575,000.00$                                    5.60% 130,000.00$                      16,100.00$                         
11/01/34 445,000.00$                                    5.60% 12,460.00$                         158,560.00$                 
05/01/35 445,000.00$                                    5.60% 140,000.00$                      12,460.00$                         
11/01/35 305,000.00$                                    5.60% 8,540.00$                           161,000.00$                 
05/01/36 305,000.00$                                    5.60% 150,000.00$                      8,540.00$                           
11/01/36 155,000.00$                                    5.60% 4,340.00$                           162,880.00$                 
05/01/37 155,000.00$                                    5.60% 155,000.00$                      4,340.00$                           159,340.00$                 

1,900,000.00$                   1,055,068.78$                    2,955,068.78$              
**Revised as of 6/25/20

Rolling Hills
Community Development District

Series 2015 A-1 Special Assessment Bonds
AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE

11



Rolling Hills
Community Development District Debt Service Fund

Series 2015 A2, 2015 B

Adopted Actual Projected Total Approved
Budget thru Next Projected Budget

Description FY2020 3/31/20 6 Months Thru 9/30/20 FY2021

Revenues    

Assessments $136,800 $137,075 $0 $137,075 $136,800
Interest Income $0 $149 $50 $199 $0
Carry Forward Surplus $49,868 $49,581 $0 $49,581 $42,693

Total Revenues $186,668 $186,805 $50 $186,855 $179,493

Expenditures

Series 2015 A-2
Interest - 11/1 $42,150 $42,150 $0 $42,150 $40,731
Special Call - 11/1 $0 $5,000 $0 $5,000 $0
Principal - 5/1 $50,000 $50,000 $0 $50,000 $50,000
Interest - 5/1 $42,150 $42,013 $0 $42,013 $40,731
Special Call - 5/1 $0  $5,000 $0 $5,000 $0

Total Debt Service Expenditures $134,300 $144,163 $0 $144,163 $131,463

EXCESS REVENUES / (EXPENDITURES) $52,368 $42,643 $50 $42,693 $48,030

11/1/21 Interest - 2015 A-2 $39,450

12



       DATE  RATE  INTEREST  
05/01/20 1,555,000.00$                                 5.13% 50,000.00$                        42,012.50$                         
11/01/20 1,505,000.00$                                 5.13% 40,731.25$                         132,743.75$                 
05/01/21 1,505,000.00$                                 5.13% 50,000.00$                        40,731.25$                         
11/01/21 1,455,000.00$                                 5.13% 39,450.00$                         130,181.25$                 
05/01/22 1,455,000.00$                                 5.13% 55,000.00$                        39,450.00$                         
11/01/22 1,400,000.00$                                 5.13% 38,040.63$                         132,490.63$                 
05/01/23 1,400,000.00$                                 5.13% 55,000.00$                        38,040.63$                         
11/01/23 1,345,000.00$                                 5.13% 36,631.25$                         129,671.88$                 
05/01/24 1,345,000.00$                                 5.13% 60,000.00$                        36,631.25$                         
11/01/24 1,285,000.00$                                 5.13% 35,093.75$                         131,725.00$                 
05/01/25 1,285,000.00$                                 5.13% 65,000.00$                        35,093.75$                         
11/01/25 1,220,000.00$                                 5.13% 33,428.13$                         133,521.88$                 
05/01/26 1,220,000.00$                                 5.13% 65,000.00$                        33,428.13$                         
11/01/26 1,155,000.00$                                 5.13% 31,762.50$                         130,190.63$                 
05/01/27 1,155,000.00$                                 5.50% 80,000.00$                        31,762.50$                         
11/01/27 1,075,000.00$                                 5.50% 29,562.50$                         141,325.00$                 
05/01/28 1,075,000.00$                                 5.50% 85,000.00$                        29,562.50$                         
11/01/28 990,000.00$                                    5.50% 27,225.00$                         141,787.50$                 
05/01/29 990,000.00$                                    5.50% 85,000.00$                        27,225.00$                         
11/01/29 905,000.00$                                    5.50% 24,887.50$                         137,112.50$                 
05/01/30 905,000.00$                                    5.50% 90,000.00$                        24,887.50$                         
11/01/30 815,000.00$                                    5.50% 22,412.50$                         137,300.00$                 
05/01/31 815,000.00$                                    5.50% 100,000.00$                      22,412.50$                         
11/01/31 715,000.00$                                    5.50% 19,662.50$                         142,075.00$                 
05/01/32 715,000.00$                                    5.50% 105,000.00$                      19,662.50$                         
11/01/32 610,000.00$                                    5.50% 16,775.00$                         141,437.50$                 
05/01/33 610,000.00$                                    5.50% 110,000.00$                      16,775.00$                         
11/01/33 500,000.00$                                    5.50% 13,750.00$                         140,525.00$                 
05/01/34 500,000.00$                                    5.50% 115,000.00$                      13,750.00$                         
11/01/34 385,000.00$                                    5.50% 10,587.50$                         139,337.50$                 
05/01/35 385,000.00$                                    5.50% 120,000.00$                      10,587.50$                         
11/01/35 265,000.00$                                    5.50% 7,287.50$                           137,875.00$                 
05/01/36 265,000.00$                                    5.50% 130,000.00$                      7,287.50$                           
11/01/36 135,000.00$                                    5.50% 3,712.50$                           141,000.00$                 
05/01/37 135,000.00$                                    5.50% 135,000.00$                      3,712.50$                           138,712.50$                 

1,555,000.00$                   904,012.52$                       2,459,012.52$              

** Revised 9/30/19

Rolling Hills
Community Development District

Series 2015 A-2 Special Assessment Bonds
AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE

13



Rolling Hills
Community Development District  Debt Service Fund

Series 2015 A3

Adopted Actual Projected Total Approved
Budget thru Next Projected Budget

Description FY2020 6/30/20 3 Months Thru 9/30/20 FY2021

Revenues    

Assessments - Tax Roll $41,481 $41,563 $0 $41,563 $41,481
Assessments - Direct $302,118 $211,492 $90,626 $302,118 $302,118
Interest Income $0 $83 $20 $103 $0
Carry Forward Surplus $127,544 $129,124 $0 $129,124 $128,383

Total Revenues $471,143 $382,262 $90,646 $472,908 $471,981

Expenditures

Series 2015 A-3

Interest 11/1 $119,763 $119,763 $0 $119,763 $116,245
Interest 5/1 $105,000 $105,000 $0 $105,000 $115,000
Principal 5/1 $119,763 $119,763 $0 $119,763 $116,245

Total Debt Service Expenditures $344,525 $344,525 $0 $344,525 $347,490

EXCESS REVENUES / (EXPENDITURES) $126,618 $37,737 $90,646 $128,383 $124,491

11/1/21 Interest $112,393

14



       DATE  RATE  INTEREST  
05/01/16 3,850,000.00$                                 6.70% -$                                  128,975.00$                       
11/01/16 3,850,000.00$                                 6.70% 128,975.00$                       257,950.00$                 
05/01/17 3,850,000.00$                                 6.70% 85,000.00$                        128,975.00$                       
11/01/17 3,765,000.00$                                 6.70% 126,127.50$                       340,102.50$                 
05/01/18 3,765,000.00$                                 6.70% 90,000.00$                        126,127.50$                       
11/01/18 3,675,000.00$                                 6.70% 123,112.50$                       339,240.00$                 
05/01/19 3,675,000.00$                                 6.70% 100,000.00$                      123,112.50$                       
11/01/19 3,575,000.00$                                 6.70% 119,762.50$                       342,875.00$                 
05/01/20 3,575,000.00$                                 6.70% 105,000.00$                      119,762.50$                       
11/01/20 3,470,000.00$                                 6.70% 116,245.00$                       341,007.50$                 
05/01/21 3,470,000.00$                                 6.70% 115,000.00$                      116,245.00$                       
11/01/21 3,355,000.00$                                 6.70% 112,392.50$                       343,637.50$                 
05/01/22 3,355,000.00$                                 6.70% 120,000.00$                      112,392.50$                       
11/01/22 3,235,000.00$                                 6.70% 108,372.50$                       340,765.00$                 
05/01/23 3,235,000.00$                                 6.70% 130,000.00$                      108,372.50$                       
11/01/23 3,105,000.00$                                 6.70% 104,017.50$                       342,390.00$                 
05/01/24 3,105,000.00$                                 6.70% 140,000.00$                      104,017.50$                       
11/01/24 2,965,000.00$                                 6.70% 99,327.50$                         343,345.00$                 
05/01/25 2,965,000.00$                                 6.70% 150,000.00$                      99,327.50$                         
11/01/25 2,815,000.00$                                 6.70% 94,302.50$                         343,630.00$                 
05/01/26 2,815,000.00$                                 6.70% 160,000.00$                      94,302.50$                         
11/01/26 2,655,000.00$                                 6.70% 88,942.50$                         343,245.00$                 
05/01/27 2,655,000.00$                                 6.70% 170,000.00$                      88,942.50$                         
11/01/27 2,485,000.00$                                 6.70% 83,247.50$                         342,190.00$                 
05/01/28 2,485,000.00$                                 6.70% 180,000.00$                      83,247.50$                         
11/01/28 2,305,000.00$                                 6.70% 77,217.50$                         340,465.00$                 
05/01/29 2,305,000.00$                                 6.70% 195,000.00$                      77,217.50$                         
11/01/29 2,110,000.00$                                 6.70% 70,685.00$                         342,902.50$                 
05/01/30 2,110,000.00$                                 6.70% 205,000.00$                      70,685.00$                         
11/01/30 1,905,000.00$                                 6.70% 63,817.50$                         339,502.50$                 
05/01/31 1,905,000.00$                                 6.70% 220,000.00$                      63,817.50$                         
11/01/31 1,685,000.00$                                 6.70% 56,447.50$                         340,265.00$                 
05/01/32 1,685,000.00$                                 6.70% 235,000.00$                      56,447.50$                         
11/01/32 1,450,000.00$                                 6.70% 48,575.00$                         340,022.50$                 
05/01/33 1,450,000.00$                                 6.70% 250,000.00$                      48,575.00$                         
11/01/33 1,200,000.00$                                 6.70% 40,200.00$                         338,775.00$                 
05/01/34 1,200,000.00$                                 6.70% 270,000.00$                      40,200.00$                         
11/01/34 930,000.00$                                    6.70% 31,155.00$                         341,355.00$                 
05/01/35 930,000.00$                                    6.70% 290,000.00$                      31,155.00$                         
11/01/35 640,000.00$                                    6.70% 21,440.00$                         342,595.00$                 
05/01/36 640,000.00$                                    6.70% 310,000.00$                      21,440.00$                         
11/01/36 330,000.00$                                    6.70% 11,055.00$                         342,495.00$                 
05/01/37 330,000.00$                                    6.70% 330,000.00$                      11,055.00$                         341,055.00$                 

3,850,000.00$                   3,579,810.00$                    7,429,810.00$              

Rolling Hills
Community Development District

Series 2015 A-3 Special Assessment Bonds
AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE

15



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



RESOLUTION 2020-06 
 

THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) RELATING TO THE ANNUAL 
APPROPRIATIONS AND ADOPTING THE BUDGETS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021; 
AUTHORIZING BUDGET AMENDMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has, prior to the fifteenth (15th) day in June, 2020, 
submitted to the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Rolling Hills Community Development 
District (“District”) proposed budgets (“Proposed Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 
1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2021 (“Fiscal Year 2020/2021”) along with an explanatory and 
complete financial plan for each fund of the District, pursuant to the provisions of Section 
190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at least sixty (60) days prior to the adoption of the Proposed Budget, the 
District filed a copy of the Proposed Budget with the local governing authorities having 
jurisdiction over the area included in the District pursuant to the provisions of Section 
190.008(2)(b), Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board set a public hearing thereon and caused notice of such public 
hearing to be given by publication pursuant to Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District Manager posted the Proposed Budget on the District’s website at 
least two days before the public hearing; and  

 
 WHEREAS, Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes, requires that, prior to October 1st of 
each year, the Board, by passage of the Annual Appropriation Resolution, shall adopt a budget 
for the ensuing fiscal year and appropriate such sums of money as the Board deems necessary to 
defray all expenditures of the District during the ensuing fiscal year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has prepared a Proposed Budget, whereby the budget 
shall project the cash receipts and disbursements anticipated during a given time period, 
including reserves for contingencies for emergency or other unanticipated expenditures during 
the fiscal year. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. BUDGET 
 

a.  The Board has reviewed the Proposed Budget, a copy of which is on file with the 
office of the District Manager and at the District’s Local Records Office, and hereby 
approves certain amendments thereto, as shown in Section 2 below. 



 
b.  The Proposed Budget, attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” as amended by the Board, 

is hereby adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 190.008(2)(a), 
Florida Statutes (“Adopted Budget”), and incorporated herein by reference; 
provided, however, that the comparative figures contained in the Adopted Budget 
may be subsequently revised as deemed necessary by the District Manager to 
reflect actual revenues and expenditures. 

 
c.  The Adopted Budget, as amended, shall be maintained in the office of the District 

Manager and at the District’s Local Records Office and identified as “The Budget 
for the Rolling Hills Community Development District for the Fiscal Year Ending 
September 30, 2021.” 

 
d. The Adopted Budget shall be posted by the District Manager on the District’s 

official website within thirty (30) days after adoption, and shall remain on the 
website for at least 2 years.   

 
 SECTION 2. APPROPRIATIONS 
 
 There is hereby appropriated out of the revenues of the District, for Fiscal Year 
2020/2021, the sum of $________________ to be raised by the levy of assessments and/or 
otherwise, which sum is deemed by the Board to be necessary to defray all expenditures of the 
District during said budget year, to be divided and appropriated in the following fashion: 
 

GENERAL FUND     $__________________ 
 
DEBT SERVICE FUND (SERIES 2015A-1)  $__________________ 
 
DEBT SERVICE FUND (SERIES 2015A-2)  $__________________ 
 
DEBT SERVICE FUND (SERIES 2015A-3)  $__________________ 
 

 TOTAL ALL FUNDS     $__________________ 
 
 SECTION 3. BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 
 Pursuant to Section 189.016, Florida Statutes, the District at any time within Fiscal Year 
2020/2021 or within 60 days following the end of the Fiscal Year 2020/2021 may amend its 
Adopted Budget for that fiscal year as follows: 
 

a. The Board may authorize an increase or decrease in line item appropriations 
within a fund by motion recorded in the minutes if the total appropriations of the 
fund do not increase. 

 



b. The District Manager or Treasurer may authorize an increase or decrease in line 
item appropriations within a fund if the total appropriations of the fund do not 
increase and if the aggregate change in the original appropriation item does not 
exceed $10,000 or 10% of the original appropriation. 

 
c. By resolution, the Board may increase any appropriation item and/or fund to 

reflect receipt of any additional unbudgeted monies and make the corresponding 
change to appropriations or the unappropriated balance. 

 
d. Any other budget amendments shall be adopted by resolution and consistent with 

Florida law. 
 
 The District Manager or Treasurer must establish administrative procedures to ensure 
that any budget amendments are in compliance with this Section 3 and Section 189.016, Florida 
Statutes, among other applicable laws.  Among other procedures, the District Manager or 
Treasurer must ensure that any amendments to budget under subparagraphs c. and d. above are 
posted on the District’s website within 5 days after adoption and remain on the website for at 
least 2 years.   
 

SECTION 4.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
adoption.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of August, 2020.  
 
ATTEST:      ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
              
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



RESOLUTION 2020-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT MAKING A DETERMINATION OF BENEFIT 
AND IMPOSING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021; 
PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION AND ENFORCEMENT OF SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO PENALTIES AND INTEREST 
THEREON; CERTIFYING AN ASSESSMENT ROLL; PROVIDING FOR AMENDMENTS 
TO THE ASSESSMENT ROLL; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Rolling Hills Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit of 
special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, for the 
purpose of providing, operating and maintaining infrastructure improvements, facilities and 
services to the lands within the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is located in Clay County, Florida (“County”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has constructed or acquired various infrastructure improvements 
and provides certain services in accordance with the District’s adopted capital improvement plan 
and Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the District hereby determines to 
undertake various operations and maintenance and other activities described in the District’s 
budget (“Adopted Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 
30, 2021 (“Fiscal Year 2020/2021”), attached hereto as Exhibit “A;” and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District must obtain sufficient funds to provide for the operation and 
maintenance of the services and facilities provided by the District as described in the District’s 
Adopted Budget; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of such services, facilities, and operations is a benefit to lands 
within the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, provides that the District may impose special 
assessments on benefitted lands within the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to proceed with the imposition of the 
special assessments for operations and maintenance in the amount set forth in the Adopted 
Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has previously levied an assessment for debt service, which the 

District desires to collect for Fiscal Year 2020/2021; and 
 



 WHEREAS, Chapter 197, Florida Statutes, provides a mechanism pursuant to which such 
special assessments may be placed on the tax roll and collected by the local tax collector 
(“Uniform Method”), and the District has previously authorized the use of the Uniform Method 
by, among other things, entering into agreements with the Property Appraiser and Tax Collector 
of the County for that purpose; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to adopt the assessment roll 
(“Assessment Roll”) attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “B,” and to certify the portion of the 
Assessment Roll related to certain developed property (“Tax Roll Property”) to the County Tax 
Collector pursuant to the Uniform Method and to directly collect the portion of the Assessment 
Roll relating to the remaining property (“Direct Collect Property”), all as set forth in Exhibit “B;” 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to permit the District Manager to 
amend the Assessment Roll adopted herein, including that portion certified to the County Tax 
Collector by this Resolution, as the Property Appraiser updates the property roll for the County, 
for such time as authorized by Florida law. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. BENEFIT & ALLOCATION FINDINGS.  The provision of the services, facilities, and 
operations as described in Exhibit “A” confers a special and peculiar benefit to the lands within 
the District, which benefit exceeds or equals the cost of the assessments. The allocation of the 
assessments to the specially benefitted lands is shown in Exhibits “A” and “B,” and is hereby 
found to be fair and reasonable. 
 
 SECTION 2. ASSESSMENT IMPOSITION.  Pursuant to Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida 
Statutes, and using the procedures authorized by Florida law for the levy and collection of special 
assessments, a special assessment for operation and maintenance is hereby imposed and levied 
on benefitted lands within the District and in accordance with Exhibits “A” and “B.”  The lien of 
the special assessments for operations and maintenance imposed and levied by this Resolution 
shall be effective upon passage of this Resolution.  Moreover, pursuant to Section 197.3632(4), 
Florida Statutes, the lien amount shall serve as the “maximum rate” authorized by law for 
operation and maintenance assessments . 
 
 SECTION 3. COLLECTION AND ENFORCEMENT; PENALTIES; INTEREST.   
 

A. Tax Roll Assessments.  The operations and maintenance special assessments and 
previously levied debt service special assessments imposed on the Tax Roll Property 
shall be collected at the same time and in the same manner as County taxes in 
accordance with the Uniform Method, as set forth in Exhibits “A” and “B.”   
 



B. Direct Bill Assessments.  The operations and maintenance special assessments and 
previously levied debt service special assessments imposed on the Direct Collect 
Property shall be collected directly by the District in accordance with Florida law, as 
set forth in Exhibits “A” and “B.” Assessments directly collected by the District are 
due in full on December 1, 2020.  However, to the extent permitted by law, the 
operation and maintenance assessments due may be paid in several partial, deferred 
payments and according to the following schedule:  25% due no later than October 1, 
2020, 25% due no later than January 1, 2021, 25% due no later than April 1, 2021, and 
25% due no later than July 2021.  Similarly, the debt service special assessments due 
may be paid in several partial, deferred payments and according to the following 
schedule 35% due no later than December 1, 2020, 35% due no later than April 1, 
2021, and 30% due no later than September 1, 2021.  In the event that an assessment 
payment is not made in accordance with the schedule stated above, the whole 
assessment – including any remaining partial, deferred payments for Fiscal Year 
2020/2021, shall immediately become due and payable; shall accrue interest, 
penalties in the amount of one percent (1%) per month, and all costs of collection and 
enforcement; and shall either be enforced pursuant to a foreclosure action, or, at the 
District’s sole discretion, collected pursuant to the Uniform Method on a future tax 
bill, which amount may include penalties, interest, and costs of collection and 
enforcement. Any prejudgment interest on delinquent assessments shall accrue at 
the rate of any bonds secured by the assessments, or at the statutory prejudgment 
interest rate, as applicable.  In the event an assessment subject to direct collection by 
the District shall be delinquent, the District Manager and District Counsel, without 
further authorization by the Board, may initiate foreclosure proceedings pursuant to 
Chapter 170 of the Florida Statutes or other applicable law to collect and enforce the 
whole assessment, as set forth herein.   
 

C. Future Collection Methods.  The decision to collect special assessments by any 
particular method – e.g., on the tax roll or by direct bill – does not mean that such 
method will be used to collect special assessments in future years, and the District 
reserves the right in its sole discretion to select collection methods in any given year, 
regardless of past practices.   

 
 SECTION 4. ASSESSMENT ROLL.  The District's Assessment Roll, attached to this Resolution 
as Exhibit “B,” is hereby certified for collection.  That portion of the District’s Assessment Roll 
which includes the Tax Roll Property is hereby certified to the County Tax Collector and shall be 
collected by the County Tax Collector in the same manner and time as County taxes.  The 
proceeds therefrom shall be paid to the District. 
 
 SECTION 5. ASSESSMENT ROLL AMENDMENT.  The District Manager shall keep apprised of 
all updates made to the County property roll by the Property Appraiser after the date of this 
Resolution, and shall amend the District’s Assessment Roll in accordance with any such updates, 
for such time as authorized by Florida law, to the County property roll.  After any amendment of 
the Assessment Roll, the District Manager shall file the updates in the District records. 



 
 SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Resolution, or any part thereof. 
 
 SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon the passage and 
adoption of this Resolution by the Board. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of August, 2020. 
 
ATTEST:      ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
_____________________________          
Secretary / Assistant Secretary   Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Exhibit A: Budget 
Exhibit B: Assessment Roll (Uniform Method) 

Assessment Roll (Direct Collect) 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 

 1 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT REGARDING USE OF DISTRICT'S AMENITY COMPLEX FACILITIES 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is effective as of August ______, 2020, and is by and 
between: 
 

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, with 
offices at 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (the 
"District"), and 
 
THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA (“School Board”) FOR THE 
USE AND BENEFIT OF THE CLAY HIGH SCHOOL SWIM TEAM (“Swim Team”), 
900 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 (the School Board and the 
Swim Team together with the District, the “Parties”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, it is the purpose and intent of this Agreement to permit and authorize the 
School Board and the District to make the most efficient use of their respective resources, 
authority and capabilities by enabling them to cooperate on the basis of mutual advantage and to 
achieve the results provided in this Agreement pursuant to Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, 
known as the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act of 1969 (“Cooperation Act”); and 

              
 WHEREAS, it is the purpose of the Cooperation Act to provide a means by which the 
School Board and the District may exercise their respective privileges and authority which they 
may have separately, but which pursuant to this Agreement and Cooperation Act they may 
exercise collectively; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the District is a special-purpose unit of local government established pursuant 
to and governed by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the District owns, operates and maintains certain recreational facilities, 
including a competition pool (“Aquatic Facilities”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the School Board, on behalf of the Swim Team, approached the District and 
expressed desires to make use of the Aquatic Facilities for practices and the hosting of swim 
meets; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is willing to allow the Swim Team to make use of the Aquatic 
Facilities for practices and swim meets provided that such use does not impede the operation of 
the Aquatic Facilities and provided that the Swim Team complies with the provisions set forth 
herein, including but not limited to the special provisions for usage during the COVID-19 
pandemic; and 
  



 

 2 

 WHEREAS, the District has determined that providing the School Board with the ability to 
use the competition pool is a benefit to the District, is a proper public purpose, and makes 
appropriate use of the Aquatic Facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District and the School Board warrant and agree that they have all right, 
power and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement. 
   

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1. RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference 
are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 2. TERM.  This Agreement shall be effective on or about August 24, 2020 or 
upon execution by the Parties, whichever is later and shall terminate on November 30, 2020, 
unless terminated early in accordance with Section 8 below.  However, the covenants and 
obligations of School Board contained in this Agreement shall survive termination for acts and 
omissions which occurred during the effective term of this Agreement.  
 
 SECTION 3. USAGE BY SWIM TEAM.   
 

A. Usage; Generally. The District hereby grants to the Swim Team a license to use 
the Aquatic Facilities for practices and meets in accordance with the schedules attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, as coordinated between the District’s representative and the Swim Team 
representative, and with the guidelines provided in Exhibit B, both of which are incorporated 
herein by this reference (“License”).  The License to use the Aquatic Facilities is limited to the 
hours provided in such schedules.  In consideration of said use of the Aquatic Facilities, School 
Board and Swim Team agree to the following conditions: 

i. Access to the Aquatic Facilities is limited to the competition pool, the pool 
decks, parking lot serving the Aquatic Facilities and designated restrooms in case 
of emergencies.  No other use of, or access to, the District’s recreational facilities 
is permitted.   

ii. The District hereby designates the District Manager or his or her designee 
as the District’s representative.   

iii. Swim Team’s use of Aquatic Facilities shall be in conjunction with the use 
of the Aquatic Facilities by other members of the public and by other swim teams, 
if any, and the Swim Team use shall not interfere with the operation of the 
Aquatic Facilities as a public improvement.   

iv. All use of the Aquatic Facilities shall be subject to the policies and 
regulations of the District, including but not limited to the Rolling Hills Facilities 
and Amenity Policies, the Guidelines for the Swim Team Usage and Guidelines 
for Swim Team Meets, which are incorporated herein and attached as Exhibit B.   



 

 3 

v. The District shall have the right to take such actions as are necessary to 
preserve the health, safety and welfare of its residents, landowners, lands and 
facilities.   

vi. Persons identified as Coaches by the Swim Team, and any such Coach’s 
minor children, may participate on the Swim Team and make use of the Aquatic 
Facilities during Swim Team practices and meets, regardless of the Coach’s status 
as a paid user of the facilities, subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement.  

vii. The Swim Team shall (i) provide one (1) time payment of three hundred 
dollars and zero cents ($300.00) to the District.  If requested by the District, Swim 
Team shall (ii) provide a minimum of five volunteers for one resident event as 
arranged by the District; and (iii) provide at least ten (10) volunteer hours each 
week during the term of this Agreement (which may include resident events 
referenced above).  

B. Usage During the COVID-19 Pandemic. Effective immediately and until the 
conclusion of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Swim Team must implement the following 
measures:  

i. The Swim Team is responsible for enforcing social distancing among its 
participants, consistent with all federal, state, and local recommendations and/or 
requirements, guidelines, and best practices, including but not limited to those 
promulgated by the State of Florida through executive orders or otherwise, by the 
Center for Disease Control and Prevention, and by USA Swimming, Inc., the 
latter of which are available at the following links:  

1. https://www.usaswimming.org/home/covid-news 

2. https://cdn.swimswam.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/facility-
reopening-plan-guidelines.pdf  

ii. The Swim Team shall arrange the swimmers per lane to allow proper 
social distancing, while complying with the aforementioned guidelines and 
requirements, as depicted in Exhibit C.  If participants are unable to comply with 
the guidelines, Swim Team shall limit swimmers per lane to that required for 
compliance with stated regulations, which may change from time to time. 

iii. All individuals associated with the Swim Team must submit a waiver in 
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit D before accessing the District’s 
Aquatic Facilities. Allowing use without an executed waiver is grounds for 
termination of this Agreement. This waiver is in addition to any other waivers 
required by the School Board, Swim Team or the District. 

iv. Swim Team acknowledges and understands that the  and Swim Team 
agrees to implement a safe and reasonable means to facilitate the entry and exit of 
swimmers between practice groups.  



 

 4 

v. Parents, guests and other spectators shall be prohibited from the Aquatic 
Facilities during practices and meets, so long as COVID-19 conditions continue 
and there is a public health emergency declared by federal, state or local 
governments.   

vi. Before allowing any individual to access the District’s Aquatic Facilities 
or other facilities, the Swim Team shall ask the following screening questions, 
and if the answer to any is “yes,” prevent that individual from accessing the 
Aquatic Facilities or other facilities: 

1. Do you have or have you had in the past 48 hours a cough, 
shortness of breath, fever (100.4+), chills, repeated shaking with chills, 
muscle pain, headache, sore throat, new loss/change in taste/smell or 
diarrhea? 

2. Have you been in close contact (within 6 ft for at least 5 minutes) 
with anyone with the beforementioned symptoms? 

3. Have you been exposed to anyone who tested positive for COVID-
19 in the past 14 days? 

4. Have you been exposed to anyone who is currently waiting for 
COVID-19 test results? 

5. Have you traveled internationally or been on a cruise during the 
past 14 days? 

6. Have you traveled to an out-of-state hotspot or to an in-state 
hotspot (Miami-Dade, Broward or Palm Beach counties) during the past 
14 days? 

vii. In the event that any individual associated with the Swim Team who has 
used the District’s Aquatic Facilities or other facilities tests positive for COVID-
19, the Swim Team shall immediately notify the District and cease all use of the 
Aquatic Facilities or other facilities until the District notifies the Swim Team that 
use may resume. 

viii. Swimmers shall show up changed and ready to swim and may not change 
at the District’s facilities. Use granted herein is limited to the pool deck and the 
pool and no use of locker room or similar indoor facilities is permitted. Swimmers 
shall bring their own equipment and not use shared equipment. 

 SECTION 4. CARE OF THE PROPERTY.  School Board agrees to use all due care to 
protect the property of the District, its residents and landowners from damage, and to require any 
meet participants invited to the Aquatic Facilities to do the same.  School Board agrees that it 
shall assume responsibility for any and all damage to the District's facilities or lands as a result of 
School Board's use under this Agreement other than damage which may be attributable to 
ordinary wear and tear as determined by the District.  In the event that any damage to the 



 

 5 

District's facilities or lands occurs, the District shall notify School Board of such damage and 
shall allow the School Board’s agents or employees the opportunity to examine the damage prior 
to repair.  Swim Team agrees that the District may make whatever arrangements necessary, in its 
sole discretion, to promptly make any such repairs as is necessary to preserve the health, safety 
and welfare of the District's lands, facilities, residents and landowners.  Swim Team agrees to 
reimburse the District for any such repairs within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice from 
the District reflecting the cost of the repairs made under this Section. 
 
 SECTION 5. ENFORCEMENT.  A default by either Party under this Agreement shall 
entitle the other Party to all remedies available at law or in equity, which shall include, but not be 
limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief and specific performance.  Notwithstanding 
this, the School Board’s right to recover damages from the District on any and all claims of any 
type shall be limited in all instances to no more than five-hundred dollars and zero cents 
($500.00). 
 
 SECTION 6.   INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE.  The Swim Team agrees to 
indemnify and hold harmless the District and its officers, agents and employees from any and all 
liability, claims, actions, suits or demands by any person, corporation or other entity for injuries, 
death or property damage of any nature, arising out of, or in connection with, wholly or in part 
by, the use of the District's facilities and lands by the Swim Team and its guests, including 
litigation or any appellate proceedings, both in and outside court proceedings, with respect 
thereto, and specifically including but not limited to claims arising out of or connected to alleged 
or actual exposure to the COVID-19 virus.   
 

Notwithstanding any terms of this Agreement to the contrary, the Parties agree that 
nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of either the School Board’s or the District's 
sovereign immunity or limits of liability beyond any statutory limited waiver of immunity or 
limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28, 
Florida Statutes, or other statute.  The School Board, subject to the School Board’s self-insured 
retention, agrees and covenants to provide liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) applicable to bodily injury, sickness or death in any one occurrence and One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for loss or damage to property in any one occurrence and shall 
provide evidence of such insurance in the form of an insurance certificate prior to commencing 
use of the District’s facilities under this Agreement.  Additionally, the School Board agrees that 
its policy may not be canceled during the term of this Agreement without at least thirty (30) days 
written notice to the District. 

 
Notwithstanding any language in this section to the contrary, nothing in this 

indemnification agreement shall be construed or interpreted to increase the scope or dollar limit 
of the Swim Team’s or the School Board’s liability beyond that which is set forth in Section 
768.28, Florida Statutes, or to otherwise waive the Swim Team’s/School Board’s sovereign 
immunity, or to require the Swim Team/School Board to indemnify District or any other person, 
corporation, or legal entity of any kind or nature whatsoever for injury or loss resulting from any 
acts other than the negligent acts of the Swim Team or the School Board or its agents or 
employees.  The Swim Team and the School Board shall not indemnify any party for attorney’s 
fees or costs other than those court costs which are set forth by Florida Statute or other Florida 
law as recoverable costs of court.  



 

 6 

  
 SECTION 7. RECOVERY OF COSTS AND FEES.  In the event either Party is required to 
enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the substantially prevailing party 
shall be entitled to recover from the other party all costs incurred, excluding reasonable 
attorneys' fees. 
 
 SECTION 8. TERMINATION.  Both Parties shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement at any time without cause with written notice.  However, the covenants and 
obligations of Swim Team contained in this Agreement shall survive termination for acts and 
omissions which occurred during the effective term of the agreement.  
 
 SECTION 9. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This instrument, together with the attached 
Exhibits, shall constitute the final and complete expression of the agreement between the Parties 
relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 10.  AMENDMENT.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing that is executed by both Parties 
hereto. 
 
 SECTION 11.  ASSIGNMENT.  Neither the District nor the Swim Team may assign their 
rights, duties, or obligations under this Agreement or any monies to become due hereunder 
without the prior written approval of the other.  Any attempted assignment without such written 
approval shall be void. 
 
 SECTION 12.  APPLICABLE LAW.  This Agreement and the provisions contained herein 
shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.  The 
Parties consent to and agree that the exclusive venue for any litigation arising out of or related to 
this Agreement shall be in a court of appropriate jurisdiction, in and for Clay County, Florida. 
 
 SECTION 13. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications 
hereunder ("Notices") shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by overnight delivery 
service or First Class Mail, postage prepaid, to the Parties, as follows: 
 
 1. If to Swim Team:  Clay High School Swim Team 
      2025 Highway 16 West 

Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043   
 Attn: Carol McDougall, Swim Team Coach 

   
  With a copy to:  J. Bruce Bicker 
      Attorney to Clay County School Board 
      900 Walnut Street 
      Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 
 
 2. If to District:   Rolling Hills Community  
      Development District 
      475 West Town Place, Suite 114 



 

 7 

St. Augustine, FL 32092    
 Attn: Jim Oliver, District Manager 

       
  With a copy to:  Hopping Green & Sams, P.A. 
      119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 
      Tallahassee, Florida  32301 
      Attn:  Katie S. Buchanan, District Counsel 
 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received 
only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the 
place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  
If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-
business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  
Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be 
regarded as business days.  Counsel for the District and counsel for the Swim Team may deliver 
Notice on behalf of the District and the Swim Team.  Any party or other person to whom Notices 
are to be sent or copied shall notify the other parties and addressees of any change in name or 
address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to 
the parties and addressees set forth herein. 
 
 SECTION 14.  SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or 
unenforceable. 
 
 SECTION 15. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly 
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the District and the Swim Team, both the 
District and the Swim Team have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the 
District and the Swim Team have full power and authority to comply with the terms and 
provisions of this instrument. 
 
 SECTION 16. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or 
construction of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 

[Signatures on next page] 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 8 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed and sealed this Agreement on the 
day and year first written above. 
 
ATTEST: ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
               
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
         
 
WITNESS:      THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY 

COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
        
 
             
       Chairperson 
Printed Name 
 
 
Exhibit A Swim Team Practice and Meet Schedules 
Exhibit B Guidelines for Swim Team Usage 
Exhibit C USA Swimming Lap Lane Social Distancing Guide 
Exhibit D Form of Waiver 



 

 9 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 

Clay High School Varsity Swim Team Schedule 
2020 

Regular Practices will begin on Tuesday, August 25th from 2:30-4:30pm everyday (Tue-Fri) except 
on days we have a swim meet. 
 

 

Date:   What & Where: 
 

September 10  Orange Park (Home) 
 

September 15   Episcopal (Home) 
 

September 22  Pedro Menendez & Bishop Kenny (Home) 
 

September 26  FSPA High School Invitational, Stuart, FL 
 

September 29  Ridgeview (Home) 
 

October 6   Oakleaf  (Home) 
 

October 15  Palatka & Middleburg – (Home) 
 

October 25-31  District Meet  - Cecil Field Aquatic Center – Jacksonville,  FL 
 

November 1-6  Regionals Location TBA 
 

November 14  State Meet Sailfish Aquatic Athletic Center – 
Stuart, FL 
 
**Note –  Swimmers will NOT be able to swim ANY regular practices until ALL PAPERWORK & 
CLEARANCES  has been completed and cleared by the Clay High Athletic Director. 
 
 
 

Coach Carol MacDougall:                                 Coach Chad Rix 
Cell: (904) 631-0505                                           Cell: (502) 595-7266 
e-mail – cmmacdougall@bellsouth.net    e-mail: chadwick.rix@myoneclay.net 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 10 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Guidelines for Swim Team Usage 
 

1. All Swim Team usage of Aquatic Facilities must be pre-scheduled with District staff 
prior to the beginning of practices. 

 
2. Usage of the District facilities is limited to the Aquatic Facilities named in the Agreement 

and this exhibit ONLY. The Swim Team shall not have access to any other District’s 
recreational facilities, including but not limited to the clubhouse. 

3. Spectators that are not District residents may be present and are allowed to attend Swim 
Team competitions subject to the conditions of this Agreement. However, the District, in 
its sole discretion, reserves the right to limit the number of such spectators (1) should the 
Aquatic Facilities exceed then-effective occupancy capacity or (2) should it be necessary 
to protect the health, safety or welfare of the District, its landowners, residents or its 
guests or the District property.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, parents, guests and other 
spectators are prohibited from attending competitions and meets so long as COVID-19 
conditions continue and there is a public health emergency declared by federal, state or 
local governments. 

4. Spectators and/or guests that are not District residents shall not be present during swim 
practices. 

5. Swim Team is responsible for ensuring that Swim Team members, visiting teams, guests 
and spectators, as applicable, abide by all District rules and policies, including but not 
limited to COVID-19 sanitation, social distancing and other requirements. 

6. No Swim Team practices may be held on weekends or on days or times that the family 
pool is closed UNLESS the practices are held prior to facility opening to the public, or 
otherwise as permitted by the District.  On those days, practice will end by 11:00 am and 
the Swim Team shall be responsible straightening any chairs, disposing of trash in trash 
receptacles and general clean-up after each practice, returning the Aquatic Facilities to 
the same condition as before the practice started. Other restrictions may apply during the 
COVID-19 public health emergency, or as otherwise required by the District. 

7. Except with the prior approval of the District, no Swim Team competitions may be held 
on weekends or on days that the family pool is closed, unless otherwise as permitted by 
the District.  Swim Team shall be responsible for straightening any chairs, disposing of 
trash in trash receptacles and general clean-up after each meet, returning the Aquatic 
Facilities to the same condition as before the meet started.  Other restrictions may apply 
during the COVID-19 public health emergency, or as otherwise required by the District. 

8. No outside vendors will be allowed to sell food at any time.   

9. Swim Team practices may use all but one lane, which will remain reserved for District 
residents. 



 

 11 

10. Swim Team roster must be provided to the District 15 days prior to practices beginning 
or as soon as practicable.  Roster must include all coaching staff. 

11. The District reserves the right to retain a security guard or guards for the swim meets at 
Swim Team’s expense if the District, in its sole and unrestricted discretion, deems it 
desirable. 
 

12. Swim Team shall be responsible for automobile parking on swim meet days.  Swim 
meets are expected to surpass the District’s parking lot capacity, and the Swim Team 
shall have volunteers available to manage such overflow parking.  Swim Team Members, 
visiting teams or spectators are prohibited from parking on private property. 

13. The Agreement with the District, the School Board and the Swim Team must be signed 
and provided to the District 15 days prior to practices beginning or as soon as practicable. 

14. Proof of insurance must be provided to the District prior to practices beginning or as soon 
as practicable. 



 

 12 

EXHIBIT C 

Lap Lane Social Distancing Guide 
 

 

SOCIAL DISTANCING PRACTICE LAYOUT 
i-u~u-i 25-YARD, 6-LANE POOL 

4 t~: ~--- ---------------II 

Ill Al iii ~--- ------- ---~ II " 
a ,I ~--- ------- ----Im ,Ii 

a Al 

12SWIMMERS 



 

 13 

 

Ill 

II 

SOCIAL DISTANCING PRACTICE LAYOUT 
25-YARD, 6-LANE POOL 

Ii 18'/one £ width --- ·=- - - - - - ----- -1 
~-- ·=- c-:=-::::-=- - ------ -1 

a 11 ~ --- •:::i--- - - - - - ------■1-a 
ii 

lBSWIMMERS 



 

 14 

 

usA SOCIAL DISTANCING PRACTICE LAYOUT 
SW•MM"'O 25-YARD, ON-DECK, SIT DOWN SLIDE SETS IN CIRCLES 

SwlmmH1 moWoNI , fHt cport. /llork d« k Elld of u,t ctlmb out ond go to 
rih Nftc/t with coloffl/ dwt t~. osslgnt'd t.POf. 

UM conn or OChfr bonif.rs to ht(p wieh 
wpotatJon . dfctftf'f'dJ CO~wiw~ 
to occommodor. , , of soc.lot dbfonc• . 



 

 15 

EXHIBIT D 

WAIVER OF LIABILITY AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 

(“ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND RELEASE”) 

I acknowledge that I have freely chosen to have my child participate in certain recreational activities (the 
“Activities”) sponsored by the Clay High School Swim Team (“Swim Team”) at the Rolling Hills 
Community Development District (“District”) amenity facilities (“Facilities”).  I understand that the 
District and the Swim Team have taken reasonable precautions to protect parents, participants, staff, and 
spectators from exposure to COVID-19 during these Activities. Those measures include, but are not 
limited to, verbal screening of attendees and staff and reasonable enforcement and implementation of 
social distancing and sanitization.  

I agree that by participating in the Activities, I will fully comply with all such measures or face ejection 
from the Facilities. I further acknowledge that my attendance may result in risk of exposure to COVID-19 
in spite of the above measures, and I assume any such risk that may arise therefrom. I accept full 
responsibility for all medical expenses for any injuries, illness, or exposure I might receive by reason of 
my attendance and/or participation.  

By signing this Acknowledgment and Release, I also hereby release the District and its Supervisors, 
officers, staff, employees, agents, assigns and volunteers (“Released Parties”) from and against any and 
all claims, demands, actions, complaints, suits or other forms of liability that any of them may sustain 
arising out of or related to, wholly or in part by, my or my child(ren)’s (a) participation in the Activities, 
(b) failure to comply with the measures imposed by the Clay County School Board, the Swim Team or 
the District, (c) failure to comply with local, state, and federal laws and policies, procedures, effective 
guidance regarding COVID-19, and the District amenity rules and policies; or (d) any damage, injury, or 
illness caused by me or my child(ren) (together, the “Released Claims”). 

I also agree to indemnify and hold harmless the Released Parties from the Released Claims, including any 
and all related costs, attorneys’ fees, liabilities, settlements, and/or judgments. I confirm that I have 
carefully read this Acknowledgement and Release, fully understand the above conditions, and agree to its 
terms knowingly and voluntarily. I also confirm that I am the parent or legal guardian of the child(ren) 
named below and that I am 18 years of age or older. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed this Acknowledgement and Release on this _______ day of 
_______________________, 2020.  
 

SIGNATURE: _______________________________________________  

NAME: _____________________________________________________ 

NAMES OF MINOR CHILD(REN): ______________________________ 

____________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________ 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



RESOLUTION 2020-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING THE ANNUAL MEETING 
SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Rolling Hills Community Development District (the “District”) is a local unit 
of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
and situated entirely within Clay County, Florida; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the District is required by Section 189.015, Florida Statutes, to file quarterly, 
semi-annually, or annually a schedule (including date, time, and location) of its regular meetings 
with local governing authorities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, further, in accordance with the above-referenced statute, the District shall also 
publish quarterly, semi-annually, or annually the District’s regular meeting schedule in a 
newspaper of general paid circulation in the county in which the District is located; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board desires to adopt the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 annual meeting schedule 
attached as Exhibit A. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
SECTION 1. The Fiscal Year 2020-2021 annual meeting schedule attached hereto and 

incorporated by reference herein as Exhibit A is hereby approved and shall be published in 
accordance with the requirements of Florida law and also provided to applicable governing 
authorities. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of August, 2020. 

 
ATTEST:  ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 

Exhibit A:  Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Annual Meeting Schedule  



Exhibit A 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING DATES 
ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 
 

The Board of Supervisors of the Rolling Hills Community Development District will hold their 
regularly scheduled public meetings for Fiscal Year 2021 at 6:00 PM at the Rolling Hills Amenity 
Center, 3212 Bradley Creek Parkway, Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 on the second Tuesday 
of each month as follows unless otherwise noted: 
 

October 13, 2020 
December 8, 2020 
February 9, 2021 
April 12, 2021 
June 8, 2021 
August 10, 2121 

 
The meetings are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provision of Florida 
Law for Community Development Districts. The meetings may be continued to a date, time, and place to 
be specified on the record at the meeting.  A copy of the agenda for these meetings may be obtained from 
c/o Governmental Management Services, 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
or by calling (904) 940-5850. 
 
There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors or staff will participate by telephone. Pursuant to 
provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations at this 
meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the District Office at (904) 940-5850 
at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida 
Relay Service by dialing 7-1-1, or 1-800-955-8771 (TTY) / 1-800-955-8770 (Voice), for aid in contacting the 
District Office.   
 
A person who decides to appeal any decision made at the meeting with respect to any matter considered 
at the meeting is advised that person will need a record of the proceedings and that accordingly, the 
person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony 
and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 
 
James Oliver 
District Manager 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



Rolling Hills Community Develop1nent District 

,Date: 

To: 

From: 

Re: 

General 

3212 Bradley Creek Parkway · Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

Memorandum 

Aug 11111, 2020 

Rich Whetsel, Operations Director 

Freddie Oca, Facility Manager 
Chris Hall, Operations Manager 

Rolling Hills CDD - Monthly Operations Report:May-July 

• www .RollingHi llsCDD .com website is up and running; documents such as annual audits , 
meeting minutes and aimual budgets will be updated as they become available. 

• Eight (8) sets of access cards were issued . 
• An off-duty Police Officer is continuing to patrol Rolling Hills twice a week. 

Maintenance: 

• Orange Environmental Services conducted their quarterly inspection and treatment. 
• Mechanical Solutions conducted their quarterly inspection on the AC units and made 

the needed repairs . 
• Mechanical Solutions has replaced the compressor for the AC unit upstairs 
• Southeast Fitness performed the preventative maintenance and made repairs of the 

fitness equipment 
• Atlantic Securities has repaired the card access unit 

Riverside Management Services has completed the following: 

• 4ft tile indicators have been installed at the pool 
• Safety buoys have been replaced and installed at the pool 
• Covid-19 signs have been installed around the pool deck and amenity center 
• Pool furniture has been isolated and secured 
• Repaired the pavers on the pool deck 
• Lights in the pool have been repaired 



e Tiles on the pool deck have been repaired 
e The pavilion back wall has been repainted 
,. The park locations are being policed weekly for debris 
" All District Lakes are being inspected and cleaned bi-weekly. 
" Lake water out falls are inspected and cleaned on a monthly basis to ensure proper 

water flow. 
" Irrigation inspections and needed repairs are being completed on a monthly basis. 
,. An inspection of the Amenity Center lighting was performed. 
,. Trash can liners are being changed on a weekly basis. 

Resident Requests/Comments: 

Should you have any questions or comments regarding the above information, please feel 
free to contact Freddie at (904) 338-5723 or Rich at (904) 759-8923. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



ASSETS: 

CASH - Operating 

INVESTMENTS 
Series 2015 A-1 

Reserve 
Revenue 
Prepayment A1 

Series 2015 A-2 
Reserve 
Revenue 
Prepayment 

Series 2015 A-3 
Reserve 
Revenue 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES: 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

FUND BALANCES: 

RESTRICTED FOR DEBT SERVICE 
UNASSIGNED 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES 

Rolling Hills 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET 
June 30, 2020 

Governmental Fund Tyges 
Debt 

General Service 

$287,494 

$90,706 
$59,443 

$0 

$100,000 
$42,935 

$0 

$4,571 
$86,165 

$287,494 $383,821 

$31,401 

$383,821 
$256,093 

$287,494 $383,821 

Page 1 

Totals 
(Memorandum Only) 

$287,494 

$90,706 
$59,443 

$0 

$100,000 
$42,935 

$0 

$4,571 
$86,165 

$671,315 

$31,401 

$383,821 
$256,093 

$671,315 



Rolling Hills 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

GENERAL FUND 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Period Ended June 30, 2020 

ADOPTED PRORATED 

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL 

DESCRIPTION FY 2020 THRU 06/30/20 THRU 06/30/20 VARIANCE 

REVENUES: 

Assessments - Platted Lots (Tax Roll} $348,975 $348,975 $349,675 $700 

Assessments - Platted Lots (Direct} $269,409 $202,057 $202,057 $0 

Swim & Tennis Revenue $800 $600 $0 ($600) 

Facility Rental Fees $3,500 $2,625 $1,900 ($725) 

Non-Resident Memberships $1,980 $1,485 $0 ($1,485} 

TOTAL REVENUES $624,664 $555 742 $553,632 ($2,110) 

EXPENDITURES: 

ADMINISTRATIVE: 
Supervisor Fees $6,000 $4,500 $2,400 $2,100 

FICA Taxes $459 $344 $184 $161 

Engineering Fees $10,000 $7,500 $0 $7,500 

Arbitrage $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $0 

Dissemination Agent $3,500 $2,625 $2,625 ($0) 

Assessment Roll $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0 

Attorney Fees $22,500 $16,875 $6,260 $10,615 

Annual Audit $3,800 $3,800 $3,800 $0 

Trustee $8,081 $8,081 $8,081 $0 

Management Fees $40,000 $30,000 $30,000 $0 

Computer Time $1,000 $750 $750 $0 

Website Compliance $2,500 $1,875 $1,875 $0 

Telephone $150 $113 $37 $76 

Postage $500 $375 $222 $153 

Printing & Binding $1,250 $938 $765 $172 

Travel & Per Diem $100 $75 $82 ($7) 

Insurance $8,427 $8,427 $8,227 $200 

Legal Advertising $1,000 $750 $616 $134 

Other Current Charges $1,500 $1,125 $974 $151 

Office Supplies $100 $75 $124 ($49) 

Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $175 $175 $0 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE $117 242 $94 603 $73 396 $21 207 

Page 2 



Rolling Hills 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

GENERAL FUND 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Period Ended June 30, 2020 

ADOPTED PRORATED 

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL 

DESCRIPTION FY2020 THRU 06/30/20 THRU 06/30/20 

EXPENDITURES: (continued) 

FIELD: 
Operations Management $20,500 $15,375 $15,375 

Utilities - Irrigation & Streetlights $35,000 $26,250 $22,696 

Repairs & Maintenance $40,000 $30,000 $21,699 

Landscape $73,000 $54,750 $54,496 

Landscape - Contingency $6,800 $5,100 $5,511 

Mulch $13,500 $10,125 $10,530 

Lake Maintenance $4,800 $3,600 $3,680 

Irrigation Repairs $7,500 $5,625 $2,771 

Miscellaneous $1,264 $948 $4,300 

TOTAL FIELD $202,364 $151,773 $141,058 

SWIM & TENNIS: 
Facility Management $53,533 $40,150 $40,150 

Pool Attendants $35,000 $26,250 $1,260 

Refuse Service $8,300 $6,225 $9,295 

Security $15,000 $11,250 $9,820 

Utilities $45,000 $33,750 $28,748 

Recreation Passes $1,000 $750 $0 

Repairs & Maintenance $40,000 $30,000 $35,641 

Janitorial $12,840 $9,630 $9,630 

Pool Maintenance $13,650 $10,238 $10,238 

Special Events $4,000 $3,000 $2,125 

Operating Supplies $6,000 $4,500 $3,412 

Pool Chemicals $9,000 $6,750 $8,073 

Permit $375 $375 $375 

Insurance $23,121 $23,121 $22,681 

Capital Reserve $38,239 $28,679 $0 

TOTAL SWIM & TENNIS $305,058 $234,668 $181,448 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $624,664 $481,043 $395,902 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures $0 $74,699 $157,730 

Net change in Fund Balance $0 $74,699 $157,730 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $0 $98,363 

FUND BALANCE - Ending $0 $256,093 

Page 3 

VARIANCE 

$0 

$3,554 

$8,301 

$254 

($411) 

($405) 

($80) 

$2,854 
($3,352) 

$10,715 

$0 
$24,990 

($3,070) 

$1,430 

$5,002 

$750 

($5,641) 
$0 

$0 
$875 

$1,088 

($1,323) 

$0 

$440 
$28,679 

$53 220 

$85,141 

$83 031 

$83,031 



Rolling Hills 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 2015 A-1 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Period Ended June 30, 2020 

ADOPTED PRORATED 

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL 

DESCRIPTION FY2020 THRU 06/30/20 THRU 06/30/20 

REVENUES: 

Assessments $174,001 $174,001 $174,350 

Interest Income $0 $0 $162 

TOTAL REVENUES $174 001 $174 001 $174 512 

EXPENDITURES: 

Interest Expense - 11/1 $53,192 $53,192 $53,192 

Special Call - 11/1 $0 $0 $5,000 

Interest Expense - 5/1 $53,192 $53,192 $53,056 

Principal Expense - 5/1 $65,000 $65,000 $70,000 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $171 384 $171,384 $181,248 

Excess ( deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures $2,617 $2,617 ($6,736) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $2,617 $2 617 ($6,736) 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $63,176 $156,885 

FUND BALANCE - Ending $65,793 $150,149 

Page 4 

VARIANCE 

$349 

$162 

$511 

$0 
($5,000) 

$136 
($5,000) 

($9,864) 

($9,353) 

($9,353) 



Rolling Hills 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
DEBT SERVICE FUND 2015 A-2, 2015B 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
For the Period Ended June 30, 2020 

DESCRIPTION 

REVENUES: 

Assessments 
Interest Income 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 

Series 2015 A-2 
Interest Expense 11 /1 
Special Call - 11 /1 
Principal Expense 5/1 
Interest Expense 5/1 
Special Call - 5/1 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning 

FUND BALANCE - Ending 

ADOPTED 

BUDGET 
FY2020 

$136,800 

$0 

$136 800 

$42,150 

$0 

$50,000 

$42,150 

$0 

$134 300 

$2,500 

$2,500 

$49,868 

$52,368 

PRORATED 

BUDGET 
THRU 06/30/20 

Page 5 

$136,800 

$0 

$136 800 

$42,150 

$0 
$50,000 

$42,150 

$0 

$134,300 

$2,500 

$2 500 

ACTUAL 
THRU 06/30/20 

$137,075 

$149 

$137 224 

$42,150 
$5,000 

$50,000 

$42,013 

$5,000 

$144,163 

($6,939) 

($6,939) 

$149,874 

$142,935 

VARIANCE 

$275 
$149 

$424 

$0 
($5,000) 

$0 
$138 

($5,000) 

($9,863) 

($9,439) 

($9,439) 



Rolling Hills 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 2015 A-3 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Period Ended June 30, 2020 

ADOPTED PRORATED 
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL 

DESCRIPTION FY2020 THRU 06/30/20 THRU 06/30/20 

REVENUES: 

Assessment - Tax Roll $41,481 $41,481 $41,563 

Assessment- Direct $302,118 $211,482 $211,492 

Interest Income $0 $0 $83 

TOTAL REVENUES $343,599 $252,963 $253,138 

EXPENDITURES: 

Interest Expense - 11 /1 $119,763 $119,763 $119,763 

Principal Expense - 5/1 $105,000 $105,000 $105,000 

Interest Expense - 5/1 $119,763 $119,763 $119,763 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $344 525 $344,525 $344,525 

Excess (deficiency} of revenues 
over (under) expenditures ($926) ($91,562) ($91,387) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($926) ($91,562) ($91,387) 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $127,544 $182,124 

FUND BALANCE· Ending $126,618 $90,737 

Page 6 

VARIANCE 

$82 

$10 

$83 

$175 

$0 
$0 

$0 

$0 

$175 

$175 



ROLLING HILLS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Long Term Debt Report 

Bond Issue: 
Original Issue Amount: 
Interest Rate: 
Maturity Date: 

Series 2015 A-1 Capital Improvement Refunding Bonds 
$2,500,000 

5.45% 
May 1, 2037 

Bonds outstanding -
Less: 

12/10/2015 $2,500,000 

Current Bonds Outstanding: 

Bond Issue: 
Original Issue Amount: 
Interest Rate: 

5/1/16 ($65,000) 
8/1/16 ($30,000) 

11/1/16 ($130,000) 
2/1/17 ($10,000) 
5/1/17 ($60,000) 
5/1/17 ($65,000) 
8/1/17 ($30,000) 
5/1/18 ($60,000) 

11/1/18 ($5,000) 
5/1/19 ($65,000) 

11/1/19 ($5,000) 
511120 ____ ..... ($'--7_o ,'--o_oo ....... ) 

$1,905,000 

Series 2015 A-2 Capital Improvement Refunding Bonds 
$1,930,000 

5.44% 
Bonds outstanding -
Less: 

12/10/2015 $1,930,000 

Current Bonds Outstanding: 

Bond Issue: 
Original Issue Amount: 
Interest Rate: 
Maturity Date: 

5/1/17 ($50,000) 
2/1/18 ($5,000) 
5/1/18 ($55,000) 
5/1/18 ($170,000) 
5/1/19 ($45,000) 

11 /1 /19 ($5,000) 
5/1 /20 ____ ..... ($_5~5,'--00_0......_) 

$1,545,000 

Series 2015 A-3 Capital Improvement Refunding Bonds 
$3,850,000 

6.70% 
May 1, 2037 

Bonds outstanding -
Less : 

12/10/2015 $3,850,000 

Current Bond s Outstanding: 

5/1/17 ($85,000) 
5/1/18 ($90,000) 
5/1/19 ($100,000) 
5/1/20 ___ _ __.($-"-1.;_;0:....:5-'-',0:....:0:....:0.,_) *Tapped Reserve 

$3,575,000 



Rolling Hills 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

GENERAL FUND 
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures 

For The Year Ending 
September 30, 2020 

ADOPTED 
BUDGET Oct-19 Nov-19 Oec-19 __ J_~n-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 -~P.r:io _ -~'l".-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Se!;l-20 Total 

REVENUES: 

Assessments - Platted Lots (fax Roll) $348,975 $0 $32,735 $305,534 $5,107 $307 $1,083 $1,233 $0 $191 $0 $0 $0 $346,190 

Assessments - Platted Lots (Direct) $269,409 $0 $0 $0 $67,352 $0 $0 $0 $67,352 $67,352 $0 $0 $0 $202,057 

Assessments - Planned Lots (Direct) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Swim & Tennis Revenue $800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Facmty Rental Revenue $3,500 $725 $300 $500 $0 $150 $150 $0 $75 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,900 

Non-Resident Memberships $1,980 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
TOTAL REVENUES I ss24.664 $725 $33,035 $306,034 $72,459 $457 $1,233 $1,233 $67,427 $67,543 $0 $0 $0 $550,146 

EXPENDITURES: 

ADMINISTRATIVE: 
Supervisor Fees $6,000 $600 $0 $0 $400 $400 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,400 

FICA Taxes $459 $46 $0 $0 $31 $31 $0 $0 $77 $0 $0 $0 $0 $184 

Engineering $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Arbitrage $1,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,200 $0 $0 so $0 $1,200 

Dissemination Agent $3,500 $292 $292 $292 $292 $292 $292 $292 $292 $292 $0 $0 $0 $2,625 

Assessment Roll $5,000 $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000 

Attorney Fees $22,500 $591 $0 $71 $242 $0 $812 $1,957 $2,587 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,260 

Annual Audit $3,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,800 

Trustee $8,081 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,081 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,081 

Management Fees $40,000 $3,333 $3,333 $3,333 $3,333 $3,333 $3,333 $3,333 $3,333 $3,333 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 

Travel & Per Diem $100 $45 $0 $0 $0 $36 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $82 

Computer Time $1,000 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $0 $0 $0 $750 

Telephone $150 $0 $0 $16 $0 $0 $0 $21 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $37 

Postage $500 $12 $1 $8 $30 $10 $23 $11 $0 $129 $0 $0 $0 $222 

Printing & Binding $1,250 $39 $168 $24 $13 $33 $322 $15 $24 $126 $0 $0 $0 $765 

Insurance $8,427 $8,227 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,227 

legal Advertising $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $65 $151 $0 $204 $196 $0 $0 $0 $0 $616 

Other Current Charges $1,500 $261 $62 $59 $62 $43 $237 $37 $58 $154 $0 $0 $0 $974 

Website Compliance $2,500 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $0 $0 $0 $1,875 

Office Supplies $100 $0 $15 $0 $0 $61 $15 $18 $0 $15 $0 $0 $0 $124 

Dues, llcenses & Subscriptions $175 $175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175_ 

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES I s111.242 $18,912 $4,163 $4,095 $4,760 $16,563 $5,324 $6,180 $9,058 $4,341 $0 $0 $0 $73,396 

FIELD 
Operations Management $20,500 $1,708 $1,708 $1,708 $1,708 $1,708 $1,708 $1,708 $1,708 $1,708 $0 so $0 $15,375 

Utilities - Irrigation & Streetlights $35,000 $3,678 $2,362 $2,410 $2,075 $2,021 $1,944 $2,095 $4,103 $2,007 $0 $0 $0 $22,696 

landscape $73,000 $6,052 $6,052 $6,052 $6,052 $6,052 $6,052 $6,052 $6,082 $6,052 $0 $0 $0 $54,496 

landscape - Contingency $6,800 $3,374 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,137 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,511 

lake Maintenance $4,800 $400 $400 $400 $400 $400 $420 $420 $420 $420 $0 $0 $0 $3,680 

Irrigation Repairs $7,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $920 $1,851 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,771 

Repairs & Maintenance $40,000 $2,942 $6,148 $2,495 $973 $2,777 $0 $4,369 $1,995 $0 $0 $0 $0 $21,699 

Mulch $13,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,530 $0 $0 $0 $10,530 

Miscellaneous $1,264 $0 $0 -$41 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,341 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,300 

FIELD EXPENDITURES I s202.3s4 $18,154 $16,670 $13,024 $11,208 $12,958 $10,124 $17,702 $20,500 $20,717 $0 $0 $0 $141,058 



Rolling Hills 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

GENERAL FUND 
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures 

For The Year Ending 
September 30, 2020 

ADOPTED 
BUDGET Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Aer-20 Mal-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 See-20 Total 

SWTM & TENNIS 

Facility Maintenance $53,533 $4,461 $4,461 $4,461 $4,461 $4,461 $4,461 $4,461 $4,461 $4,461 $0 $0 $0 $40,150 
Security $15,000 $1,160 $1,185 $1,380 $885 $1,045 $1,045 $1,095 $975 $1,050 $0 $0 $0 $9,820 
Recreation Passes $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Pool Attendants $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $686 $574 $0 $0 $0 $1,260 
Pool Maintenance $13,650 $1,138 $1,138 $1,138 $1,138 $1,138 $1,138 $1,138 $1,138 $1,138 $0 $0 $0 $10,238 
Pool Chemicals $9,000 $936 $272 $437 $557 $1,196 $694 $1,079 $1,186 $1,718 $0 $0 $0 $8,073 
Permit $375 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $375 $0 $0 $0 $0 $375 
Janitorial $12,840 $1,070 $1,070 $1,070 $1,070 $1,070 $1,070 $1,070 $1,070 $1,070 $0 $0 $0 $9,630 
insurance $23,121 $22,681 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,681 
Utilities $45,000 $3,647 $2,732 $2,489 $3,254 $3,449 $3,401 $2,872 $3,108 $3,797 $0 $0 $0 $28,748 
Refuse Service $8,300 $1,033 $1,044 $1,045 $1,045 $1,050 $1,045 $1,020 $1,009 $1,003 $0 $0 $0 $9,295 
Operating Supplies $6,000 $500 $500 $626 $218 $145 $0 $904 $518 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,412 
Repairs & Maintenance $40,000 $1,550 $6,438 $2,743 $12,821 $2,640 $1,304 $5,955 $1,901 $290 $0 $0 $0 $35,641 
Special Events $4,000 $932 $0 $915 $0 $278 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,125 
Capital Reserves $38,239 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

SWIM & TENNIS EXPENDITURES 1 $3os,oss $39,108 $18,839 $16,304 $25.449 $16.471 $14,158 $19,593 $16,427 $15,100 $0 $0 $0 $181,448 

TOTAL EXPENSES I $624.664 $76,173 $39,672 $33,423 $41,417 $45,992 $29,606 $43,475 $45,985 $40,158 $0 $0 $0 $395,902 

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) I $0 ($75,448) ($6,637) $272,611 $31,042 ($45.s3sl ($28,3731 ($42,2421 $21,443 $27,384 $0 $0 $0 $154,244 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Fiscal Year 2020 Assessments Receipts Summary 

I 
#O&M UNITS 

I 
SERIES 2015A-1 I SERIES 2015A-2 I SERIES 2015A-3 I FY20O&M 

I TOTAL ASSESSED ASSESSED ASSESSED DEBT ASSESSED DEBT ASSESSED DEBT ASSESSED ASSESSED 

CBCP LANDCO PH3 386 302,117.54 269,408.70 571,526.24 

TOTAL DIRECT INVOICES (1) (2) 386 302,117.54 269,408.70 571,526.24 

ASSESSED REVENUE TAX ROLL 375 174,000.58 136,800.46 41,480.02 348,975.00 701,256.05 

TOTAL ASSESSED 761 174,000.58 136,800.46 343,597.56 618,383.70 1,272,782.29 

DUE/ RECEIVED I BALANCE DUE I 
SERIES 2015A-l I 
DEBT RECEIVED 

SERIES 2015A-2 I 
DEBT RECEIVED 

SERIES 2015A-3 I I 
DEBT RECEIVED O&M RECEIVED TOTAL RECEIVED 

CBCP LANDCO PH3 225,329.60 - 211,492.28 134,704.36 346,196.64 

TOTAL DIRECT RECEIVED 225,329.60 - 211,492.28 134,704.36 346,196.64 

TAX ROLL DUE/ RECEIVED (1,406.58) 174,349.57 137,074.8S 41,S63.22 349,674.99 702,662.63 

TOTAL DUE/ RECEIVED 223,923.02 174,349.57 137,074.85 253,055.50 484,379.35 1,048,859.27 

(1) A-3 Direct Assessments are due: 35% due 12/1/19, 4/1/20 and 30% due 9/1/20 

(2) O&M is due 25% by 10/1/19, 1/1/20, 4/1/20, 7/1/20 

CLAY COUNTY DISTRIBUTION I DATE RECEIVED 

1 11/13/2019 

2 11/21/2019 

3 12/11/2019 

4 12/18/2019 

5 1/22/2020 

6 2/21/2020 

7 3/17/2020 

8 4/17/2020 

9 5/14/2020 

10 6/11/2020 

TAX CERTIFICATES 6/25/2020 

TOTAL RECEIVED TAX ROLL 

PERCENT COLLECTED 

% COLLECTED DIRECT BILL 

% COLLECTED TAX ROLL 

TOTAL PERCENT COLLECTED 

I 

I 

I 

SUMMARY OF TAX ROLL RECEIPTS 

SERIES 201SA-1 I 
DEBT RECEIVED 

2,048.39 

14,273.30 

152,340.84 

2,546.34 

89.52 

63.50 

540.13 

614.66 

95.06 

1,737.83 

174,349.571 

2015A-1 

0.00% 

100.20% 

100.20% 

I 

SERIES 2015A-2 I SERIES 201SA-3 I I 
DEBT RECEIVED DEBT RECEIVED O&M RECEIVED TOTAL RECEIVED 

1,610.45 

11,221.77 

119,771.42 

2,001.95 

70.38 

49.93 

424.66 

483.25 

74.74 

1,366.30 

-

-
137,074.851 

2015A-2 I 

0.00% 

100.20% 

100.20% 

488.31 

3,402.61 

36,316.55 

607.02 

21.34 

15.14 

128.76 

146.53 

22.66 

414.28 

-

-
-
-

41,563.221 

2015A-3 I 

70,00% 

100.20% 

73,65% 

4,108.24 

28,626.50 

305,534.31 

5,106.95 

179.56 

127.36 

1,083.29 

1,232.75 

-
190.66 

3,485.39 

-
-
-

349,674.991 

O&M 

50.00% 

100.20% 

78.33% 

I 

8,255.39 

57,524.18 

613,963.12 

10,262.26 

360.80 

255.93 

2,176.84 

2,477.19 

383.12 

7,003.80 

702,662.63 

TOTAL 

60.57% 

100.20% 

82.41% 

I 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



ROLLING HILLS 
Community Development District 

General Fund 5/1-5/31 
6/1-6/30 

Summary of Invoices 
August 11, 2020 

· c11eck111d.s 

2240-2266 
2267-2281 

$ 
$ 

**FedEx invoices are avai I able upon request 

34,665.13 
32,983.48 

I 



AP300R YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER RUN 7 /24/20 PAGE 1 
*** CHECK DATES 05/01/2020 - 05/31/2020 *** ROLLING HILLS GENERAL FUND 

BANK A ROLLING HILLS GF 

CHECK VEND# ..... INVOICE ........ EXPENSED TO... VENDOR NAME 
DATE DATE INVOICE YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS 

5/08/20 00026 

5/08/20 00027 

5/08/20 00097 

5/07/20 SSI09591 202004 330-57200-34500 
APR 20 - SECURITY 

CLAY COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFICE 

4/24/20 7182249 202004 320-53800-43000 
2404-1 ROLLING VIEW BLVD 

4/24/20 7751951 202004 330-57200-43000 
3212 BRADLEY CREEK PKWY 

4/24/20 7755259 202004 320-53800-43000 
3236-1 BRADLEY CREEK DR 

4/24/20 7755275 202004 320-53800-43000 
3314-1 RIDGEVIEW DR 

4/24/20 7755283 202004 320-53800-43000 
2448 ROLLING VIEW BLVD 

CLAY ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC 

5/06/20 050620 202005 330-57200-34500 
SECURITY SVC 

JEFFREY DEESE 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

5/08/20 00121 4/28/20 042820 202004 330-57200-34500 
SECURITY SVC 

5/04/20 050420 202005 330-57200-34500 
SECURITY SVC 

JOHN R. DRURY 
- - - - - - - - - - - - -

5/08/20 00003 

5/08/20 00096 

5/01/20 203 
MAY 

5/01/20 203 
MAY 

5/01/20 203 
MAY 

5/01/20 203 
MAY 

5/01/20 203 
MAY 

202005 310-51300-34000 
20 - MGMT FEES 

202005 310-51300-35101 
20 - WEBSITE ADMIN 

202005 310-51300-35100 
20 - IT 

202005 310-51300-31300 
20 - DISSEMINTION 

202005 310-51300-42500 
20 - COPIES 

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

4/21/20 4701897 202004 330-57200-52100 
ULTRA-CHLOR 

HAWKINS, INC. 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

5/08/20 00005 3/31/20 114513 202003 310-51300-31500 
MAR 20 - GENERAL COUNSEL 

HOPPING GREEN & SAMS 

ROLL ROLLING HILLS PPOWERS 

STATUS AMOUNT .... CHECK ..... 
AMOUNT # 

* 240.00 

240.00 002240 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 36.00 

* 2,013.00 

* 27.00 

* 28.00 

* 68.00 

2,172.00 002241 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 120.00 

120.00 002242 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 90.00 

* 105.00 

195.00 002243 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 3,333.33 

* 208.33 

* 83.33 

* 291.67 

* 23.70 

3,940.36 002244 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 424.50 

424.50 002245 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 811.50 

811. 50 002246 



AP300R YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER RUN 7/24/20 PAGE 2 
*** CHECK DATES 05/01/2020 - 05/31/2020 *** ROLLING HILLS GENERAL FUND 

BANK A ROLLING HILLS GF 

CHECK VEND# ..... INVOICE ........ EXPENSED TO... VENDOR NAME STATUS 
DATE DATE INVOICE YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS 

5/08/20 00060 

5/08/20 00055 

5/01/20 321 202005 330-57200-46100 
MAY 20 - JANITORIAL SVCS 

5/01/20 321 202005 330-57200-46700 
MAY 20 - POOL MAINTENANCE 

5/01/20 321 202005 320-53800-34000 
MAY 20 - CONTRACT ADMIN 

5/01/20 321 202005 330-57200-34000 
MAY 20 - FACILITY MGMT 

RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC. 

4/27/20 9431481- 202005 330-57200-34300 
MAY 20 - REFUSE SERVICE 

WASTE MANAGEMENT INC. OF FLORIDA 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

5/08/20 00038 4/30/20 111617 202004 330-57200-44000 
TANK RENTAL 

WILFORD PROPANE GAS CO., INC. 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

5/21/20 00040 6/01/20 146679 202005 320-53800-46300 
ANNUAL RENEWAL PEST CTRL 

B&B EXTERMINATING CO., INC. 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

5/21/20 00016 5/06/20 244868 202004 320-53800-43100 
3212-1 BRADLEY CRK RECLAM 

5/06/20 244869 202004 320-53800-43100 
3212-2 BRADLEY CRK RECLAM 

5/06/20 253042 202004 320-53800-43100 
3212-3 BRADLEY CRK IRR 

5/06/20 256584 202004 320-53800-43100 
3215-2 BRADLEY CRK RECLAM 

5/06/20 260347 202004 330-57200-43100 
3212-4 BRADLEY CREEK PKWY 

CLAY COUNTY UTILITY AUTHORITY 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

5/21/20 00053 

5/21/20 00061 

4/27 /20 311368 202004 310-51300-48000 
NOTICE OF RULE DEV 

4/27 /20 311369 202004 310-51300-48000 
NOTICE OF RULE DEV 

5/04/20 311621 202005 310-51300-48000 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

CLAY TODAY 

5/04/20 84957412 202004 330-57200-41500 
MAY 20 - TV/INTERNET 

COMCAST 

ROLL ROLLING HILLS PPOWERS 

* 

* 
* 
* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 
* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

AMOUNT .... CHECK ..... 
AMOUNT # 

1,070.00 

1,137.50 

1,708.33 

4,461.08 

8,376.91 002247 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

1,008.63 

1,008.63 002248 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

104.26 

104.26 002249 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

478.00 

478.00 002250 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

128.81 

759.98 

916.44 

131.18 

285.90 

2,222.31 002251 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

65.00 

139.00 

108.00 

312.00 002252 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

291.34 

291.34 002253 



AP300R YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER RUN 7/24/20 PAGE 3 
*** CHECK DATES 05/01/2020 - 05/31/2020 *** ROLLING HILLS GENERAL FUND 

BANK A ROLLING HILLS GF 

CHECK VEND# ..... INVOICE ........ EXPENSED TO... VENDOR NAME STATUS 
DATE DATE INVOICE YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS 

5/21/20 00097 

5/21/20 00121 

5/11/20 051120 202005 330-57200-34500 
SECURITY 

JEFFREY DEESE 

5/18/20 051820 202005 330-57200-34500 
SECURITY 

JOHN R. DRURY 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

5/21/20 00131 5/07/20 10-60-00 202005 330-57200-54000 
220 POOL PERMIT 

5/07/20 10-60-00 202005 330-57200-54000 
2020 WATER ACTIVITY POOL 

5/07/20 10-60-00 202005 330-57200-54000 
220 POOL PERMIT 

5/07/20 10-60-00 202005 330-57200-54000 
2020 WATER ACTIVITY POOL 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF STATE 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

5/21/20 00096 

5/21/20 00139 

5/21/20 00057 

3/24/20 4685738 202003 330-57200-52100 
ULTRA-CHLOR 

5/05/20 4709911 202005 330-57200-52100 
ULTRA CHLOR 

HAWKINS, INC. 

5/14/20 RENTAL R 202005 300-36200-10000 
REFUND OF RENTAL FEE 

AUNDREA JOHNSON 

5/01/20 501584 202005 320-53800-46400 
MAY 20 - WATER MGMT SVC 

THE LAKE DOCTORS, INC. 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

5/21/20 00140 

5/21/20 00124 

5/21/20 00113 

5/14/20 RENTAL R 202005 300-36200-10000 
REFUND OF RENTAL FEE 

APRIL THORNTON 

5/05/20 110458 202005 320-53800-49000 
JUNIPER REMOVAL & PLANTS 

5/11/20 112298 202005 320-53800-49000 
SOD INSTALLATION 

YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE 

5/07/20 10-60-00 202005 330-57200-54000 
220 POOL PERMIT 

5/07/20 10-60-00 202005 330-57200-54000 
2020 WATER ACTIVITY POOL 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

ROLL ROLLING HILLS PPOWERS 

* 

* 

* 

* 
V 

V 

* 
* 

* 

* 

* 

* 
* 

* 

* 

AMOUNT .... CHECK ..... 
AMOUNT # 

120.00 

120.00 002254 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

105.00 

105.00 002255 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

250.00 

125.00 

250.00-

125.00-

.oo 002256 
- - - - - - - - - -

342.00 

342.00 

684.00 002257 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

50.00 

50.00 002258 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

420.00 

420.00 002259 
- - - - - - - - - - - -

50.00 

50.00 002260 
- - - - - - - - - -

1,719.48 

2,144.00 

3,863.48 002261 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

250.00 

125.00 

375.00 002262 



AP300R YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER 
*** CHECK DATES 05/01/2020 - 05/31/2020 *** ROLLING HILLS GENERAL FUND 

BANK A ROLLING HILLS GF 

CHECK VEND# ..... INVOICE ........ EXPENSED TO... VENDOR NAME STATUS 
DATE DATE INVOICE YRM:0 DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS 

5/28/20 00097 5/22/20 052220 202005 330-57200-34500 
SECURITY 

5/26/20 052620 202005 330-57200-34500 
SECURITY 

JEFFREY DEESE 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

5/28/20 00081 

5/28/20 00060 

5/28/20 00124 

8/11/20 476919 202005 330-57200-46000 
QUARTERLY PEST CONTROL 

ORANGE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

5/18/20 323 
APR 20 

5/18/20 323 
APR 20 

5/18/20 323 
APR 20 

5/18/20 323 
APR 20 

202004 330-57200-46000 
- FACILITY MAINT 

202004 320-53800-46000 
- REPAIS & MAINT 

202004 330-57200-52000 
- JANITORIAL SUPP 

202004 330-57200-52000 
- OP SUPPLIES 

RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC. 

5/27/20 115594 202005 320-53800-46500 
MASTER VALVE INSTALL 

YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A 

TOTAL FOR REGISTER 

ROLL ROLLING HILLS PPOWERS 

* 
* 

* 

* 

* 
* 
* 

* 

RUN 7/24/20 

AMOUNT 

120.00 

120.00 

350.00 

2,585.56 

2,585.55 

373.90 

314.83 

1,851.00 

34,665.13 

34,665.13 

PAGE 4 

•••• CHECK ••••• 
AMOUNT # 

240.00 002263 

350.00 002264 

5,859.84 002265 

1,851.00 002266 



AP300R YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER RUN 7/24/20 
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2020 - 06/30/2020 *** ROLLING HILLS GENERAL FUND 

BANK A ROLLING HILLS GF 

PAGE 1 

CHECK VEND# ..... INVOICE ........ EXPENSED TO... VENDOR NAME 
DATE DATE INVOICE YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS 

6/12/20 00069 3/11/20 150214 202003 330-57200-46000 
SOFTWARE & FIRMWARE UPDAT 

ATLANTIC COMPANIES 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

6/12/20 00016 

6/12/20 00027 

6/12/20 00053 

5/31/20 MAY 20 
MAY 20 

5/31/20 MAY 20 
MAY 20 

5/31/20 MAY 20 
MAY 30 

5/31/20 MAY 20 
MAY 30 

202005 320-53800-43100 
- WATR 

202005 330-57200-43100 
- WATR 

CLAY COUNTY UTILITY AUTHORITY 

202005 320-53800-43000 
- ELECTRIC 

202005 330-57200-43000 
- ELECTRIC 

CLAY ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC 

3/05/20 309214 202003 310-51300-48000 
NOTICE OF RULE DEV 

CLAY TODAY 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

6/12/20 00061 6/04/20 84957412 202006 330-57200-41500 
JUN 20 - INTERNET./TV 

6/12/20 00097 

6/12/20 00121 

COMCAST 

6/07/20 060720 202006 330-57200-34500 
SECURITY 

6/10/20 061020 202006 330-57200-34500 
SECURITY 

JEFFREY DEESE 

5/29/20 052920 202005 330-57200-34500 
SECURITY 

6/01/20 060120 202006 330-57200-34500 
SECURITY 

JOHN R. DRURY 
- - - - - - - - - - - - -

6/12/20 00003 6/01/20 204 
JUN 20 

6/01/20 204 
JUN 20 

6/01/20 204 
JUN 20 

6/01/20 204 
JUN 20 

6/01/20 204 
JUN 20 

202006 310-51300-34000 
- MGMT FEES 

202006 310-51300-35101 
- WEBSITE ADMIN 

202006 310-51300-35100 
- IT 

202006 310-51300-31300 
- DISSEMINATION 

202006 310-51300-51000 
- SUPPLIES 

ROLL ROLLING HILLS PPOWERS 

STATUS 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

AMOUNT .... CHECK ..... 
AM:OUNT # 

185.00 

185.00 002267 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

2,018.48 

330.42 

2,348.90 002268 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

2,084.20 

2,678.00 

4,762.20 002269 
- - - - - - - - - -

87.75 

87.75 002270 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

281.34 

281.34 002271 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

120.00 

120.00 

240. 00 002272 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

120.00 

105.00 

3,333.33 

208.33 

83.33 

291.67 

15.00 

225.00 002273 



AP300R YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER 
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2020 - 06/30/2020 *** ROLLING HILLS GENERAL FUND 

BANK A ROLLING HILLS GF 

RUN 7/24/20 PAGE 2 

CHECK VEND# ..... INVOICE ........ EXPENSED TO... VENDOR NAME 
DATE DATE INVOICE YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS 

6/12/20 00012 

6/01/20 204 
JUN 20 

6/01/20 204 
JUN 20 

202006 310-51300-42000 
- POSTAGE 

202006 310-51300-42500 
- COPIES 

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

5/27/20 19700 202005 310-51300-31200 
ARBITRAGE 2015A2 

5/27/20 19701 202005 310-51300-31200 
ARBITRAGE - 2015Al 

GRAU AND ASSOCIATES 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

6/12/20 00096 5/19/20 4717292 202005 330-57200-52100 
CHEMICALS 

6/01/20 4724966 202006 330-57200-52100 
ULTRA-CHLOR 

6/09/20 4730200 202006 330-57200-52100 
ULTRA-CHLOR 

HAWKINS, INC. 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

6/12/20 00005 4/30/20 115001 202004 310-51300-31500 
APR 20 - GENERAL COUNSEL 

HOPPING GREEN & SAMS 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

6/12/20 00057 6/01/20 507782 202006 320-53800-46400 
JUN 20 - LAKE MAINTENANCE 

THE LAKE DOCTORS, INC. 
- - - - - - - - - - - - -

6/12/20 00060 

6/12/20 00055 

6/01/20 324 
JUN 

6/01/20 324 
JUN 

6/01/20 324 
JUN 

6/01/20 324 
JUN 

6/09/20 325 
MAY 

202006 330-57200-46100 
20 - JANITORIAL SVCS 

202006 330-57200-46700 
20 - POOL MAINTENANCE 

202006 320-53800-34000 
20 - CONTRACT ADMIN 

202006 330-57200-34000 
20 - FACILITY MGMT 

202005 330-57200-34200 
20 - DECK MONITOR 

RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC. 

5/22/20 9435392- 202006 330-57200-34300 
JUN 20 - REFUSE SERVICE 

WASTE MANAGEMENT INC. OF FLORIDA 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

6/12/20 00124 5/31/20 120823 202005 320-53800746200 
MAY 2 0 - LANDSCAPE MAINT 

YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE 

TOTAL FOR BANK A 

ROLL ROLLING HILLS PPOWERS 

STATUS AMOUNT .... CHECK ..... 
AMOUNT # 

* 129.06 

* 126.45 

4,187.17 002274 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 600.00 

* 600.00 

1,200.00 002275 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 844.49 

* 514.50 

* 342.00 

1,700.99 002276 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 1,197.00 

1,197.00 002277 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 420.00 

420.00 002278 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 1,070.00 

* 1,137.50 

* 1,708.33 

* 4,461.08 

* 686.40 

9,063.31 002279 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 1,003.02 

1,003.02 002280 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 6,081.80 

6,081.80 002281 

32,983.48 



AP300R YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER 
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2020 - 06/30/2020 *** ROLLING HILLS GENERAL FUND 

BANK A ROLLING HILLS GF 

CHECK VEND# ..... INVOICE ........ EXPENSED TO... VENDOR NAME 
DATE DATE INVOICE YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS 

STATUS 

TOTAL FOR REGISTER 

ROLL ROLLING HILLS PPOWERS 

RUN 7 /24/20 PAGE 3 

AMOUNT .... CHECK ..... 
AM:OUNT # 

32,983.48 



Remit To: Clay County Sheriff's Office 

PO Box 548/901 N. Orange Ave 

Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

(904) 284-7575 

Attn: Fiscal ~ Atcounts Receivable 

Bill 
To: ROLLING HILLS CDD 

3212 BRADLEY CREEK PKWY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FL 32043 
PATTI POWERS 

Due Date 
Te(ms 

5/22/2020 
Net 15 Days 

ltem/Oescriotion 

Fees-2nd Employment Ad min· Fee-APRIL 2020 

Fees-2nd Employment Scheduling 

Amount Subject to Sales Tax USO 

Amount Exempt from Sales Tax 240.00 

Unit OrderQtv 

28 
4 

Ship 

Invoice Number: 
lnvoice Date; 

To: ROLLING HILLS COD 

S$I09591 

5/7/2020 

Page: 1 

3212 BRADLEY CREEK PKWY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FL 32043 
PATTI POWERS 

Customer ID 
P.O. Number 
P.O. Date 

Our Order No 

Sales Person 

Quantitv Unit Price 

28 
4 

5.00 

25.00 

Subtotal: 
Invoice Discount 

Tax: 

Total USD: 

C0000125 

5/7/2020 

Total Price 

140.00 

100.00 

240.00 
0.00 
0.00 

240.00 



ROLLING HILLS VENTURES, LLC. 4/4/2020 7321 DRURY, JOHN R. 4.00 
ROLLING HILLS VENTURES, LLC. 4/6/2020 7321 DRURY, JOHN R. 4.00 
ROLLING HILLS VENTURES, LLC. 4/13/2020 6497 DEESE, JEFFREY A 4.00 
ROLLING HILLS VENTURES, LLC. 4/17/2020 7321 DRURY, JOHN R. 4.00 
ROLLING HILLS VENTURES, LLC. 4/20/2020 7321 DRURY, JOHN R. 4.00 
ROLLING HILLS VENTURES, LLC. 4/26/2020 6497 DEESE, JEFFREY A 4.00 
ROLLING HILLS VENTURES, LLC. 4/28/2020 7321 DRURY, JOHN R. 4.00 

28.00 



M 
~ 
~ 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

EF ® Clay·E/ectric Cooperative, Inc. 
Orange Park District 
734 Blanding Blvd 

Statement Date: 04/24/2020 

Trustee Dist 06 I Web Address 
~------~ dayelectric.com 

vlr---.. Orange Park FL 32065-5798 
ATouc~~~~;~~~!"~ 904-272-2456 (800)224-4917 

Automated Outage Reporting Line: (888) 434-9844 

Account 

*7182249 

Rate - GS 

GS Non~Demand 

Name Service Address 

ROLLING HILLS VENTURE LLC 2404 ROLLING VIEW BLVD# 1 

From To 

03/23/2020 04/21/2020 

Approx Next 
Read Date 
05/21/20 

Previous 

1949 

Previous Statement Balance 

Meter No Mu(tiplier 

151840010 

Present KWH Days Dally KWH 

2066 117 29 4 
Apr 2019 135 28 5 

42.00 
04/06/2020 Payment Received · Thank You 

Previous Balance 

42.00CR 

~ $ 0.00 
. 

Current Charges Billed 04/24/2020 
Energy 

Access Charge 

Power Cost Adjustment · .01073 X 117 KWH 

FLA Gross Receipts Tax 

Florida State Sales Tax 

Clay Co Public Ser Utility Tax 

Clay County Sales Tax 

Operation Round Up 

Current Charges Due on 05/15/2020 

Total Amount Due 

Non-Taxable Fuel Amount@ .02902/KWH ·$3.40 
Government Taxes/Fees are not imposed by Clay Electric 

9.51 

$ 36.00 

$ 36.00 

$ 4.46 

Clay Electric is showing Concern for Community by lowering the Power Cost Adjustment for members. This one-time 
decrease will average 25% in savings for members. 

Payments received after 3 pm wilt be credited to your account the following business day. Billings not paid i.n full will 
incur a late charge of S5.00 or 5% of the delinquent amount (whichever ls greater) that will be added to your account. 

T Tear Here T 
When Paying in Person: Bring entire bill With· you. ·· 

When Paying By Mall: Return this portion with your payment. 
Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
P. 0. Box 308 135 
Keystone Heights, Florida 32656-0308 

Mailing Address Correction: 

911 Emergency Address: 

1hlh111lflh1ll111•11•1u11•1111m•llll11111•111•1nulnl1•1• 
80030•24A'2'135 .. "'"AITTO~MIXED AADC 350 
ROLLING HILLS VENTURE LLC 
5385 N NOB HILL RD 
SUNRISE FL 33351-4761 

07182249 

Account Number 
"'7182249 

Phone Number 
(904) 278-5020 

Phone Correction 

Return this coupon 
with your payment 

Current Charges 
Due Date 05/15/2020 
Total Amount Due 

0000036004 

I included an additional amoul'lt 
as a donation to Project Share 
to hel!) those in need. 

$ 
Pa·-ent Amount 

Write Account Number on check and 
make payable to: 
Clay l:lectrlc Cooperative, Inc. 

$ 36.00 

$ 36.00 



What is Checkout? 

Use the barcode below while you shop as a fast convenient way to pay your Clay Electric 
Cooperative bill through the checkout lane at a Dollar General retailer near you. Only cash will 
be accepted at these locations. To find a location near you, please visit www.clayelectric.com 

Convenience fee of $1. 95 automatically added at checkout 

IIII IIII Ill lllllll lllllllll Ill I IIIIIII IIIIIIIII I II II Ill 
799366144580006371682131851233 IJ 

By accepting or using this barcode to make a payment, you agree to the full terms and 
conditions, available at www.payithere.com/terms. After successful payment using this 
barcode, you may retrieve your full detailed erecelpt at www.payithere.com/ereceipt. 



~ 

'° ~ 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

IE ® Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
Orange Park District 
734 Blanding Blvd 

Statement Date: 04/24/2020 

Trustee Dist 06 I Web Address 
c_ ______ __, clayelecttic.com ~ 

Orange Park FL 32065-5798 
AToodmon, Ene:gy• 904-272-2456 (800)224-4917 

Cooperative _ Automated Outage Reporting Line: (888) 434-9844 

Accaurit Service Address 

*7751951 ROLLING HILLS COO 3212 BRADLEY CREEK PKWY AMENITY CENTER 

Rate- GSD From To 

GS Demand 03/23/2020 04/21/2020 

Previous Statement Balance 
04/06/2020 Payment Received - Thank You 

Current Charges Billed 04/24/2020 
Energy 

Access Charge 
Demand 89.760KW X 4.35 
Power Cost Adjustment -.01073 X 21520 

Large Outdoor Light 

Approx Next 
Read Date 
05/21/20 

Previous 

3352 

Previous Balance 

Present 

3621 
Apr 2019 

2,837.00 
2,837.00CR 

Small Outdoor Light 

Pote 
FLA Gross Receipts Tax 
Florida State Sales Tax 
Florida State Sales Tax (6%) 
Clay Co Public Ser Utility Tax 
Clay County Sales Tax 
Operation Round Up 

1,291.20 
80.00 

390.46 
230.91CR 

66.67 

102.15 

fr t·ur: c·,}:: ::t'.]f~:~~ 

Current Charges Due on 05/15/2020 

Total Amount Due 

Non-Taxable Fuel Amount@ .02902/KWH ·$624.51 
Government Taxes/Fees are not imposed by Clay Electric $ 235.73 

Meter No 

152192920 

KWH Days 

21520 29 
5280 29 

$ 0.00 

$ 2,013.00 

$ 2,013.00 

Multiplier 

80 

Daily KWH 

742 
182 

~ 

Clay Electric is showing Concern for Community by lowering the Power Cost Adjustment for members. This one-time 
decrease will average 25% in savings for members. 

Payments received after 3 pm wm be credited to your account the folk1wiog business day, B\lllngs not paid in full will 
.incur a late charge of $5.00 or 5% of the delinquent amount (whichever is greater) that wm be added to your account. 

T Tear Here T 
When Paying in Person·: Btiiig·eiitii-e·biu·witti Yciti.·· 

When Paying By Mail: Return this portion 'Nith your payment. 
Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
P. 0. Box 308 135 

Keystone Heights, Florida 32656-0308 

Mailing Address Correction: -------------~ 

911 Emergency Address: 

1hlh1111111u1111l•ll•1••11•1111""'hll1111•11l•111"l'•ll•I• 
800JD-24A·2•135•~ .. AuTo··MIXED MOC 350 
ROLLING HILLS COD 
5385 N NOB HILL RD 
SUNRISE FL JJ351-4761 

□ 7751951 

Account Number 
·7751951 

Phone Number 
(954) 721-8681 

Phone Correction 

Return thfs coupon 
with your payment 

Current Charges 
Due Date 05/15/2020 
Total Amount Due 

□□□2013□□ 1 

! included an addlt!onal amount 
as a donation to Project Share 
to help those in need. 

$ 
Pa"ment Amount 

Write Acc-0unt Humber on check a11d 
make payable to: 
Clay Eleetrfe Cooperative, Inc. 

$2,013.00 

$2,013.00 



~ 
~ 
~ 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

What is Checkout? 

Use the barcode below while you shop as a fast convenient way to pay your Clay Electrtc 
Cooperative bill through the checkout lane at a Dollar General retailer near you. Only cash will 
be accepted at these locations. To find a location near you, please visit www.clayelectric.com 

✓ 

Chock 
,n .•:..-o~· 

Convenience fee of $1. 95 automatically added at checkout 

IIII IIIIIII IIIIIII IIIIIIIII Ill I IIIIII Ill lllll I Ill Ill Ill 
799366144580006371682132059794 

I) 
By accepting or using this barcode to make a payment, you agree to the full terms and 
conditions, available at www.payithere.com/terms. After successful payment using this 
barcode, you may retrieve your full detailed ereceipt at www.payithere.com/ereceipt. 



~ 
~ 
7 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

® Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. Statement Date: 04/24/2020 If: Orange Park District 
- 734 Blanding Blvd 

,A--.. Orange Park FL 32065-5798 
ATouchsc','.,~;;;:,~;;~ 904-272-2456 (800)224-4917 

Trustee Dist 06 I Web Address 
'---------' dayelectrk.com 

Automated Outage Reporting Line: (888) 434-9844 

Account Name Service Address 

7755259 ROLLING HILLS COD 3236 BRADLEY CREEK PKWY # 1 

Rate - GS From To Approx Next Previous Read Date 
GS Non-Demand 03/23/2020 04/21/2020 05/21/20 318 

Previous Statement Balance 

04/06/2020 Payment Received - Thank You 

Current Charges Billed 04/24/2020 
Access Charge 

FLA Gross Receipts Tax 

Florida State Sales Tax 

Clay Co Public Ser Utility Tax 

Clay County Sales Tax 

Operation Round Up 

Previous Balance 

Total Amount Due 

Government Taxes/Fees are not imposed by Clay Electric 

Meter No Multiplier 

151839087 

Present KWH Days Daily KWH 

318 0 29 
Apr 2019 26 28 

27.00 
27.00CR 

$ 0.00 Ii 
23.00 

0.59 
1.64 
0.92 

0.24 
0.61 

$ 27.00 

$ 27.00 

$ 3.39 

Clay Electric is showing Concern for Community by lowering the Power Cost Adjustment for members. This one-time 
decrease will average 25% in savings for members. 

Payments received after 3 pm will be credited to your account the following business day. Billings not paid fn full will 
incur a late charge of $5.00 or 5% of the.delinquent amount (whichever is greater) that will be added to your account. 

T Tear Here..., 
When Paying in Person: Bring entire bill 'Mith·you. 

When Paying By Mail: Return this portion with your payment. 
Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
P.O. Box 308 135 

Keystone Heights, Florida 32656-0308 

Mailing Address Correction: _____________ _ 

911 Emergency Address: 

1hl1•11ll(l)11ll11(•ll•1••ll,1(ll'"'lllllllll'11l•lll',1'''"'' 
80030-24A•z-135••-AUTO-MlXED AADC 350 
ROLLING HILLS COD 
5385 N NOB HILL RD 
SUNRISE FL 33351 •4761 

07755259 

Account Number 
7755259 

Phone Number 

(954) 721-8681 

Phone Correction 

Return this coupon 
with your payment 

Current Charges 
Due Date 05/15/2020 
Total Amount Due 

0000027003 

! Included an additional amount 
as a donation to Project Share 
to hetp those in need, 

s 
Pa"ment Amount 

Write Account Mumber on check and 
make payable to: 
Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. 

$ 27.00 

$ 27.00 



What is Checkout? 

Use the barcode below while you shop as a fast convenient way to pay your Clay Electric 
Cooperative bill through the checkout lane at a Dollar General retailer near you. Only cash will 
be accepted at these locations, To find a location near you, please visit www.clayelectric.com 

..I' 
Ch@dc. 

~ .. 

Convenience fee of $1.95 automatically added at checkout 

IIII IIIIIII IIIIIII IIIIIIIII Ill I IIIIII IIIII I IIIIIII II Ill 
799366144580006371682132061188 

By accepting or using this barcode to make a payment 1 you agree to the full terms and 
conditions, available at www.payithere.com/terms. After successful payment using this 
barcode, you rnay retrieve your full detailed ereceipt at www.payithere.com/ereceipt. 



® Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. Statement Date: 04/24/2020 # Orange Park District 
- 734 Blanding Blvd 

,,+.. Orange Park FL 32065-5798 ATouchs~:~~::: ~ 904-272-2456 (800)224-4917 
Trustee Dist 06 I Web Address 

'-------~ dayelectric.com 

Automated Outage Reporting line: (888) 434·9844 

Account Name Service Address 

7755275 ROLLING HILLS CDD 3314 RIDGEVIEW DR# 1 

Rate" GS From To 

GS Non-Demand 03/23/2020 04/21/2020 

PreVious Statement Balance 
04/06/2020 Payment Received · Thank You 

Current Charges Billed 04/24/2020 
Energy 
Access Charge 

Power Cost Adjustment -.01073 X 11 KWH 
FLA Gross Receipts Tax 
Florida State Sales Tax 
Clay Co Public Ser Utility Tax 
Clay County Sales Tax 
Operation Round Up 

Approx Next 
Read Date 
05/21/20 

Previous 

158 

Previous Balance 

Current Charges Due on 05/15/2020 

Total Amount Due 

Non-Taxable Fuel Amount@ .02902/KWH -$.32 
Government Taxes/Fees are not imposed by Clay Electric 

Present 

169 
Apr 2019 

28.00 
28.00CR 

0.89 
23.00 

$ 3.47 

Meter No 

152012414 

KWH Days 

11 
11 

$ 0.00 

$ 28.00 

$ 28.00 

29 
27 

Multiplier 

Daily KWH 

0 
0 

II 

Clay Electric is showing Concern for Community by lowering the Power Cost Adjustment for members. This one-time 
decrease will average 25% in savings for members. 

Payments received after 3 pm will be credited to your account the following business day. Billings not paid in full will 
incu.r a l~~-c~arge- of $5!00 .~_'.'". 5%_ of th~_dellnquent ~mount (whichever Is greater).that will be added to your account. 

TTear Here T 
When Paying in Person: Bring entire·oiCP.Vith·you: · 

. When Paying By Mail: Return this portion wfth your payment. 
Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
P. 0. Box 308 135 

Keystone Heights, Florida 32656-0308 

Mailing Address Correction: _____________ _ 

911 Emergency Address: 

1hll•1111Jlh1ll11l•ll•1"ll•1ll1uulhlllll1•11l•l11ufull•I• 
80030•24A'2'135' .. ''AUTO .. MIXED AADC 350 
ROLLING HILLS COD 
5385 N NOB HILL RD 
SUNRISE FL 33351 •4761 

D7755275 

Account Number 
7755275 

Phone Number 
(954) 721-8681 

Phone Correction 

Return this coupon 
with your payment 

Current Charges 
Due Date 05/15/2020 
Total Amount Due 

□□□□□28001 

I inctud~ an additional amount 
as a donation to Project Shafe 
to help those In need. 

$ 
Pa·-ent Ar'nount 

Write Acrount Number on check Md 
make payable t,:i: 
Clay Electric Cooperative, lnc. 

$ 28.00 

$ 28.00 



0 
~ 
~ 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

What is Checkout? 

Use the barcode below while you shop as a fast convenient way to pay your Clay Electric 
Cooperative bill through the checkout lane at a Dollar General retailer near you. Only cash will 
be ac:cepted at these locations. To find a location near you, please visit www.clayelectric.com 

v 
Chf:d< 

,J, .~,.,~~· 

Convenience fee of $1. 95 automatically added at checkout 

llll llll Ill lllllll lllllllll Ill I IIIIII IIIII I IIII IIIII Ill 
799366144580006371682132061196 

By accepting or using this barcode to make a payment, you agree to the full terms and 
conditions, available at www.payithere.com/terms, After successful payment using this 
barcode, you may retrieve your full detailed ereceipt at www.payithere.com/ereceipt. 



EF ® Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
Orange Park District 
734 Blanding Blvd 

Statement Date: 04/24/2020 

Trustee Dist 06 I Web Address 
'---------' clayelectric.com ,r+-.. Orange Park FL 32065·5798 ATouchs~:;:,:~~;~ 904·272-2456 (800)224·4917 

Automated Outage Reporting Line: (888) 434·9844 

Account Name Service Address 

7755283 ROLLING HILLS COO 2448 ROLLING VIEW BLVD 

Rate - GS From To 

GS Non-Demand 03/23/2020 04/20/2020 

Previous Statement Balance 

04/06/2020 Payment Received - Thank You 

Approx Next 
Read Date 
05/21/20 

Previous 

6974 

Previous Balance 

Current Charges Billed 04/24/2020 

Energy 

Access Charge 

Power Cost Adjustment -.01073 X 518 KWH 

FLA Gross Receipts Tax 

Florida State Sales Tax 

Clay Co Public Ser Utility Tax 
Clay County Sales Tax 

Operation Round Up 

Current Charges Due on 05/15/2020 

Total Amount Due 

Non-Taxable Fuel Amount@ .02902/KWH -$15.03 
Government Taxes/Fees are not imposed by Clay Electric 

Present 

7492 
Apr 2019 

88.00 

88.00CR 

42.11 

23.00 

$ 8.17 

Meter No 

151840032 

KWH Days 

518 28 
354 28 

$ 0.00 

$ 68.00 

$ 68.00 

Multiplier 

Daily KWH 

19 
13 

~ m 

Clay Electric is showing Concern for Community by lowering the Power Cost Adjustment for members. This one-time 
decrease will average 25% in savings for members. 

Payments received after 3 pm will be credited to your account the followinB business day. Bmirlgs not paid in full will 
incur _a late charge of $5._0() or 5% of the deli_nquent amount (whi_ch~ver Is greater) that _will be added to. your a_ccount. ----·-- ··-"--·---·-,.- -····. ----·-----·------T-fea"r"He~~y···------ -· .... -· -·- .. -•--

When Paying in Person:· Br'irig ·ehtire-bill with yciiJ. 
When Paying By Mail: Return this portion with your payment. 

Clay Electric Caoperative, Inc. 
P.O. Box 308 135 

Keystone Heights, Florida 32656-0308 

Mailing Address Correction: _____________ _ 

911 Emerge!flcy Address: 

th(l.11(Jllh1ll11(,l(,1u(l,((l1nn(lt)ll)l1'1l)'lll''("(l,J, 
80030-24A''2."135~00 AUTO""MIXED MOC 350 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 
5385 N NOB HILL RD 
SUNRISE FL 33351-4761 

07755283 

Account Number 
7755283 

Phone Number 
(954) 721-8681 

Phone Correction 

Return this coupon 
with your payment 

Current Charges 
Due Date 05/15/2020 
Total Amount Due 

0000068007 

I included an additional amount 
as a donation to Project Share 
to hclp those tn need. 

$ 
Pa·-ent Amount 

Write Account Number on check and 
make payable to: 
Clay Etectrk Cooperative, Inc. 

$ 68.00 

$ 68.00 



N ,... 
~ 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

What is Checkout? 

Use the barcode below while you shop as a fast convenient way to pay your Clay Electric 
Cooperative bill through the checkout lane at a Dollar General retailer near you. Only cash will 
be accepted at these locations. To find a location near you, please visit www.clayelectric.com 

✓ 
Ch~ck 

1v i'-; es,. 

Convenience fee of $1.95 automatically added at checkout 

IIIIIIII Ill lllllll lllllllll Ill I IIIIII IIIII IIIII II Ill Ill 
799366144580006371682132061204 IJ 

By accepting or using this barcode to make a payment, you agree to the full terms and 
conditions, available at www.payithere.com/terms. After successful payment using this 
barcode1 you may retrieve your full detailed ereceipt at www.payithere.com/ereceipt. 



Jeffrey Deese 
4990 Windm11! Court 
Middleburg, FL 32068 
904-219-0579 
jadeese@claysheriff.com 

TO: 

Rolling Hills Community Development District 
3212 Bradley Creek Blvd. 
Green Cove Springs, Fl 32043 

DATE 

WORKED 
DESCRIPTION 

5-6-20 Neighborhood Patrol/ Security 

Checked preserve area. 

Patrolled entire development 

FOR: 

Property Manager 

TIME 

IN/our 

1500-1900 

Checked Clubhouse, pool, and boardwalk area. 

Patrolled entire development. 

DEPUTY SIGNATURE: 

Make al! checks payable to Jeffrey Deese 

Thank you for your business! 

HOURS RATE 

4,0 30.00 

TOTAL 

INVOICE DATE 
DATE:S-6-20 

AMOUNT 

120.00 

120.00 



John R. Drury 

2564 Backyard Cove, Green Cove Springs, FL, 32043 
904-505-1241 

TO: 

Rolling Hills Community Development District 
3212 Bradley Creek Blvd. 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

DATE 
WORKED 

DESCRIPTION 

05/04/2020 Neighborhood patrol and security 

S"'< //.,. l'Z" -:f''-.\ 
lL,t.l,.,,';;';..,? 

FOR: 

Property Manager 

TIME 

IN/OUT 

15:00-18:30 

No incidents occurred that needed Law Enforcement attention 

Amenity Center patrol and security 

DEPUTY SIGNATURE: 

Make all checks payable to John R. Drury 

Thank you for your business! 

HOURS RATE 

3.5 $30.00 

TOTAL 

INVOICE DATE 
DATE:05/04/2020 

AMOUNT 

$105.00 

$105.00 

i 
I 



John R. Drury 

2564 Backyard Cove, Green Cove Springs, FL, 32043 
904-505-1241 

TO: 

Rolllng Hills Community Development District 
3212 Bradley Creek Blvd. 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

DATE 

WORKED 
DESCRIPTION 

04/28/202.0 Neighborhood patrol and security 

FOR: 

Property Manager 

TIME 
IN/OUT 

14:00-17:00 

No incidents occurred that needed Law Enforcement attention 

Amenity Center patrol and security 

DEPUTY SIGNATURE: 

Make all checks payable to John R. Drury 

Thank you for your business! 

HOURS RATE 

3 $30.00 

TOTA.L 

INVOICE DATE 
DATE:04/28/2020 

AMOUNT 

$90.00 

$90_00 



Governmental Management Services, LLC 
1001 Bradford Way 
Kingston, TN 37763 

Bill To: 
Rolling Hills COO 
475 WestTown Place 
Suite 114 
St Augustine, FL 32090 

Description 

Management Fees - May 2020 
Website Administration - May 2020 
lnfonnation Technology- May 2020 
Dissem1nation Agent Services - May 2020 
Copies 

Hours/Qty 

Total 

Invoice 

Invoice#: 203 
Invoice Date: 5/1/20 

Due Date: 5/1/20 
Case: 

P.O. Number: 

Rate 

3,333.33 
208.33 

83.33 
291.67 

23.70 

Amount 

3,333.33 
208,33 
. 83.33 
291.67 

23.70 

$3,940.36 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $3,940.36 



So!ci To: .293306 

Original 

Ha.wkh1s, Jue. 
238! Rosegate 
Roseville, .MN 55JJ 3 
Phone: (612) 331-6910 

INVOICE 
Tota! Invoice 
Invoice Number 
Invoice Date 
Sales Order Numberffyp0 
Branch Plant 
Shipment Number 

Sr.ipTo: 295740 

$424.50 
4701897 
4/21/20 
3169871 
74 
3534654 

so 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
ROLLING HILLS ESTATES CDD 
c/o Patti Powers-GMS-SF, LLC 
5385 N Nob HIii Rd 

ROLLING HILLS ESTATES CDD 
3212 Bradley Creek Pkwy 
Green Cove Springs FL 32043 

Sunrise FL 33351 

··----·------··- --· -------··- . --··-·--··----- - . ···----· ---··-· . ···---------· - -- --------- - . 
Nc.t Due Date Terms FOB Description Ship Via Customer P.O.# P.O. Reianse Sales Ag6nt ft. 

5/21/20 Net30 PPDOrigin HAWKINS 874 

----------· -····--------·· ----
O,j Trans "U11it · Price· Weight 

... 
EXfof1d"e(i 'fax Une # Item Number Item Name! 

CU$t lte:11 # D~scrl,e~or1 Shipp<tld UO/1:i Pdce UOM t~et/Gross Pr:ce-

I 1.000 43967 

11.010 Fuel Surchar~e 

Ul!ra-Chlor (Sod. Hypo 12.5%} N 275.0000 GA S1.5000 GA 

1 GA BLK (Mini-Bulk) 275.0000 GA 

Freight N 1.0000 EA S12.0000 

w .. ~ Electronfc Billing Now Available .... _.. 

Please contect our Accounts Receivable Department via email at CredH.Dept@HaWkliisrnc.com 
or calf 612--331-6910 to get il setup on your aocount. 

e.1-~ 5)/20 
Pm! (' /,, 1. ,.,, ,o1 /.; 

ov/, Jso. 572.otJ 52.100 

Tax Rate 
0 % 

No 01:tcmrnt, 011 fz~ll!hl <ir Con1:>!rn11·:i 

Sales Tax 
$0.00 Invoice Total 

2,774.8 LB 

3,003.9 GW 

Plca:;e P O B 860263 

S412.50j 

s12.ooj 

$424.50 

!~,toftTN,T: A1 p,~C.~1$ n10 W:l V.-ll".<AA .... w.-'ll;( o! a<r/ !<'M ,1.1rl JY.cliU~n. Wl, Ir/ 11-..ea" :>M> 1H'.•. <!Q:,,,i,,'f.,). .,.,,_,~~"Y ot ...._.,,,. 
1<0J-.-cto kr \/'.,,, ,.,_,, c:o,. S,,';tt ,,.,.=,1, l.o.;lo.1 ij<'O<la ~ by th". fr.a-.)',;,, 1<,i19~.rl.,;;,4 lH<n1 i~r,o~ \1/ih l\o n,qU:,n«.4 ~! ~• 
F:,:t \'1-t«Sl,l-,l~'dj ,c.« 1Wl\.al &""~d. Co~~,:~rs ,,,., ID to IU°<I /,itl,\/ul.~ b·,<>k«!. ;,d M to!or;f \\'~ b~ ~Q ~r=('f, 
,tot.<lU~n",l'U<1 .:i.. ... te:-'"'1.:.:fl,) criJ\~~~-"lctshiv,t«:L RcU. l:c'shl dwgotoW. ~<:I. lM«<.'-li'W'Jlt:Vrr,e.f ,,,..,~!'AIM L""' o<'~\,J'l"/ sh'pJh'<I. o,-,J ,i,.,,,. r,o c'/M<'>CO of un>1e, w me k,, MQ~ c'lw 1.>1.,.-, lho ~:.:n;~o or o,J~:'\,tl c«,:>.~m So1v 

~·{&~tn~1~ut,1tt:o'R"{~gkrrti~~'i\~1f~m~R;mi~t)t\tiNt~r~'toi,bi"OOlt 
I
( Hawkins, Jue, 

l':'(emitTo: • • ox 
--··-·······-······· Min11eapolis, MN 55486-0263 

Thlt ,ontrilrtor and 1ut)(onlro<to1 dun abldt.: &y the t~<1~lftr<1tnl! ot41 CFR §§60•1.4fa), M-l®,5M ~nd 50.JU.Sf~). lhn.tl. 1e5\/\a!lon• prchl~ll dl{<r/tnlMUon ~g~lfllt qu~lif'ied totlMd~ls lmcd on their •Iii Us a:l 
p1oltrttd vewa11~ or lndMdu~~ Wi°' tllnhR/tli,s, 1nd prohlb!tdlkrlmlriallon ~galo.1uU fndMd,ul.; bised on l1,clrr.1<a, col.:.t, rclltfoh, 1a, or ~!lonal <lrlgln.Moreovu, thtse rezutatlooHcqutre U\at c-overE<I 
p1imc .::orma,;1orr and ,ubcct>tro(l~ri lllku a[firmitl>1ei1dlo11 to tmploy ~nd :dv.ir.<e !n «rrtplo'{lnthl lndi~!du~I~ wi1M111 1eiJrd to t~ce, cola,, rellfflon,JfY, nation~! od,tn, p101,c1Cli vtt~r.in st~\IJ~ ordl1~blllr(. 

ww1.v.hawklnslnc.com Jobll 500434961 



Hopping Green & Sams 
AUornays and Got,mselors 

119 S. Monroe Street, Sle. 300 
P.O. Box 6526 

Tallahassee, FL32314 
850,222,7500 

April 30, 2020 
Rolling Hills Community Development District 
c/o Jim Oliver, District Manager 
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 

Bill Number 114513 
Billed through 03/31/2020 

St. Augustine, FL 32092 

General Counsel/Monthly Meeting 
RHCDD 00001 KSB 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED 
03/19/20 JJ Work session regarding sunshine law requirements in light of Governor's 

emergency order; follow up on research regarding sunshine law procedures in 
light of COVID-19 emergency; review draft memo to district managers 
regarding CMT and sunshine law issues; review declarations of emergency from 
Governor's office; revise memo. 

03/19/20 SSW 

03/27/20 KSB 

03/30/20 KSB 

03/31/20 MCE 

03/31/20 JLK 

Research questions regarding public meeting, sunshine law, and notice 
requirements and exemptions related to COVID-19 public health emergency. 

Prepare correspondence and confer with district managers regarding district 
facility closures relating to COVID-19. 

Confer with district manager. 

Review proposed legislation; monitor committee activity and agendas; monitor 
Amendment 12 implementation. 

Research, draft and multiple conference calls on memorandum to district 
managers and amenity managers and e-blast to residents on COVID-19 
notices/best practices/closures; multiple calls with staff and legal team on 
same; call with FIA on same; research DOH, EOG and other regulatory agencies 
best practices and recommendations; multiple calls with project team on same; 
conference call with staff and insurance company regarding closures and 
research related to staffing, federal bill impacts, etc; conference call regarding 
security options for communities via executive order, tax considerations and 
assessment considerations; continue research on laws affecting on site staffing 
requirements, options and new federal law for coronav1rus affecting local 
governments, including families first bill; transmit infonnation on same; confer 
with employment team on same; continue researching employment related 
matters, including impact of federal pay bill signed on March 19, 2020, 
contractual provisions and the like; research sensitive employment matters; 
confer with insurance carrier on closures and violations thereof; finalize shelter 
in place EO provisions and impact on district on same. 

Total fees for this matter 

MATTER SUMMARY 

Johnson, Jonathan T. 0.20 hrs 375 /hr 

0,20 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

0.50 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

1.00 hrs 

0.40 hrs 

$811.50 

$75.00 



Roll!ng Hills COD ~ General Co 

Kilinski, Jennifer L. 
Buchanan, Katie S. 
Eckert, Michael C. 

Warren, Sarah S. 

Bill No. 114513 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER 

BILLING SUMMARY 

Johnson, Jonathan T, 
Klllnski, Jennifer L. 
Buchanan, Katie S. 
Eckert, Michael C. 
Warren, Sarah S. 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL 

0.40 hrs 295 /hr 
0.70 hrs 305 /hr 
1.00 hrs 350 /hr 
0,20 hrs 275 /hr 

0,20 hrs 375 /hr 
0.40 hrs 295 /hr 
0.70 hrs 305 /hr 
1.00 hrs 350 /hr 
0.20 hrs 275 /hr 

Please include the bill number with your payment. 

Page 2 

$118.00 
$213.50 
$350,00 

$55,00 

$811.50 

$811.50 

$75,00 
$118,00 
$213.50 
$350.00 

$55.00 

$811.50 

$811.50 



Riverside Ivfonagement Services, Inc 

9655 Florida Mining Blvd. W. 
Building 300, Suite 305 
Jacksonvme, FL 32257 

BIii To 

Rolling Hills CDD 
,f75 West Towtl Pince 
Suite 114 
St, Augustine, FL 32092 

Quanlily 

Janitotltt~ Services~ May 2020 

O~scripUon 

1"3,'.?, S''?? ..... i'\(~\ 0 

P.O. No. 

PoolMaint~_nancc~crviccs-M~ylO~O \\'3-t>. S"'"?':,!-_1-4"''1-0 

ContraclA<lministra!fon-Mny2020 34~, S38? 01..too 

' 

Fti6.mtYM3nagement - Rolling Bills -May 2020 3 ti 3 if · ,) .. s-i.1 .. , 1:1-0 

00 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

511/2020 321 

Terms Project 

. 

Rate Amount 

1,070.00 t,070.00 
1,137.50 1,137.50 

1,708.33 l,70S.33 
4,461.08 4,-161.08 

Total $8.176.91 



WAS'rE MANAGEMENT 

How To Contact Us 

Visit wm.com 
To setup your ooline profile, sigi up for paperless 

statements, manage your axo .. mt, viewl"'diday schedules, 
pay your invdce e< schedule a pidvp 

Customer Service: 
(904) 260-1S92 

INVOICE 
Customer ID: 
Customer Name: 
Service Period: 
Invoice Date: 
Invoice Number: 

May 27, 2020 

!f full payma,t of the invoiced <'.tT'lCllnt Is not recewed 
vit:lin yoor contractual terms, you may t:e charged a 
'""1tliy late charge of 2.5%of tm ucp,idamcont with a 
mHmum monthly charge of $5, or such late charga 
allowed urxfer ap;j.icab!e law, regulatim ex-CO'll:ra::t 

Page1 of2 

12-16050-13008 
ROLLING HILLS COD 

05/01/20-05/31/20 
04/27/2020 

9431481-2224-6 

Your Total Due 

$1,008.63 
If payment is received after 

05/27/2020: $ 1,033.85 

See Reverse for Important Messages 

-41Ml+ti4t6i,GI + •40::l§:if--1111 + ■ ·i#UH4tlf4 i;:;;;,;13,;;;.;;, _ • ffi#il·t+• 
1 1,019.84 1 I <1.019 a4~ I I o.oo I + 1,ooa 63 I 1,aaa.63 I 
:=========-----'=====-'--'======'---'======'---'========; 
! Details for Service Location: 
' Rolling Hills Cdd, 3212 Bradley creek Pkwy, Green Cove Springs FL 
32043-7060 

f---------------------···· .. 
Description 
8 Yard dumpster 1 x week 
Fuel / environmental charge 

I
-Regulatory cost recovery charge 
Administrative charge 

I C!av countv franchise fee 

f Total Current Charges 

Customer (D: 12-16050-13008 

Date ,:icket Quantity Amount 

05/01/20 1.00 

...... -}<---------.-,.•,• ----------.-.------.-.. ----------.-.-.-.• "·"·•-·----Please.detach.and.sendthe.!ower.partion.~ith-paymenf .. - - --(no cash Or ~t;JJ/es, ---·-=-·-. :::_. --- ~ ---~ ----=·-_-;_ ~ - ~---=-=-~-=-~---

~ 

Vlllf"iftifI~Ji. Invoice Date Invoice Number CuSt omer ID 
, : (Include with your.payment), 

WASTE MANAGEMENT 

REFUSE SERVICES, !NC 

PO BOX 42930 
PHOENIX, Af. 85080 
(904) 260-1592 
{866) 381-9369 
(904) 260-1449 FAX 

04/27/2020 

p·ayment Terms 
Total Due by 05/27/2020 
If Received after 05/27/2020 

9431481-2224-6 12-16050-13008 

Total Due Amount 

$1.008.63 
$1.033.85 

~--..L---------' 

22240001216050130080943148100000100863000001□□863 0 

0082443 01 SP 0.500 ••SNGLP H 7718 33351 .C01-P82S15-11 !0290C41 

'I" 111, In I' I•' I' I, 111'1 j I I, I• hi II' Ill 'I' •1111111) 11 IIJ 11' 11111 
ROLLING HILLS COD 
5385 N KNOB HILL RD mm··• 
ROLLING HILLS 
SUNRISE FL 33351 

Remit To: 

THINK GREEN~ 

11,11 '1h 11•11 Pl 1, 11, 1111, • 1111, 11111, '", 1, I 11 •'II' 1 • 11, 11, 1, 11 
WM CORPORATE SERVICES, INC. 
AS PAYMENT AGENT 
POBOX4648 
CAROL STREAM, IL 60197-4648 

@ 
Pru1tdan 

w:yded paper. 



D 

5 EASY WAYS TO PAY 

Aut<)(flatic Payment 
Set up recurring payments with us at 
wrn.com/m_y;1ccount. 

Pay Through Your.financial Institution 
Milke a payment from your ~m11Kia1 in-;titutioo. lli!ng 
yourCustomerlD. 

one-lime Payment 
At your desk or on the go, use wm.com or our WM 
mobile app for a quick and easy payment. 

Pay by PhoM 
P;yab\e 2'1(7 using our automated system <1-l 
866-964-2729. 

Ma.Ult 
Write it, stuff It, stilmp it, ma~ it. Envelope pro111ded. 

•••• 

:''•?/·'Ji:;:~~ 
Enroll in Automatic Paymerits ·· ,~~; ;~ 
E'nron inAvtomoti~ Poymut< todoy '· 

KollTOCOOt~ctUi 

Visit wm.com 

' I _,. _____ , •. ',., __ ,..,, ___ ,,_,,..,,c· . ,-_ .. 

Page2of2 

HOW TO READ YOUR INVOICE 

Avgust19,2017 $124.73 

Automatic Payments 

States the date payment ls due to Waste 
Management. Anythi11g beyond that date may 
Incur .addlt!on<II <fargris, YoutTotal Due is the 
total arnmmt ofc:urrent charges. arid il!'ly 

pr,:,_Vlous unpaid balilnce5 combined. 

Previous bala!lce l$ the total due fromyoor 
pre\r]ous invoice. We subtract any Payments 
Received/Adjustments and add your 
C!ITT'ent ChargM from this billing cycle to 
get a TQ~al Due on this i11voice. If you have 
not paid all or a portion of your previous 
balance, pl2~ pay the entire Total Due to 
avoid a late charge of service Interruption. 

Service location details the totil current 
charges of this invoice. 

m 
Simplify your life with easy and reliable automatic payments. 
Save time, prevent late charges and help the environment, too. 

Get started by visiting wm.com/autopay. 

r(YWr $~rvke ri suspe(1ded° (~r' no;.;:paymen~ you ·ma;bectiar9etf a·Re511-mecii~i-9;:"i:O "iesuii-t iiUr~ce.· i;;;·eaai ·rett1m·ea· cltec"i;-;·a·c:hiii9"e"Wtii"i),i".is.ie\S~f on ·youi-' flexf iiivdce equal to the maxio\Ul'tl amount Perm·1ttelby 
appf;aible.state law, 

■ CHECK HERE TO CHANGE CONTACT INFO 

I List your new billing information below, Fer a <:hange of service address, 
please contact Waste W.anagement. 

: Address 1 ,_, _____ 
Address 2 ··----·-

. ctty 

State 
-· ·-

Zip -· 
Email ·--
Date Valid I 

-.. 

·-· 

■ CHECK HERE TO SIGN UP FOR AUTOMATIC PAYMENT ENROLLMENT 

!fl enroll in Automatic Payment services, l authorize Waste Management to pay my invoice by e.!ectronically 
deducting money from my bank account. I can cancer <1uthorization by notifying Waste Management at 
wm.com or by calling the customer service number listed on my irlVoice. Your enrollment could take 1 -2 
bliling cycles for Automatic Payments to take effect. Continue to submit payment until page one of your 
invoice reflects that your payment will be deducted, 

Eman Address 

Date 

· Bank Account Holder Signature 

NOnt~ By =ding your check. yco are authorizing ttieCompany ta use infonnatlon on your check to make a <me-time electronic debit toyrur ;:,ccount atthefinandal instllution lndicated Ql1 your chock. lhe 
electronic d~bit wlll be for the amount of yaur chock and may ou:ur as soon as the same day we receive your check. 

In Older fofUS tosetViceyouraccountorto collea :in_y amourrt'iyou may owe (for non-marketing orsoTicitatlon purposes), we may contact you by telephone at any telephone nurnb«thaty<iu provided in connection 
with your account, Including wirelesstelephortenumbers, which could result i, charge; to you. Methods of.;:ontact may Include text mes-,;:.ges, and using pre--recorded/artitlcia!vo1ce rnessagesand/oruseof an 
automatic dia~ng device, as appTicable. Wemayarso conc;ictyo,.1 by email or other methods as provided in our contract. 

Please send all bankruptcy correspondence to PO Box 43290, Phoenix, AZ 85080 (this language Is in compli<ince with 11 USC 342(c)(2) of the Bankruptcy Code) 

,, 



~---~---·-----• -- ----s.-·-•-*·• --------·-- ·---•--

• WILFORD PROPANE'G-AS~e'ti:';'iN~)"'1 ::20 

706 KINGSLEY AV8-l~_mlJ:.:};'1A\1' '.2(G..rd f·"\½\•~q _L 
ORANGE PARK, FLORIDA 32073 . 

(904) 264,2:)11 • ) 

-~•~~lll!lli~•••m•im'lllfl:fflili-oo;im·~·mw~•m111111111111!il!lll•mBB!llllliR·£Fli!filru,mc1Bl,lilii~@ 
I •1 Balance Forward $102. 72 

4/30/20 2831 i FINANCE CHARGE 1.54 

I :I 
I I 
I ' 
I I 

i 
,I 
,I 

r,,cco(,~rr-:r-·-rt .sAsE PAY Tor AL AMO-IJNTDUE·----..: 
1 11 6 1 7 I (fif::71JHN Tl-\lS STUB wn rt f>M~.ISN!) ) 

I 
I 

~"IATEMl:NI i.M.TE' I fi.EfF-RtNCf. 

4/30/20 00437 $104.26 
-----~---~-------•'------~---------~-~--·-~-------~ ------··--------------

Rolling Hills Resi Club 111617 
5385 N Nob Hill Rd 
Sunrise FL 33351 

, IH ! j 1 Hi h iP} 1 U ="P Ip l mJ iH I\, pl 1 !} n:~)L i jh l pd H} rf 



t«ffl' ~- D ~ 
O~D EXTERMINATING co., INC. 

21! OSCEOLA STREET• JACKSO>JV!LLE, F'L32204 
(904) 389-3323 • (866) 829-1913 • FAX (904) 389-9606 

ROLLING HILLS CDD 
C/0 FREDDIE 

475 WTOWN PL STE 114 
ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32092-3649 

ROLLING HILLS RESIDENT'S CL 
&POOL HOUSE 

3212 BRADLEY CREEK PKWY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FL 320 

IMPORTANT RENEWAL NOTICE 

RENEWAL Nof1c"i§'7 

Account#: 146679 

RENEWALDATE 6/1/2020 

RENEWAL AMOUNT $478.00 

THIS WARRANTY PROVIDES GUARANTEED PROTECTION AGAINST THE DREADED E. SUBTERRANEAN TERMITE! WE 
REQUIRE A THOROUGH INSPECTION, EVALUATION AND/OR TREATMENT EACH YEAR TO CONTINUE THIS SUPERIOR 
SERVICE. PLEASE CALL OUR FRIENDLY PEST MANAGEMENT PROFESSIONALS WITHIN 14 DAYS TO SCHEDULE YOUR 
NEXT APPOINTMENT. WE WfLL ACCOMMODATE ALL UNSCHEDULED ACCOUNT HOLDERS WITH OUR "AUTOMATIC" 
SERvicE FOR YOUR. CONVENIENCE. PLEASE ASK ABOUT OUR COMPLETE LINE oF sErNrces FOR YOUR"SPECrA,iPRJCJNG. 

TO PAY ONLINE VISIT US AT http://bandb.myserviceaccount.com 

' , ' ' , - -;: · , _ Rayment Recelj:!tc Please Return with Payment RemlttanCe. " .,_ • ' ' 
- . 

Bill-To: ROLLING HILLS COD 
C/0 FREDDIE 

475 WTOWN PL STE 114 
ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32092-3649 

Remit To: 8 & B Exterminating Co., Inc. 
215 Osceola St 
Jacksonville, FL 32204-2623 
904-389-3323 

Account#: 146679 

SERVICE: DR 

Renewal 
Acceptance 

B&B-ISR WORKWAVE 800-762-0301 gi Copyright2D15 WORKWAVE - All Rights Re$eNed 

Date: 6/112020 

$478.00 

Amount Paid: ___ _ 

Check No. ___ _ 



.1176 Old je:i,:,int;;~ Ho;1d, f.-1k,~kbu.:·~~-Fb.::i-:k 32fdi;:; 
Vi;::.i.~f: visit ,;1:, o.n -tht: ·.ve:~, ;_\i ,,-vw~;>',c\,yu:i!ity,,'.rg 

Hew;-~: J\'.b1,.d,,.y · F<td,1y; 8J!n·5}~,n P!wne: '904-272-S'.l''..:-:.:• 

Customer Name: ROLLING HILLS COD Bill Date: 05/06/2020 Customer#: 00260347 

Service Address· 3212-4 Bradley Creek Pkwy Resident's Club 

~'!'ilflsSl'~~5--~\~{ti:r~~~ill.Th1l 
Mete!' Meter Read Days Previous Current Current 
Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading Usage 

70003704 2 05/04/20 33 12 13 1 

Base Charges (Prepaid) 05/06/20 to 06/04/20 $85.30 
Consumption Charges ner 1 1.0 X 1.97 $1,97 

Proration Factor: 1. 1000 Tier2 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 
Tier3 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 
Tier4 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 

Alternative Water Supply Surcharge $1.06 

1£1k'o.it?Jf~i~fftt,1~:~tit;it,~f?t.~-:½c':?:'•tr!f~?ir;r~tft&t~t\li.':Q~~~;~~&..?~~1~~~tf. 
Base Charges (Prepaid) $193,18 
Consumption Charges 1.0 X 4.39 $4.39 --]f~itilt/litf\jjf-

( 

Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current 
Number Size Date BIiied Reading Reading 

Base Charges (Prepaid) 
Consumption Charges Tier 1 0.0 X 0.00 
Proration Factor: 0.0000 Tier2 0.0 X 0.00 

Tier3 0,0 X 0.00 

Other Charges 
Administrative Fees (Prepaid) 
Capacity Fees (Prepaid) 
Deposit Interest Refund 

Current Charges 
Previous Balance 
Late Charge (If Applicable) 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 

Please return this porlion with payment 

C;ay COllDly Utility Al!i.}1~mty 
?·17(5 ~)lei ~lenn\ng-"..~ Roa':J 
lvlk.idic-bxg, F!orida :.1>206~"3 

Cuaent 
Usage 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$285,90 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$285.90 

ROLLING HILLS COD Customer #:00260347 

Route #:MC13020738 
3212-4 Bradley Creek Pkwy Resident's Club 

6304 1 MB 0,436 18-18 

'• lu ( II ,I,' ,I, I•• II h •(' 1 I,•( I 'I' h II "'I 111, (111 l(I Ill I( ,(h( 11 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 
5385 N NOB HILL RD 
SUNRISE, FL 33351·4761 

l 

Route #: MC13020738 

Record numbers of people are unemployed, businesses 
are closed, and budgets are tight. We are growing our 
Lend a Helping Hand fund to help customers in need. 

If you are interested in rounding up your bill, simply 
round up your payment and note on your bill stub that 
you are applying the change to Lend a Helping Hand. 

If you would like to do more, you can donate to Lend a 
Helping Hand for any amount or even pay a friend or family 
member's bill. All donations are greatly appreciated and will 

-tie!pmircustomers in need: . ·--- -" -~ ·----··-··--···· "" 

Please pay $285.90 by 5/27/2020 to avoid a $3.00 late fee. 
Make checks payable to CLAY COUNTY UTILITY 
AUTHORITY. 

Your last payment of $272.86 was posted to your account on 
04/13/2020. 

Consumer Confidence and UCMR4 Reports are available 
at our office and online at: 
www.clayutility.org/ccr/LAG.pdf '"""" _ 

. • .·, ,-_.' ·.~ ;-'.\ :·i · .. '.·.•· ", ;., :_ ¼ -ii.. i.J ),\,-,,, . ~.,.,: .... .,,,. .. ., 

' 
·l .•, 

1 

) ~;;.A'i ' •• J, ~'·u•~,, ,, 

\"1 
\·1 ,; , .. , ,; !"•\ 

' .. 

Bill Date 
Current Charges 
Current Charges Past Due After 
Lend A Helping Hand (11 Applicable) 
Previous Balance 

Total Amount Due 

2U2.U ' 
'•·-· ., 

···-. - -··· 

Iv ' :3) 

11 II',, 11111IIII11h •11 I 1I II• 11' I, II' 1•1 I (I, ,11 ul '• 111' •'·ti' I•' 
CLAY COUNTY UTILITY AUTHORITY 
3176 OLD JENNINGS ROAD 
MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068 

05/06/20 

$285.90 

05/27/20 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$285.90 

CCUA-1170-4 
117~Q2QOC631)4 

00260347 2 MC13020738 0000028590 0000000 05272□2 □ 0 □ 



,r~:s·!'.nrr YffiJs 811i.£Lt: 

'•f•·1hpr., n.:it1•rr·1r,; \UV 11· n?vrr,/:);-i.t !'-v r-1~,f i']eaSf.l r:c::tirn i·tv~ • (;, ..I• • '-' U.,, , ,~ _: ....-\,! l.i"••·, j IV • >..-,; , V •) ;..J '~ V , ._,. • ~ V 

iower~,o:ton with your remittance. include yocr customer 
niJnbot 0:1 you: chect-<. er othe/ corres;)cndence. Do ~ot 
mall casr1. lNhsr1 paying yot1r brn in perscc1; p!Gase t-rlng 
the antire bili 1Nith ;ou. The upper pc:ton w·ili be starr.ped 
'(pald11 to se1·ve as your rece!pt. 

. liiB©UT Drrposrrs: 
Deposfts ere i!GCessar:ir to protect paying customers from 
l0sses caused by Uwse who do not pay. Deposli:s earn 
intern,:t an:iu2ny. Custumers with 1jeposits on me wH! 
receive interest credits on ti~ie \jii! rnce\·Jed after t\~:elr 12 
montl1 annivsrsary date ar.d each year the:-eafter during 
that same period. 

Cr::ne.rEc&1or1s: 
Pc.y:ue:its are due upon rnseipt. Any previous ba!ance 
bey0r:d r-ie du-9 date ·Jor~h2t bHH:ig period is past due and 
s1.:b;2ct tc '.lisccrinect\c,n. Customers r,1ay tia charged a 
!2.~e ~hcsge for past due payments. 

t~EFfr?Jlt1,'tE f:;f,lJ.!lJ.i~Ght: 

;i cha;-ge for additlor:cJ se;v:ces re!ated to your account 
sucl~ as irdtial co.nnectiu:: ot service: :-econnection after 
fat.;re to P2(:f1 premise vlsit1 aftet ho~ws premise visit1 

returr, check ct1arge: vio!c.tion o·f reconrectic-r\ etc. may 
apply. 

:,r.Jizx: 
Some municipalities tevy c. tax un servfces you use. It ls 
coHected by your utillty ancl rernirceC to the rnunic(µahy. 

AjtH~l'ur E~w;:..e..o·tz£Zs: 
Company poiic~/ prohibits ffeid personnel from collecting 
cash. All field employees are in compm1y un)·/orrr and 
carry identiflcation cards. . 

if your service is inten-upted$ p!eass ca'.l the telepl~ione 
nurober listed on the frcr:t of your bHL P!aase remember 
t\1&.t during severe ijveather service lnter:uption rnay IJe 
widesr;read, thus delayirg the repair of service. 

11,ccouNT br,FOl'IMAT//0/,i {;;i-;AMGEis: 

Piease note 1.Ne cc.rmot change the name or mainng 
address Dn this account without proper doccmentation. 
lf ti1e actu21 name o: rr12.Hing address on your account is 
incorrect: please vfsit us on the ,Neb at w'\n11,v.clayutWly. 
org_ ii you do not :1ave vueb accsssj you may call our 
toil free riurr.be:-ct 1-2:77 ~476-CCL!/.t Ho:ving the ccrrect 
tinilg (maHlng) actdress on your accDu!lt wm help ensure 
~roper delivery of :{o.ur bi!!. CCUA wm not be rssponsib!e 
fer returned rnaH c; disconnection of service du-e to ncn-¥ 
payment of your account should you not receive a bit 
If there is a discreoancy in your ser✓ice address, CCUA 
bi:ling st2ff wi!l have to verHy yow-correct address with 
,, C ' h , ' . I me ouriy uarore any cnange 1s rnaae. 

Please inchJde ar,n,1 rnaiiiriij ad\iress ci1ai~1:ies ori a set1airate 
,. .,.,,. """ !i 

en:r;!osll!re aillli rett1n1 v.,ith your biii stub ar.d paymerlt 
or visit RJs at tvvi.l'~slf.t~ayutility.r.rr.;.. 

JUI payn-1i~nrts a1'f,\ autorr1atic~luy processed, 
f\ir~ting cha11~es on this hiU sttib v111i!I 11ot en1sure 

~roper changes are n~ade to your at{~ount 



:H76 Old .;1.;,:;1.in.~;; l~-oi+.J, [1..,tkldidH.::T, rh,-{Ja 31(1(J8 
p;(:,::', . ..:· ,·is4.l '.iS au. ,h-:: w~·b ?.1 ,r.•.'tv.c'.;,yu:>:.\H:y:crg 

.Ho,;rs: .:Vl:m1d;;;y c rrhlay; 8:,_n~:-'.~?m Phc-n .. ~'.= 5'0·~•-272--)9~}9 

Customer Name: ROLLING HILLS CDD Bill Date: 05/0612020 Customer#: 00256584 

Service Address· 3215~2 Bradley Cteek Pkwy Reclaimed Irrigation 

~MBH.t&~~~t~~i,!lg,mB-
Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current 
Number Slze Date Billed Reading Reading Usage 

Base Charges (Prepaid) 05/06120 to 06104120 $0.00 

Consumption Charges Tier1 0.0 X 0,00 $0.00 
Proration Factor: 0,0000 Tier2 o.o X 0.00 $0.00 

Tier3 o.o X 0.00 $0.00 
Tisr4 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 

(¥:i'Jftif~W.;;;F.fJ;1::~J~1iff{~:,B:Jt);itfE~...;-'::;?f'?-\'(l~W~.iI,~t~~~~t1.-;i;ltf~$~;t\tff:rt!£\i 
Base Charges {Prepaid) $0.00 
Consumption Chatges 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 

~---t4;1J---~ 

( 

Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current 
Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading 

58730024 2 05/04/20 33 19366 19369 

Base Charges (Prepaid) 
Consumption Charges Tier 1 3.0 X 0.79 

Proration Factor: 1.1 000 Tier 2 0.0 X 1.56 
Tier3 o.o X 2.35 

Other Charges 
Administrative Fees (Prepaid) 
Capacity Fees (Prepaid) 
Deposit Interest Refund 

Current Charges 
Previous Balance 
Late Charge (If Applicable) 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 

Please return this portion with.p"aYment 

Clay C{Y...:nty \)Wily Authority 
:3176 Old JBnnings Rco.d 
MidcHebi;(g, ~lork:ia 3;:()(~/J 

Cu<rent 
Usage 

3 

$128.81 
$2.37 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$131.18 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$131.18 

ROLLING HILLS COD 

3215-2 Bradley Creek Pkwy Reclaimed Irrigation 

Customer #:00256584 

Route #:MC13020730 

6303 1 MB 0.436 18-18 

,1, ,1, 11o1, 111, 11, 11111111111 'I •I I "1111 •I I 11nI•111111111•1 I 111' 
ROLLING HILLS COD 
5385 N NOB HILL RD 
SUNRISE, FL 33351-4761 

) 

Route#: MC13020730 

Record numbers of people are unemployed, businesses 
are closed, and budgets are tight. We are growing our 
Lend a Helping Hand fund to help customers in need. 

If you are interested in rounding up your bill, simply 
round up your payment and note on your bill stub that 
you are applying the change to Lend a Helping Hand. 

If you would like to do more, you can donate to Lend a 
Helping Hand for any amount or even pay a friend or family 
member's bill. All donations are greatly appreciated and will 
, ,elp-o~r-costomersin-need;--·· ------- ·-~- -- -·. 

Please pay $131.18 by 5127/2020 to avoid a $3.00 late fee. 
Make checks payable to CLAY COUNTY UTILITY 
AUTHORITY. 

Your last payment of $128.95 was posted to your account on 
04/13/2020. 

".'--' .,,._._ :· - . .. ,, ···• . .. 
-'. ... . ' 

.;.,' , .. ~:-., ;~ ;_1 , .. 
. .. _;'./ 

MAY 1 ·} 202U • i ·1 i 
~-~ -.;.: 
1~ \i ;-, \,_,.,. 

' . "'"" ------· ··-- .. ---- ---· . ---

il-3r 

nnw+,Dtfi'l:iti4~ 
Bill Date 
Current Charges 
Current Charges Past Due After 
Lend A Helping Hand (If Applicable) 
Previous Balance 
Total Amount Due 

11 I 1 •111111111' 1, ii I' 1111 I II• I 1• 1,11•1 •I I 11, ,II, ·I I 11I I I 1I 'IM'. 
CLAY COUNTY UTILITY AUTHORITY 
3176 OLD JENNINGS ROAD 
MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068 

05/06/20 

$131.18 

05127/20 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$131.18 

CCUA-1170-4 
117(J.!YQ/20200(}5:lt13 

00256584 5 MC13020730 0000013116 0000000 05272020 0 0 



\Nf-:er retu~n!ng: /Our payrn-31t by ma![l p{eass rs'ti..irn the 
t:r~ver ~ortion V•.f;th /our :smittance. lnc!~de your custorrer 
rn;mber on yo;.ir check or ctrier correspundence. Do 1;ot 
mo.ti casl':. \fV\-':en paying youi' bill ir: pers(.T;; please bring 
tt":e 0ritfre bW wlth you. The upper p:xtion wrn be stamped 
upaid11 to serve as y·our receipt. 

;,~8D~T !!JEf'JDSf!fS; 

Deposits are necessary to protect p2ying customers from 
tosses caused by ti1ose who do net pc:y. Deposits eam 
!n:erest cr;nually. Customers \iV\~i~ deposits on me wiH 
;sse:ve interest credlts on the bHi received ifrter thstr -i 2 
mo 1th anniversary date and each year t!1ereafter durlng 
tnat sa~e pertod. 

Payrrents are due up(:an receipt Any· orev!ous b2Jance 
beyond th& due date f:x tl1at b!!l!ng period is past due an~ 
subject to d!scormectlon. Custorrers ifi2Y ce ch!Fged a 
iate ~harge ·for past a'ue payments. 

-$JEg:JVfCz1 ftMA{:Ztit:tt 

A c'.:arge fo;-additio;ial serifices related to your acccunt 
s:Jc:1 as inWa! connection of ssndce: recon:iection after 
fa2i1Ye w pay) 1:rerrise visit a"fter hours premise visit 
:eturn ci1ecK cr:a:gs) vlolaticn of recornBction, etc. may 
app\y. 

Sarne :-nu~.icipai!tfes i0tiY a tax on s&rvices you use. it is 
collected by ym,i;-utiEty a'!d remitted to ti1e 1nunic!p2:Hty. 

J.ftsour, ~tvH::1t.01?ififESZ: 

Cornpanv oo!!cy prohibits fie!d personnel fron coH&ct!ng 
cash. All fiel(} emp-loyees are !n compar,y un\·torm am: 
carry identification cards. 

lf your service is in~errupted, please cal\ the teiephone 
~umber iisted on t!1e front of your bill. Please rernemt:e!· 
that during se\lern 1Neat!1er service interruption rnay be 
1.xid-:;spread1 ~hus delay[ng the repair of service. 

Ac.:oi.1m" Ji/Jr:or-iMl',now CNMDGEs: 

Please n,:}te ,rve cat1not change the name er marnng 
address on th[s account without proper docurner.tation. 
n tl1e actual narne or maiHng ad.clress en your account ls 
incorrect1 please vlsit L'.s on the vveb at W"JVW.c:/ayutiiH.y. 
o:·g. ff ycu do not r:ave web 2.ccess: you. may caH our 
toil ftee nur:-1bsr at ~1-877 ~476-CCUA. Having the cor~sct 
bHHng (malling) address en your account wm help enst:re 
p1oper 1jeHvery of your bill. CCUA v,;Hl not be responsible 
·for rfftUrned ma.ii or Gisccrmection crf service due to non
payment of your account shouid you not receive a bi!L 
if there 1s a cHscrnpancy in your service address: CCUA 
bi!iing staff will have to verl~y your co:Tect address witf, 
the County before any c:hange ls made. 

https:/ /www .c/ayuti i ny. org/ ccr 

P!r;ase include any ma!iirig address ch<Einges f.ln a sei1a1rate 
~ric!o~urlil ariu~ re'tliHi \/'Jith :1101Jr bi!i stub and r;ayn·H:Hlrt 

or visit us at w'livw,t!ayutiiitl,'.or;,. 
A.!i payrnents are autor.1atically processed. 

Notirng char!ges on this bUI si:!Jlb i.81.ti!! not !fff1surre 
pnlfJfir changes are rnade to yiiur :ar;[;Ol!nt 



j l.76 o.:.d Je1,'..n.i•lp R..:.;2,;!, ;'<,fid.dkburg. Hmtda --~2068 
Plea:,-;; '!i.::i;, :.,.~ :ir:. ths: V/t;b ar v,,-,,;w.d?.yt: c<._lh.y.G:-g 

1-fot:r:;: ·t;,<w:(L;{y - h·hb.y, g,::m1-)p;n Phnr;~: ){l4./72-5SF)9 

Customer Name: ROLLING HILLS COD Bill Date: 05/06/2020 Customer#: 00253042 
Roule #: MC1 3020736 

Service Address: 3212-3 Bradley Creek Pkwy Irrigation 

•-~•~#4'1:iWm'.lli~-~ 
Meter' Meter Read Days 
Number Size Date Billed 

696sns1 2 os/04/20 33 

Previous 
Reading 

27257 

Current 
Reading 

27553 

Base Charges (Prepaid) 
Consumption Charges 
Proration Factor: 1.1000 

05/06/20 to 06/04/20 

Alternative Water Supply Surcharge 

Tier 1 
Tier2 
1ier3 
11er4 

88.0 X 1.47 
132.0 X 3.04 
76.0 

0.0 
X 

X 

3.94 
5.06 

Current 
Usage 

296 

$85.30 
$129.36 
$401.28 
$299.44 

$0.00 

$1.06 

Record numbers of people are unemployed, businesses 
are closed, and budgets are tight. We are growing our 
Lend a Helping Hand fund to help customers in need. 

If you are interested in rounding up your bill, simply 
round up your payment and note on your bill stub that 
you are applying the change to Lend a Helping Hand. 

If you would like to do more, you can donate to Lend a 
Helping Hand for any amount or even pay a friend or family 

.. f;,,':""''i""~~;il,::s;Y'''··'l'''··""'"",;,g;~s:,t,-"'""'"'''"'''W"'°''''"''·~"'""''i;,,•,-"~~,,,,, member's bill. All donations are greatly appreciated and will 
• ,,_,_., .. ·,,., ,,,.... ·· ·· , .• ~@.,,, •· •'·"'""'''"' · .. " · - ·· ·~0""'"' • • nerp our costom·el"S7n·need.-- ·· ----- --- - · 
Base Charges (Prepaid) $0.00 
Consumption Charges o.o x o.oo $0,00 -•-;~~· Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current 
Number Size Pate Billed Reading Reading Usage 

Base Charges (Prepaid) 
Consumption Charges 
Proration Factor: 0.0000 

Administrative Fees (Prepaid) 
Capacity Fees (Prepaid) 
Deposit Interest Refund 

Current Charges 
Previous Bala.nee 
late Charge (If Applicable) 

Tier 1 0.0 x 
Tier2 0.0 x 
Tier 3 0.0 x 

Other Charges 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$916.44 
$0.00 
$0.00 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE $916.44 

Please pay $916.44 by 5/2712020 to avoid a $3.00 late fee. 
Make checks payable to CLAY COUNTY UTILITY 
AUTHORITY. 

Your last payment of $789.56 was posted to your account on 
04/13/2020. 

Consumer Confidence and UCMR4 Reports are available 
at our office and online at: 
www.clayutility.org/ccr/LAG.pdf 

Please return this portion with payment ~- filfil;;ifi'.l'.(>;~. Q.~ 

Ciay Cotmty Utiih:y Aut21ori'ty 
3176 Old Jenr,ings R0c.1ci 
1\.·1:ddlebur-rJ, F!odda J20G8 

ROLLING HILLS CDD 

3212-3 Bradfey Creek Pkwy Irrigation 

63021 MB0.436 18-18 

Customer #:00253042 

Route #:MC13020736 

1 •h h' • •1111h , .. 'I I•'• ml•" 1 l•1 • 1• 1• •I• 1, 1,11111 •I ii I h• 11h 1 

ROLLING HILLS CDD 
5385 N NOB HILL RD 
SUNRISE, FL 33351-4761 

Bill Date 
Current Charges 
Current Charges Past Due After 

Lend A Helping Hand {If Applicable) 

Previous Balance 
Total Amount Due 

1, h•1 • 1111, 1,1111 h• 11• ii II• I 1 • I, I 1 •1•1111, ,t I, ,1111I I I 11 •1 I• I•• 
CLAY COUNTY UTILITY AUTHORITY 
3176 OLD JENNINGS ROAD 
MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068 

05/06/20 

$916.44 

05/27/20 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$916.44 

CCUA-1170-4 
1170--S4v.202000o302 

00253042 9 MC13020736 0□ 0 □ 091644 ODO□□□□ 05272020 0 □ 



./«6:r!.1i.Jl 'tMJ:..t i!J.JEUL': 

v,Jr:en retun~t;;g your p2.yrner;t by mai:, dease return :r:e 
trJve; pc,-t:on Yilth your remittance. incfude yourct;stomer 
n~1m&er 01 your check or ot1""1Si' cotres;:r;nd9r:ce. Do ::ot 
l'"f'.&.i! cc.sh. ~V\1er: payin1;J ~/ciur bi!i in ~ersc;;: please bring 
the entire b!H ',Nlth you. The upper porton v\11-!! be stamped 
1(p2.fd;: to sarJe as your receipt. 

Deposits are necessary to protect payir:g customers from 
losses caused by tl7ose WfJo 6.o no~ pay. Deposits earn 
inte'.est an~uaHy, Customers 1Nfth dep.osi1s on fiie wil: 
recslve interest 8redits. on the nm received after their i 2 
;-nonth anniversary date and each year U1er&atter during 
that same perioi::l. 

C-o!A .• Etcaeou:.;:; 
Fayrnents are dus upon receiyt. f-UW pn~vious balanc,9 
beyc-nd tr& due date fer ths.t ;-)ining period is past due and 
subject :o disconnecton. Customers rnc.y be charged a 
!ate charge tor past due payments. 

:fJEJPnlICIE -f:;Nll!?GE: 

fJ.. charge ·for adciltionai s2x~1lces re!at30 ta your accoun1: 
such as ;nlt!a'. conrect:on of servfce; recnnnect!.an after 
falh.!r& to pay\ premis.e visit, aner hours p:-smise visit, 
return check charge1 vfolat:01 of re~onn,sction1 etc. may 
a}ply, 

TA},[;} 

Some n1unicipaHtes IBvy a tax en services yGL use. !t is 
Gol!ected by y,ju, utility a,r:1 remitted to tl,e municipality. 

foil3DJJ1' i;.'fJ}'f!ft1lLO }~EPES: 

Ccrnpany policy iXOhibits field p.srsonne: fron1 collectlog 
cash. AH fletd employees arn rn company uniform and 
carry identification sards. 

'lf your service ls ir!terrupted; please. call the telephone 
ta.ariber listed on the 1-ront o"f your bBL Please remember 
tt-1at during severe vveatfJBr service lnterrnptkm rriay be 
v1/despread, thus delaying the repair ot scrvlcs. 

Accou1·rr li'.iFORNIAT;GN CHANGES: 

Please note we cannor change ti1e name or malling 
address or i:his account \fl.'ithout p;oper c!ocumentation. 
!f tile actual name or mailing address on your account is 
incorrect\ please visit us on trte web at \N\1\fw.c~ayut!W~Y
org. H: you do net hava web access, you :nay caii our 
toil free number at '.-677-476-CCUA .. Ha·1lng the correct 
bi!iir.g {mailing) address on your account wm heip ensure 
prcper deHvery of your bHL CCUA w!!l rot be responsible 
for returned maH or Disccrmectlon sf s'.3rvlce due to ~or
pa~1ment Jf your account should J;cu not receive a bHi. 
lf there ls a discrepancy in your ser·.:ice 2.ddressl CCUA 
tWing staff v\1iii !lave to verify your correct acldress 11Vith 
the County< before any change is made. 

:Tttps:/ /v1Jwvv. c!ayut Hty .org/ ccr 

,~,, . I "' ,,. -~~ r,e~se 111G U(118 ~ny rnliUH!!l~ aulllress chang~r; t,n a separate 
iancltisure al1rll r~turn 11!lith yCRff bUl ~tub and Pfl;;Jn1fnt 

rH' visit us at li',Hf11'\IV"ch:1yuti!ity,org, 
JJ.li payrrieni:s are arnto~naticaHy pnicessed, 

Noting chaniJi&s on thi§ bill stub wiii not ensure 
proper· changes are mad® to your accoutnt 



.-:i-17!:i Oic! J:::r;n;as-. .i.l,xi<:i, .!vtiddt~hu::-:;-H,nda Ji,068 
Pk.i::;,! ·1~:-.!( :.i.~ cT ~h-:: wdl :st w1v\v,d;1-y,:;1ili~y.c•rg 

Fum:.;: Mondc1.y" Erjtfay i_!.:m1-5pm Ph.u:v.::: 9~),}--272-5;'.)9',I 

Customer Name: ROLLING HILLS COD Bill Date: 05/0612020 Customer #: 00244869 
Route #: MC13020734 

Service Address: 3212 ~2 Bradley Creek Pkwy Reclaimed Irrigation 

@1lMsfi--?IIPttnltli--'l• 
Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current 
Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading Usage 

Base Charges (Prepaid) 05/06/20 to 06/04/20 $0,00 
ConsumpUon Charges Tier 1 0,0 X 0.00 $0.00 
Proration Factor. 0.0000 Tier2 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 

Tier3 o.o X o.oo $0.00 
Tier 4 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 

Record numbers of people are unemployed, businesses 
are closed, and budgets are tight. We are growing our 
Lend a Helping Hand fund to help customers in need. 

If you are interested in rounding up your bill, simply 
round up your payment and note on your bill stub that 
you are applying the change to Lend a Helping Hand. 

If you would like to do more, you can donate to Lend a 
Helping Hand for any amount or even pay a friend or family 

[,f,;~f~~~fi-1tt~~-~~~:;~tlkfiiiftt~~-l'i'tf;-?-;:/i·;;~\~~~{~~(iif~1,,~~b~~~{!~.';~~:$l~~J? membe~s bill. All donations are greatly appreciated and will 
· help ou,castomers in need.· -

Base Charges {Prepaid) $0.00 
Consumption Charges 0,0 x 0.00 $0.00 

Please pay $759.98 by 5127/2020 to avoid a $3.00 late fee. 
~mD'J.~iRIIW-Jtl:it/1'1 Make checks payable to CLAY COUNTY UTILITY 

Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current AUTHORITY. 
Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading Usage 

68272412 2 05/04/20 33 64657 65028 371 

Base Charges {Prepaid) 
Consumption Charges 
Proration Factor: 1.1000 

Tier 1 
Tier2 
Tier3 

132.0 
44.0 

195,0 

( Other Charges 
Administrative Faes (Prepaid) 
Capacity Fees {Prepaid) 
Deposit Interest Refund 

Current Charges 
Previous Balance 
Late Charge (If Applicable) 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 

X 

X 

X 

0.79 
1.56 
2.35 

Please return this portion with payment 

C(.3y C;o·,Jnty Utiiity i\lH;'ody 
3-175 O!<J ,Jennings Ho~1() 
~.h::JdieGU1IJ, ~:;orkja ::td)68 

$128.81 
$104,28 

$68.64 
$458.25 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0,00 

$759,98 
$0,00 
$0,00 

$759.98 

ROLLING HILLS COO Customer #;00244869 

Route #:MC1 3020734 
3212 -2 Bradley Creek Pkwy Reclaimed Irrigation 

6301 1 MB 0,436 18-18 

1• 1,111 r I• u 111••11111111•111• •1111 •I 111 I• 1 lh· 111111111• •11 •II• 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 
5385 N NOB HILL RD 
SUNRISE 1 FL 33351-4761 Fil 

Your last payment of $714.05 was posted to your account on 
04/13/2020. 

~Wf IDll§'.!lfuti~~ 
Bill Date 
Current Charges 

Current Charges Past Due After 

Lend A Helping Hand (If Applicable) 
Previous Balance 

Total Amount Due 

I 111•111111, 1, II 11 I 1 •1111 Ill• 11, 1, h• 1 •I If 1,' II,' 111111111 ·1 I• I•. 
CLAY COUNTY UTILITY AUTHORITY 
3176 OlD JENNINGS ROAD 
MIDDlEBURG, FL 32068 

05/06/20 
$759.98 

05/27120 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$759,98 

CCUA-1170·4 
1170-5//in02000630f 

00244869 8 MC1302 □734 □□□□□ 75998 00000 □□ 05272020 DD 



VVhen ;·et.Jrnln·g your payment by ma!!! please retur:1 the 
'.ovver portioti vviU1 yc~.ff nsm!ttance. incit..:de your cu~.to'.Tler 
rumt1e!' on your c'.1eck or ether correspondence. Do not 
maH cas\1. '.Nhen paying y1our ti:!1 ln person, p!sase bring 
·tie enttre blll 1Nith you. The uppe!' pGri:ion vvi:1 be stamped 
(t(~i'j·:•:i, ;,.,,-,, ~e\"1rr-. !:i~ W'i'I'' ''tlcr,,:,.lr,1· 

p~ '-" tu'-- ,v ...,.,._, J.,.l.1 /vvv!pt. 

Af!!;ot.nr DrEPOStffst 

Deposits a:e necessary to protect paying customers frorr. 
!02.ses caused b1r t!-iose wi7o do not pay. Deposits earn 
1ntersst annually. Gusto:ners 'Nith deposits or me wm 
receivB lrterest credits. on tl1e bil! received after t!1eir 12 
rnunth anni11ersari date and each year thereafter during 
ti'1at same per!od. 

?aymtnts am due upon receipt. Any previous bc.!ancc 
beycnd the jus date for that biiEng psrlcd is past due and 
su0Ject to fsccnnecUGr:. Customers may \JS charged a 
:ate cr:arge for past due payments. 

fa.. c!'":arge fc: addi'tlcr:a! s0rvlc,2s related to ytJ'.Jr account 
s-Jch zs t-;itial ccr:nection of servlce: reconnect1on after 
}aHure to payl premise vist( 2fter_1~:nu:·s premise visitl 
return check chs.rgel violation of reconne:ctior\ etc. may 
C()pl:,i. 

Some rnunicipa\!t!es ievy a tax on servicas you use. 1t is 
cc!\ected by y0w-ut!Hty and rerrliied to the :l:uciclpamy. 

AIBOU7 ~&liPl.OYEJi!1$:J 

Company policy prohibits field pwsonne! tmm collecting 
cash. AU fle!d ernpl<Jy·ees are iq company uniform and 
carry identlfication cards. 

;f your serice !s interrl'.pted1 please call the lelephmie 
number listed on the front of your bi!!. Please remember 
that dur!ng sevsre weather service interruption mc.y be 
widespread1 t!'.us delaying 'j1e repair vf service. 

AccaiJ/111' INFO!'IMA-r/ON Ci-MNGES: 

P:ease ;,ote we cannot change the name or mailing 
a.ddrnss on this account vv':thout proper documertatfon. 
!f the actua! name or maiiir.g address on your account is 
incorract1 please visit us on the \Neb at W\11✓-vv.c/ayui!Hty. 
c~g. If yGu do not have vveb o.ccessl you may cai! ou.r 
tel} free 11<:Jmber at i ~877-476-CCUA. i-i2ving the correct 
b!li1ng (mailing) address or your account vvHI help .ens.ure 
prop-er aaHvery of 3rour bi!!. CCU.1~ wi!\ not be responsibis 
for ~etumed rnaii or disconnection elf service due to non
payment of your account shou1d you not receive a bl!!. 
lt them is a discrepancy in your servics address; CCU,6, 
blWrig staff 'NiH have 1~0 'Jer\fy your coTect address with 
the County before any change is made. 

Please hicltide ain11 1riai!!11g address changes 011 a separate 
er1cios1rnn:½ ~nd return vvith your bHI s'hllb arid pa:ynient 

CCUP..-1170-4 

or v§slt us at \i'liWW.ciavuti!itvJ}!'•", 
.:, ,b ~ 

AU pa1n-n~nts are aMtomaticaHy prncessEl!d, 
Noting changes iJ11 this biH stub tJ1Ji!! nrit ensMre 

r1:n»p~r ch~nges are rriade to your account 



5176 (.!f<l.J1:11:1.i~~~-? "Ru;,,~;, hAidlkl_)urg, Floridc1.520(,k 

F!,.;;aM'. vi.~.it •,i..:, on tlv· web itt \YfF"'>',-::'..1yl!.dH1.y.,}rg 

i·fo;.1rs; Mrrnd.ily - fi·id..!.y, 8~Jn-•5?nl Ph>J.lt:: ')Wi--272--)•~-~)9 

Customer Name: ROLLING HILLS CDD Bill Date: 05/06/2020 Customer #: 00244868 
Route#: MC13020732 

Service Address: 3212 -1 Bradley Creak Pkwy Reclaimed Irrigation 

-1.i~-~'k~1!6.~ffl'if~-~~ 
Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current 
Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading Usage 

Base Charges (Prepaid) 05/06/20 to 06104120 $0.00 
Consumption Charges Tier1 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 
Proration Factor: 0.0000 Tier2 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 

Tier3 0.0 X o.oo $0.00 
Tier4 o.o X 0.00 $0.00 

Ut~t~"'1~{~~;:~~0ffe~~~~~!~¥~"~~\Z::'.tl7'i~;~JZ~{f'Jc?~{~~n~~-1'.~~£-~Y~~'-J?:;~~r1f 
Base Charges (Prepaid) $0.00 
consumption Charges 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 

~tiIDB:~~ 

( 

Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current 
Number Size. Date Billed Reading Reading 
68272411 2 05/04/20 33 73914 73914 

Base Charges (Prepaid) 
Consumption Charges Tier 1 0.0 X 0.79 
Proration Factor: 1.1000 Tier2 0.0 X 1.56 

Tier3 0.0 X 2.35 

Other Charges 
Adminlstrative Fees (Prepaid} 
Capacity Fees (Prepaid) 
Deposit Interest Refund 

Current Charges 
Previous Balance 
Late Charge (If Applicable) 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 

Please return this portion with payment 

C!?1Y County Utility A.ui.hGdty 
;:; 17f. O!d .)er,ning:;; Read 
fvlidci!,=:.burg, F-!o,!da. -32:068 

Current 
Usage 

0 

$128.81 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$128.81 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$128.81 

ROLLING HILLS GDO 

3212 -1 Bradley Creek Pkwy Reclaimed Irrigation 

Customet #:00244868 

Route #:MG13020732 

6300 1 MB 0.436 18·18 

u •111 II 111 I ,I 111111 I• II 1111 Ill, I' ,II I 11 •Ill lu 1,111, 1 lh I II h I I I 
ROLLING HILLS COD 
5385 N NOB HILL RO 
SUNRISE, FL 33351-4761 

) 

Record numbers of people are unemployed, businesses 
are closed, and budgets are tight. We are growing our 
Lend a Helping Hand fund to help customers in need. 

If you are interested in rounding up your bill, simply 
round up your payment and note on your bill stub that 
you are applying the change to Lend a Helping Hand. 

If you would like to do more, you can donate to Lend a 
Helping Hand for any amount or even pay a friend or family 
membe~s bill. All donations are greatly appreciated and will 
·heqrourcustomers in need.-------- -·-- ---

Please pay $128.81 by 5/27/2020 to avoid a $3.00 late fee. 
Make checks payable to CLAY COUNTY UTILITY 
AUTHORITY. 

Your last payment of $126.58 was posted to your account on 
04/13/2020. 

f •·:,, ,. -.. , ... _ /' ~ ~ . ·,-, .- '---, .. , •,' ., 
' .. 

,.1,.,,.':, }\ 
. :_,,;., "·~, ;:._ .. :;,i . ' ' .t:.j 

, l ' /Yli-\" ·' ~ 1 ! 
i,-1 

l, ~{ :,, 

L· ,',~ ... ····-·---

Bill Date 

Current Charges 
Current Charges Past Oue After 

Lend A Helping Hand (If Applicable) 

Previous Balance 

Total Amount Due 

' ! 2020 l '. 
•- .. ,_. 

--, ... ------···--~--.. --

\ I ') 1._. \V-

III I '11111111111 I lh •1111 I II• I 1 • I, h 'I' 11 II, ,11 nl I 11 I I I 11' 1 I• I•' 
CLAY COUNTY UTILITY AUTHORITY 
3176 OLD JENNINGS ROAD 
MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068 

05/06/20 

$128.81 

05127120 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$128.81 

CCUA-i 170-4 
1170-5161'1020006300 

00244868 3 MC13 □2 □ 732 0000012881 00000 □□ 05272020 D □ 



~Hr.en returning your payme:-·rt i:;y rn0.ii: please (sti .. Jn !he 
!nwer pcrtlon vdth your rem:ttance. lnc!u-ie your custornei· 
number on your check or other· corresp0ndsr.ce. Do 1-;ot 

'I ' ''/' ' b'"' , ' , T;2!l, CES;i. 11'./ner: p.c~ymg y0ur m i1: perso:11 pieass Drmg 
the entire bHi with you. Tile up;Jer pcrt;on v1m be starnped 
(!pa!c?' tJ serve as your receipt. 

. ~BQU,7 DEPOSD1'@;1 

Ueposi1s are nscsssary to protec! pay}ng c1Jstcr.1ern frnm 
losses caused by those v1!1-io do nut pay. Deposits ean: 
lnte:est arnua!!y. Customers \Nit:1 dep0sits on tle win 
receive interest credits on the t;m received after their 12 
rr;onth anniversary date and each yea: mereafter during 
that same perl0d. 

Payments are due upon receipt P.ny prev!a~s balance 
:.-.A""r .J .1.),,6 rl--a da·~r, -to~+~,;;,-~ biq1·'"',.. n.C.J.;'1.0 ;.., pas+r-:,iA "'"'rt :J.,-p.J.:Ul.i{ ,.JU lvi \ u:-~~ ;,i::.t'd;J'Jt!"s.;-i(;j l,\,\UVCHiU 

subjeci 'tc d!sconrect.lon. Customers m&.y be ~harg.ed a 
tatG cha:-ge for past due pavments. 

A charge for atid!tlon&.1 serv\.ces ~eiated to your accou;it 
sL:cr: cs inltfc.! connection cf service: recorme{;t;o;i a;:.te: 
faibre lo pa':( pren1!se vist( aftsr h:JGrs premise visit, 
retrrn chec!< charge: violation cf rnconnectionl etc. may 
&pPl'f, 

'P'JtJ[g 

Some rnuriicipciiti6s levy o. tax en serv!c.es yau use. Jt is 
coHected by you: utiil".:y and remitted to H1-e munic!paiitr 

.tSmo.,u·r IEMPlt:t•Y~,@s3 

Company policy prohibits field personnel from c:onect!ng 
ccsh. !~Jl field employees are in company uili°fnrm and 
carry identification cards . 

H ycur service ls lntsrrupted: please 8ai! the telephone 
number Hsted on the frofft of your Dill. Please rernemb-er 
ti1at during severe \l\feat!1er s&rvice interruption may be 
wictespre2d, th~s delayir,g the repair ;Jf service. 

Jk;co1.1NT INIFO!'IMATiOl\1 CHANG!i!S: 

Please note we cannot change ',re name or maiiir,g 
address 01 this account iNHhout proper Cocumentatior.. 
if trie ac·tual name or mailing address on your accour:t ts 
incorrect plea.se visit us on the \Neb at vvvvw.clay'utii!ty. 
org. If you do not have web access: you rn2,y cal! OLll" 

to!! free number at 1-877-4-76-CCUA. Having the correct 
bi!ling (mailing) address on your accou:,t will help ensure 
proper delivery of your blii. CCUA ·wm not iJ3 rnspcrsii:fe 
fer returred maii or 1.tscon:1ecton of se:·vtc3 due to non~ 
payment of your c,c:our.t should you 110t receive a biil. 
lf there ts a discrepancy in your service address1 CCUi5, 
bH!i:1g sta'!f vvHJ have to verify your correct address with 
U1e County before c:ny change is made. 

Piraase ir1u:i1Jldie 12H111 rnai!irig arh:!n~ss changes 011 a separate 
aru::i1Jsure aru:! ret1.1n1 Vlfith your bill staJb a11d riayrrien-t 

CC'.JA- l 1 ?IJ-4 

or 'ii'isit us at 1r!itl1UiiV,ciayuti!ity,~rg, 
Ali pffyrneil'!its an':t ,u,1iomaticai!~' prv1cessett 

r~oting ch~riges on tfilis bal stub wi!! ~·1ot ensuire 
pnJ1Jer ch~1'Eges are n1ade to yornr acccl!lnt 



35· 3 US ~!.\', 17 • fle~lng lslend, Fl 32003 
P.10ne; [9:;4) 264-3200 

1102A1A Nolh, lkltt 108 • f'Dnle Vedra Beach, FL 32082 
Phoae: (904) 285-8831 

Advertising Invoice 

ROLLING HILLS CDD C/O GMS LLC 
475WTOWNPL SV.IT'i:: I1'-j 
C/OGMS,LLC 
SAINT AC GUSTINE, FL 32092 

Salesperson: Clay Legals 

Advertisement Information: 

[__ .. ____ Description 

l9a:y_!oday 

Payment Information: 
Date: 
04/27/2020 

Order# 

311368 

Classification: Legal Notice 

Type 
BILLED ACCOUNT 

Cust#:503071 
Ad#:311368 
Phone#:904-940-5850 
Date:0412712020 

Ad Size: 1.0 x 6.50 

Total Amount 65.00 

Tax: 0.00 

Amount Due: 65.00 

Attention: Requests for credits or refunds for early cancellations must be made within 90 days. 

Ad Copy 
NO'rlCE OF RULE 
DEVELOPMENT 

BY THE ROLLING HILLS 
COltUdUNlTl' DEVELOPr,mNT 

BfSffH€i' 
In accord with. Chapters 120 and 190, 
Florida Statute5, the Rollina: Hills 
Commwtlty Development D\miet 
("District'} hereby gives 11otlce of its 
intention to develop Rules of 
Proc.edlll'<! to govern lbe operations 
orthe Dlstric.l 
The Rule.'! or Procedure wlll :a.ddrnss 
such areas :u the Board of 
SupetvisQts, officer,, and voting, 
district offices, public lnfonnation 
and. inspection of records, policies, 
pubUe meetings, heariogs and 
work.shops, nilemaking proceedings 
and competitive purcltruie lncludin{l 
procedure under the Consultanls 
Competl~tve Negotiation Act, 
procedure regarding auditot 
selection. puJ'l.'hase of ittSllraJJ.Ce, 
pre-qualification, constructlon 
contl'acts, goods; supplies and 
materials, · malntenw.ce · services, 
conlraclual ,e-rviaes and proteris 
with respect to proceeding_.;, as w'alll 
as any otber area of the general 
operation of the nlstrlct. 
The purpose and effecl of the Rules 
of Pr,icedul'e is to provide for 
,e-{f.l'.).)eRt. oAA<i, ~!,'l:y.~ -Di-Sti:wt
OperatiOJlS and to en.sure compUance 
with receot changes to Florida law. 
The legal authority for the adoption 
of the proposed Rules of Procedure 
Includes sectioTIS 190.011(5). 
HIO.Oll(H'i} and 180.035, Florida 
St.atutes (2011)). The spec!lk laws 



irrefox 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF CLAY: 

PUBLISHER AFFIDAVIT 
CLAY TODAY 

Published Weekly 
Orange Park, Florida 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared 
Jon Cantrell, who on oath says that be is the publisher of the 
"Clay Today" a newspaper published weekly at Orange Park in 
Clay Cowtty, Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement 
<>einia-•· 
NOTICE OF RlJLEDEVELOPMENr 

in the matter of 

ROLLING HILLS 

-eRBll'R, ill36& 

was published in said newspaper in the issues: 

04/30/2020 

Affiant further s,ays that said "Clay Todai' is a newspaper published 
at Orange Parle, in said Clay County, Florida, and !hat the said netvspaper 
has heretofore been continuously published in said Clay County, Florida, 
weekly, and has been entered as Periodical material matter at the post 
·effiee-in-9.ronge-P-tirk, -ifl:filttd-Bley-Bettm>-;; -Rru.1.da; ffl-i,~d.-fil-ene-
year next proceeding the first publication of the attached copy of 
advertisement; and affiant further says that he has neither paid nor promised 
any person, firm or corporation any discount.. rebate, commission or 
refund for the purpose of securing this advertisement for publication in 
the said newspaper. 

NOTICE OF JtULE 
DEVELOPMENT I BYTHEUOl,LlNGHILLS 

COl\l>ruNITY DEVELOl'~IENT 
DISTRICT 

In accord with Chapters 120 and 190, 
Florida Statute~, the Rolling. Hi?-5 
Community Development . Dt~el 
("District•) hereby gives notice of its 
intention to develop Rules of 
Procedure to goven:1 the operatioM 
oftheDistricl 
The Rules of Proced1rre will address 
such areas as the Board of 
Supervisors, officers and voting, 
district offices, public inform~t_ion 
and ;.nspectio1i of records, policies, 
public meetings, hearings _and 
worlwhops, rulemaking pr~ceedmgs 
and competitive purchase including 
procedure under the. ~onsultant.~ 
Competitive Negot1at1on Act, 
procedure reg'arding auditor 
selection, purehase of iosurai;ce, 
pre-qualification, construction 
oontracts, goods, supplies .and 
materials, maintenance servJ.!!l'.S, 
contractual services and protests 
with respect to proceedings, as well 
as any other area of the general. 

I "l!ll!)eration of the District. 
The purpose and effect oftbe Rules 

\ 
of Procedure is tn prCJvide for 
efficie11t and effective Di~trict 

I operations and to ensure compliance 
with recent changes to Florida l~W, 

, The legal authority for the adoption 

I of the proposed Rules of Procedure 
includes sections 190.011~5}, 

• 190.011(15} and 190.035. _ Flonda 

I statutes (2019). The specific laws 
implemented in the Rules of 

1 Procedure include, but are , not 
limited to, sections 112,08, 112.3143, 
112.31446, 112.3141:i, 115}/17, 119.0'101, 
18.9 053 189.069(2J(a)16, 190.006, 
190.ooi, 190.oos. 190.011(3). 
190.011{5), 190.011(15), 190.033, 
190.035, 218.33, 218.391, 255.05, 
255.0518, 255.0525, 255.20, 286.0105, 
286.011, 211.6.0113, 286.0114, 287,017, 
287.055 and 287.004, Florida Statutes 
(2019), 
A copy of the proposed Rules of 
Proc:edure may be obtained . by 
contacting the. District Manager: e/o 
Governmental Management Sem.:es, 
475 We.St Town Place, Suite ~14, 
world Golf Village, St. Augustwe, 

,./~; · /~-- ( Florida 32092, (904) 94.0..5850. 
/ . ~I f-#.-....... Jim Oliver, District Manag_er 

l >1l,z..:,( ,:i~-·-~ Rom11g Hills Community 
/.I .__ __ , Development District 

V
/~,/ Legal -16033 ·published April 30, ZOZO 

in Clay County's Clay TQday 

-------------------------------------! ~•!•w~•~p,~o•g'~· ===-----

Sworn to me and subscribed before me 04/30/2020. ,.,.,,,,.,.,..,,,,.,,,"""""""""'""'""'"< 
~ ..._ "-- ''\). ~ ,\""''"~ CHRJSTIE LOU WAYNE : 
~ ~ ~~ MY COMMJSSJON fl GQ24173 

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLO ~'¥<ffl'n EXPIRES, Sept,mw20, 2020 . 
~<:f'f'\-11" '· 

3515 US HWY l7 Suite A, Fleming Island FL 32003 
Tolophone (904) 264-3200 -FAX (904) 264-3285 

E-Mail; Christic@opofla.com 

about:blanl 



3513 U.S, Hwy, 17 • Flemlr>J laand, FL 32003 
'hone: (9C4) 264-3200 

1102 A1A Nortr., Unl 108 • Ponte Vedra Beach. FL 32082 
Aune: (904) 285-8831 

Advertising Invoice 

ROLLING HILLS CDD C/O GMS LLC 
475 W TOWN PL :tt 11 'i 
C/OGMS,LLC 
SAINT AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

Salesperson: Clay Legals Classification: Legal Notice 

Advertisement Information: 

Cust#:503071 
Ad#:311369 
Phone#:904-940-5850 
Date:04/27/2020 

Ad Size: 1.0 x 13.90 

[ _____ Description t~ Sta;t:-t Stop _ t_ Ins._ 1--c;-;;;tro;;;,--~c--Total--
lfl~y Today -~----- ii 05/07/2020 l[@im2020: 1 [ ____ 139,00 _ :I ---139.00 

Payment Information: 
Date: 
04/27/2020 

Order# 

311369 

lype 
BILLED ACCOUNT 

Total Amount: 139.00 

Tax:, 0.00 

Amount l>ue: 139.00 

Attention: Requests for credits or refunds for early cancellations must be made within 90 days. 

Ad Copy 



i'irefox 

. of! 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF CLAY: 

PUBLISHER AFFIDAVIT 
CLAY TODAY 

Published Weekly 
Orange Park, Florida 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared 
Jon Cantrell, who on oath says that he is the publisher of the 
11Clay Today'.'._ a newspaper published weekly at Orange Park in. 
Clay County, Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement 
-hek-g•a-

NOTICE OF RULEMAKING 

in the matter of 

ROLLING HILLS 

was published in said newspaper in the issues: 

05/07/2020 

Affiant further says that said nclay Today11 is a newspaper published 
at Orange Park, in said Clay County, Florida, and that the said newspaper 
has heretofore been continuously published in said Clay County, Florida, 
weekly, and has been entered as Periodical material matter at the post 
.effiee-·fa-Grmge-Pmk, tti .. :IBicl-.818:'J ·C-t'lt1nt:y; :!?foci.mt; -far--peciecl-0f~e-
year next proceeding the first publication of the attached copy of 
advertisement~ and affiant further says that he has neither paid nor promised 
any person, fion or corporation any discount, rebate, commission or 
refund for the purpose of securing this advertisement for publication in 
the said newspaper. 

. NOTICEOF 
RULEMaKl'.NG 

·REGARDlNG THE l<ULES 
OF PllOCEDT.lltE OF 

TlIE.ROLLlNG HILLS 
. ··COMMUNlTY 

DEVELOPMENT·DISTIUCT 
A public hearing will be conduded 
by the Board of Supervisors of the 

I R,olllng Hills . Community 
' Development District C"O!strict") on 

June 9, 2020 at ~:00 p.m, It is 
anticipated that the public hearing 
will take place at the at the Rolling 
HiJJs Amenity Center, 3212 Bradley 
Creek Parkway, Green Cove Sprlngs. 
Florida 32043. In the event that the 
COVID-1.9 publlc health emergency 
prevents the public hearing from 
occurring in-per.,on. ibe D!strict may 
con.duct the public heating by 
telephone or video .c-Onferencing 
communication_s media technology 

. punmant to governmental orders, 
hicluding but not limited to 
Execulive Orders 20-52 and 20-69 
issued by Govl!mor DeSantis on 
March 9. 2020, and March 20, 2020, 
respectively, and any extensions <1r 
supplements thereM, and pur.iuant 
to Seetion 120.54<5)Cb)2., Florida 
Statutes. Information about how the 
heari.l].g will oceur, assistance 
connecting to the hearing or 
:!.rrangjn.g· further ilcconu:nodalions 
for Parti!!ipation; maybe_obtained-hy 
~ccessing tbe District's website at 

I www.,r~1Hnghil~cdd.com or by 
contacting: the office of the District 

/ Manager c,/o•_· Gov~rn~ental 
Management S!;!rvices LLC North 
F!Oti(,ia, at:(904) 940,5850 or joliver 
@gmsnf.com ("District :wanager's 
Offil!e"). 
In accord with Chapters 120 and 190, 
Florida Statutes, the District he~by 
gives lite pub\1c notice of its intent to 
adbpt Lts propi;ised · Rul~ of 
Procedure. The purpose and C£fect or 
the proposed Rules of Procedtue is 
Lo provide tor effictent and effective 1 
Distriet operations atld to ensure 
compliance witb. recent changes to 
Florida law. Prior notice of rule 
development was published in t.be 
Clay Today on April 30, 2020. 
The Rules of Procedure may addreS$ 
s1,1ch areas as the Board or 
Supervisors, officers and voting, 
district offices, p1,1blic il"lformation 
and inspection of recortls, policies, 
public meetings, hearings and 
workshops, rulcmaking proceedings 
and competitive purchase including 
procedure 1.mder the Consultants 

I Competitive .Negotiation ·Act, 
procedure regarding auditor 
selection, purchase of insurance, 

·1.pc-e-qu.ali!ication,.. conslruclion 
contracts, goo~s •. , suppt!es and 
mBterials, maintenance scrvic~s. 

Sworn to me and subscribed before me 05/07/2020. 

~~~ou.l.QJ~ 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA '-J 

£'""'<,, CHRISTIE LOU WAYNE 
M1~ MY COMMJSSION I# G<J24173 

<I),,._~ EXPlRES: September 20. 7.020 
"""eoFf\' 

3515 US 'HWY 17 Suite A, Fleming Island FL 32003 
Telephone (904) 264-3200 - FAX (904) 264-3285 

EMMail: Christie@opcfla.com 

about:blanl 

- con!ractual servicci; and protests 
, with respe<:l to procecdinC"S, as ·weli 

as any other area of lhe 'general 
operation of the Distrkl · . · 
Spec!fie legal authority fot - the 
adoption of the proposed ·Rules of 
Procedure includes Sectio11s 
100.011(5), 190.011(15) and ·-190.035, 
Florida Statute.s (2019). The s:pec:ific 
laws implemented in the .l;l.ules ot 

. Procedure include, but are. not 
limited to, Sections 112.08, 112.3143, 
112.31446, 112.3145, ll9.07, 119.0701, 
189.053, 189.069(2){a)l6, 190.006, 
190,001, rno.ooo, 190.011(3). 
190,011(5), 190.01-1(15). 190,033, 
190.035, 218.33, 218.391, 255.05, 
255.0518, 255.0525, 255.20, 286.0105, 
286,011, Ul6.0113, 286.0114, 287,01'1, 
28't.055 and 287.084, Florida Statutes 
(2019). 
A. copy or f.he proposed Rules of 
Procedure may be obt.iined by 
contacting the District Manager cjo 
Governmental Management Services, 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114, 
World Goif Villb!;\.". SL Augustine, 
Florida :12092, (904l 940-5850 
('District Manager's Offic<'"'). 
Any person who wishes to prnvide 
the Districl with a proposal for a 

_lower cost regulatory_ alternative as 

provided by Section 120,SU(l). 
Florida Statutes, must do. so in 
writing within twenlyone (21) days 
after publication of this nolice to the 
Di.strict Manager's Office. 
This public hearing may be 
conllnued lo a dale, Lime. and place 
to be specified on lhe r~ord at the 
hearing_wilbout additional notice. Ie 
anYOne chooses to appeal any 
decision of the Board with respect to 
any matter considered at a public 
hearing, such pen.On will need a 
record ofthe proceedings and should 

! accordingly ensure that a verbatim 
: record of the. proceedings is made 
l which includes the testimony and 
levidence upon which such appeal is 
to be based, At the hearing. staff or 
Supervisors may P<lrticipate ln the 
public heating by 5peaker telephone. 
Pursuant to the provisions of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act. any 
person requiring special 
accommodations al this meeting 
because of a disability or physical 
hnp:.irment should contact the 
Distriet Manager's Ofiice at least 
forty-eight {48) hours prior to the 
meeting. Ifyou are hearing or speech 
impaired, ple.lse contact the Florida 
Relay Service at l-800-955--877l or 
1800-955-8'170 for aid in contacting 
.the District Manager's Office. 

Jim Oliver, District Mart ager 
Rolling Hills CommunJty 

Development District 
Legal 46034 published May 'l, .202& in 
Clay County's Clay Today newspaper. 

4/27/2020, 4:53 Pl\ 



35'.3 US. Hs1, 17 • Fleming !sand. fl 32003 
Pcone: (904) 264-3200 

ReCOfaer 
1102 A1A ~\Jrth. Ll1i 108 • Ponte Vedra Beacc, fl 32082 

Pcone: (904) 285-8631 

Advertising Invoice 

ROLLING HILLS cqn C/O GMS LLC 
475WTOWNPL :{:I: I 14 
C/OGMS,LLC 
SAINT AUGUSTTh'E, FL 32092 

Salesperson: Clay Legals 

Advertisement Information: 

[ Description 

Payment Information: 
Date: 

05/04/2020 

Order# 

311621 

Classification: Legal Notice 

[0_5j07/_2-020 .1 05/07/2020 .I 1 11 

Type 

BILLED ACCOUNT 

Custl/:503071 
Ad#:311621 
Phone#:904-940-5850 
Date:05/0412020 

Ad Size: 1.0 x 10.80 

Cost/Day Total 

108.00 108.00 

Total Amount: 108.00 

Tax: 0.00 

Amount Due: 108.00 

Attention: Request.s for credits or refunds for early cancellations must be made within 90 days. 

Ad Copy 



rrrefox 

of! 

I 
NOTICEOF about:blanl 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF CLAY: 

PUBLISHER AFFIDAVIT 
CLAY TODAY 

Published Weekly 
Orange Park, Florida 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared 
Jon Cantrell, who on oath says that he is the publisher of the 
"Clay Today,'.'.. a newspaper published weekly at Orange Park in 
Clay County, Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement 
being a 

NOTICE OF MEE11NG 

in the matter of 

MAY MEETING 

LEGAL: 46067 ORDER: 311621 

was published in said newspaper in the issues: 

05/07/2020 

REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
ROLLlNG HILLS COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
: Notice is hereby given thal th-:! 
' Rolllng. ll!lls Connnurlity 

DevelopmentDistrict {'Districl') will 
meet on Thursday, May 14, 20:W al 
6:00 p.m. at"the Rolling Hills Amenity 
Center, 3212 Bradley Creek J?"arkwoy, 
Gretin Cove Springs, Florida 32043 to 
hold a regular meeting of the Board 
or Supervisors ("8oard'l where the 
Board may consider any bu::incss 
that may properly come be(orc il 
ln light or the COVID-19 public 
health emergency, it is anllcipatcd 
that the meeting may be conducted. 
remotely, pursuant to Zoom 
communications media technology 
·and/or by· telephone pursuant to 
Executive Orders 20•52, 20-69 and 

1 2CH12 iss_ued by Govemor Desantis 
on March 9, 2020, March 20, 2020 and 

I April 29, 2020 (''Executive Orders') 
h'espectively, including any 
1 extensions. or supplemeots thereof, 
, and purSua·nt to Section 
; 120.54(5)(b)2.. Florida Stalules. Ir 

such ·· Ex.ecutive Orders are riot 
exteildi.d and the Board is required 
to -meet in person, or olhen.vise 
conditions allow the meeting lo 
occur in person, the meeting- miiy be 
held .at the Iocatioil slal.ed abo-ve. 
Anyone wishing to p.articip.1te in the 
rneetinjf and obtain information 
about how lhe meeting will occur 
should refer to tbe District's website, 
www.RollingHillsCDD.com or 
contact lbe office of the District 
Manager, c/o Governmental 
Management Services, LLC, at (904) 
940•5850 :x 406 or Joliver@gmsn(com 
to obtain acceSS information. 
The District fully encourages public 
participation in· a safe and efficient 
manner. Towa.rd that end, 
p,articipan.t.s are strongly enc~uraged 

. to submit questions·and comments to 
i the District Manager by calllng {904) 
j-940:5650 x 406 or emailing Joliver 
@gmsn.Lcom by 5:00 p.m. on 
Wednesday;May 13, 2020 in advance 
of Urn· ·meeting to facilitate the 
Board's consideration of such 
questions and ·comments during the 
meeting. · 
The meeting .is open to the public 

, and wilt be conducted in allc<irda.nce. 

I 
\vith the PrOvisiOns of Florida law for 

Affiant further savs that said uciay Toda:y'' is a newspaper published community development districts. A "' copy o( the agenda for the meetiog 
at Orange Park. in said Clay County, Florida, and that the said newspaper may be· Obtained .from the District 
L"' h t ' b tln" I blish d · "d Cl C n, FI 'd Manager, at 475 West Town :Place, = ere OJ.Ore een con uous y pu e m Sfil ay ounv, on a, Stine 114, St.. Augustine, Florida 
weekly, and has boon entered as Periodical material matter at the post 32092 or by. calling (004) 940-5850 x 

ffi ' Or P•·k, · 'd Cl C n, Fl "da, ' riod f 406), and is expected to also be O ce m ange "'· lll Sat ay oun~J, on J..Or pe O one a\lailable on the Districl's website at 
year next proceeding the first publication of the attached copy of www.:8.ollingHillsCDD.com. The 
advertisement; and affiant further says that he has neither paid nor promised meeting may be continued to a date, 

time, anrl place to be specified on 
any person, firm or corporntion any discount, rebate, commission or the ·record at such meeling. There 
refund for the purpose of securing this advertlSement for publication in may be occ~ions .when one or more 
the said newspaper. Supervisors wm r,llr.1,:,ip,;te by 

telephone.. 
--.. Any person requiring special 

/)a,., /,.:_ti: accommodations at the meeting. 
/ .. , .. • 7(, •,, ,,,:L-... .... ._ because of a di::aQilily or pbysicaJ '->,

1
· i,.L..'(.__:"J ·'·=·---'• impaif'f\lent should col\taet the 

,, ,. .. ·,rort)'-eighl (48) ·ho~rs ~tiot-iO-iiie. 
//' .meetings. JC you are hearing. or 
(.... speech impl}ired. please contact the 

--------------------------------------------;;Florida Relay Service by dialiDg 
- 7-1-1, or -1-800-955-Snl (Tl'YJ I 

Sworn to me and subscribed before me 05/07 2020. 

~8c;-v_ 
NOTARY PUBLlC, STATE OF FLORIDA 

---"''~ .a""'"¾, CHRlSTIE LOU WAYNE 
21.aJL MY coMMissmN II aG-24113 

~~..- E);PIRES:Sept.m,ba2D,2020 
"%-on,., 

3Sl5 US HWY 17 Suite A, Fleming Island FL 32003 
Telephone (904) 264-3200 • FAX (904) 264-3285 

E-Mail: Christie@opcfla.com 

1-800.955--8770 (Voice), for aid in 
contacting the District Manager's 

1omec. 
1Each person who decides lo appeal 
;:rny decision made by tbie:: Board Willi 
respect to any matter oonsidercd al 
the meeting is advised lhal person 
will need a re.cord ot proceedings 
and that accordingly, tbe pen;:on m.iy 
11eed Lo ensure thal a verbalim 
record of the proceedings is made, 
including the test!mony and 
evidence upon which such appeal is 
to be based. 
rr )'Ou tm~ unable to partidpalc by 
telephone or by ZOOM, please 
cont.ad the Dlslrlct Manager's o[Ticc 
at (904) 940-5850 :x: 406 or Joliver 
eq;m.snf.com for furLher l 
accommodations. = 

· James Oliver 
· District Mau ager 

Le(ial 4606'1 ;iiubllshcdMay 'I, 2020 in 20 C_!ar County~ Clay Today n(l.ws:Pa\ler. , 12:48 PM 



COMCAST 
BUSINESS 

Hello, 
Thanks for choosing Comcast Business. 

I Account Number 

I 8495 74123 1221031 

Billing Date 
May 04, 2020 

Services From Page 
May 14, 2020 to Jun 13, 2020 1 of 5 

+- Your bill explained 

• This page gives you a quick summary of your monthly 
bill. A detailed breakdown of your charges begins on 

Previous balance 

Payments 

$281.28 page 3. 

Balance forward due now 

Regular monthly charges 

One-time charges 

Taxes, fees and other charges 

New chatges due May 25, 2020 

0 Your account is past due 

Page3 

Page3 

Page3 

$0.00 

$281.28 fv\ 
$279.15 

$10.00 

Your account is past due, so you may have been charged a late 
fee of $10.00. To keep your account current, please pay the 
balance forward immediately. 

Need heiµ? 
Visit xfinity.Com/customersupport or see page 2 for other ways 
to contact us . 

. Detach the bottom portion of this bill and enclos~-~ith ya~r payment 

Do not include correspondence with payment 

COMCAST 
BUSINESS 
141 NW 16TH ST 
POMPANO BEACH FL 33060-5250 
96330010 NO AP 04 20200504 NNNNNNNY 0000748 0004 

ROLLING HILLS AMEN! CENTER 
5385 N NOB HILL RD 
SUNRISE, FL 33351-4761 

'111 •'' 1111, I" I •111111 I I Ip,, ,1111, 111 •1 • I 1111111 • 11 •I, I, •I' I 1 • I 

8495741231221031□□572628 

• The charge on your bill is different this month because 
you have some one-time charges on your account. See 

One-tirne charges for more details. 

• Any payments received or account activity after May 
04, 2020 will show up on your next bill. View your most 
up-to-date account balance at business.comcast.com/ 
myaccount. 

Please write your account number on your check or money order 

Account number 

Balance forward due now 

New charges due May 25, 2020 

Total amount due 

Amount enclosed 

Send payment to 

COMCAST 
PO BOX 71211 
CHARLOTTE NC 28272-1211 

8495 74 123 1221031 
$281.28 
$291.34 

$572.62 

Make checks payable to Comcast 

Do not send cash 

11' (I( I'll' l•lnploll, •11•(111''1 lll•p II h (1,111111 "Ill• ii II,' 

Afi:1:111?,10 Nn >'IP 04 ?(Y-)()()fi()4 NNhlNNNMYMn<l74fl IY.Yl4 



Account Number 
8495 741231221031 

Manage your account anytime, anywhere with the 

Comcast Business App - an innovative all-in-one 

tool designed with your business in mind. 

Manage your account details 

Pay your bill and customize billing options 

View upcoming appointments 

Visit us online 
Get help and support at 

business.comcast.com/help 

Call us anytime 

800-391-3000 
Open 24 hours, ?days a week for billing 

and technical support 

No more mailing monthly checks 
Set up Auto Pay to save time, energy and 
stamps. lt's easy ta enroll, just visit 
business.comcast.com/myaccount 

Go paperless and say goodbye to clutter 
Sign up for Paperless Billing to view and pay your 
bi!l onllne. It's faster, easier and helps cuts down on 
clutter. Visit business.c:omcast.com/myaccount 
to get started. 

Billing Date 
May 04, 2020 

Services From Page 
May 14, 2020 to Jun 13, 2020 2 of 5 

No more malling monthly checks! 

With Auto Pay, it's easy to save time, 

energy and stamps. Enroll today at 

business.comcast.com/myaccount 

Moving? 
We can he!p ensure it's a smooth transition. 

Visit business.comcast.com/learn/moving to learn more. 

Accessibility: 
[f you are hearing impaired, call 711. For issues affecting 

customers with disabilities, call 1-855-270·0379, 

chat nve at support.xfinity.com/accessibility, email 
accessibility@comcast.com, fax 1-866-599~4268 or write 

to Comcast at 1701 JFK Blvd., Philadelphia, PA 19103-2838 

Attn: M. Gifford. 

11111111111111111 IIIIII Ill Ill II Ill 

More ways to pay: 

(~) 
..___ __ ,,. 

/ .. ~.:::~---\ 

i\-.:'::::>1 

Onfine, 
Visit My Account at business.comcast.com/myaccount 

By App 
Download the Comcast Business App 

ln~Store 
Visit business.comcast.com/servicecente-r 
to find a store near you 

111111111 l I IIIIII IIII II Ill llllllll 



COMCAST 
BUSINESS 

Account Number 

8495 74 123 1221031 

Billing Date 

May 04, 2020 

Services From 

May 14, 2020 to Jun 13, 2020 

Page 

3 of 5 

Coincast B~siness ser:vic€!s 

1V Standard 
: Business Video 

: Starter 
i Business Internet 

' 

Voice Line 
Business Voice 

Voice Mail Service 

l_,, 
·------,·-------··-·-·--·-· -~-----··--·-·--_,, ______ , ___ 

Equipment & services 

1V Adapter 

Service To Additional 1V 
With 1V Adapter 
Qty 5@ $7.75 each 

Equipment Fee 
Voice 

Service fees 

Broadcast W Fee 

Directory Listing Management Fee 

Regional Sports Fee 

Voice Network Investment. 

Other charges 

Late Fee 

Other charges 

Federal Universal Service Fund 

Regulatory Cost Recovery 

Additional information 

May04 

$59.95 

$69.95 

$19.95 

$39.95 

$5.00 

$0.50 

$38.75 

$16.95 

$14.95 

$2.00 

$8.20 

$3.00 

$10.00 

$1.63 

$0.56 

Effective April 21, 2020, Cleo will be available as part of Standard and Digital 
Standard. It will no longer be available as part of Preferred or Digital Deluxe. 

Effective June 30, 2020, ESPN will discontinue its Goal line and Bases 
Loaded services. 

$194.80 

·--------·· 

$56.20 I 

$28,15 ! 

! 
! 

$10.00 

$2.19 

·what's included? 

·c::-=l 
.........=)_ 

Internet: Fast, reliable Internet on our Gig

speed network 

TV: Keep your employees informed and 

customers entertained 

Voice Numbers: (904)531-9238 

L

~-V.-•s_it_b_u_s_i_n_•_s_s_.c_o_m_c_a_st_._c_o_m/~m-y_a_c_c_o_u_n_t_(_o_r_m_o_,_•_--'~.·~ details 

The Regu!atory COst Recovery fee is neither government mandated nor a tax, 
but is assessed by Comcast to recover certain federal, state, and local 
regulatory costs. 

Information on programmer contract expirations, which could affect our 
carriage of the programmer's channels, can be found at 
https://my,xfinity.com/contractrenewals/ or by calling 866.2i 6.8634 

Sf\./1.Af"t'l.10 NO AP (ld. Xl::>OOM<I. NNNNNNNY 00007<1.f\OOOA. 



-
Account Number 

I 8495 ,. 1231221031 I 
Billing Date 

May 04, 2020 I 
Services From I Page 
May 14, 2020 to Jun 13, 2020 4 of 5 

to·Mc:AST 
BOSJNESS 

Important Notice for Voice Customers: · 

Comcast Notice of Toll-Free Dialing to Reach 711 
For access to Telecommunications Relay Services for people who are deaf or hard-of-hearing 

The FCC requires that all voice service providers nationwide provide toll-free, three-digit 711 dialing for access 
to all Telecommunications Relay Services (TRS). TRS facilitates telephone conversations between people with 
hearing or speech disabilities and people with or without such disabilities. 

TRS uses operators, called_c9.rnrnuni9ations assistants (CAs), to facilitate telepl:\one c.alls .. between people. 
with hearing and speech disabilities and other individuals. A TRS call may be initiated by either a person with 
a hearing or speech disability, or a person without such disability. When a person with a hearing or speech 
disability initiates a TRS call, the person uses a teletypewriter (TTY), another text input device such as a 
smartphone or a video phone to call the TRS relay center, and gives a CA the number of the party that he or 
she wants to call. The CA in turn places an outbound traditional voice call to that person. The CA then serves 
as a link for the call, relaying the text of the calling party in voice to the called party, and converting to text what 
the called party voices back to the calling party. 

Dialing 711 to reach TRS makes relay access convenient, last, and uncomplicated. 
TRS is available 24 hours a day, seven days a week and all calls are confidential. 
For more information about the various types of TRS, see the FCC's consumer fact sheet at 
https://www.fcc.gov/general/telecommunications-relay-services-trs, or visit the Web site of the 
Disability Rights Office (DRO) at https://www.fcc.gov/general/disability-rights-office. 

B003AY20 
>!It 

COMCAST 

!'IR'l:'t0:"11() NO RP M?fl?[l(J!'iru: NNNNNNNY 00007.1P.OOOoi 



iil"'" 

COMCAST 
BUSINESS 

Account Number 

8495 74123 1221 031 
Billing Date 

May 04, 2020 
Services From Page 
May14,2020toJun13,2020 5of5 

When every connection counts, 
you can count on us. 

It's our goal to support you and your business through the uncertainty caused by recent 
events. We recognize there are times when your need to connect really matters, so we want 
to remind you of several digital solutions that will help keep you and your team members 
connected to your business from any device - anytime, anywhere. 

Contact Us 

• Use My Account and the Comcast Business App to 
manage your service features and to sign up for alerts. 
Visit comcastbusiness.com/myaccount to !earn more 

• Enable Call Forwarding to receive business calls on 
mobile devices. You can also make or take calls through 
the Comcast Business App on your mobile device to 
display your business line's Caller ID 

• Visit the Service Status Center to monitor your services 
at your business locatfon from anywhere. Go to 
comcastbusiness.com/status/ to learn more 

We also understand you may need to rethink your business's needs and how you are serving 
your customers and employees. We have a portfolio of business solutions that can help keep 
you covered, so please call us at 855-862-4456 if you'd like to discuss whether you have the 
right Internet options and tools for your current needs. 

Thank you again for choosing Comcast Business, 

Visit comcastbusiness.com 

COMCAST 
BUSINESS 
BE\'CND FAST 

© 2020 Comcast. All rights reserved. 83592A-ADP-No0ff-COVID-4456 

MW16AW20 

PA0143 

AA::\?.0:>.11) NO AP (l,i ?1'1?(1(1M4 NNNNNNNV ()()(1117,U,, (1()114 



Jeffrey Deese 

4990 Windmill Court 
Middleburg, FL32068 
904-219-0579 
[adeese@daysheriff,com 

TO: 

Rolling Hills Community Development District 
3212 Bradley Creek Blvd. 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

DATE 
WORKED 

DESCRIPTION 

5-11-20 Neighborhood Patrol/ Security 

Checked preserve area. 

Patrolled entire devefopment 

FOR: 

Property Manager 

TIME 

IN/OUT 

1700-2100 

Checked dubhouse, pool, and boardwalk area, 

Patrolled entire development. 

DEPUTY SIGNATURE: 

Make all checks payabfe to Jeffrey Deese 

Thank you for your buslnessl 

HOURS RATE 

4.0 30.00 

TOTAL 

INVOICE DATE 
DATE:5-11-20 

AMOUNT 

120.00 

120.00 



I 

John R, Drury 
2564 Backyard Cove, Green Cove Springs, FL, 32043 
904-505-1241 

TO: 

Rolling Hills Community Development District 
3212 Bradley Creek Blvd. 
Green Cove Springs, Fl 32043 

DATE 

WORKED 
DESCRIPTION 

05/18/2020 Neighborhood patrol and security 

FOR: 

Property Manager 

TIME 

IN/OUT 

15:00-18:30 

No incidents occurred that needed Law Enforcement attention 

Amenity Center patrol and security 

DEPUTY SIGNATURE: 

Make all checks payable to John R. Drury 

Thank you for your business! 

HOURS RATE 

3.5 $30.00 

TOTAL 

INVOICE DATE 
DATE:05/18/2020 

AMOUNT 

$105.00 

$105.00 



'"l(j'"'"=' -;;.,., ';'f')li~t ''.'l 
~- ~;,i.it(Z 

HEALTH 
Permit Number 

10-60-00148 

Florida Department of Health 
in Clay County 

Notification of Fees Due 

For: Swimming Pools - Public Pool > 25000 Gallons 

Fee Amount: 

Previous Balance: 

Total Amount Due: 

$250.00 
$0.00 

$250.00 
Notice: This bill is due and payable in full upon receipt and must be 
received by the local office by the payment due date (06/30/2020). 

Payment Due Date: 06/30/2020 or Upon Receipt 

Mail To: Rolling Hill CDD 
475 W Town Place, Suite 114 
Saint Augustine, FL 32092 

Please verify all information below at www.myfloridaehpermit.com and make 
changes as necessary. 

Account Information: 
Name: Rolling Hills• Pool 
Location: 3212 Bradley Creek Parkway 

Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 
Owner Information: 

Pool Volume: 223,513 gallons 
Bathing Load: 248 
Flow Rate: 60 

Name: Rolling Hill CDD Circle One: MC 
Address: 475 W Town Place, Suite 114 Name on Card: __________ _ 
(Mailing} SaintAugustine, FL 32092 Account#: ___________ _ 
Home Phone: (904) 531-9238 Work Phone:() ======,,--,=====-,.-==-c-c-,-,-,-=cc->-..-.,,-,.,, Exp Date:_/_ Securtty Code (CW): __ 

!■Jt~l?llizi~iittrt,~~MCi Card's Billing Address: 

:. , >i:,,: .. ,);, .. , ... , .... , .... ,,)\ :,.: .. «:(, '''\• ............... , , ..... ,,.>. .. , .. , ...... /> .· City: ______ State:_ Zip: __ _ 
PetmitNuniber: .. ,10,60,00148:.BilHP> 10,BID-46450!)5 .... ,: .. ·, ........ • I Authorize Florida Department of Health in Clay 

~ii~il~t{~~~'l6\?:m!~~~~2t;b3y~i~~;ti: nii~i1 .. :0J~ice'l,1Hpaymehtto:C t~1~:~n: charge my credit card account for the 
:Flcigda,P .. epa~rnerltofHeal\fl• .. in ClayQouncy, Payment Amount: $ ___ For:------
...... Ff?, B,9xAze .......... : ...... : :>; :, , ............ , .... ,, .... • .. , ... .. 
•\Jr-een'Cove'~prirygs;-fL :<!20~;C,: .... Signature 

[Please RETURN invoice with your payment] 

The Florida Department ofHeQlth now offer$ Q secure system for 
p,i,rmit holdetsto pay invoices and print permltsonlinel 

B No sign-up cost, 

li1I Sove timl!,, Ptiying a bill c;,nline is faster than 1mlilin9 a<:heckor 
hand delivering pt1yment, 

Iii Our sQfo fmdsecure system will keep your information protected. 

Ii Pay ntyourconvenience. With om onllne system, you can pay -,,..-t.'i".£.fii1iiJJ) 
with yourcreditct1rd or e-checkond don't have to worry about ~~ _. 

Date 

Batch Billing ID:20708 

envelopes or stomp!!. ~- ..,..-,-:"'"' .. =--
Pay this invoice online atwww.myf1oridaehpermit.c .. ,_.-":··-· .-'lJ!\'",fii 
NOTE: Payments made on!lne wiil be :.ssess~d a smaH cotWMience foe_ Visi~~efcr more inf~f;l,,tt(!n;=;.··- HEAL: 



~1*i4MR* 
HEAlrH 

Permit Number 

10-60-00147 

Florida Department of Health 
in Clay County 

Notification of Fees Due 

For: Swimming Pools - Water Activity 

Fee Amount: 
Previous Balance: 

Total Amount Due: 

$125.00 
$0.00 

$125.00 
Notice: This bill is due and payable in full upon receipt and must be 
received by the local office by the payment due date (06/30/2020). 

Payment Due Date: 06/30/2020 or Upon Receipt 

Mail To: Rolling Hills COD 
475WTown Place,Suite114 
Saint Augustine, FL 32092 

Please verify all information below at www.myfloridaehpermit.com and make 
changes as necessary. 

Account Information: 
Name: Rolling Hills - Water Activity Pool 
Location: 3212 Bradley Creek Parkway 

Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 
Owner lnfonnation: 

Pool Volume: 3,007 gallons 
Balhing Load: 50 
Flow Rate: 60 

Name·. Rolling Hills COD Circle One: MC 
Address: 475 W Town Place, Suite 114 Name on Card: ___________ _ 
(Mailing) Saint Augustine, FL 32092 Account#: ___________ _ 
Home Phone: (904) 531-9238 Work Phone: () r,;,,======================,.,,--, Exp Date: __J_ Security Code (CW): __ ~-·~t~~t~~:;it~~J1iTtt~:.{ ::d'_s B-il-ling_A_d_dre-s-s:-State: - Zip: __ 

PetnilfNiilnibeE 1(}"60-0(i:147/Eiiii,6: 1 {lcl3(D"4645133 ? I Authorize Florida Department of Health in Clay 

~:;n~~~uI.;~~1:~u:ihHt~:a{~;J)~~) zf tir~{ f : '· " ;:• <.·· )···•· ... ·. ·: :, ~~1~:'rn~~ charge my credit card account for the 
1fydy:do ndtpay oi)line, maKe'J;b~s·payab!'} tq' an.a mail invoJceWITH paynierittit Payment Amount: $ ___ For: _____ _ 

Ili{ef!!r~lW~Jw1t~t(0/fy:C::/iU[ity/fc;i'C\ , ...... ·•·./··. ,>)''. -S-ig_n_a_t_u-re __________ -D-a-te ____ _ 

[Please RETURN invoice with your payment] 

The Florida Department of Health now offers a secure sy!.tem for 
permit holders to pc:,yinvoices and print permitsonline! 

Ill Savo:, time, Paying a bill online is fo$-ter rhan mi:dling a check or 
hand deli~ring poyrnent, 
Iii Ot.irsafe und secure system will keep your informQtion protected, 

ii Pay atyourtonvenience, With our on line Gys.tem, you can poy 
with your credit card or e~check and don't have to worry ob out 
erivelopesor stamps. 

Batch Billing 10:20708 

~-;$,:;,,·· 

Pay this invoice on line at www.myfloridaehpermit.c'»•--- . ,<c:,:f'-' .... ii',Mft:':m' 
NOTE: Payments made on line wllJ be assessGd a smaU convenicince foe. Vtsi:~ /or more inf~~c'\';';'"' · HEALTH 



Original 

Hawkins, hrc. 
2381 Rosegate 
Roseville, MN 55113 
Phone: (612) 331-6910 Tolal Invoice 

Invoice Number 
Invoice Date 
Sa!es Ofder Number/Type 
Branch Plant 

$342.00 
4685738 
3124120 
3146308 
74 
3498228 

so 

Shipt11ent Nurr1ber 

,;,,lo "i'o: 293306 S.J-.ipTo: 295740 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
ROLLING HILLS ESTATES COD 
clo Patli Powers-GMS-SF, LLC 
5385 N Nob Hill Rd 

ROLLING HILLS ESTATES COD 
3212 Bradley Creek Pkwv 
Green Cove Springs FL 32043 

Sunrise FL 33351 

Nol Ouo Oat~ Terins ·--·_!5?~.?.:~cdption ~~-S_h~ip_V_i_a_. 
4123120 Net 30 PPD Orlgfn HAWKINS 

Line//. Jtem Number Hern Narnc/ 

Custornor P.O.# P.O, Release 

Price Wi:ighl 

Sales Ag~!~.~ 
674 

____ Cusl_ltem # -·-··-Oe$Gf!P..~~~--

--Qt!/-- Trnrii 
Sh)pped uo~,I UOM Not/Gross 

E>rtBrided 
Price 

...... --· ------·· 
11,000 43967 Ultra-Chlor (Sod, Hypo 12.5%) N 220.0000 GA $1.5000 GA 2,219.8 LB 

1 GA BU< (Mini-Bulk) 220.0000 GA 2,403.1 ~w 

11.010 Fuel Surcharge Frelghl N 1.0000 EA s12.oooo 

uo• Electronic Billing Now Available.~•••• 

Please conlacl our Accounts Receivable Dapnttment via emall at Credit.Dept@Hewkinsfnc.com 
or call 612~331-6910 10 get it setup on youraccounf. 

Tax Rate 
0% 

No OJJ.::oun~ on Freight or Co11!if11~"' 

C;/4i z/27/zo 
p o6'( ( ?ct rt/, cC (! 

;. sJo,DzorJ. f;ZrO'<J 

- ------------·--·------
Sales Tax 
$0.00 lhvoice Total 

Hawkins, Jue. 
P.O. Box 860263 

$330.001 

s12.oo 1 

$342.00 

J\IP>::!aAflt: 1.1 i:,~.~ ~:a~~.., ..... ~~"'-'' v.:,r."'11-J ol •·'1 l;l(t.l .r.<I '"':r.1i11~,:,. v,IJ. lfJ t'i~r "M' 1,:.:-., ~~~,:mm ~c•'.'.lHfy ,;,f ... <Ii 
tro1~~ ltr ll'SI qt,'!, ~H. s~•~!\',T>tlo•l\f tf,~t,_1 g,;,:.d, ro••~ 'i;,f ~~'.1 (\\;:,'<4 \'<iJ'O prlll•.:cc,J Ii W~~;:m;<1 1>!1h 11'<<1 t~q,N;r.uJ• of\t'.o 
fa't t.a'-.-:t s,...,,1a:tl~ Actol 1~J.a, 3f n'r.t,.e,j'~d. C<l/i.\J',r,1,11 ~~ lo ba ~•&. k>th lul, H !r,,l)'c-ocf, ~'7.l /u),,J,.x,iWJ t.,, rn.1da ~«npt:y, 
ttce.',!04 c;.;,,,•.:i'r.m~:c ,ell.r.•td 1.;i ,;,-,,i~I t-;,~.t "1.sll;,,r.tr.t Roun i·,'(11,l cl>.a.11~ lo I><, ~r~pid. Tu<;m11.!a.'~~ttW,T-cl m~I ~• IM 
,.,u v9·n~'.ly .. -:em ~ ~M,1 ~-> t't.(~r;:-o- ft d;;lo, c, 11M fc• P<l'f<l•O Q'_'le: 1'1~, th~ ~:c,a,i~ of clr,<ral w.'.a.no·>- S•''"' 
,~:~«'t/ <l•~•·:,·.: and ucl~.< M·, .. ,,, ..... 'y ~/ ,r,o,c.l.;•,,al,,'.fy ~•d .. ,.,. .. s,r;,n!ycl6W:U l◊t" rJf!.WII 1.,,.,.,.4, 

Pleaa0 
R~mi~ To: 

Minneapolis, MN 55486-0263_ 
HO CL,\l\!SFOII. UISS, D,,._'JAGE !lRLUJO.OeALLOWE!l AFI,;:FlDl:LIVERYI~ r,,>.OE.11/ GOOD CONOmo» 

!1:!1,:~~~~t:,!~~ ;~~~1~~!~1~\~1!:i'~is11~:1t~tJ·n1d:~1~1~d~!c°J~~~!~i~~1~~{:\r ~i~;l11~1bJ"!~~~:~~;~~~Zt!~,:~,r~\i;~~: ::~~~~l~~it:iY:."t~!~~~~1~~~05~dr~nEt~i~~~ f~:ut0Ji~~~~:~~!~1 ai 
prll'I" tont,~ct<1li :am! ~ub<:•mlranors u~c atrirm~t/Ve ~rll<1n 10 empl<1y a11d advJorc ln ,implo)'ment tndhf,;luJ]I Wilh<>Ut tci:~rd to rat<:, ,oJor, ttlig,IM, $.,;t, tu:lonJI <ltlglu, pwtcdod votuJ11 ~tltui or d\i~bir.ty. 

\WA't,hawkinslnr..com Job# 500416217 



Original 

Hawkins, /Jic. 
2381 Rosegate 
Roseville, MN 55113 
Phone: (612) 331-6910 

c!o!d ·ro: 293306 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
ROLLING HILLS ESTATES COD 
c/o Patti Powers-GMS-SF, LLC 
5385 N Nob Hill Rd 
Sunrise FL 33351 

·····-·---·-··· 

·rot~/ Invoice $342.00 
Invoice Number 4709911 
Invoice Date 515120 
Safes Order Number/fype 3177284 so 
Branch Pfant 74 
Shipment Number 3546339 

. ···~·-"•--·-·-·-· -·-· --·---·--. 
295740 
ROLLING HILLS ESTATES COD 
3212 Bradley Creek Pl<wy 
Green Cove Springs FL 3~043 

Mtit Due Date lerms- FOt3 Oescdplion Ship Via custoinHr P.O.# P.O. Release Sales Agent U 
.. ·----·----··-· ... ,._ ....... --- -····-·-··--- ··----·-···----·---·--·· 

6/4/20 Nat30 PPOOrlgin HAWKINS 874 

UM# ltem Numbe~ ltem Name/ Tox Trims Un11 · Prlee Viieiijlli EXtcnU8d ·o,y 
.<?u~!_!!~m if- Description Shipp(ld UOM Price UOM Net/Gross Price 

11.000 43967 

11.010 Fuel surcharge 

Pa~re 1 of 1 

Ultra•Ch!or (Sod. Hypo 12.5%} N 220,0000 GA $1.5000 GA 

1 GA BU< (Mini-Bulk) 220.0000 GA 

Freight N 1.0000 EA 812.0000 

• •• •• £fectronic Billing Now AveNab/e, c>Hu 

Please contact our Accounts Receivable Department via email at CreditDapt@Hawkinslnc.com 
or ca/1612-331·6910 to get if. setup on youraccounl. 

Tax Rate 
0% 

y>,ra\ Ckt""1'.Ce.,/ ~ 
00) _ ']"$(). S') ?,C.,V, '>'-I c.n.) 

Sales Tax 
$0.00 

Invoice Total 

- ----
2,219.8 LB 

2,403.1 GW 

tlo Obeo11nb on f"tolght<:!r Ciml•ln~r:, Hawkins, Inc. 
'i>l~lr.!SH p O B 860261 

-----
$330.001 

s12.oo I 

$342.00 

11\PO~fA.'IT: M i>'~>lt':• ~"' w'.J "'(/»Ill w,rr~r,ty of a.~:,-\::rd ui<I p-1~<<>' l\(J, b';' t'tt~ ,:-,111 ~,!1, ds\oi,,c:r.,, i.,::,1;-,::y d et,<~ 
p~...::.,; knl-.0.:r iw.n 1,,e. Se,'.orvn1,~,!i th;.:~ gc,,;-1, ,;,,w,..:1 h-1 :n:,. i,,,,>c.c, \\'!.'ti ~-'CM In Wl'rfar-co "'•h U10 ,~.;,.,,.,..,t, of !M 
J';ir lll>;r $;.>>:l>->:h A-:: ,,f 111-M. D3 =•t.:~:l. C<>ntir.(tS l)J~ :0 t.., p,."d f<>' i., M. at \-r~w,1, ~•:I jo/l,.!uod w'lN mt&> p«.-r.µ'.;•, 
nal&,J ~~'.Oa·rei uo ~-...,.,~, i,, ¢;'~at p,~t of3'lt<>:t~L Re:ur. L-dghtr.1,,,e...., IQ W ~r•~'-d, ,i-,,. ,,¢:1,"1~•r.•c~1rcl)<[ "'"'l bo It.~ 
~"'°'.,, (:.<:;i0ruft .1.!;~:,,«1. i,..•,j ,,.,,.,, r,o <•'<!-:= or 0~«10, « uto for pt;r;:o:u,,: "1>u tl\JJt th, ~(O<">g~ c' <l'l:J'lu• coc.!.>·r.e.~ $¢',r 

~<guJJtfJn~-:.~tvtt:6R":~1~~";i:to\~:t'W1t·~~t~i;r~1t~~~,ri~'t~1~~1.-
RemltT<>, • • ox · 

. Minneapolis~ MN. 55486-02~3 

Th\1 con(r~ctot Jttd .s~bt9/ltral:l-or sh~ll abide by the rcqulrun~nl~ ol -4'1. (ffl §§6ll-l,4{a}, li0•3®.5{~J Jnd 60-74l-S{n). Thele rcg11[~llon1 pcohlbft dliulmlnitlon ,,~lnst ~u~lifled lndMcl11~l1 b3«:<f 1>n lht!r :mtu1 tH 
pro\ect.«I vc1em11 or /q,:/Nfd'u~h with df~bl!ltfo.s, ontl prohibit dllalm!n:,Uon ~z~lr1'1 ~II tndM<f11;I~ bwxl ,m tt,~!r 1;,,e;,,, c,ilo,, roliglM, ~u, or n~thmd origin. Mo1cc:vc1, th!lc rceul3tlon~ "'l"lr~ that «wt1ed 
prime «Mlrlcto1~ an,;I ~ubtMtratlo,~ f~ke ;;ffttm.rtlv~ artllln lo amplcY ~nd ndv~n(t ln cmpf~ymeril fn0lvld111!1 wHhQUl rcgJrd to tMe, color, rollt!on, w,, h~lfooll orii:ln, prato{tcd vckun inius ord!s~b11i1Y, 

wvtw,hawkinslnc.com Job#50044~651 



Thursday, May 14, 2020 at 11:41:20 AM Eastern Daylight Time 

Subject: refund check to Aundrea Johnson 

Date: Thursday, May 14, 2020 at 11:40:13 AM Eastern Daylight Time 

From: Rolling Hills 

To: Patti Powers 

Please send a $50 refund check back to Aundrea Johnson for a rental please. 
Here mailing address is 1921 Firefly Dr Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

Rolling Hills 
3212 Bradley Creek Parkway 
Green Cove Springs, Fl. 32043 
(904) 531-9238 
RHmanagfil.@riversjdemgtsvr.com 

Page 1 of 1 



I 
I 
[ 

: 
! 

L. Billfo 
j l.:Ol.LIM.1 HILLS CDD 
i Gt)V/;R\!Mi':J\Ti\l. ;viA\l:\GF\IE/<T ~;t:lt Vl( ·t,.;.;, U ,C 
:475 W/.:!-;'I !"O\Vi'-. PIACJ: 
;SU!! I~ I l i 
: SI' .\t:(H l;:tJ lt\L 1-1. J:1092 

F\,rch8SS Ord,3r Number 

l!E:rn 

fl{# 5'/L/zo 
la/2.,. ;1r;:,t J. 

c,o1. izo. ~38ov, <f&c.ft,o 

I 

[ 

I ,-
: 

lnvotc& [ht<:"J- 5 11/.111.10 

Rep 

Invoice Quc.stio11s: 
Lakcs-:@lakedoctors.com 

Payment Questions: 
Payn1ents@lakedoctors.com 

l1w1,1k\· 0;1W l(dh-ct.~ ,\loutl1 ti( 

'.)crvk,:, 1'ru\'idt•il 

, I Customer Total Balance s.20.00 

I Plcn:;c ronfii m ) our bm1lt bill pa) er amount rn~tdtcs )'0UI Im okc ;nno1111t if)-0U US\! a hattT .. bill ! 
1rn, er sen ice, Tlrnnk ,ou! . --- ··-------- - -- -----,__ ... . ----- --~----- ' 

'Tntal ]n•((lice ; 
. " ·-···- .,. .... ., 

To hc-lp l':flSurc prompt ;md :)ccttrnfo credit to your ncc1Jt111t, plC>:l.'5C-int'ludc your account unmber a11tl invoice number 011 your cltC'tk nnd :,hrnys 
include your L'Clllitt:rnec stub with your rmymcnt, 

Pll'nse vis ii ww,~.lakcdoctr,rs.eom for y6t1r lornt office c<mhtct informalion. 

PLEASE DETACH & RETURN T!lf8 PORTION WITH PAYMENT r f3ill To-----~-----·-·" 

;--. ----.. ---•·'"~-~------·····-·--
. ROl..1.1:HJ \lf/,LS CDD 
'. (lOVli/(·~1\ll~l\"fAL. 1,l.•\i\!:\GEMU,/1 Sl·.'R\'11.'l::S. LLC 
,17:,, WFST !T)\VN. l'l .:\CE 
Sl.lTlcll'I 
\T \UO(,ST!NE, Fl,:<~(11)2 

• • ,. •. ,. .. , •••••~~•-•~•.,•~ •• r•--- ,_ • ., •• ,_,.,., •• ~- •• 

For addn!s~ nncl contncl' updates, please email us at 
F nm t< I es k({tJJa kedoc 1·0 r.~.c.o m. 

The LakC! Doctors~ ine. 
3543 Stn!'e Road 419 

\Vinter Springs~ FL 32708 

Invoice t~ ·T 
/\ccounl ~ ........ --, ----'~-l~~c:.~,J 

:1"t: _J . 
(;,_; Gr,_.,~o! (\,nt":1,·11.1:: :ii l':iynkt1b1iJ;laL1dr11:t"r:;.n;1,1 tu 

h;i.'.c )\llli' inHlk-:-, ,;n1,1il,:d 

; /[· l':\.Y1:-.rc~ D'-.' U{.f.Dll C.-\Rll. HI.LUI..: r HEL.O\'; 
l f>·li1.sh;T\;11rd Vi-,;;i .-\rn,:rk,m l':-.:pn.:~~ 

\ (\trt! ii·-··--~·-·--·. 
Card \'..::rill{:H(ion ~; 

E:-.p. D,H_(' -!,
1 

-- --·········•-~ ...... _. 

f'rint Na,11~' _____ ,_ -·-······-
Hi!!ing c\,.l.1ln:~:,: . Cht<.:k h.n. iJ\;mn..-ll'.i-ai·,(,\(' 

.1 



Thursday, May 14, 2020 at 11:40:59 AM Eastern Daylight Time 

Subject: Refund check to April Thornton 

Date: Thursday, May 14, 2020 at 11:31:34 AM Eastern DaylightTime 

From: Rolling Hills 

To: Patti Powers 

Patti 
Could you please send a refund check to April Thornton for $SO. I think I may have submitted the rental fee and 

deposit check as well. Thanks Her address is: 

3316 Ridgeview Dr 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

Rolling Hills 
3212 Bradley Creek Parkway 
Green Cove Springs, Fl. 32043 
(904) 531-9238 
RHmanagfil.@riversidemgtsvc.com 

Page 1 of 1 



BIii To: 

Rolling Hills COD 
c/o Governmental Management Services, LLC 
5385 N. Nob Hill Rd 
Sunrise, FL 33351 

Property Name: Rolling Hills COD 

l~JVOICE 

Remit To: 

Yellowstone Landscape 
PO Box 101017 
Atlanta, GA30392-1017 

Invoice Due Date: June 4, 2020 

Invoice Amount: $1,719.48 

Mr£~itlllil~P-Z:i~w~~~~1i\~&:1~1f¾;~~~zkif~l\~i~. ~1-~Jt~mftjt~~~ifif~w~~~~~~:m 
~J.M~~~~1%~·~~~'?il:~~Ir~J%~~~\:~~~~~~~!~ 
Juniper Removal & Plant Install 
To remove the Juniper and roses at the monuments located at Bradley Creek/ 
Spring Valley and Bradley Creek/ Paddle Creek. Also, to provide and install Jack 
Frost Ligustrum and Dwarf Oleander. 

Plant Installation $1,719.48 

(7, A(~ s j,z/2-u 
La.,..,).u<t, ( ""'..\;v-..,;;"""'c;-

C,V\, '3,lo. 5 l8oo. '-{<;vvv 

Should you have any questions or inquiries please call (386) 437-6211. 

Yellowstone landscape I Post Office Box 849 I Bunnell FL 32110 I Tel 386.437.6211 I Fax 386.437.1286 

,719.48 



Proposal For 

Governmental Management 
Services, LLC 
5385 N. Nob HIii Rd 
Sunrise, FL 33351 

Properly Name: Rolling Hills CDD 

main: 904-940-5850 
mobile: 

Location 

475WTown Pl 

11114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Juniper Removal & Plant Install Terms: Net 30 

", "' ,, "• r ' -, 
-Ql!.IANTITY, 

~, < • I :r I '• , , ! _, 

Jack Frost Ugustrum (3 Gallon) 28.00 

Dwarf Oleander (3 Gallon) 12.00 

Brown Mulch (Per Bag) 20.00 

General Labor 16.00 

Client Notes 

Proposal #58676 
Date: 04/09/2020 

From: Garretl Cannady 

•1" "~"-~°'' ~ . AMOi:Jl\ln: .'.': 
~ l -,. ',~ ,•~~(:' ,' ,t,.\f_ ,) 

$17.11 $478.95 

$19.74 $236.84 

$6.18 $123.69 

$55.00 $880.00 

To remove the Juniper and roses at the monuments located at Bradley Creek/ Spring Valley and Bradley Creek/ 
Paddle Creek. Also, to provide and install Jack Frost Ugustrum and Dwarf Oleander. 

SUBTOTAL 

SALES TAX 

$1,719.48 

$0.00 

Signature above authorizes Yellowstone Landscape to perform work as described above and verifies that the prices and 
specifications are hereby accepted. All overdue balances will be charge a 1.5% a month, 18% annual percentage rate. 
Limited Warranty: All plant material Is under a limited warranty fur one year. Transpfan(ed plant material and/or plant material that 
dies due to conditions out of Yellowstone Landscape's control (i.e. Acts af Gad, vandalism, inadequate. irrigation due (o water 
restrictions, etc.) shall not be ;ncluded in the warranty. 

Yellowstone Landscape I ww.v.yellowstonelandscape.com I 386-437•6211 Page 1of2 



Contact 

Print Name:(o/w,/,;p£,c ,41/ 
Title: f'<Zi-l'r7,z$ 1Jih114;-,... .. 
Date: . 'fh;;.z; , 

Assigned To 

Garrett Cannady 
Office: 
ccannady@yellowstonelandscape.com 

Yellowstone Landscape I www.ye!lowstonelandscape.com l-386-437~6211 Page 2 of2 



Bill To: 

Rolling Hills CDD 
c/o Governmental Management Services, LLC 
5385 N, Nob Hill Rd 
Sunrise, FL 33351 

Property Name: Rolling Hills CDD 

INVOICE 

Remit To: 
Yellowstone Landscape 
PO Box 101017 
Atlanta, GA 30392· 1017 

Invoice Due Date: June 10, 2020 

Invoice Amount: $2,144.00 

~~~"-T<fJi 1'W~,i,JP.,iti\W~~•~·~'W~~,l;f1if~7Jl!1/lffl!l/~@ • 
~~~~~~~!i .. ~~~~~~l-' . 
St. Augustine Sod Installation 
To prep and install 3 pallets of St. Augustine sod at the entrance to the 
community. 

Sod Installation 

lnvoJce Total . .:,: :,_.· .:.: .. ,., ... 

r!;/-«-s-)~<) 
la,, r/s < o/""- {' 01--J, ~ 5't.,, c;

CO\. no. s :szoo. '-/'rOOO 

Should you have any questions or inquiries please call (386) 437•6211. 

$2,144.00 

.c{$[2, 144.00 

Yellowstone Landscape I Post Office Box 849) Bunnell FL 32110 I Tel 386.437.6211 I Fax 386.437.1286 



Proposal #58675 
Date: 04/09/2020 

From: Garrelt Cannady 

Proposal For 

Governmental Management 
Services, LLC 
5385 N. Nob Hill Rd 
Sunrise, FL 33351 

Properly Name: Rolling Hills CDD 

St. Augustine Sod Installation 

St. Augustine Sod (JX) 

General Labor 

Client Notes 

main: 904-940-5850 
mobile: 

Location 

475WTown Pl 

#114 
St.Augustine, FL32092 

Terms: Net 30 

' ;; '~-. ,";'J : ,,, ·,,' ,i 

·QUAl\l:rl;J?/; ' 
/)' ';, .~ "~· . ~ ') 

{ ,' j \' •,,, ,t \, I ; 

Uf\llT: P81CE: 
,, ' ' "" ' "' ' 

3,00 $473.69 

16.00 $55.00 

To prep and install 3 pallets of St. Augustine sod at the entrance to the community. 

SUBTOTAL 

SALES TAX 

$1,421.06 

$880,00 

$2,144.00 

$0.00 

Signature above authorizes Yellowstone Landscape lo perform vtork as described above ancf verifies that the prices and 
specfficatians are hereby accepted, Afl overdue balances Vii/I bt:: charge a 1.5% a month, 18% annual percentage rate, 
Limited warranty: All plant material fs under a limited warranty for one year. Transplanted plant materiar and/or plant material that 
dies due to conditions out of Yellowstone Landscape's control (i.e. Acfs of God, vandalfsm, inadequate-lrrlgaffon due to water 
rasfrictions, etc.) sha!f not be included in the warranty. 

Contact J ;/ 

Print Name:(',t,,.:,~L/ ,!fr// 
Title: Cpe,-,,,.-0 °'"' s. C1\.1y.-"') e <"

Date: '-/liD[•vc, 
! 

Assigned To 

Garrett Cannady 
Office: 
ccannady@yellowslonelandscape.com 

Yellowstone Landscape I w..·t-.v.yellowstonelandscape.com f 386437~6211 Page1of1 



~109'f?t~~ 
HEALTH 

Permit Number 
10-60-00148 

Florida Department of Health 
in Clay County 

Notification of Fees Due 

For: Swimming Pools - Public Pool > 25000 Gallons 

Fee Amount: 

Previous Balance: 

Total Amount Due: 

$250.00 
$0.00 

$250.00 
Notice: This bill is due and payable in full upon receipt and must be 
received by the local office by the payment due date (06/30/2020). 

Payment Due Date: 06/30/2020 or Upon Receipt 

Mail To: Rolling Hill COD 
475 W Town Place, Suite 114 
Saint Augustine, FL 32092 

Please verify all information below at www.myfloridaehpermitcom and make 
changes as necessary. 

Account Information: 
Name: Rolling Hills - Pool 
Location: 3212 Bradley Creek Parl<way 

Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 
Owner Information: 

Pool Volume: 223,513 gallons 
Bathing Load: 248 
Flow Rate: 60 

Name: Rolling Hill COD Circle One: MC 
Address: 475 W Town Place, Suite 114 Name on Card: __________ _ 
(Mailing) Saint Augustine, FL 32092 Account#: ____________ _ 
Home Phone: (904) 531-9238 Work Phone:() ~~~-~=--~~==~~~---=~--~~ Exp Date:_/_ Security Code (CW): __ 

Ill!ll~~i .,,, i-~-~-;-::-;-:-:.-:-~-~~;;~~;-;:-~;;~~t-i~o_;_:~-~-

lfyoi/d~.h.ot;p:•r:onl.ine,'mli~¢.<;!J~•~~.p~y,:,o,le to ~n,d,r\iaO {rivqi9e ,WITH,p~y/il.OJi\ 1°)• • Payment Amount: $ ___ For: _____ _ 
Flo'ric(a p~p;att,nenpi H¢~.lttdn¢J~y.Co\lnt'( : ',. , 

~;~~tt"tt%iiit~:;;tJiotlt\ ..... Signature 

[Please RETURN invoice with your payment] 

The Florida Oepartmerit of Health n<'>W offers a secure $yst,i,m for 
permit holders to pay invoices and print permitsonline! 

II' No sign-up cost. 

B SQve time, Paying a bill on line is faster than moiling ache(;'k ,:,r 
hand delivering payrriMt, 

Ii Ou..-safe and secure system will S.:eepyour lraformation pr,;:,.f,ieded, 

li!i!'I Pay crtyourconvenience. With our onllne system, you can pay _'. -"'~ 
with y¢urcredlt card or e-eheck ond don't have to worryo:bou, ~ l. -;' 

Date 

Batch BIiiing 10:20708 

envelopesorstamps, ' •·.·::•:,.~# 

Pay this invoice online atwww.myfloridaehpermit~ . ~/<7'~· ~ffi~ 
NOTE: Payments made or.line will be assessed a small convenience foe, Visi!~11l'(or more inf~,}~!~tr---



m1.m1::1t 
HEALTH 

Permit Number 

10-60-00147 

Florida Department of Health 
in Clay County 

Notification of Fees Due 

For: Swimming Pools • Water Activity 

Fee Amount: 

Previous Balance: 

Total Amount Due: 

$125.00 
$0.00 

$125.00 
Notice: This bill is due and payable in full upon receipt and must be 
received by the local office by the payment due date (06/30/202D). 

Payment Due Date: 06/30/2020 or Upon Receipt 

Mail To: Rolling Hills CDD 
475 W Town Place, Suite 114 
Saint Augustine, FL 32092 

Please verify all information below at www.myfloridaehpermitcom and make 
changes as necessary, 

Account lnfonnation: 
Name: Rolling Hills - Water Activity Pool 
Location: 3212 Bradley Creek Parkway 

Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 
Owner Information: 

Pool Volume: 3,007 gallons 
Bathing Load: 50 
Flow Rate: 60 

Name: Rolling Hills CDD Circle One: MC 
Address: 475 W Town Place, Suite 114 Name on Card: ___________ _ 
(Mailing) Saint Augustine, FL 32092 Account#: ___________ _ 
Home Phone: (904) 531-9238 Work Phone:() ,.,,.,,.,...~===---,-===-,-===~===--,--~--,-,-~ Exp Date:_/_ Security Code (CW): __ tf;l1i{l;lltil[f\'.{)/' : \ :•_s-Bil-lin-gA-d-dr-es-s:-State:_ Zip: __ 

Pen:nit-N tihl ber:>1-0"6o·,oo.147 'Bill IO• 1 o:cB[D.4645133: I Authorize Florida Department of Health in Clay 

;jilitj;~y'&~tj~~i->f".¥i/PtjifcJ;t·~vx~~J'ira:37J3if ., , _.'._·" • > · .. ,...... \ ,;.,··._.> io~1~:rn: charge my credit card account for the 
Jl.youdo·n9\·PeY•Mi.1M,_m~ke;ch~cli~ payabl~ to·.and. ma.1l 1nyoJ9e;\/\IJTH.p_ayll1_ent•to: .• · Payment Amount: $ ___ For: _____ _ 
:-Flonil~ODe~~rtmonicof:tle~ltp:it,J:la°\'Gi)~q\y.•• . . . " .. 

i[!~~l\$!tiil~t:t~:;.~~d1it\;/)if/'.''.~'.(_ ·(i· Signature Date 

[Please RETURN invoice with your payment] Balch Billing 10:20708 

Iii Sove tirne. Paying a hill onliM is foster than 1m:iilin9 a che.c:kor 
hand delivering payment. 
All Our safo and seeure system will keep your information protected, 

RI Pay at your convenience, With our on line gystem 1 you can pay .• . -."''-~ 
with your'credit card ore~eheck and don't have to worry about ~' ~- , 
envelop"lSOr'sto,nps, . '-.:.: •::·;··-'~ · 

PoythisinvoiceonHneotwww.myfloridoehp_erm_it~ ,, .. -:····::;",:.,.•··~'-rij 
NOTE: Payments rnaae online w1H be assessed a smal! convenil'nc~ fee. V1s,~~·tor more mf~'.$'~.i:tm'' EA[ 



Jeffrey Deese 
4990 Windmill Court 

Middleburg, fl 32068 
904-219-0579 
iadeese@daysherrff.corn 

TO: 

Rolling Hills Community Development District 
3212 Bradley Creek Blvd. 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

DATE 
WORKED DESCRIPTION 

5-22-20 Neighborhood Patrol/ Security 

Checked preserve area. 

Patrolled entire development 

WR: 

Property Manager 

TIME 

IN/OUT 

1800-2200 

Checked Clubhouse, pool, and boardwalk area. 

Patrolled entire development, 

DEPUTY SIGNATURE: 

Make all checks payable to Jeffrey Deese 

Thank you for your business! 

HOURS RATE 

4.0 30.00 

TOTAL 

INVOICE DATE 
DATE:S-22-20 

AMOUNT 

120.00 

120.00 

I 

' 

i 



Jeffrey Deese 
4990 Windmill Court 
Middleburg, fl 32068 
90~219-0579 
jadeese@daysheriff.com 

TO: 

Rolling Hills Community Development District 
3212 Bradley Creek Blvd. 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

DATE 

WORKED 
DESCRIPTION 

5-26-20 Neighborhood Patrol/ Security 

Checked preserve area. 

Patrolled entire development 

FOR: 

Property Manager 

TIME 

IN/OUT 

1700-2100 

Checked Clubhouse, pool, and boardwalk area. 

Patrolled entire development. 

DEPUTY SIGNATURE: 

Make all checks payable to Jeffrey Deese 

Thank you for your business! 

HOURS RATE 

4.0 30.00 

! 

TOTAL 

INVOICE DATE 
DATE:5~26-20 

AMOUNT 

120.00 

120.00 



Orange Environmental Services 
P. 0. Box 187 
Orange Park, FL 32067-0187 
904-272-3284 

RIVERSIDE MGMT SERVICE INC 
ROLLING HILLS 
3212 BRADLEY CREEK PKWY 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FL 32043 

Page 1 of 1 

111484 

5127/2020 

Ser;ic• Addre .. : RIVERSIDE MGMT SERVICE INC 3212 BRADLEY CREEK PKWY, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FL 32043 

5/1112020 476919 476919 Qty Pest Control 350.00 350.00 

'BALANCE IS DUE BY JUNE 10, 2020.'FROM OUR OFFICE TO YOUR HOME. .WEWISH OUR CUSTOMERS 
GOOD HEAL TH - AMERICA STRONG' 

Page 1 of 1 

111484 

5/2712020 

476919 350.00 



Wednesday, May 27, 2020 at 1:46:34 PM Eastern Daylight Time 

Subject: 

Date: 

From: 

To: 

Fwd: STATEMENT FROM ORANGE ENVIRONMENTAL 

Wednesday, May 27, 2020 at 12:23:25 PM Eastern Daylight Time 

Rolling Hills 

Patti Powers 

Attachments: Statement 111484.pdf 

Patti 
Please process. GL# 1-57200-330-46000 Thanks 

----------Forwarded message------
From: <LaDonna@oesfl.net> 
Date: Wed, May 27, 2020 at 11:03 AM 
Subject: STATEMENT FROM ORANGE ENVIRONMENTAL 
To: <RHMANAGER@riversidemg1;svc.com> 

Your Statement from Orange Environmental Services is attached. 

If you have any questions please call Office /Accounting Department 
at (904) 272-3284 Ext# 302 

We appreciate your Business 

Rolling Hills 
3212 Bradley Creek Parkway 
Green Cove Springs, Fl. 32043 
(904) 531-9238 
RHmanager@riversidemg!svc.com 

Page 1 of 1 



Rivel'Side Management Services, Inc 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd. W. 
Building 300, Suite 305 · 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

Bill To: 
Rol!ing Hills CDD 
475 West Town Place 
Suite 1'14 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Description 

Facillty Maintenance April 1 - April 30, 2020 
Maintenance Supplies 

\- Cs( i \ "" ("\ ,,,,~. \ • 

oo\. 3-;c/ .:;·n ,Y{), </(,, 6'(//? 

Oft\C-<-. 5..Jpp\',.,l_s 
uo\. s7o ,;72mJ, :;zcr01.) 

Hours/Qty 

invoice 

Invoice#: 323 
Invoice Date: 5/18/2020 

Due Date; 5/18/2020 
Case: 

P.O. Number: 

Rate 

4,479.14 
1,380.70 

Amount 

4,479.14 
1,380.70 

Total $5,859.84 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $5,859,84 



MAINTENANCE BILLABLE PURCHASES 

Perlod Ending 05/0~/20 

DISTRICT DATE SUPPLIES PRICE E!:l!El.O)'.EE 
RH 
ROLLING HILLS 3/30/20 Dls!ofectent Wipes 4 Rolls 143.75 F.O. 

411120 Sitius Radfo 57,39 F.O. 
4/1/20 Comr,uter Mouse 7.91 F.O. 
411120 Sticky Motes (2) 5.68 F.O. 
411/20 Bandannas (3) 6.80 F.O. 
411120 Tacks 1.66 F.O. 
4/1/20 Copy Paper (2) 70.00 F.0, 
4/1/20 Pap&r 6.72 F.O, 
412120 John Deere Galor/fraTier RentiJI 80,50 R.W. 
412120 Contractor 1'tash Bags 22,94 R.W. 
412120 Gas for Jolin Deere Gator 7.50 R.W, 
4/3120 0 Bal!eries 24.01 F.O, 
415120 Microsoft Subscriplkin 125,91 F.O. 
418120 24" Lffe Rings (2) 123.03 C.li. 
419120 Be.hrF!atP.a!rlt 37.93 C,P. 
419120 rerry Towels 20pK 11.47 C.P. 
419120 Whtte Foam 4xn~ 6.06 C.P. 
419120 White Foam 4" Mini 5pk 10.32 C.P. 
419/20 Pal 11.47 C.P. 
419120 Pelican Liner 3pk 4.91 C.P. 
4113/20 Tri Fold Paper T owe[s 31.26 F.0. 
4/13/20 Ttashaa.os 20.10 F.O. 
4/13/20 Manh Folders 9.76 F.O. 
4113120 Wrap for motor 14.93 F.O. 
4113120 Glovas. 14.12 F.O. 
4115/20 Windex 2L 6.76 C.P. 
4/16/20 \.Vrnclex 32oz 4.36 C.P. 
4121120 Lysol ToUetBowl creaner (2J 6.86 C.P. 
4121/20 Behr flat Paint 37.93 C,P. 
4/23120 Short Brush 6.75 r.c. 
4/23120 Pelican Liner 3p)( 4.91 T.C. 
4123120 Bahr Paint (2) 76.05 T.C. 
4/28120 9" Roller Frnme (2) 9.61 C.P. 
4128120 3M Sand Blocks (2) 9,82 C.P. 
4/28120 3pX Plastic Drop Cloth 5.72 C.P. 
4120120 9'x112 Rolls (4) 20,66 C.P, 
4/20/20 4" Plasllc Roner "fray 2.27 C.P, 
4128/20 vVhlfo Foam 4:<11n 6.06 C.P, 
4128120 Whtte Foam 4' Mini 6pk 10.32 C.P. 
4128120 Short Cut Brosh (6) 40,50 C.P, 

4m120 Clorox Bleach 320oz (2) 6.90 C.P, 
4/29/20 Dtsposlble Glove,; 50ct (2) 11.43 C,P. 
5/1/20 Stop the Spread Signs (2) 20.29 C.H. 
611120 Please Wash Your Hahds Slgns (8) 67.41 C.H. 
5/5/20 30" Nlfty Nabber 22.97 C,P. 
5/5/20 igaUon Behr Pa[n1 (2) 75.85 C.P, 
515/20 1 ~a\ton Hand sanltz.ers (2) 80.50 C.H. 

0.00 

TOTAL $1,380.70 



RMS ROt.UUG HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
MAlttH:NANCE Bill.ABLE ~OURS 
FOR 'THE MONTH OF APRH .. 2020 

Date Hours EmployM Descrl~llon 

412/2D 4 R.W. Inspected and cle3ned lakes. and oulfaU struc!Ures (llsed Gator and L~rge Tra.i'er) 
412120 4 S.A, Inspected and cleaned )(lkosand oulfa!t structvtes (IJse-d Gator and large Trai!er) 
4/3/20 2 E.T. Mel \-.ilh C!aY Counly Heallh lnspoclor for Walk th tough r.ega1ding pool 
416/20 B T.C, Gllacked and repraced lrash receplacle liner.; on ma-Ir, toatl, removed mulch from 

tree base at pool deck, blewfeaves ancl <lebrtS1off pool deck and boardwalk, 
organized Janllollal c!osel 

4/a/20 8 T.C. Pa!llled lrlm on exterior around doors 
4/8/20 8 C.P, Repaired pavem at zero en!ry for pool, (owe.red pavers lo be flush v..ilh zero entry 
4/9/20 8 T.C. Painted columns 

4/10120 7 T.C, PafrHed columns-
4/16/20 5 C.P, Removed d&bils around amenity center, pmklng lol, mafn road and common 

areas, checi-;ed and changod nil llash reooptadas 
4/16/20 2 T,C. P!ckup an.d lns!elfed ne.wrffe rings 
4/21/20 6 C.P, Remov<=d debl1$atound nmen[{y aent1;r; p<ukln(l kit, along main toa<i ancf oom/(\On 

Meas, checked and changed e.ll !rash recept.ides 
4/2i/20 8 r.c. Pa(n.l columns on pool deck 
4/22/20 8.5 CP, Pa!nled column~ ond Clo:med fans al pavi!lon, finlsl1 ed pai'ltlfl{l colt.nnns under 

cabana 
4/23120 8 T.C, Pioked up supplies, pai1Hed columns 
4/24/20 3 C.P. Started to p1ep the baek waJl-0f pavili~n for new paint and deaned fans fn 

pavmon b-alhrooms 
4120/20 8 C,P. Finished prepping pavilion wans for pain!ing, pslnl manlfes on frmplace In 

pavillon, palnled post along zero enltt to 3'se,;tKln 
4/28/20 8 T.C, Palnl w[urrms and wfnoow frame 
4/28/20 8 R,W. Paloled wooden posrs around pool, prepped wall (Ot painUn_g on outside ol gazebo, 

prtpped lV ledge. and painted on outside ga;;:ebo 
4/29/20 6 C.P, Reorganized poot deck (umUure, removed debris-around amenity center, parking Jot, 

along ms1-fn roads and common areas, checked and changed air trash reC(icptacles 
4/30/20 • T,C. P.;fnl columns al lifeguard slallon, removed debris from common oreas, replaet;!.(i 

Ira.sh recep!acle liners as needed 

TOTAC 123.5 

MILES 352 'Mileage ts relrnbursable per sec.lion 112,061 Ftorlda Slalutes Mi~age Rate 2009-0.445 

ROlllN.G HILLS 



Bill To: 

Rolling Hills COD 
c/o Governmental Management Services, LLC 
5385 N. Nob Hill Rd 
Sunrise, FL 33351 

Property Name: Rolling Hills COD 

Irrigation Repairs 

j~{f~~it{tfilMPJijij:Jif)M1~kt~1 ~t~~i~~1~:if@~~~~~t·~{I~:I{~f 
512712020 

Net 30 

Remit To: 

Yellowstone Landscape 
PO Box 101017 
Atlanta, GA30392-1017 

Invoice Due Date: June 26, 2020 

Invoice Amount: $1,851.00 

$1,851.00 

Invoice Total $1,851.00 

Should you have any questions or inquiries please call (386) 437-6211. 

Yellowstone Landscape I Post Office Box 8491 Bunnell FL 32110 I Tel 386.437.6211 I Fax 386.437.1286 



,I\. 
ATLANTIC 

SMARTHOME.BIZ 
··,- ;,i, '.·t•:. •,•,.; ;]!'• 

Description 

Riverside Management Services 
16529 Tisons Bluff Rd 
Jacksonville FL 32218 

install software on new laptop 904-338-5723 
03/1112020. Brent Touchet: 
The job is complete. 

PLEASE PAY BY 

04/01/2020 

Site: 
Sile Address: 

Job No.: 
Job Name: 

· Order No.: 

Tel. 904-743-8444 
www.smarthome.biz 
sales@smarthome.biz 

INVOICE DATE 

03/11/2020 

INVOICE NO. 150214 

Rolling Hills at Lake Asbury 
3212 Bradley Creek Pkwy 
Green Cove Springs FL 32043 
58710 

Install software and firmware and up to date and testlf you have any further problems with your system please contact us. 

Service• Security 

LThank you-we realfy appreciate your business.I Please send payment within 21 days of receiving this 
invoice. 

IMPORT ANT: Please remember to test your system monthly. 

Need automation for your home? Visit us online at www.smar1home.biz 

There will be a 1.5% interest charge per month on late invoices. 

Sub-Total ex Tax! $18_5_.0Q 
Tax) $0.00 

Total [::::::~---··$185.00 

Sub-Total ex Tax 
Tax 

Total inc Tax 
Amount Applied 

Balance Due 

$185.00 
$0.00 

$185.00 
$0.00 

$185.00 



SMARTHOME.IJIZ 

How To Pay 
Credit Card (MasterCard, Visa, Amex ) 

Credit Card No. 
~~~~--

Card Holder's Name: CCV: 

Expiry Date: r:J / [J Signature: 

NAME: Riverside Management Services 

(m P!easeRelerence: 150214 

PLEASE PAY BY 

04/01/2020 

Mail 

Tel. 904-7 43-8444 
www.smarthome.biz 
sales@smarthome.biz 

INVOICE DATE 

03/11/2020 

INVOICE NO. 150214 

Detach this section and mail check to: 

Atlantic Security 
1714 Cesery Blvd 
Jacksonville, FL 32211 

DUE DATE: 04/0112020 AMOUNT DUE: $185.00 

. ; 



Friday, May 29, 2020 at 10:57:53 AM Eastern Daylight Time 

Subject: 

Date: 

From: 

To: 

Fwd: Invoice 

Friday, May 29, 2020 at 10:51:54 AM Eastern Daylight Time 

Rolling Hills 

Patti Powers 

Attachments: companylogoSmall.png, lnvoice_No_150214.pdf 

Patti 

Could you please process to Gl# 1-57200-330-46000? Thanks 

--------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Atlantic Security A/R Department <ardell1@atlanticcomganies.net> 
Date: Thu, May 21, 2020 at 2:21 PM 
Subject: Invoice 
To: Riverside Management Services <rhmanager@riversidemgtsvc.com> 

A 
ATLANTIC 

SMARTHOME.BIZ 

Dear Riverside Management Services, 

Please find attached invoice no. 150214. 

You can pay this via the following link: - click here 

How did we do? 

Thank you, 

Atlantic Security 

Rolling Hills 
3212 Bradley Creek Parkway 
Green Cove Springs, Fl. 32043 
(904) 531-9238 
RH ma nagfil@riversidemgtsvc.com 

Page 1 of 1 



Rolling Hills 
Utility Schedule 

Clay County Utility Authority 

Account# 
00244868 
00244869 
00253042 
00256584 
00260347 

Service Address 
3212-1 Bradley Creek Pkwy- Rel m 

3212-2 Bradley Creek Pkwy- Reim 
3212-3 Bradley Creek Pkwy-Irr 

3215-2 Bradley Creek Pkwy--lrr 
3212-4 Bradley Creek Pkwy-Residents Club 

Vendor#16 
001.3 20.53800.43100 
001.330.57200.43100 

May-20 

$ 128.81 

$ 610.53 

$ 1,150.33 

$ 128.81 
$ 330.42 

$ 2,348.90 

$ 2,018.48 
$ 330.42 

$ 2,348.90 



Rolling Hills 
Utility Schedule 

Clay County Utility AuthorUy 

Account# 

00244868 
00244869 

00253042 
00256584 
00260347 

ServieeAddress 
3212-1 Bradley Creek Pkwy- Reim 

3212-2 Bradley Creek Pkwy-Reim 
3212-3 Bradley Creek Pkwy-Irr 
3215-2 Bradley Creek Pkwy- Irr 
3212-4 Bradley Creek Pkwy-Residents Club 

Vendor#16 
001.320.53800.43100 
001.330.57200.43100 

May-20 
$ 128.81 

$ 610.53 

$ 1,150.33 

$ 128.81 
$ 330.42 

$ 2,348.90 

$ 2,018.48 
$ 330.42 

$ 2,348.90 



.:Ll7(\ (}'.) Jt·-_-ii;iiEi~s iZu,:J, ;\,)id_d~'-hH1·g, H0,-_i.1h . .:U}6~t 
P[,~;;,;1:-,.-h'.t \;., Gil the' v-d.1 <¾t w,,v-,,:,d:iyrJiiity.,,f·:!

t-Jv.1,s: \'10.i;:by - Fr:2.,7, ft.mi-~r-i,1 Ph,:::h.~: t_;G,L2.T2-5'.~'~Y;, 

Customer Name: ROLLING HILLS COO Bill Date: 06/04/2020 Customer#: 00244868 

Route #: MC1 3020732 Service Address: 3212 ~1 Bradley Creek Pkwy Reclaimed Irrigation 

~-D~j!t~~lffi 
Matar Meter Read Days Previous Current Current 
Number Size Date Billed Readin~ Readin~ Usa£!e 

Base Charges (Prepaid) 06/04/20 to 07/08/20 $0.00 

Consumption Charges Tier 1 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 

Proration Factor: 0.0000 Tier2 0.0 X 0.00 $0,00 
Tiers 0.0 X 0,00 $0.00 
Tier4 0,0 X 0.00 $0,00 

Altemative Water Supply Surcharge $0.00 

fi}:7·;"6;:i/''if>~iy-·,_:~'lc.-~"(~~-•f;,:_•:i.::t! ·,~, ~-;;-~::11zi~,,:_;~<~~~~"~-· ~q,::t~~J'"~~r,,F~:r~ 
Base Charges (Prepaid} $0.00 

Consumption Charges 0.0 X 0.00 $0,00 

-,&ttlllf~Jlilffl1ffl.ilJ";~m~'I 

( 

Meter Mater Read Days Previous Current 
Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading 

68272411 2 06/02/20 29 73914 7$914 

Base Charges (Prepaid) 
Consumption Charges lier 1 0.0 X 0,79 

Proration Factor: 0.9667 Tiar2 0,0 X 1.56 
ller 3 0.0 X 2,35 

Other Charges 
Administrative Fees (Prepaid} 
Capacity Fees (Prepaid) 
Deposit Interest Refund 

Current Charges 
Previous Balance 
Lato Charge (If Applicable) 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 

Please return this portion with payment 

C!,Ii County Ut,lity i-\~Jtrio,1ty 
s1 ·rn '~Jid ,k~nning:=; Ror-,d 
MkidiEbLX{/. rioridc ~·:2068 

Current 
Usage 

0 

$128.81 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0,00 
$0,00 
$0.00 

$128.81 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$128.81 

ROLLING HILLS COD Customer#:00244868 

Route #:MC13020732 
3212 -1 Bradley Creek Pkwy Reclaimed Irrigation 

AYC0603F 
2000000851 47/"':.. 

,l,l.lfi11111n•l111'1"11h11•111lllnl11111111'11nl111hll'"I 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 

~ 5385N NOB lill,L ROAD 
ffl SUNRJSE FL 33351-4761 

) 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: Service disruptions for 
nonpayment will resume Tuesday, July 28, 2020. 
Delinquent balances must be paid or have an active 
extension to avoid service disconnection and additional 
fees. 

Please call our Customer Service Department at 904-272• 
5999 to make a payment or payment arrangements 
before Friday, July 24, 2020. 

Need assistance with your bill? Visit our website for a list of 
~ agencies wtrcrmay be able-to· he1p.i1ttps~//www:-ctayutility;orgf 

myservice/customer_assistance__program.aspx 

Please pay $128.81 by 6/2512020 to avoid a $3.00 late fee. 
Make checks payable to CLAY COUNTY UTILITY 
AUTHORITY. 

Your last payment of $128.81 was posted to your account on 
05/26/2020. 

r·::·~ ; .. 
f. 

' ·" .. :~,L,,• ~ . 
. ~ 

' ,\ li !M '! 
I:~ "\ 

.;;·V•~ 

'. 
\. ti '' ["}• 

Bill Date 
Current Charges 
Current Charges Past Due After 
Lend A Helping Hand ( If Applicable) 

Previous Balance 
Total Amount Due 

j 

. -, \ 
~-.. 1 .:le,_,,• 

'l"(,"'f; .. tit..! i i ,_. 
t· ,, •• J 

.. 

06/04/20 

$128.81 

06/25/20 
$0,00 

$0.00 

$128.81 

• I 1111111111III111111• 11h111111 II II d• I •111 I I,,. I II ,hi I" 1" I' I 
CLAYCOUNTY1ITILITY AUTHORITY 
3176 OLD JENNINGS ROAD 
MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068 

CCUA-1170-4 00244868 5 MC13020732 0 □□ 0012881 0000000 □ 6252020 0 0 

[1/5J, 





5.176 OL );c:.abig:,; °Ro;,d, ;'vliddJd_i;iq;, r-k.dd.., :UC68 
Ph·:(ls:-:-. vi:-;li. iw 1,)n ihc WC':' ;;1 ;.1,•s~".v.,J:iy:1:iky.,1rg. 

ihmr:;: [vkn(~J.Y. hid«y, 8.im . .Sp:).l_ '..\"!~)J)~-:; L!t),f ·2/]r'.i'.-f')~) 

Customer Name: ROLLING HILLS CDD Bill Data: 0610412020 Customer#: 00244869 

Route #: MC13020734 Setvics Address: 3212 -2 Bradley Creek Pkwy Reclaimed Irrigation 

~~~!~mt~~~ IMPORTANT NOTICE: Service disruptions for 
Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current nonpayment will resume Tuesday, July 28, 2020. 
Number Size Date Billed Aeadin9 Readin2 Usa9e Delinquent balances must be paid or have an active 

extension to avoid service disconnection and additional 
Base Charges (Prepaid) 06/04120 to 07108/20 $0.00 fees. 
Consumption Charges Tier 1 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 
Proration Factor. 0.0000 lier 2 0,0 X 0.00 $0.00 Please call our Customer Service Department at 904-272-Tier3 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 

Tier4 0,0 X 0.00 $0.00 5999 to make a payment or payment arrangements 

Alternative Water Supply Surcharge $0.00 
before Friday, July 24, 2020. 

Need assistance with your bill? Visit our website for -a list of 
~}~~~~'*'":"'""'(j~~~·~~.,,~~t~~;~rc~~:~~:;Z\'.fa~~~f;'..',~~-~'f'i:~lWi~~~-~~~~l'k · agencies-who-mayb·inihle to he1p~11ttps:t/www.-clayutility:org/ 

Base Charges (Prepaid) $0.00 myservice/customer_assistance_Jlrogram.aspx 
Consumption Charges 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 

fir~[ll\~~~ Please pay $610.53 by 6125/2020 to avoid a $3.00 late fee, 
Meter Meter Road Days Previous Current Current Make checks payable to CLAY COUNTY UTILITY 
Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading Usage AUTHORITY. 
68272412 2 06/02/20 29 65028 65323 295 
Base Charges (Prepaid} $128.81 Your last payment of $759.98 was posted to your account on 
Consumption Charges Tier 1 116,0 X 0,79 $91.64 05/26/2020. 
Proration Factor: 0.9667 Tier2 38.7 X 1.56 $60,37 

Tier 3 140,3 X 2.35 $329,71 

r-·~--, l .. ... .. . 

( Other Charges ) . \ . . \ " . . . .. ..:, . .. ,., ;,._, -·· Administrative Fees (Prepald) $0,00 ' "'1I 

Capacity Fees (Prepaid) $0.00 j JUN ' ( 2ii2i! Deposit Interest Refund $0.00 ' ; ' ' ; ~-· . ' 
foi ,;j 

1 • • 
Current Charges $610,53 '' "" ii"~~ 

:...._,_., 
Previous Balance $0,00 L. ;, __ ·····--- ---·---·•----.. --
Late Charge (If Appticablo) $0.00 - --- --
TOTAL AMOUNT DUE $610.53 

(2/5]. 

Please return this portion with payment i!I/WMWf:¥bDi!!'$'.UfiZtiJiiiWl\iil 
C!c_y ~.>Jur.ty ut1!ity ;.\uthority 
31 76 Oki ,.JF.:nn!ngs Ro8.d 
f'/lt~k!k:burg, F!crida :320N! 

ROLLING HILLS CDD Customer #:00244869 

Route #:MC13020734 
3212 -2 Bradley Creek Pkwy Reclaimed lrrtgation 

AYC0603E' 
2C00000852 47 /2 

ROLLING HlLLS COD 
5385 N NOB HILL ROAD 
SUNRISE FL 33351-4761 ~ 

Bill Data 
Current Charges 
Current Charses Past Due After 
Lend A Helping Hand ( If Applicable) 
Previous Balance 
Total Amount Due 

06/04/20 
$610.53 
06125120 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$610.53 

• I •111 llllh 1111 I II 'I' I 1111 uln H lhl •I• m I I lpl u•ld •" •"• • , 
CLAY COUNTY UTILITY AUTHORITY 
3176 OLD IBNNINGS ROAD 
MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068 

CCUA-1170-4 00244869 1 MC13020734 000 □ 061053 0000000 062s2020 o o 



~r~:::t!JL-:;) ,~.c!cl:-sss 
tD:~:-8f [jf'/f"Js~·:, r.--· '..'~Ur t,H!. 

r .. :r(.Jrr.2d r·12:i: c!: 1:Hsc\~_,:inE:cL~!;1 .:..-;= 



j t7() -c::!.d JcaniH/V• Ro,ul._, tvHdd.khiqs,, Fl::rida. J2.0(,8 
PlticM.' ·1i.1it. l!i, oi\ clw vvd> ,1-;; v,-,\",-';,cis>.;,11.Fii_(1·.y:<!lf; 

i:fow.~: ;,.,;t1:v!ily. "?dd:.y, S;,llc ,:-ipm Phc-,i::: S·O--ci--2.72 -~i9':H 

Customer Name: ROLLING HILLS CDD Bill Date: 06/04/2020 Customer#: 00253042 

Route #: MC13020736 Service Address: 3212·3 Bradley Creek Pkwy Irrigation 

~j!i!:[~~ IMPORTANT NOTICE: Service disruptions for 
Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current nonpayment will resume Tuesday, July 28, 2020. 
Number Size Date Billed Reading Readina Usage Delinquent balances must be paid or have an active 
69667781 2 06/02/20 29 27553 27898 345 extension to avoid service disconnection and additional 
Base Charges (Prepaid) 06104/20 to 07 /08120 $85.30 fees. 
Consumption Charges lier 1 77,3 X 1.47 $113.63 
Proration Factor: 0.9667 Tier 2 116.0 X 3.04 $352.64 Please call our Customer Service Department at 904-272• lier 3 151,7 X 3.94 $597.70 

Tier 4 0,0 X 5.06 $0.00 5999 to make a payment or payment arrangements 

Alternative Water Supply Surcharge $1.06 
before Friday, July 24, 2020. 

'f:'=tl;;;._';';,"i).-k~:~r~~;cj;~~--$~~~•~f',•,:=~{~~~Q.ffW:0~1/i}6@:~4~''~;'//j;,~\•~~~':'h'-;;,~~W'\.~~~-~~::.,;t~P Need assistance with your bill? Visit our website !or a list of 
-agencieswtio maybe-ab,etbMlp:-https:/twww:clayufillty:orgt 

Base Charges (Prepaid) $0,00 myservice/customer _assistance _program. aspx 
Consumption Charges 0,0 X 0.00 $0.00 

~~i~~ Please pay $1150.33 by 6/25/2020 to avoid a $3.00 late 
Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Curren.t fee. Make checks payable to CLAY COUNTY UTILITY 
Number Size Date Billed Aead(ng Reading Usage AUTHORITY. 

Base Charges (Pmpaid) $0.00 Your last payment of $916.44 was posted to your account on 
Consumption Charges Tier 1 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 05/26/2020. 
Proration Factor: 0,0000 Tier2 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 

Tier3 0.0 X 0.00 $0,00 

Consumer Confidence and UCMR4 Reports are available 
at our office and online at: 

( Other Charges ) www.clayutility.org/qcrlLAG.pdf. ·, 

Administrative Fees (Prepaid) $0.00 ,:i ~.-.? 
. .:,, 

. ' 
Capacity Fees (Prepaid) $0.00 

.-... ·, •-N•<·, ,/, 

' :;; 
Deposit ln.terest Refund $0.00 

JUN I r 10"'0 
., 

' ,, 
•"i ' £ ""· ,· :-:1 

current Charges $1,150.33 
i. 

., ,,;I J 
Previous Balance $0.00 ,, ;t t·.;..1-"' 
Late Charge (if Applicable) $0,00 L"/: ... ---··-----
TOTAL AMOUNT DUE $1,150.33 

[3/5), 

Please return this portion with payment ~ :£)Ifillliffi'!iir~ 
Giay County Uti!i'i,y ,C\utJ-writv 
3176 Old Jen:--;ings hcNl 
M:dc![el)U!'(J, F"!o11d2 32.0Ge 

ROLLING HILLS CDD 

3212-3 Bradley c"'ek Pkwy Irrigation 

AYC0603F 
2000000853 47/3 

ROLLING HILLS CDD 
5385N NOB HILL ROAD 
SUNRISE FL 33351-4761 

Customer #:00253042 

Route #:MC13020736 

Bill Date 
Current Charges 
Current Charges Past Due After 
Lend A Helping Hand { If Applicable) 
Previous Balance 
Total Amount Due 

06104/20 

$1,150.33 

06/25/20 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$1,150,33 

1 I I 111111 lhl ul I II 11' 11 hi Ill 1111 lhM• 111 I 11 pl II ,I , I I 11 11 'I I I 
CLAY COUNTY UTILITY AUTHORITY 
3176 OLD JENNINGS ROAD 
MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068 

CCUA-1170-4 00253042 8 MC13020736 0000115 □33 00000 □□ 06252020 0 0 



~? .'',! ;.r, ~\.(-
~- ... ,,~,-~ .. y 



j 1'7(:; Oid ~•'.'.t".::;;,,t~,; Rt.id, Yfi,:id!_ehmg, ?!,)ri(~;c !·~:O::i& 
P!:;'.;l!W vi~ic. !.JS CH the wd:- :i.\. \',"/•:>v.cbcy;;;i[_il)~f;Ir 

} b,w;:: hfo1:..(i,1y · h.id.:1y: -8,,:,1-S;;m: J"''.JN<-:".; 9C1\ .. ],Jl,j_t,'';i)-

Customer Name: ROLLING HILLS CDD Bill Date: 06/04/2020 Customer#: 00256584 

Route #: MC13020730 Service Address: 3215~2 Bradley Creek Pkwy Reclaimed Irrigation 

Meter 
Number 

Meter Read 
Sizt1 Date 

Base Charges (Prepaid) 
Consumption Charges 
Proration Factor. 0.0000 

Days Previous Current Current 
Billed Reading Reading Usage 

06/04/20 to 07 /08/20 $0,00 
Tier 1 0.0 X 0,00 $0.00 
Tier 2 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 
ller 3 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 
Tier 4 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 

Alternative Water Supply Surcharge $0.00 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: Service disruptions for 
nonpayment will resume Tuesday, July 28, 2020. 
Delinquent balances must be paid or have an active 
extension to avoid service disconnection and additional 
fees. 

Please call our Customer Service Department at 904•272• 
5999 to make a payment or payment arrangements 
before Friday, July 24, 2020. 

Need assistance with your bill? Visit our. website for a listof 

[4/5], 

Base Charges (Prepaid) 
Consumption Charges 

$0.00 
$0.00 

· agencilrswnornay be abIe-10-h-e1p; https'.//WWW:crayutili(y;org/
myservice/customer_assistance_program.aspx 

0.0 X 0.00 

~-f;f?'./lfiiN@.-w Please pay $128.81 by 6/25/2020 to avoid a $3.00 late fee. 
Make checks payable to CLAY COUNTY UTILITY 
AUTHORITY. 

Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current 
Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading 

58730024 2 06/02/20 29 19369 19369 

Base Chargos (Prepaid) 
Consumption Charges Tier 1 0.0 X 0.79 
Proration Factor: 0.9667 Tier 2 0.0 X 1.66 

Tier 3 0.0 X 2.35 

( Other Charges 
Administrative Fees {Prepaid} 
Capacity Fees (Prepaid) 
Deposit Interest Refund 

Current Charges 
Previous Balanoo 
Late Charge (If Applicable) 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 

Please return this portion with payment 

C!1:;,y co,.nty Uti!it~, /',ui.hc,r-!tv 
?·\' /G Oid J-2n1;inns fi:oa.d 
[1/tiJdif':bu: [j, F !mict., ;?,?OtJ8 

Current 
Usage 

0 

$128.81 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0,00 
$0.00 
$0,00 

$128.81 
$0,00 
$0.00 

$128.81 

ROLLING HILLS COD Customer #:00256584 

Route #:MC13020730 
3215-2 Bradley Croak Pkv.,y Reclaimed Irrigation 

AYC0603F 
20:)0000854 41 / 4 

ROLLJNG mLLS CDD 
5385NNOB HILL ROAD 
SUNRISE FL 33351-4761 

Your last payment of $131.18 was posted to your account on 
05/26/2020. 

,< 1 Jt!N l t WW .. 
~..t i) ' . ' 
I, Vi. \_.. ,/ 

["; ________ ------- -·--

Bill Data 
Current Charges 
Current Charges Past Due After 
Lend A Helping Hand ( If Applicable) 
Previous Balance 
Total Amount Due 

06/04/20 
$128,81 

06/25/20 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$128.81 

11l111llllhl11lfll•111lhl11l11lllhM1llll1l111111lil1111h111 

CLAY COUN'IY UTILlTY AUTHORITY 
3176 OLD JENNINGS ROAD 
MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068 

CCUA-1170-4 00256584 5 MC13020730 0000012881 □□□□□□□ □ 6252□ 2 □ 0 □ 



·_,. ;, 
~ ,.,,; j _\_:(: 

,.,. ;'-C: 
<>..:,. tt,\tp>•2·)".f: 

:.c;::vl:,~tl 



Customer Name: ROLLING HILLS CDD 

J 176 ()id J~'<.J]li~;gs ?, .. ,Jal<.(. f,llf.ddkb:.1.rg_, Fbrill .. ~ 52fr6d 
Pk,:,.~t'. \'isi1· u:- :..m ,-~,_t'. \>,·,.J-, s>t. \"-'\\",1.>,\;iay~_r(_i.L1.y.eq,\ 

1-.four:s: l\.fon<l.,\~/-i'd,Li._y .. 8<!.Ho 5pm P}wot: ~?-C'-'l-'.~72 5~)) 

Bill Date: 06104/2020 

Service Address: 3212·4 Bradley Croek Pkwy Resident's Club 

Customer#: 00260347 

Route#; MC13020738 ~i\f~~- IMPORTANT NOTICE: Service disruptions for 
nonpayment will resume Tuesday, July 28, 2020. 
Delinquent balances must be paid or have an active 
extension to avoid service disconnection and additional 
fees. 

Meter Meter Read Days Previous 
Number Size Date BIiied ReadinJ;;! 

70003704 2 06102/20 29 13 

Base Charges {Prepaid) 06/04/20 to 07 /08120 
Consumption Charges 11er 1 8.0 X 
Proration Factor: 0.9667 Tier2 0,0 X 

Tier3 0.0 X 
Tier4 0.0 X 

Alternative Water Supply Surcharge 

Current 
Readinf;! 

21 

1.97 
0,00 
0.00 
0.00 

Current 
Usa2e 

8 

$85.30 
$15.76 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0,00 

$1,06 

Please call our Customer Service Department at 904-272-
5999 to make a payment or payment arrangements 
before Friday, July 24, 2020. 

[5151, 

Base Charges (Prepaid) $193, 18 

Need assistance with your bill? Visit our website for a list of 
·agencfes woo may oeable to helii:'iittps:/fww,iiT.dayiltiltty:orgt 
myservice/customer_assistance__program.aspx 

Consumption Charges 8.0 X 4.39 $35.12 ~t~• 
Meter Meter Read Days Previous Current Current 
Number Size Date Billed Reading Reading Usage 

Base Charges (Prepaid) $0,00 

Consumption Charges Tier 1 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 

Proration Factor. 0.0000 Tier2 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 
lier 3 0.0 X 0.00 $0.00 

Please pay $330.42 by 6/25/2020 to avoid a $3.00 late fee, 
Make checks payable to CLAY COUNTY UTILITY 
AUTHORITY. 

Your last payment of $285.90 was posted to your account on 
05/26/2020. 

Consumer Confidence and UCMR4 Reports are available 
at our office and online at: 

['---,-,--c-c---,-=-=-----,,:.0:.,t""he"'r'-C"'h""a'-'r-"g°"es"-------c-:-:-,,-') www.clayutility.org/ccr/LAG.pdf 
Administrative Fees (Prepaid) $0,00 
Capacity Fees (Prepaid) $0.00 
Deposit Interest Refund $0.00 

Current Charges 
Previous Balance 
Late Charge (If Applicable) 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 

Please return this portion with payment 

Ci::,y Co:Jnt°y' Utility AutJ·,ority 
3~ :'G o:-::i .;._.,nr~in_9s F~c~ci 
Mh::Jif;}u~9, f1•,xid\~ 32C68 

$330.42 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$330.42 

ROLLING HILLS CDD Customer #:00260347 

Route #:MC13020738 
3212-4 Bradley Craek Pkwy Resident's Club 

AYC0603F 
200G000855 1,.7 /5 

ROLLING HILLS CDD 
5385 N NOB HILL ROAD 
SUNRISE FL 33351-4761 

Bill Date 

Current Charges 

Current Charges Past Due After 

Lend A Helping Hand ( If Applicable) 

Previous Balance 

Total Amount Due 

06/04/20 

$330.42 

06/25/20 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$330,42 

11l111lllllt(11l1l1•1•1'h'11(11llllll•l•'lll1l11l111l,l1111l111I 
CLAYCOUNTYU11LlTY AUTHORITY 
3176OLDJENNINGS ROAD 
MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068 

CCUA-1170-4 00260347 6 MC13020738 0000033042 0000000 06252020 0 0 





Rolling Hills 
Utility Schedule 

Clay Electric Cooperative 

Account# Service Address 
7182249 2404 Rolling View Blvd #1 

7751951 3212 Bradley Creek Pkwy-Amenity Ctr 
7755259 3236 BradleyCreekPwky-#1 
7755275 3314 Ridgeview Dr#l 
7755283 2448 Rolling View Blvd 

Vendor#27 
001.3 20.53800 .43000 
001.330.57200.43000 

May-20 
$ 1,938.20 
$ 2,678.00 
$ 2.7.00 
$ 28.00 
$ 91.00 
$ 4,762.20 

$ 2,084.20 
$ 2,678.00 

$ 4,762.20 



Rolling Hills 
Utility Schedule 

Clay Electric Cooperative 

Account# Service Address 
7182249 2404 Rolling View Blvd #1 
7751951 3212 Bradley Creek Pkwy-Amenity Ctr 
7755259 3236 Bradley Creek Pwky-#1 

7755275 3314 Ridgeview Dr#1 
7755283 2448 Rolling View Blvd 

Vendor#27 

001.320.53800.43000 
001.330.57200.43000 

May-20 
$ 1,938.20 
$ 2,678.00 

$ 27.00 
$ 28.00 

$ 91.00 
$ 4,762.20 

$ 2,084.20 
$ 2,678.00 

$ 4,762.20 



rl 
~ 
~ 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

A Orange Park District IE ® Clay E/ectrk Cooperative, Inc. 

734 Blanding Blvd 

Statement Date: 05/26/2020 

Trustee Dist 06 I Web Address 
'----------' clayelectric.com 

,,,+-,_ Orange Park FL 32065-5798 ATo"'h,~:~;,:::~ 904-272-2456 (800)224-4917 
Automated Outage Reporting Line: (888) 434-9844 

Account Name Service Address Meter No Multiplier 

*7182249 ROLLING HILLS VENTURE LLC 2404 ROLLING VIEW BLVD# 1 151840010 

Rate• GS From To Approx Next 
Read Date Previous Present KWH Days Daily KWH 

04/21/2020 05/20/2020 06/22/20 2066 

Previous Statement Balance 
05/13/2020 Payment Received - Thank You 

Previous Balance 

Current Charges Billed 05/26/2020 
Energy 
Access Charge 

Power Cost Adjustment .01740 X 98 KWH f·,··, r·.. ,, 
FLA Gross Receipts Tax · t.t..~,·-i,/ ;,~~,.~~ : .. .c ;,.;,._._,_·.•. 

Florida State Sales Tax / : . '1 .. 
Clay Co Public Ser Utility Tax ,., :~ JUN O 9 2020 ·· 
Clay County Sales Tax 
Operation Round Up 

li.·-,· "l ' 
I.'!. f"-

L'~~:-.--~----.- -------~-~ ~· 

Current Charges Due on 06/16/2020 

Total Amount Due 

Non-Taxable Fuel Amount@ .02902/KWH -$2.84 
Government Taxes/Fees are not imposed by Clay Electric 
Capital Credits 2019 Allocations: 

:\ 

2164 98 29 3 
May 2019 125 29 4 

36.00 
36.00CR 

E $ 0.00 

7.97 
23.00 

1.71 
0.84 
2.33 
1.19 
0.34 
0.62 

$ 38.00 

$ 38.00 

$ 4.70 
$ 25.59 

If you received service in 2019 from Clay Electric, please note your Capital Credits allocation on this month's bill. This 
allocation will be distributed over future years as Capital Credits are retired. 

Payments received after 3 pm will be credited to your account the following business day. Billings not paid in full will 
incur a (ate charge of $5.00 or 5% of the delinquent amount (whichever is greater) that will be added to your account. 

T Tear Here Y 
When Paying In Person: Bring entire bill with you. 

When Paying By Mail: Return this portion with your payment. 

Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
P.O. Box 308 19 

Keystone Heights, Florida 32656-0308 

Malling Address Correction: _____________ _ 

911 Emergency Address: 

80392-286*1 ~19• 
ROLLING HILLS VENTURE LLC 
5385 N NOB HILL RD 
SUNRISE FL 33351-4761 

07182249 

Account Number 

"7182249 
Phone Number 
(904) 278-5020 

Phone Correction 

Return this coupon 
with your payment 

Current Charges 
Due Date 06/16/2020 
Total Amount Due 

000003800 □ 

1 induded an additional amount 
as a donation to Project Share 
to help those In need. 

$ 
Pa"meot Amount 

Write Acco1.mt tfomber on check and 
make payable to: 
Clay Electric C(l(lperatlve, Inc. 

$ 38.00 

$ 38.00 



N 
m 
~ 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

What is CheckOut? 

Use the barcode below while you shop as a fast convenient way to pay your Clay Electric 
Cooperative bill through the checkout lane at a Dollar General retailer near you. Only cash will 
be accepted at these locations, To find a location near you, please visit www.clayelectric.com 

Convenience fee of S 1, 95 automatically added at checkout 

IIII IIII Ill lllllll lllllllll Ill I IIIIIII IIIIIIIII I II II Ill 
799366144580006371682131851233 

By accepting or using this barcode to make a payment, you agree to the full terms and 
conditions1 available at www.payithere.com/terms. After successful payment using this 
barcode, you may retrieve your full detailed ereceipt at www.payithere.com/erece1pt. 



M 
m 
~ 
0 
0 
0 
0 
~ 

!II!!! __ _ 

• ® Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. l;4 Orange Park District 
- 734 Blanding Blvd 

Statement Date: 05/26/2020 

Trustee Dist 06 I Web Address 
~-------~ dayelectrtc.com 

Orange Park FL 32065-5798 ATouchsc:;!:::~!:t~ 904-272-2456 (800)224-4917 
Automated Outage Reporting Line: (888) 434-9844 

Account Name Service Address 

*7751951 ROLLING HILLS COD 3212 BRADLEY CREEK PKWY AMENITY CENTER 

Rate· GSD From To 

GS Demand 04/21/2020 05/20/2020 

Previous Statement Balance 
05/13/2020 Payment Received· Thank You 

Approx Next 
Read Da,te 
06/22/20 

Previous 

3621 

Previous Balance 

Current Charges Billed 05/26/2020 

Energy 
Access Charge 
Demand 79.200',(cN X 4.35 
Power Cost Adjustment .01740 X 21440 

Large Outdoor Light 
Small Outdoor Light 

Pole r:,~~ r-~-·· 
FLA Gross Receipts Tax 
Florida State Sales Tax 
Florida State Sales Tax (6%) 
Clay Co Public Ser Utility Tax 
Clay County Sales Tax 
Operation Round Up 

L, - ~•, ;;- ! ,.:!,...;,, 
/ '. .:.':J 

Current Charges Due on 06/16/2020 

Total Amount Due 

Non-Taxable Fuel Amount@ .02902/KWH ·$622.19 
Government Taxes/Fees are not imposed by Clay Electric 
Capital Credits 2019 Allocations: 

Present 

3889 
May 2019 

2,013.00 
2,013.00CR 

1,286.40 
80.00 

344.52 
373.06 

81.83 
113.55 
77.00 
60.38 

162.61 
4.62 

69.37 

24.16 
0.50 

$321.14 
$1,700.81 

Meter No 

152192920 

KWH Days 

21440 29 
23440 29 

$ 0.00 

$ 2,678.00 

$2,678.00 

Multiplier 

80 

Daily KWH 

739 
BOB 

Ii 

If you received service in 2019 from Clay Electric, please note your Capital Credits allocation on this month's bill. This 
Payments received after 3 pm wi!t be credited to your account the following business day. Billings not paid ln full will 
incur a late charge of $5,00 or 5% of the delinquent amount (whichever is greater) that will be added to your account. 

VTear Here T 
When Paying in Person: Bring entire bill with you. 

When Paying By Mail: Return this portion with your payment. 

Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
P. 0. Box 308 19 

Keystone Heights, Florida 32656·0308 

Account Number I included an additional amount 
as a donation to Project Share 

•7751951 to help those in need, 

Phone Number 

Mailing Address Correction: ______________ _ 
(954) 721-8681 

$ Phone Correction 
Pa•=ent Amount 

911 Emergency Address: Return this coupon Write Account Number on check and 
make payable to: 

with your payment Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. 

Current Charges $ 2,678.00 

80392·28B•1'19' 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 
5385 N NOB HILL RD 
SUNRISE FL 33351-4761 

Due Date 06/16/2020 
Total Amount Due $ 2,678.00 

07751951 □□ 02678 □□ 1 



What is CheckOut? 

Use the barcode below while you shop as a fast converyient way to pay your Clay Electdc 
Cooperative bill through the checkout lane at a Dollar General retailer near you. Only cash will 
be accepted at these locations. To find a location near you, please visit www.clayelectric.com 

✓ 
Check 

,., tnc,a· 

Convenience fee of $1. 95 automatically added at checkout 

IIII IIII Ill lllllll lllllllll Ill I IIIIII Ill lllll I Ill Ill Ill 
799366144580006371682132059794 IJ 

By accepting or using this barcode to make a payment, you agree to the full terms and 
conditions, available at www.payithere.com/terms. After successful payment using this 
barcode, you may retrieve your full detailed ereceipt at www.payithere.corn/ereceipt. 



• ® Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. C:4 Orange Park District 
- 734 Blanding Blvd 

,~. Orange Park FL 32065-5798 
ATouch~~~;t:~~~ 904-272-2456 (800)224-4917 

Statement Date: 05/26/2020 

Web Address 
dayelectric.com 

Automated Outage Reporting Line: (888) 434-9844 
allocation will be distributed over future years as Capital Credits are retired. 

~-1 m 



:;; 
~ 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

• ® Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. Statement Date: 05/26/2020 
~ Orange Park District 
- 734 Blanding Blvd 

Orange Park FL 32065-5798 
ATo,c'c:,~;;,:~;;~ 904-272-2456 (800)224-4917 

Trustee Dist 06 I Web Address .__ _______ _, clayelectric.com 

Automated Outage Reporting Line: (888) 434-9844 

Account Name Service.Address 

7755259 ROLLING HILLS COO 3236 BRADLEY CREEK Pl<!l{Y # 1 

Rate - GS From To 
Approx Next Previous 
Read Date 

GS Non-Demand 04/l1/l020 05/20/2020 06/22/20 318 

Previous Statement Balance 
05/13/2020 Payment Received - Thank You 

Previous Balance 

Current Charges Billed 05/26/2020 
Access Charge 
FLA Gross Receipts Tax 

Florida State Sales Tax 
Clay Co Public Ser Utility Tax 
Clay County Sales Tax 
Operation Round Up 

Current Charges Due on 06/16/2020 

Total Amount Due 

Government Taxes/Fees are not imposed by Clay Electric 
Capital Credits 2019 Allocations: 

Meter No Multiplier 

151839087 

Present KWH Days Daily KWH 

318 0 29 
May 2019 25 29 1 

27.00 
27.00CR 

$ 0.00 ~ 
23.00 

.. 0.59 /\ 
1.64 
0.92 
0.24 
0.61 

$ 27,00 

$ 27.00 

$ 3.39 
$ 17.25 

If you received service in 2019 from Clay Electric, please note your Capital Credits allocation on this month's bill. This 
allocation will be distributed over future years as Capital Credits are retired. 

Payments received after J pm will be credited to your account the following business day. Billings not paid in full will 
incur a late charge of $5.00 or 5% of the delinquent amount (whichever is greater) that will be added to your account. 

V Tear Here 'f 
When Paying in Person: Bring entire bill with you. 

When Paying By Mail: Return this portion with your payment. 

Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
P.O. Box 308 l9 

Keystone Heights, Florida 32656-0308 

Mailing Address Correction: ______________ _ 

911 Emergency Address; 

80392-288•1•19• 
ROLLING HILI.S CDD 
5385 N NOB HILL RD 
SUNRISE FL 33351-4761 

07755259 

Account Number 

7755259 
Phone Number 
(954) 721-8681 

Phone Correction 

Return this coupon 
with your payment 

Current Charges 
Due Date 06/16/2020 
Total Amount Due 

□□□□□27003 

I Included an additional amount 
as a donation to Project Share 
to help those in need, 

$ 
Paument Amount 

Wrlte Account Number on check and 
make payabl,i to: 
Clay E(,ictric cooperative, Jne. 

$ 27.00 

$ 27,00 



00 
m 
~ 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

What is CheckOut? 

Use the barcode below while you shop as a fast convenient way to pay your Clay Electric 
Cooperative bill through the checkout lane at a Dollar General retailer near you. Onty cash will 
be accepted at these locations. To find a location near you, please visit www.clayelectric.com 

<if' 
Check 

1, •;.•·c;;• 

Convenience fee of $1.95 automatically added at checkout 

llll llll Ill lllllll lllllllll Ill I 111111111111111111111 Ill 
799366144580006371682132061188 

By accepting or using this barcode to make a payment, you agree to the full terms and 
conditions, available at www.payithere.com/terrns. After successful payment using this 
barcode, you may retrieve your full detailed ereceipt at www.payithere.com/ereceipt. 



• ® Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. C:4 Orange Park District 
Statement Date: 05/26/2020 

- 734 Blanding Blvd 
-+--.. Orange Park FL 32065-5798 

ATo,ch~:~:~!~ 904-272-2456 (800)224-4917 
Trustee Dist 06 I Web Address 

~-------~ clayelectric.com 
Automated Outage Reporting Line: (888) 434-9844 

Account Name Service Address 

7755275 ROLLING HILLS CDP 3314 RJOGEVIEW DR# 1 

Rate~ GS From To Approx Next 
Previous Read Date 

GS Non-Demand 04/21/2020 05/20/2020 06/22120 169 

Previous Statement Balance 
05/13/2020 Payment Received - Thank You 

Current Charges Billed 05/26/2020 

Energy 
Access Charge 

Previous Balance 

f\;;-:·,;,- ·,~. 

Present 

180 
May 2019 

28.00 
28.00CR 

0.89 
23.00 

0.19 Power Cost Adjustment .01740 X 11 KWH 
FLA Gross Receipts Tax 
Florida State Sales Tax 

,,. ::~:,,_;,,!_';,...._ .. :::~.-~~ t:/ itk'..:'._.i 
v r 

.\ 0.62 
1.72 

Clay Co Public Ser Utility Tax 
Clay County Sales Tax 
Operation Round Up 

l JUN 09 2020 
L ~1 

Current Charges Due on 06/16/2020 

Total Amount Due 

Non-Taxable Fuel Amount@ .02902/KWH -$.32 
Government Taxes/Fees are not imposed by Clay Electric 
Capital Credits 2019 Allocations: 

0.95 

0.25 
0.38 

$ 3.54 
$ 15. 95 

Meter No Multiplier 

152012414 

KWH Days Daily KWH 

11 29 0 
12 30 0 

$ 0.00 ~ 

$ 28.00 

$ 28.00 

If you received service in 2019 from Clay Electric, please note your Capital Credits allocation on this month's bill. This 
allocation will be distributed over future years as Capital Credits are retired. 

Payments received after 3 pm wfll be credited to your account the following business dqy. Billings not paid in full will 
incur a late charge of $5.00 or 5% of the delinquent amount (whichever is greater) that will be added to your account. 

T Tear Here T 
When Paying in Person: Bring entire bill with you. 

When Paying By Mail; Return this portion With your payment. 

Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
P.O. Box 308 19 

Keystone Heights, Florida 32656-0308 

Mailing Address Correction: ______________ _ 

911 Emergency Address: 

80392-286"1 •19• 
ROLLING HILLS CDD 
5385 N NOB HILL RD 
SUNRISE FL 333S1 ·4761 

07755275 

Account Number 

7755275 
Phone Number 

(954) 721-8681 
Phone Correction 

Return this coupon 
with your payment 

Current Charges 
Due Date 06/16/2020 
Total Amount Due 

0000028001 

I ll'lcluded an additfom:il amoul\t 
as a donatfon to Project Share 
to help those !n need, 

$ 
PavmentAmount 

Write Al;:count Number on check and 
make payable to: 
Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. 

$ 28.00 

$ 28.00 



0 
0 
~ 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
~ 

What is CheckOut? 

Use the barcode below while you shop as a fast convenient way to pay your Clay Electric 
Cooperative bill through the checkout lane at a Dollar General retailer near you. Only cash will 
be accepted at these locations. To find a location near you1 please visit www.clayelectric.com 

V 
Check 

~' 

Convenience fee of $1. 95 automatically added at checkout 

IIII IIII Ill lllllll lllllllll Ill I IIIIII IIIII I llll lllll lll 
799366144580006371682132061196 II 

By accepting or using this barcode to make a payment, you agree to the full terms and 
conditions, available at www.payithere.com/terms. After successful payment using this 
barcode, you rnay retrieve your full detailed ereceipt at www.payithere.com/ereceipt. 



~ 

0 
~ 

0 
0 
C 
0 
0 

A Orange Park D1Strict IE' ® Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. 

734 Blanding Blvd 

Statement Date: 05/26/2020 

Trustee Dist 06 J Web Address 
~-------~ clayelectric.com 

,--+--.. Orange Park FL 32065-5798 
ATouc~:~;;::;;:'~ 904-272-2456 (800)224-4917 

Automated Outage Reporting Line: (888) 434-9844 

Account Name Service Address 

7755283 ROLLING HILLS CDD 2448 ROLLING VIEW BLVD 

Rate - GS From To 

GS Hon-Demand 04/20/2020 05/20/2020 

Previous Statement Balance 

05/13/2020 Payment Received - Thank You 

Current Charges Billed 05/26/2020 
Energy 

Access Charge 

Power Cost Adjustment .01740 X 571 KWH 
FLA Gross Receipts Tax 

Florida State Sales Tax 

Clay Co Public Ser Utility Tax 

Clay County Sales Tax 

Operation Round Up 

Approx Next Previous Read Date 
06/22/20 7492 

Previous Balance 

Current Charges Due on 06/16/2020 

Total Amount Due 

Non-Taxable Fuel Amount@ .02902/KWH -$16.57 
Government Taxes/Fees are not imposed by Clay Electric 
Capital Credits 2019 Allocations: 

Meter No Multiplier 

151840032 

Present KWH Days Daily KWH 

B063 S71 30 19 
May 2019 362 29 12 

68.00 

68.00CR 

fl s o.oo 

46.42 
23.00 
9.94 

2.03 
5.66 
2.51 
0.81 
0.63 

$ 91.00 

$ 91.00 

$ 11.01 
$ 49.24 

If you received service in 2019 from Clay Electric, please note your Capital Credits allocation on this month"s bill. This 
allocation will be distributed over future years as Capital Credits are retired. 

Payments received after 3 pm will be credited to your account the following business-day. Billings not paid fn full wiU 
incur a late charge of $5.00 or 5% of the delinquent amount (whichever is greater) that will be added to your account, 

'f" Tear Here T 

When Paying in Person: Bring entire bill with you. 
When Payi'ng By Mail: Return this portion with your payment. 

Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
P.O. Box 308 19 

Keystone Heights, Florida 32656-0308 

Mailing Address Correction: 

911 Emergency Address: 

80392-28B•1*19" 
ROLLING HILl5 CDD 
5385 N NOB HILL RD 
SUNRISE FL 33351-4761 

07755283 

Account Number 
7755283 

Phone Number 
(954) 721-8681 

Phone Correction 

Return this coupon 
with your payment 

Current Charges 
Due Date 06/16/2020 
Total Amount Due 

0000091009 

l lndude(I an additional amount 
as a donatiori to Project Sh21re 
tQ help those In need. 

s 
Pa·-ent Amount 

Write Account Number on check and 
make payable t<i: 
Clay E(ectrii; Cooperative, Inc. 

$ 91.00 

$ 91.00 

.al!l!'I~_...;;:;. ·-- _,,, 



N 
0 
~ 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

What is CheckOut? 

Use the barcode below while you shop as a fast convenient way to pay your Clay Electric 
Cooperative bill through the checkout lane at a Dollar General retailer near you. Only cash will 
be accepted at these locations. To find a location near you1 please visit www.clayelectric.com 

Convenience fee of $1.95 automatically added at checkout 

IIII IIII Ill lllllll lllllllll Ill I llllll 111111111111111111 
799366144580006371682132061204 It 

By accepting or using this barcode to make a payment, you agree to the full terms and 
conditions, available at www.payithere.com/terms. After successful payment using this 
barcode, you may retrieve your full detailed ereceipt at www.payithere.com/ereceipt. 



1:c~MA tir:h. Ll•i 1112 • /'til!.;;,;-.i at",»:11, FL'~ma~ 
It,;,'(_ ,!f.,.;?f'-' f;'.-,1 

Advertising Invoice 

ROLLIXG HILLS CDD C/O GMS LLC 
47.S W TOWN Pl, 
C/OGMS.LLC 
SAINT AUGUST[NE, FL 32092 

Cl,wilication: LegAI ~fotice 

Advertisement Information: 

Custtl:503071 
Ad/1!309214 
l'hone#:904-9-IO-S8!l0 
Di1te:06110/l020 

M Sizt: 1.0 i 6.50 

r· ll~_c.r_ipti;n .... , , .. , "" .I··- ·sta1-~1-~8!~-~~-~-~;~_-I~~-.. 7C-'C~;·up_.;; -~~~) ... _ >...C 

f<:_tflx.I~d.~t. ................. _. _[031~~.c30_?~.!@!~5j_20~[ .1 .. ____ L ____ s1.1s ·-···,~·~; ·~-'-'·-"~~~ 

Payment Information: 
D11te: Order# 

02/l7/20l0 309214 

'rype 

DILLED ACCOUNT 

Totnl AmOIHtl: 87.75 

Tax: 0.00 

AmountDue: 87.7.S 

/1.tw,tion: Requul:l for eredils or rtfonds for e.:1.rly cancellations must be n,ade w;thin 90 d~ys. 

Ad Copy 
NOTICE OF RULE 
DEVELOPMENT 

IJVTnEll.OU.lNG HILLS 
C-OlOIT'l\ll'V 

DF.V>:LOP/d>:t<t"l>1S'r<UC'r 
l">e<ordwilh~'lr>pjtr>l!:l)>nd JOO. 
Y'.Jltid, ~\""''· u,. 11<>111,,., nm, 
c, ..... ,..,.11, Uen,lop,,'lM o,, ...... 
n11mi<1'1 heroll)· ,1,e, TIO~«> d \t., 
l•IM<l<,O lo dev,lop RUlL~ ~ 
l'f'"100Uro 10 ''"""· the Qp,,,0<10,» 
orn,olll,llkl. 
Tho R~\,...ofrro"'-d""• ,rill l>ddr••• 
,-ro .,..,.. " 1!1• I!oonl of. 
~U?<'r<l<<i,_ oJO,on, OM w\i«,:, 
d!<tri.: om,c.,. µobllu 1,to,,.s!loo 
nod l••P••U•~ or ,......«l,, p,llcl,,., 
p,b1k me<'(i~~ 1,~Ulni,< •od 
....,r1<.,1wp., n,l,•"1,1<1,~ ~"'e<<dl<W 
0:10 <Or<i>CUI/,.'-' p•.t:>•><' ln,!wllo~ 
p""od""' undu Ille ;;\,,,k<J!loru. 
("~>,1~r~,l,·A :-le;ollo<loo Ml. 
rrooedo«t <co0<J1.,, oudi10, 

••ieL-Uoo. """''"'" ur '"""""'""· pro•qollflootl••• eon,lru<tlo, 
o<!tlr.1<1$, ~•d•, <upplte,; •od 
mowr!ol,. .,,(o~ou,oe --,,rl«o. 
=•rJct,1.,1 "";"" "111 J>rOI•"'-' 
wlih '"-'P<'« 10 pr<«·<,rn~ J• ,,,11 
""' •r,:; 01bi,r .,,, of Ill~ ~., . .,,1 
Oll'roUoo ,fllleUlnrlol 
'tic pufl>•"'·'"d ctfo,(M\t,e Roi., 
,-r Pr~un• !, lo pN>I~,• ror 
<'llid•nl ,nd t!Tc'<OU,-. Ub1tlu 
opor>llo,, "~ t<>=uw<ompllM<~ 
,,,;,11 <\"«'n\ ,!1,IO~o• II> ~1o<ldd b~•, 
'rh<-1<'!'•1 ""'hori':I /o,<heod,p~<>., 
of lhe P"'!>0-1«1 Rulo< o( P,oeod"'" 
l=teta<le; ><~Uou, l~G.OU(~,. 
l9MIIU~I ""~ lWro5. t'loM.> 
S...tul<> ,:!(lt.H ":"!1r >p<'<\!lo ••~·• ,.,~loo,,..«d i,. ...., n"i.,, or 
Ptofflle,q hsd"M• hu, or.! not 
lltnl!ed to. ""ton, ll2.('B. t12~l-tl. 
U:!.Jl4-I&. JJ~L-1$. UD.01. ll9.0"/~l, 
\¥>),@. 1W.llll01:ll{ol\0, ll'[J_CUI, 
:90.0~;. 190.00ll, IM.Oll(:t>, 
:~musi. 100.1111110,. \!IMJ!. 
:ill.=. ~IS.JJ. ~Ill.mil. :!.I$~ 
o;.1os1,. :!.<;S.~'C<l, ~6-HO. l:all.01~. 
~m.ou. 2(G.rl!IJ. ?ilfi.Olll. 2111 01'1, 
W.ll:l5 on.I lfl1.M!-. !'l<,r;d, si1Me, 
[I/IIOI 
,1 «n nr 1N r,,,,,.1.«<1 Hui•• ~r 
Pro<0<!0"1 l>lk)" bo abblu<'<l ltr 
.,,.,~,rll>rJ ti!, llh<,M ill<->~'<lr, ,,i 
"'°"''"°'"~!>\ ~•""'"""ISC'n·l= -m w .. i 7""" l'l.l«, ~ull~ Ill. 
IVorid Gair vm,,:,.-, s~ A~i:<""lnt. 
1·10"'10.=,,oot1!>IO-.';,l;O. 

Ji,r,Oll..,r.01>"1<!<1J.l>,t>M, 
Rnlll•~ HUI• C~a,r:,uul\t 

!l,-w1n.,,,.,,,.tol,1Tlc< 
l,ei:ol ~!>7,;Q ~W)!l,Jotd t\11,t. ~. N.13 
!~ Cl•y ~•••'>'• Clo)• 'l:w.o1 
"'"'l"P'"• 



3513 U.& Hv~. 17 • Fle~h>J Island, FL 32003 
0none: (9G4) 264-3200 

1102 A1A I\Orth, Uni 108 • Ponte Vedra Se,cr,, FL 32082 
Phcne: {904) 285-8831 

Advertising Invoice 
MAY l. g ZOZIJ 

ROLLING HILLS COD C/O GMS LLC 
475WTOWNPL ,i,i: 114 
C/OGMS,LLC 
SAJNT AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

Salesperson: Clay Legals 

Advertisement Information: 

Payment Information: 
Date: 

04/30/2020 

Order# 
311508 

Classification: Legal Notice 

Type 

BILLED ACCOUNT 

Cust#:503071 
Ad#:311508 
Pbone#:904-940-5850 
Datc:04/30/2020 

Ad Sizo: 1.0 x 4.80 

Cost/Day Total 

48.00 __ .i: 48.00 

Total Amount: 48.00 

Tax: 0.00 

Amount Due: 48.00 

Attention: Requests for credits or refunds for early cancellations must be made within 90 days. 

Ad Copy 
NOTICE OF 

QUALIFYING l'ERIOD 
FOR CANDXDATES FOR TBE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OFTlCE 
ROLLING lllLL.C. COMlUUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Notice is hereby glven that the 
qualifying period for candidates for 
the office of Supervisor of the 
Rolling H!lls Corumuntty 
Development District t•m~trtct') will 
commence at noon on June 8, 2020. 
and close at noon on .June 12, 2020. 
CandidaWs must quality for the 
offiee of Supervisor wlth the Clay 
County Supervi$or of Elections 
Located at 500 N. Orange Avenue. 
Green Cove Spring5, Florida 32043 
Ph: (904)269-6350. All candidates 
shall qualify for individual seats in 
accwdance with Section 99.061, 
Florida Sta~tes, and mu.at also be a 
"quallt'ied elector'' of the District, as 
deiwed In Section lQ0.003. Florida 
Statutes. A •qualified elector' is any 
per&on a ti east 18 years o( age who Is 
a citizen or the United States, a legal 
resident of the State or Florida and 
of the Distri<,t, and who fa registered 
to vote with the Clay Cmrnty 
Supervisor ,;,t Elections. Campaigns 
shall be conducted in ace-0rdance 
with Chapter 106, Florida Statutes. 
The Rolling HUis Community 
Dovclopment D!striet has two (1) 
seats up for election. speelflca!Jy 
seat,; 1 and 3, Each seat earrles a 
four-year term of office. Elections 
are nonpartisan and wlll be held tit 
the same ti.me as the general election 
on November 3!_ 2~20: and In t.?e 



irefox 

of I 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF CLAY: 

PUBLISHER AFFIDAVIT 
CLAY TODAY 

Published Weekly 
Orange Park, Florida 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared 
Jon Cantrell, who on oath says that he is the publisher of the 
"Clay Today~ a newspaper published weekly at Orange Park in 
Clay County, Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement 
being a 

NO11CE OF QUALIFYING PERIOD 

iu the matter of 

2020 ELECTIONS 

LEGAL: 46051 ORDER: 311508 

was published in said newspaper in the issues; 

05/14/2020 

A.ffiant further says that said "Clay Today" is a newspaper published 
at Orange Park. in said Clay County, Florida, and that the said newspaper 
has heretofore been continuously published in said Clay County, Florida, 
weekly, and has been entered as Periodical material matter at the post 
office in Orange Park, in said Clay County, Florida, for period of one 
year next proceeding the first publication of the attached copy of 
advertisementj and affiant further says that he has neither paid nor promised 
any person, fum or corporation any discount, rebate, commission or 
reftmd for the purpose of securing this advertisement for publication in 
the said newspaper. 

Swam to me and subscri~ed ~re me 

~1TA~~ 
•'""~ CHRISTIE LOU WAYNE 

MY COMMlSSION II GG24173 
"Off\.~ EXPIRES: Se:ptembct 20, 2020 

3515 US HWY 17 Suit.e A, Fleming Island FL 32003 
Telephone (904) 264-3200 - FAX (904) 264-3285 

E-Mail; Christic@opcfla.com 

NOTICE OF 
QUALIFYING PERIOD 

FO:R CANDIDATES FOR TttE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
ROLLfflG NlLLS COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMEN'l' DIS'.l'RICT 
Notice is hereby given that the 
qualifying period for candidates for 

1 the office or Supervisor or the 
Rolling Hills Community 
Development District {"District"} will 
Mrnmence at noon on June B 2020 
and close at noon on .June 12; 2020'. 
Candidates must qualify for the 
office of Supervisor with the Clay 
Colm'3' Supervisor of Elections 
located at 500 N. Orange Avenue 
Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 
Ph.: {904)269-6350. All candidates 
shall 91,1.alify for individual seats In 
accordance wjth Se.ction 99.061, 
Florida Statutes, and must also be a 
"qualified eleclor" or the District. as 

l defined In Sedion 190,003, Florida I Statutes. A •qualified El!ector" is any 

' person at leasl J.8 years of age who ls 
a cilizen or lhe U11it.ed States, a legal 
residEint of Ute Statm or Florida and 
of the District, and who is registered 
to vote with the Clay County 
Supervisor or Eledions. Campaigns 
shall be conducted in accordance 
wllh Chapter 106, Florida Statute~. 
The Rolling Hills Community 
Development District bas two (1) 
seals up for election, specifically 
seats l and 3, Each seat carries a 
four.year lerm of office. Eledioos 
are nonpartisan and will be held at 
the same lime as the general election 
on November 3, 2020, and in the 
manner prescribed by law for 
general elections, 
For 3.dditional information, please 
c:onlact the Clay Colinty Supervisor 
arEJections, 
Legal ~6051_ pnblished Mny 14, 2:020 
in Cl.ay County's Clay Today 
newspaper. 

about:blanl 

4/30/2020, 5:09 PM 



COMCAST 
BUSINESS 

Hello, 
Thanks for choosing Comcast Business. 

Account Number 
8495 7 4 123 1221031 

I Billing Date 
i Jun 04, 2020 
I 

Services From 
Jun 14, 2020 to Jul 13, 2020 

Page 
1 of 5 

' iilill; 

◄- Your bill expiained 

Previous balance $572.62 

Payments - thank you Page3 -$572.62 

Balance foiward $0.00 

Regular monthly charges Page 3 $279.15 

Taxes, fees and other charges Page3 $2.19 

New charges $281.34 

,:~~o~~t:d~e ~~" 2~; 202~. · · ·_ ·. $~a~.a~·: 
.·.,1.•, 1 ·,. ,· , .... '·. ·,. • •• ',· • 

Need help? 
Visit xfinity.com/customersupport or see page 2 for other ways 
to contact us. 

Detach the bottom portion of this bill and enclose with your payment 

. Do nOt inc ude· coirEiSPonOence vvitnpayrrrern · · -

COMCAST 
BUSINESS 
141 NW 16TH ST 
POMPANO BEACH FL 33060·5250 
96330310 NO RP 04 20200604 NNNNNNNY 0000759 0004 

ROLLING HILLS AMEN! CENTER 
5385 N NOB HILL RD 
SUNRISE, FL 33351-4761 

11,111 ii,,, 11, I• 11 ,,, I 11•1111 •1 I• 1 •1111111111"' 11 I• 1, II' I, I 1111 • 

849574123122103100281345 

• Any payments received or account activity after Jun 
04, 2020 will show up on your next bill. View your most 
up-to-date account balance at business.comcast.com/ 

myaccount. 

• This page gives you a quick summary of your monthly 
bill, A detailed breakdown of your charges begins on 
page 3. 

i 
;._ .. ,.• 

Please write your account number on your check or money order 

Account number 

Payment due 

Please pay 

Amount enclosed 

Send payment to 

COMCAST 
PO BOX 71211 

8495 74 123 1221031 

Jun 25, 2020 

$281.34 
$ 

Make checks payable to Comcast 

Do not send cash 

CHARLOTTE NC 28272·1211 

11,lull(I( 111(11111•, I •1•1•1111, hll, 1111111((11ll1 ii• I.pl 111 II 

AA..<1'.10'.!10 Nn RP 04 ?/l?OOf!.OA NNNNNNNY 00007/iSl 0004 



-
Account Number 

8495 741231221031 

Manage your account anytime, anywhere with the 

Comcast Business App - an Innovative al!-in-one 

tool designed with your business in mind. 

Manage your account details 

Pay your bill and customize billing options 
View upcoming appointments ,7.c,,.,=sc1, 

Visit us online 
Get help and support at 

business,comcast.com/help 

Call us anytime 

800-391-3000 
Open 24 hours, 7 days a week for billing 

and technical support 

No more mailing month!~, checks 
Set up Auto Pay to save time, energy and 
stamps. It's easy to enroll, just visit 
business.comcast.com/myaccount 

Go paperless and say goodbye to clutter 
Sign up for Paperless Billing to view and pay your 
bill on line: It's foster. easier and helps cuts down on 
clutter, Visit business.comcast.com/myaccount 
to get started. 

I 
Billing Date 

Jun 041 2020 I 
Services From 

Jun 14, 2020 to Jul 13, 2020 

Page 
2of5 

No more mailing monthly checks! 

With Auto Pay, it's easy to save time, 

energy and stamps. Enroll today at 

business.corncast.com/myaccount 

Moving? 
We can help ensure it's a smooth transition. 

~ 

0 

Visit business.comcast.com/learn/moving to learn more. 

Acc-essibility: 
If you are hearing impaired, ca!l 711. For issues affecttng 

customers with dlsablllties, call 1~855-270-0379, 

chat live at support.xflnity,com/accessibility, email 
accessibility@comcast.com, fax 1·866~599·4268 or write 

to Comcast at 1701 JFK Blvd., Philadelphia, PA 19103-2838 
Attn, M. Gifford. 

1111111111111111111111111111111111 

More ways to pay: 

Online 
Visit My Account at business.comcast.com/myaccount 

,--··· 
f i--i\ By App 

\}~:~) Down-oad the Comcast Business App 

Vrslt business.comcast.com/servkecenter 
to find a store near you 

IIII IIIII I llll 11111111111111111111 



COMCAST 
8-USINESS 

Account Number 

8495 741231221031 
Billing Date 

Jun 04, 2020 
Services From 
Jun 14, 2020 to Jul 13, 2020 

Page 

3 of5 

'l Payment 
Payment May 28 ···-··"··-·- ____ ,., ________ _ 

I Comcast Business services 

TV Standard 
Busfness Video 

Starter 
Business Internet 

Static IP - 1 

Voice Line 
Business Voice 

Voice Mai! Service 

Equipment & services 

N Adapter 

Service To Additional TV 
Wrth TV Adapter 
Qty 5 @ $7 ,75 each 

Equipment Fee 
Voice 

Service fees 

Broadcast lV Fee 

Directory Listing Management Fee 

Regional Sports Fee 

Voice Network Investment 

I 
-1 ·.0ther-eharges-----

Federal Universal Service Fund 

Regulatory Cost Recovery 

Additional information 

-$291.34 

$59.95 

$69.95 

$19.95 

$39.95 

$5.00 

$0.50 

$38.75 

$16,95 

$14.95 

$2,00 

$8,20 

$3,00 

. $1,63 

$0.56 

The Regulatory Cost Recovery fee is neither government mandated nor a tax, 
but Is assessed by Comcast to recover certain federal, state, and locaJ 
regulatory costs, 

$194-.80 

$56.20 I 

I 

! 

$28,15 

I 

$2.191 

What's included? 

. ::=:;) Internet: Fast, reliable internet on our GigM 

!B' 

f'';\'\ 

speed network 

TV: Keep your employees info1med and 

customers entertained 

Voice Numbers: (904)531~9238 

Visit business.comcast.com/myaccount for more 
details 

Effective June i, 2020, Comcast Business has updated the Business Services 
Customer Terms and conditions to a) reduce the required notification period 
for customers to terminate for convenience, Oil identify potential service 
Impacts that may arise for SecurityEdge customers that also utilize third 
party-applications or se1Ylces using TCP/UDP port 53 and Oii) provide Comcast 
Business wrth a termination right if customer or its representatives engage in 
inappropriate behavior towards Gomcast Business personnel. 

!lfvl::lfY.\10 NO AF> 04?11,'00Fi'l<I. NNNNNNNV {l(l(\/\7/i~ OOM 



Account Number 

8495 74 1231221031 

lnformatlon on programmer contract expirations, which could affect our 
carriage of the programmer's channels, can be found at 
https://my,xfintty.com/contractrenewals/ O( by calling 1-866-216-8634. 

Billing Date 
Jun 04, 2020 

Services From 
Jun 14, 2020 to Jul 13, 2020 

Page 

4of 5 

QAA'.'lm1n Nil ~PnA ?MMflflA NNNNNNl\fY ()(11)(\7,(<:i nnM 



COMCAST 
BUSINESS 

Account Number 

8495 74 1231221031 

Billing Date 
Jun 04, 2020 

Services From 
Jun 14, 2020 to Jul 13, 2020 

When every connection counts, 
you can count on us. 

Now more than ever, you may need to reevaluate your business's connectivity and data 
needs as you adapt to these new ways of serving your customers and employees. 

Get the bandwidth to handle all your connected devices 
and remote traffic. 

Use My Account and the Comcast Business App to stay 
connected to your business from any device, anywhere. 

We're here for you to make sure you have the lntemet 
options and technology solutions you need. You can count 
on us to help keep your business moving forward. Please 
call us at 877-298-1895 to learn more. 

Visit comcastbusiness.com or call 877~298w1895. 

COMCAST 
BUSINESS 
BEYOND FAST 

© 2020 Comcast. Alt rights reserved. B3599A-AOP-No0ff-1895 

MW23AW20 

Page 
5 of 5 

PA0144 

AA.'l~ffi10 N<I RP n4 ?O?OOM.i NNNNNNNY OOM7f;fl 0004 



' 

Jeffrey Deese 
4990 Windmill Court 
Middleburg, FL 32068 
904-219-0579 
ft!deese@daysheciff.com 

TO: 

Rolfing Hills Community Development Dlstrict 
3212 Bradley Creek Blvd. 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

DATE 

WORKED 
DESCRIPTION 

6-7-20 Neighborhood Patrol/ Security 

Checked preserve area. 

Patrolled entire development 

FOR; 

Property Manager 

TIME 

IN/OUT 

1230-1630 

Checked Clubhouse, pool, and boardwalk area. 

Patrolled entire development. 

-,. ,?/. 
{A0( r~ b _c, 

DEPUTY SIGNATURE: 

Make all checks payable to Jeffrey Deese 

Thank you for your business! 

HOURS RATE 

4.0 30.00 

TOTAL 

INVOICE DATE 
DATE:6-7-20 

AMOUNT 

120.00 

120.00 



Jeffrey Deese 
4990 Windmill Court 
Middleburg, FL 32068 
904-219-0579 
jadeese@daysherlff.com 

YO: 

Rolling HIiis Community Development District 
3212 Bradley Creek Blvd. 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

DATE 

WORKED 
DESCRIPTION 

6-10-20 Neighborhood Patrol/ Security 

Checked preserve area. 

Patrolled entire development 

Checked Clubhouse, pool, and boardwalk area. 

Patrolled entire development. 

Rained majority of the time 

Cf (Y 

DEPUTY SIGNATURE: 

Make all checks payable to Jeffrey Deese 

f('J_"''Cf"'') 
!¾...,<'~,._,;~, 

FOR: 

Property Manager 

TIME 
IN/OUT 

1230-1630 

Thank you for your business! 

HOURS RATE 

4.0 30.00 

TOTAL 

INVOICE DATE 
OATE:6-10--20 

AMOUNT 

120.00 

120.00 



Jahn R. Drury 

2564 Backyard Cove, Green Cove Springs, Fl, 32043 
904-505-1241 

TO: 

Rolling Hills Community Development District 
3212 Bradley Creek Blvd. 
Green Cove Springs, Fl 32043 

DATE 

WORKED 
DESCRIPTION 

05/29/2020 Neighborhood patrol and security 

,~,;"""-:r'~""'~ 
{~~~.,,~ti 

FOR: 

Property Manager 

TIME 

IN/OUT 

14:00-18:00 

No incidents occurred that needed Law Enforcement attention 

Amenity Center patrol and security 

\'"v~ 

DEPUTY SIGNATURE: 

Make all checks payable to John R. Drury 

Thank you for your business! 

HOURS RATE 

4 $30.00 

TOTAL 

INVOICE DATE 

DATE:05/29/2020 

AMOUNT 

$120.00 

$120.00 



John R. Drury 
2564 Backyard Cove, Green Cove Springs, FL, 32043 
904-505-1241 

TO: 

Rolling Hills Community Development District 
3212 Bradley Creek Blvd. 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

DATE 
WORKED 

DESCRIPTION 

06/01/2020 Neighborhood patrol and security 

FOR: 

Property Manager 

TIME 
IN/OUT 

15:00-18:30 

No incidents occurred that needed Law Enforcement attention 

Amenity Center patrol and security 

1'U\ 

DEPUTY SIGNATURE: 

Make all checks payable to John R. Drury 

Thank you for your business! 

HOURS RATE 

3.5 $30.00 

TOTAL 

INVOICE DATE 
DATE:06/01/2020 

AMOUNT 

$105.00 

$105.00 



Governmental Management Services, LLC 
1001 Bradford Way 
Kingston, TN 37763 

Bill To: 
Rolling Hills COD 
475 WestTown Place 
Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32090 

Description 

Management Fees - June 2020 
Website Administration - June 2020 
Information Technology - June 2020 
Dissemination Agent SeJVices - June 2020 
Office Supplies 
Postage 
Copies 

Hours/Qty 

Total 

Invoice 

Invoice#: 204 

Invoice Date: 6/1/20 
Due Date: 6/1120 

Case: 
P.O. Number: 

Rate 

3,333.33 
208.33 

83.33 
291.67 

15.00 
129.06 
126.45 

Amount 

3,333.33 
208.33 

83.33 
291.67 

15.00 
129.06 
126.45 

$4,187.17 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $4,187.17 



Phone: 561-994-9299 

Grau and Associates 
951 W. Yamato Road, Suite 280 

Boca Raton, FL 33431-
www.graucpa.com 

Rolling Hills Community Development District 
5385 N Nob Hill Road 
Sunrise, FL 33351 

Invoice No. 19700 
Date 05127/2020 

Fax: 561-994-5823 

SERVICE AMOUNT 

Arbitrage Series 2015 A-2 FYE 11/30/2019 

0 • 30 
600,00 

31- 60 
0,00 

Current Amount Due 

61-90 91-120 
0.00 0.00 

Over 120 
0.00 

Payment due upon receipt. 

$ __ =60=0~0=0 

$--_,6.,,o"'o""o"'o 

Balance 
600,00 



Phone: 561-994-9299 

Grau and Associates 
951 W. Yamato Road, Suite 280 

Boca Raton, FL 33431-
www.graucpa.com 

Rolling Hills Community Development District 
5385 N Nob Hill Road 
Sunrise, FL 33351 

Invoice No. 19701 
Date 05/27/2020 

Fax: 561-994-5823 

SERVICE AMOUNT 

Arbitrage Series 2015 A-1 FYE 11130/2019 

0 • 30 
1,200.00 

31- 60 
0.00 

Current Amount Due 

61-90 91-120 
0.00 0.00 

Over 120 
0.00 

Payment due upon receipt. 

$ __ 6=o=o=.o~o 

$ jlOO OQ 

Balance 
1,200.00 



Original 

~\ck! Te;: 293306 

Hawkins, Jue. 
J 381 lfosegate 
Roseville, ,\IN 55113 
Plume: (611) 331-69!0 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
ROLLING HILLS ESTATES COD 
c/o Patti Powers-GMS-SF, LLC 
5385 N Nob Hill Rd 
Sunrise FL 33351 

Net Dtt-c.! Dille Terms FOB Description Ship Via 
··-- .. ·-··---···· ------~ .. ~'r-••-····-·- ......... -

INVOICE 
Total lnvofce 

Invoice Number 

Invoice Dale 

$844.49 

4717292 

5119120 

Sales Orde, Nurnberrrype 3187473 SO 

Branch Plant 74 

Shipnient Number 3563496 

" .. ---- -• _ ... -

295740 
ROLLING HILLS ESTATES COD 
3212 Bradley Creek Pkwy 
Green Cove Springs FL 32043 

Customer P.O.# P.O. Release 

6/18/20 Net 30 PPD Origin HAWKINS SOUTHEAST FLEET 
·----·-·····--· ···-- -----------. 

lt,;:rn Number Item Name! Q!y Trans Unit Price We!ght 
Uneii Cust !teni # Tax Shipped UOM Price UOM Net/Gross 

sares Agent ti 

B74 

Extended 
Pri.::0 Descri_ption 

····--·····-····-·· 

J 2.000 14420 Sodium Bicarbonate N 6.0000 BG 524.6069 BG 300.0 LB S147.64I 

50 # BAG (POOL GRADE) 6.0000 BG 306,0GW 

12.010 fuel SurcMrge F,eighl N 1.0000 EA $12.0000 s12.oo 1 

J a.ooo 42874 Sulfuric Acid 3$-40% N 1.0000 DR $2.5427 GA 594.0 LB s,3s.a5I 

55 GADR 55.0000 GA 616.0GW 

13.001 699918 55 GA Black Drurn N 1.0000 DR $30.0000 RD .0 LB S30.00 I 
ORM 1H1/Y1.91150 1.0000 RD 24.0GW 

Related Order#: 03"187473 

, 4.000 371404 CCH Granular (100#) N 1.0000 DR S200.0000. DR 100,0 LB S200.00 I 
DRUM DNR (BLEACH. 1.0000 DR 105.0GW 

I s.ooo 706165 #5 Santoprene-Pump Tube N 5,0000 EA $13.5000 EA .3 LB S67.50 I 
Ferrules 1/4" INCL 5.0000 EA .3GW 

6.000 43967 Ultca-Chlor (Sod_ Hypo 12.5%) N 165.0000 GA 51.5000 GA 1,664.9 LB S247.50 

1 GA BLK (Mini-Sulk) 165.0000 GA i,802.3 GW 

T8X Rate 

0% 

Sales Tax 

$0.00 
\ invoice Total Contlnut'tl on next page 

tfo Dl><:o~nl:o on i'ro!~l<i<lfC<>nl~h•ro 
U-1PORTAIJf: J.!J i,m_;.;,t~ ~•~ :o!1\\1r.-,,,tw:uw1t{Ql~rt'f ~YI:! ~d p,t<h>.~w.v,8.l:,J ~c•:~,.n csolil, (o:m,-:"~ ,;u':,t•t1<11 ,uch ffQ~'/<ch 
tor 1110:1 ~,•.n "';~. h'."U wiln•n:.,; Thal ~-l ~<:<Id~ Gr/1£<d Ly tll:~ 1m·d:~ ''*~ ~,1-!uCN. vi·w,..,ff." >Mu v.•i_h tho r~q,O'c:>t!~~ o! tht F ::r l/Ol;>:.t 
l;tMdltdS /.ct Qf I~~~- ~I StM)lda-.i. c,,,1~·-..-., ~,~ jo ~- ,,,,:1 fr:<e 1n f<..~. ~, )n•,·~:,N. ind ~1 r .. !<Jn<l '"' b~ m~d• rr.i.Ty')y_ p,o,•"dcd 
,o-,,,·""n; art. ,o,M<J ro ona·'lll ,...-.,;~1 <-f i'r.'jlrntnt. fte:Un\ fN!~M tllu,J~• 10 u r,«p~'J. Tl1~ (•:r,thcr;. "=td ,r,,~1 t-<, u-, .. >1m> 
of.-;,·,..,~, 1k'.~,f. Gr.~ Sl:<((r, {10 e·,,,lcc-:t o1 8blli~. k ll'8 1-)( f•J\poll1 o~~t L~i/1 :he •'.•I<'~~~ uf (Hl~n~, ,:,:,~t.., n!" S<-''v ~o><i!,~~y 
1'l:l1"-;; o."lt' ~,i.:.w-u ~nyw:1,rer,tyQfmwhinl~b}:yoN U!f"Ofctnlyoft:.:u~ l?I ~ p~t:;,,<~tpu<poii, 
110 CUd!.$ FOR toss, O,W.AOE OR lf.AKAGE ALLO\'lEO AFTER OEUVER't' ts MAO!": IN 0000 co:mmoll 

P!c-300-
R.e:1iH ·1·0: 

Hawki11s, Inc. 
P.O. Box 860263 
Mi11ueapofis, MN 55486-0263 

!~/!,~t~i:.~~,~Ji~Cr!:~~J11i7:;111:~1• ~~11~flhl~1 ~~:~r=~/~s~ln~r ~u~1;g,;1i1i1i~ ~g;~J~l ;i,~1, ~J:,1
;~1~;. ~~r1~ic~ll$~~~~~~$~~/:~~t

1~~;~~i.l~~~:c:.,1111
:;~ ~';.i~t!~"!d:~~l:!1 it:;:.,o;;,~1

~;;,~
1:!nt~t,:.':e;j 

,ub<:o-nt,..,_l<>rJ t.,~~ ,Jr,m1-31i·,e ndi.>., I<> CMpl<ly w.d ~d •Jnc~ VI tmp!v.JITl,!~I i.,.r,,;.i1ra!~ w~Jte<11 r,,g;ird II> r.rcc. eo!or. ro/l1loo, ~c~, n,M~3l ~ti~lt>. rrote~IW n,~.,:,,.~ ~!:it~• or dorabllity. 

VI\Wt.hawklnsfnc.com Job# 7622 



·1te·ni .. 'r~Uin6€·r·-·1lem Name/ 
line ii- C:vst Item# Description 

l-fa11·ki11s, Inc. 
2381 Ro.rngate 
Rosel'ille, MN 55Jl3 
Pl1<me: (611) 331-6910 

Original 

INVOICE 
TOlBI lnvoic-1') 

Invoice Number 

Invoice Dale 

Sales Order Numb~r/Type 

Branch Plant 

$844.49 

4717292 

5/19/20 

3187473 

74 
356349~ 

so 

Shipnienl Numbar 

·01Y 
Shipped 

Trans· 
U0/-11 

Unit 
Price 

-Price· 
UOM 

\.ve19hf"" 
Net/Gross 

Continued from previous page 

~~0 .. "
0 Receive Y(lur Invoice Via Email .... ~~ ..... 

Please coritact our Accounts Receivable Department via ema!I at Credit.Oept@Hawkinslnc.com 
or call 012-311-6910 {o gel It setup on your account. 

Tax Rate 

0 % 

Sales Tax 

$0.00 

tlo-tliS~QU"I.-< 0<1 l'n1lght Qf Co,it.!/lor> 

/ / 

il:x>I (l. ,::,q,',c:1/s 

e-v/. _?J'o, :;-72-co. s-z._10-0 

Invoice Tota( 

Hawkins, Inc. 

t~XiiriilCd 
Pric,;: 

$844.49 

l.'.lFOR1Mff< .O!I f'O-~<(< u~ ;<,'.~ w:7,,.,l v,3rran~t ol ""1 )..-,d Md p<d\O',{<~ v,\l. "Uf ~•.t'r <;,,n IHb. o!"·l!f:.,-:ne ~-!.\~i'.fj M ><><n p,~~lld$ 
f;.;l>;c':' ~,.o ~,1. Et~(r•,,.:,Nr.t• m~t al~-,!><!~ CMUt1 h11.'.s i.,·,,:~t w-:ro p~6'r<"'~ b to:.p;,tJM\-.'.lf, :h<> rq/ctm;::i:, o/C::c l'url<l'>->r 
S!;r.<l,lrd< 1-tl ,:,1 !!ISO,~~ oor,1n~d C,01~•~~~ oro (~ b~ p~~j f<. lo tit! . .ao loo,:;c'<<1. ~d ~,! t~f"~d ,.,'; b~ rr-~.J~ ~Nrt>41, p,o·,~d•~ 
c<,i\fn<10 o,c ,c:O..·o"'; i, c/linal p,;'1,\ <,I $h'~,;iint R<~rn fr•·~'lc ~'>ll~H \~ t,.i p,op~id. Tot" (oee-.~,s <c~nc4 rr-•Jlt ~~ tile •~"•"' 
~r,;'.r.,~/ <l'>t•;N'_ and Y.GW n~ E·;aie.S<~ of .abvst. ~! U1! !u .F'-'<P:,..:J ~'.he, t':an ~ie lfqr,,y,l' or o:v.i"->! ,ci:Mc'tt<<' lk'l<r $p-!c··•~•"';f 
ef~:,,T.'lt• ~"d t<cl~~.~ ire,-.... ,,n:<l~.I M !'<>1/ChMl!l:~(1.:,:d V',)'~<~lt.>.Ol'f Gf r.:m.n /or~ p,,t;:,..,,, P~'P"'~· 
110 CLAIMS FOR ~0$S,OA!I.AOEOR lEAKA<lEAtLCWED /\FlERll!iUVeAYI$ MMl2 IN0000 COlltlll!0/1 , 

Please 
nc:nit To: P.O. Box 860163 

Minneapolis, MN 55486-0263 

Tl<i< co:>lt.><:lor ond ,ubco:,lr~clor ~~•11 ~h'l·H by th~ r.:,;iui/«M/11'> -Ol ~t CFR §5,0-1.4(~!, 60,WO.S(•) ~~d tiH4l.5(.1). Tho•e 1(9.Uhtlo,i~ p1ohlblt di,crin1in>1ion -:,9o<~•t 'l'"~fied iMivi;!u~t~ b,,cd on ll•oi, $l1tu: •• l''"t~Cl•d 

;~t~t~\~~$d;:t:ni~~-,:•~t~t:· ... "~~ur:~,~~~~!~~~(~~~C,;\!:..1t1s~~i1ri;1!;~;to~1,,'(":,:'.;\!':-~~..:~~~~~!;1~'.~1:~ n~~f~n~1 g~rn~~tr:;~ f-:t~~-~~:~~i::.~1:r 'Ji!~~il)f;.~ '"'1"1"' llt~l cov~,t<! primo untt;Y,~f! Jn:I 

;•l',WJ.h.:iwkfnsinc.com Joblt 7822 



Hawkins; foe. 
238! Rosegale 
Rasel'il!e, MS 5jf I3 
Phone: (612) 33/-6910 

Original 

!!\!VOICE 
Tota! lrwoice 

In.voice Number 

I nvolce Date 

$342.00 

4730200 

619/20 

Sales Order Nun;berffype 3207144 SO 

Branch Plant 74 

Shipment Mumber 3591810 
- ·-·-··,.----------. . ..... ,-----·· 

Sold ·to: 293306 Shio To: 295740 

une# 

f 1.000 

I 1.010 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
ROLLING HILLS ESTATES COD 
c/o Patti Powers-OMS-SF, LLC 
5385 N Nob HIii Rd 
Sunrise FL 33351 

Hern Number Item Name{ 
Cusl !tern# Desc(ipUon 

43967 Ultra-Cftlor {Sod. Hypo 12.5%) 

1 GA BLK (Mini-Bulk) 

Fuel SUtcharge Freight 

Tax 

N 

N 

ROLLING HILLS ESTATES COO 
3212 Bradley Creek Pkwy 
Green Cove Springs FL 32043 

Customer P ,0.# 

., .. ------· -----·--·-··· 
Qty Trans Unit Price V'leighl 

Shipped UOM Price UOM Met/Gross 

220.0000 GA S1.5000 GA 2,210.8 LB 

220.0000 GA 2,403.1 GW 

1,0000 EA S12.0000 

•••••~·••k Receive Your Invoice Via Emai! •u"•••••.k 

Please contact our Accounts Receivable Department via email al Credit.Dept@Hawklns!ric.com 
or Cil.U 612-331-6910 to gel !t setup on your account. 

Tax Rate 

0 % 

Sales. Tax 

$0.00 

1/o-01::.ce,rnl<-M Ftt~lot or Co~!~"'~"' 

<,/1 /zc> 
C l?IM'-c.; l > 

00 1. :,Jo. 5?tav. s-z..ioo 

Hawkins, J11c. 

B74 

Extended 
Price 

s33o.oo 1 

S12.00 I 

$342.00 

lr.lPO/HAIH: NI ..,~~<to ~•e ~c!-.1 .-,.1N~l v,~IIJMy ul •nr ~.,:d ;,r..J p.ird!ost<n,-fJ, i.-rtfi~'.t '"'" 1..s1;. u~twn:ne:L.'a':.'•t," ~hll:h i,:o:!,Jcl\ 
r« uitr <:th',, ~1e S•~~rw•tr•"ti lhol el gou<i~t~Yttoll~lh!•_l.>tVof•~ wett prM:>G!d t~ c-.lmpr·.mc,.v.i1il th~ 1~q.h11r.1n:~01 lrt• F~'rut~ 
S!.>c.d~,&.-ht i;,t 19J.S, ~, ;m~ided. C~~tJ.:~t~ va ~J h p:,.\i fol ill I;,~.~~ ltt,-t>):td, 6nd M rd~J '"' ~~ m>'l"e ~1<FrJ>'J-,•. po-,;~~d 
N:,!o•n~t! Uc ro1,1ned !1 «i'.)",i;I J><'nl ~! ,h'yr.l,xit_ Ro~1m 1-b~M lhijt(IU I·) b~ JllfPJ'1. lh "<M\.l'.1= •~~nM~ 1t~i1 t~ ~•,o ~J:M 
oi-,ino';1 yq,~H. GO<l il'-G-« 11~ b'"7~A-Of t¾ll, « t,l,~ r~ r,,,~.,.A:• W.u 11,W ~,e A!.>•~3~ or (<1-,::"MI C('<lf.focr-. :1,:;"u ~y;,-:if,;~••t 
d'.~<J11.11t Jn,J tYd<Jtn ""V~,-ir,~nly ,.r m~•.:h1"hF:fy-M i,.-,)' w.><raOCf afft1t~~ f~r ;:r par,i~u••, J)•.t,pc,:,,!-_ 

PJnar,0 60~6 r-:<ern:t To: P.O • .Box 8 " 3 I 
.... ·······-----Ivlh111eapolis, MN 55486--0263 _ 1 

/Ill C\J\IW'.l FO!t LOSS,OArl.AGE OR \.EAKAQEAU.o'>'JetJ.AFTat OELIVER.VIS!.\AOl:111 !lC<'.10 COtlOlll<!/1 . 

!~f;,~~~~~.1 .. !r:t:1~\~?Ji1'.i~1:but~:!~ ~~1~~h~l1 ,~ix~~~ "l1~11o~f~1n;2;Jj£-£; •t~~'J~I J;li, ~1:.1
~~;, ~~!1~i"~~ut1:~:~·~r~~·:ro~1;~:-rl~:::..:.<JJ,~! ,~;~'t~~;d~~~?,!; ~:t!!,,ciJ1~~~::,,~:~f~~';~ 

~<JU<Jn!• ,c!or<- l.:lh ;:r!(l1rm-•l~e "~tier. to ,mp:oy •nd •il"1~Ce In tt(IJ'.llo;nn,nt l11dlvk!<J>I$ w'1lu,ul T<IJ~!d t(> t.-<:~, ac,•~r, rcr'(lk.<!, H~, n>lian>I c,~ln-. pr<>\~led vd«M ~t.llij~ or dlut>i!i!y. 

www.haVJkinsinc,r;om Jo0#1~74(, 



Sold To; 293306 

lltnl'kius, Inc. 
1381 Rosegate 
Rosel'ille, MN 5511 J 
Phone: (612) 331-6910 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
ROLLING HILLS ESTATES CDD 
c/o Patti Powers-GMS-SF, LLC 
5385 N Nob Hill Rd 
Sunrise FL 33351 

Na\ Due Date Terms FOB Descript!on Ship Vict 

Original 

----------
711120 Net30 PP□ Origin HAWKINS SOUTHEAST FLEET 

iNVOICE 
-------··-----

Total Invoice $514.50 

lnvoicB Number 4724966 

Invoice Date 6/1/20 

Sales Order Number/Type 3197062 so 
Branch Plant 74 
Shipment Numbzr 3576899 
" ·---·· ··-······ 

295740 
ROLLING HILLS ESTATES CDD 
3212 Bradley Creek Pkwy 
Green Cove Springs FL 32043 

Customer P.OJ,~ P.O. Release. 
··--··-·- --··· 

Sales P.ge11t P 

874 ·-------------- -·-----------·-··-·-- ··--------·····--· ----•-------·-· 
Item Number 

Unett- Gust Hern# 

11.000 43967 

11.010 Fue1 Surcharge 

!tem Narne/ Qty Trans Unit Price Werght 
Description Tax Shippt;:d UOM Price UOM f~t:r-VGross 

U!tra-Chlor (Sod. Hypo 12.5%) N 335.0000 GA Si .5000 GA 3,380.2 LB 

i GA BLK (Mini-Bulk) 335.0000 GA 3.659.3GW 

Freight N 1.0000 EA S\2.0000 

.......... Receive Your Invoice Via Emal! ......... H 

Please conlacl our Accounls Receivable Department via emall at Credlt.Dept@HawK!nslnc.com 
or call 612-331·6910 to get it setup on your account. 

{;/-df_ &/,1/zo 
P=/ (hf?v0rce./J, 

oo / , ~ W . ">7 2.00 . 5' z.J oz:> 

E:<tend,;:d 
Plicc 

s502.5o I 

s12.oo I 

Tax Rate 

0% 

Sales Tax 

$0.00 

---1--·-·---·-- ------- ----.---~-·-·-··· ------

! Invoice Totat 

/IQ !)(,-.;,,unh Mffe~~t<>r Conblnu, 
!Ml>OR!A/lf; i-:l po-lca(IUtk 1-.i:~ w'.~¼"1. W'Jll/3/ltf of ~y 1·:n.J. Md JIC<<l!itt<, i.:i. t11h~'.-G,,r: 1ct\J, •kltW."M 3'-' :.it,'.~( of s•,c~ F<>~ct; 
fo• •'>~• a.1~ , .. e. -S~~r;-;an•~~dut 1-:flf~ (¢"/~tcd hyil,:S m,Q?::<iv,-.,r~ ~cJu~~,ii., ~o"p~a-,c,1,.w:C.~ lll-}r~q,,-,'l<"~C.t'; QflM F~'<-l~b~, 
&MdllU A(l or !91!, J~ omu,:/,d, "c~m~·nc<. ?F¢ t~ I,, ~ll~ k:"" In M, ~- LWG<td, ,~sr fc<'I r~~Jr,d 1,~1 ~~ r.,J~~ p1o•r..-~'I, ~r,,-:-1.td 
c~~.IJ!/Tt<S .,e r.1 .. n.:~ to Ni\J"Ml iv.;·.·,t or ~liptt'l'll. ROJfll Ire-~~( (}Wg~~ » ti!c~r"p;J;O, TM ct-r.b·n.,, raMM<I rum t-<: th~_Sl/U l 
«;._;·ni;y ~t,·toft:I, ~n:l ~h'-1'"" ,·,1d<1>;~ or .iw,~. 01 '-"~ t:,, r<,''f""'•~ ~~-tf !h.,, fl;e s:<.tl~~ M otg:n~I m,).ln~l- Se'.'tr SJ>'t,':a,:,, 
,f:-.!1,.T,S ~~d e:<G'ud-,~ ~n"(I\W ~-1)· ol rr..,,_t,,o<ab''.1y ~nd =1-...;.oant-J <ii r.<:,:~1~ f;,r;, por\'cl/l< IXIJl-?,;,. 
1:0 tl.J\!l,\S:FOR lOSS, oAMJ.OE 011:LEAK"AOE AttOWEOAF1EROEL!VEIIYISM/l,DE t/1 0000 ,;o:..ll!TtOfl • 

Ph;a::;1;: 
R<:H"nit To: 

$514.50 

I-lawki11s, Inc. 
P.O. Box 860263 . 
Minneapolis, MN 55486-0263 .. ' 

fhft cc11U"lor .ffld lUbcontraok>r 1holl J\lUe by ll>c c,,qulr•mMll ol 41 CFR §tW·l.((~), 60.(I00.6{>) "'-11<1 W-14l-~.}ti-TMSb 11:gvl,lfe,,,, pt_oh!blt diicri,niautti.n ;1\l~l;\•t q~J);I;~ ii,<1j,!J1u!~ bJusl "" »,d, ~tolla ~• prW4t,<1 

;~~i~i."!io~~reu:lti;:!!~~!'~~~~~~!~!%t'!~ib~~~~~~%1i1~.a~t:£~~'\·r~~i.ru1!i!~!tJ~et~d,~IT,:~:,~~~:.~~~~~91~::~t~:'11~~~\11~~d r;!:;:,~·~·:t.~~si, ~~b~fy~f 1,:,;o!t:, thnl moml prime C~/\1,~clm ~~d 
'r'IWW.ltdwklnslnc.aom JoW,. 39044 



Hopping Green & Sams 
Attorneys and <.;ounselors 

119 S, Monroe Street, Ste. 300 
P.O. Box 6526 

Tallahassee, FL 32314 
850.222.7600 

--------------------------------= STATEMENT---------------------------------

May 29, 2020 
Rolling Hills community Development District 
c/o Jim Oliver, District Manager 
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 

Bill Number 115001 
Billed through 04/30/2020 

St. Augustine, FL 32092 

General Counsel/Monthly Meeting 
RHCDD 00001 KSB 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED 
04/02/20 SSW Research and attend various city and county commission virtual meetings; 

prepare and circulate correspondence regarding procedures for conducting 
virtual meetings and providing opportunity for public participation. 

04/06/20 AHJ Prepare electronic transmission of form of notice of genera! election and 
correspondence regarding same. 

04/08/20 MKR Research possible extension of permit. 

04/16/20 KSB Confer with Clay County supervisor of elections office; confer with district 
manager. 

04/24/20 KSB Confer with district manager; review meeting notice. 

04/24/20 JLK Research and review executive orders regarding recreation and amenity 
facilities. 

04/29/20 KSB Review updated executive order; analyze impact on amenity reopening process. 

04/30/20 KSB Review matters relating to reopening of amenity facilities. 

Total fees for this matter 

MATTER SUMMARY 

Jaskolski, Amy H. - Paralegal 0.30 hrs 140 /hr 
Kilinski, Jennifer L. 1.00 hrs 295 /hr 
Buchanan, Katie S. 1.00 hrs 305 /hr 
Rigoni, Michelle K. 2.00 hrs 250 /hr 
Warren, Sarah S. 0.20 hrs 275 /hr 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER 

BILLING SUMMARY 

Jaskolski, Amy H. - Paralegal 0.30 hrs 140 /hr 

0.20 hrs 

0.30 hrs 

2.00 hrs 

0.30 hrs 

0.30 hrs 

1.00 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

$1,197.00 

$42.00 
$295.00 
$305.00 
$500.00 
$55.00 

$1,197.00 

$1,197.00 

$42.00 



Rolling HUis CDD - General Co 

Kilinski, Jennifer L. 
Buchanan, Katie s. 
Rigoni, Michelle K. 
Warren, Sarah S. 

am No. 11soo1 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL 

1.00 hrs 
1.00 hrs 
2.00 hrs 
0.20 hrs 

295 /hr 
305 /hr 
250 /hr 
275 /hr 

Please include the bill number with your payment. 

Page 2 

$295.00 
$305.00 
$500.00 

$55.00 

$1,197.00 

$1,197.00 



Bil/To 

ROLL!?-.:G ! 111.1,S ('l)D 
GO\'L:Kt..;i\--1ENT,,\L {\ i:\N:\(;E.;:-. !FN J" :-;1:'.!\ Vf('f:.~;. ! .1.C 
475 \\'EST TO\VN f't..;\(T 

,St.,!TE 11,1 
l Sl t\LGlfSTE\F, FL 32092 
! 
i -------·--··--·--·-·------· ~···· 

--] Invoice Questions: 
Lakes@lake<loctors.co1n 

Payment Quesfrons: 
Payments@.lnkedoc(ors.com 

c. ft{~ 0/1t/~o 
lesu. t. M_,;., "'-..\-t<A c. "''-e,. 

00 \. -.S 20 . 5 ?, ff 0() • t-/(Jt'f ~'?{ 

To ltclp ensure prompt and acturatc credit to your account, pl~as\! include yo111· acct)Unt rrno1hcr and invoicl!· number nu your-chcdc aruJ ,llw:iys 
include your rcmittanec stub with your payment. 

l'll!asc ·yisH www.h1kctloctoruom fol' your local office contact informlltion. 

PLEASE DETACH & RETTJRN TIHS PORTION WITH PAYMENT 

BillTo 

K< )LLIN<"i-lHLL S CDD-
( iO'vE({:'iMENT.·\L MANAGEMb:~~r SERVtCES, 1.1.c 
.-J75 \\'ESl'TO\VN l}J,NT: 
SUITE t 1"1 
:·ff A! ::en fSTINE. Ft, 32()<)). 

Fo-r atldn~ss mid eontuct updHtcs, please email HS at 
Fron tifo.skUilla kedoc tors.com. 

The. Lak" Doctors, lnc. 
3~43 Sia tc Road 4 I 9 

Winter Springs, P'L 32708 

(in Gr(·,~11! Conw..:1. tt-; r1\ l'~J n:..::n:'-.fl bLi-.:dodt)J ,u.:r,m r,, 
h<l\',~ )1Hll" inn,kts !'..'.1t1.1ibl. 

_ ~-h:-1-~Xilfd 
c~m! ~.: 
Cm.I Vl."rilki1i1~n ;; 

1.by.U_:1l•)fi. .. 
: l'rnu Narn~ 
] HIiling_ A,ld;:;·~~;-~ .. ~- .. Ch,:i:-k h,)x 11'.:-:.an\~ ,1~ ,t!,t1\ e 

i -·-- '·'"····-----·-·-· 

j (_if;u;~;;:,~ ' - ___ ., _____ _, ....... _. 



Bill To 

Riverside Management Services, Inc 

9655 Fio.rida Mining Blvd. \V. 
Building 300, Snite 305 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

Rolling Hills CDD 
475 West Town Plnce 
S\li1e 114 
SL At1g.1.1sHnc, FL32092 

P.O. No, 

Quantity De5cription 

Janilodal Services. June 2020 s:10, s-,~,~_,,,;.i(-l-,o 
Pool Maintenance ScrviC¢s • June 2020 '3 ~o ~/-i l. $.. 

I _, ,~-/(J 

Contrnct Adminis-trntfon •June 2020 3 ... i..o~ 5.38, 31,,1-00 
Facility Management• Rolling Hills .Junc-2020 

?.i";,o,.s,·:z. ~ 3t.too 

l(;O 

Invoice 
Date Invoice II 

6/J/2020 324-

Terms Project 

Rate Amount 

\.o70.00 l.070.00 
1,137.50 1,131.50 

1,70&.JJ 1.708.33 
4,4<il.08 4,~61.08 

Total $8.376.91 



Riverside Management Services, Inc 
9655 Florida Mining Blvd. W. 
Building 300, Suite 305 
Jacksonville, FL 32257 

Bill To: 
Rolling Hills COO 
4 75 West Town Place 
Sui.le 114 
Si. Augustine1 FL 32092 

Description 

Deck Monitor through May 2020 

(jIO 

42.9 

Total 

invoice 

Invoice#: 325 
Invoice Date: 6/9/2020 

Due Date: 6/9/2020 
Case; 

P.O. Number: 

Rate Amount 

16.00 666.40 

$686.40 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $686.40 



ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
LIFEGUARD & OECk MONITOR BILLABLE HOURS 

pale Hours EmpJoyee 

5/16/20 5.35 G.W. 
5/17/20 6.38 

0

G.W. 
5/23/20 7.50 G.W. 
5/24/20 7.00 G,W, 
5/25/20 3.50 G.W, 
5/30/20 5.67 G.W. 
5/31/20 7.50 G.W. 

GRAND TOTAL 42,90 

, Lifeguarding 0.00 
Deck Moniter 42.90 

Additional Attendant/Lifeguards 
. GL Code: 330•572·342 

MAY 2020 

Description 

Deck Monitor 
Deck Monitor 
Deck Monitor 
Deck Monitor 
Deck Monitor 
Deck Monitor 
De;ck Monitor 

1 



I 
, How To Contact Us 
' 

Visit wm.com 
To setup yoor cflline µofne, sign up for plp2fless 

statements, manage your <ICCOJnt, view h::J.iday scnedules, 
~ your invo'ce a-sched.J\e a j'.id<up 

Customer Service: 
(904) 260-1592 

INVOICE 
Customer ID: 
Customer Name: 
Service Period: 
Invoice Date: 
lnvoice Number. 

Your Payment Is Due 

Jun 21, 2020 

If full payment of the invciced amount is not reaiived 
'Mtlin yo.Jr o.xitractual terms, yoo may 00 charged a 
rnootHyfate charge of 2.5% of the unpaid crro:..int, v,..ith a 
rrinirrum m::inthly charge of $5, a- such late charge 
allo.-ved under~ble law, regulation er cootract. 

Page 1 of2 

12-16050-13008 
ROLLING HILLS COD 

06/01 /20-06/30/20 
05/22/2020 

9435392-2224-1 

Your Total Due 

$1,003.02 
If payment is received after 

06/21/2020: $ 1,028.10 

See Reverse for Important Messages 

rA•MHifJ.fuS\:lii + ~4011144~ 
1,008.63 I c1,oos.63) 

+ ~·tdMl11WM~ + r;:;;;;.;;;1i\ii-!41 
o.oo 1.003.02 1 

~&#•+!-~ 
1,003.02 

Details for Service Location: Customer ID: 12-16050-13008 

Rolling Hills Cdd, 3212 Bradley Creek Pkwy, Green Cove Springs FL 
32043-7060 ·"'" ___ 

i Description Date Ticket Quantity Amount 

8 Yard dumpster 1 x week ·106/01/20 1.00 6S2.S7 

Fuel / environmental charge 190.42 

Regulatory cost recovery charge ' 
30.35 

Administrative charge ' 6.50 

dav countv franchise fee 123.18 

Total Current charges 1,003,02 

-- -- _ _, 

d< -·----·---·--·------------- ---------·-Please detach and sendthelowerportfon with payment -·- -(no cash or staples) - - --- - --·- -- - -------·--·-· • • -·- -

WA$'TE MANAGEMENT 

REFUSE SERVICES, INC. 

PO BOX42930 
PHOENIX, Al. 85080 
(904) 260-1592 
(866} 381-9369 
(904) 260-1449 FAX 

Invoice Date Invoice Number CuSt omer ID 
(Include with your pc1yment) 

OS/22/2020 943S392-2224•1 12-16050-13008 

Payment Terms Total Due Amount 

rotal Due by 06/21/2020 $1,003.02 
If Received ofter 06/21/2020 $1,028.10 ----'. __ J__ ________ __L_ ________ _j 

222400012160501300809435392000 □01003020000 □ 1 □□ 3 □ 2 3 

00670740tSP0.500 *'SNGLP H 714333351 -C01-P671'1Hl 10290C5l 1h11 Iii 111' Ill' 11, 11, I II In 1111 II 111 I •I 1 ••I, Ill' 11111 •I I, I l,I 'II 
WM CORPORATE SERVICES, INC. I 'Ill I ii 11111 ml 11 • 11 Iii' I' Ill' 111,1 II• l'I ii' I 1•1 I ,hi I 'll,11111 

ROLLING HILLS COD 
5385 N KNOB HILL RO 
ROLLING HILLS 
SUNRISE FL 33351 

Remit To: 

~ 
THINK GREEN~ 

AS PAYMENT AGENT 
POBOX4648 
CAROL smEAM, IL 60197-4648 

Printed 011 

re<yded paper. 



5 EASY WAYS TO PAY 

Automatk Payment 
Set up recurring p.iyrnents with 11s at 
wm.corn/myoo:ount. 

Pay lhrough Yoorfinaocial Institution 
W.ake a payment from your financial !nstltution using 
yQurCUstorn~ !O_ 

HOL~ 10 Contact t.1$ 

Visitwm.com 
, • ..-c ... .,, ...... .,..i,,.">'''r,• """"'"~••p,,, • .,.,.,,,"" .. ~ _ ,,,..,.,,_...,,,,,... ...... 

"""'"''""" 

Page2of2 

HOW TO READ YOUR INVOICE I 

August 19, 2017 

f',;>.">~""o'h,,.,,,,,..,..;,10<, 

""""""'"'"""""'·'..,.·'"' ....... uu.,..iu..- ... ,i.o,"'~l•'fi'~.i-.,. .,.,,.,..,..,~...,,,,,......,."""''" 
11'-"'-"""'"'""''-''-l'""" .. .,.,.,,..,,,~.,o~,..,,.,,.,.,..= 

$124.73 

~~--tsr&,,r,-,.iorw 
oa111110•1. $1:X.Go 

States the date payment is due to Waste 
Management. Anything beyond that date may 
Incur additlona! charge5. Your Total Due ls the 
total amount of curre11t charges and any 
prevlall'l unpaid ba~1nces combined _ 

n ---

0011.~ Time Payment 
At your desk or on I.ht:! go, use wro.com or our WM 
mobile app for a qs1ick .ind easy payment. 

If; ··f.illi& ►#i:MW l"'"W• 1;111rn;;w _.ili!lii"i-, L ---:;:1z7+C 11~-~J: .-r50~:J·( ,mu-c::;;;_:::: 

Previous balMte ls-the total due. from your 
pre..,ious invoice. We subtract any Payments 
RoceivOO/Adjustments and add yoll{' 
Current Charg~ from this hll!ing cycle to 
91H a Total L)i,e on this inv<:1lce. If you have 
not paid all or a portion of your p-evlous 
ba!i:ince, please payi;heenlire Total Due lo 
avoid a l,ited1argeor service int.erruptlon, 

Pay byPholl{!, o,,ol,fo,~,,c<l<"1l0> D.-nu,,«li:>: l-~l.'90-tmi~ 
111J..:lem,..,..-, ... «t1..,i;,.0,,0S 00'1.....-M< '-SM) 

Payable 24/7 uslng our automated system at 
866-964-2729. ~;::i'~============i~g:::;;§=i: ~!T,;,;- --~!!'""'-

'"' ,01 1 

. . . ' 

Enrd! in Automatic Payme-n~s 
l:nroU In -"-u!a>motfc P"Ym~ms T<>d~y 

Automatic Payments 

Service location details the total curmnt 
ch,irges of this invoice . 

Simplify your life with easy and reliable automatic payments. 
Save time. prevent late charges and help the environment, too. 

Get started by visiting wm.com/autopay. 

If your 5ervice Ill suspended for non-paymlffit,yov may IJechar'!led a A.esumechargeto restartyour~avka For each returned check. a charge will be assessed on ycurneKt invoice e<J<l•lto thll maximum amount p,,rmitted by 
appllaible~telaw. 

■ CHECK HERE TO CHANGE CONTACT INFO 

List your new billing information below. For a chcinge. of service <1ddress, 
please contact Waste Management. 

Address 1 

Address 2 

City 

State 

------------

lf I enroll in Automat:ic Payment services, I authorize Vl'aste Management to pay my invoice. by electronically 
deduding money from my bank account. I can cancel authorization by notifying Waste Management at 
wm.cam or by c.al!irig the customer service number listed on my in,•ake. Your enrollment cou!d take 1 -2 
billing cycles for Automatic Payment.,; to take effect. Continue to :-;ubmit payment until page one of your 
invoice reflects that your payment wR! be deducted. 

Email Address 
Zip___________ . __ . -··· -····------------< 
Email Date r==---+---------------1 f-----------1-------- ------ ---
Date Valid Bank Account Holder Signature 

··-·--·····-···----------L_--------------__J 

NOTICE: By ~endingy-0urche<:k. you ar<:!authort>ing the Company to use information an your check to make a one-time electronic debiL to youracc-0uot at the financial irlS'1Jurt!on Indicated on your check. The 

electronic debit ,...;u be for the amount of yoor check and m.iy <1ccur .is soon as the sam!! d.iy we receive your check 

!n orderforu~toserviceyouraccountorto col!ect any amounts you may owe (for n-00-marke-tlng orso!ldmt!on purpo:;e;), we may contact you hy telephone at any telephone numbl!rthacyoo prOlllded ln connection 
with yco_ir account, including wire¼>-,; t.,,lephone nu1nbers, whidl <,:<)uld result n charges to you. Methods of C<)ntact may lndude text messages and using pre--recorded/artifkial V-Oir.e m~~ge,; and/or US£". of an 
automatic: dialing de.lice. as apptrcab!e. We may aim contact you by email or other method~ as provided in our cantm:t 

Pleasesei,d a~ bankruptcy corrcsp0t1denceto R.,'v',C!i.ink111pt<:_y5!'wm,com or PO Box 43290 Phoenix. AZ 85080. Using the email option 'llil!expediteyo11r re<JUE5t. (thls language ls in compfranc.ewith 11 lJSC 342(c)(2) 

of theB;mkruptq• Code) 



Bill To: 
Rolling Hills CDD 

Net30 

c/o Governmental Management Services, LLC 
5385 N. Nob Hill Rd 

Remit To: 
Yellowstone Landscape 
PO Box 101017 

Sunrise, FL 33351 

Property Name: Rolling Hills CDP Atlanta, GA 30392-1 0 17 

Invoice Due Date: June 30, 2020 

Invoice Amount: $6,051.80 

~~~~:-~~tt~ds~a~~~l;·g~~g~~~;t~a;;·26~8';{?L. ____ .· ·•·· <' '-·-• >L_'• •-·• :()Urt!!ry;~-t5~~;6 

Invoice Total $6,051.80 

e-~ i/,/zu ,~t 
lavt)S<'-"'f'--(Y/c,r"'+. 

ovt. J z.o, c;3-g0<1. Lf&Z-00 

Should you have any questions or inquiries please call (386) 437-6211. 

Yellowstone Landscape I Post Office Box 849 I Bunnell FL 32110 I Tel 386.437.6211 I Fax 386.437.1286 


	Board Letter
	Agenda
	III.	Affidavit of Publication
	IV.	Approval of Minutes of the May 14, 2020 Meeting and July 23, 2020 Special Meeting 
	V. B.	Presentation of Preliminary Assessment Methodology
	C.	Consideration of Delegation Resolution, 2020-08
	1.	Supplemental Indenture
	VI. B.	Resolution Authorizing Direct Purchase, Resolution 2020-10
	C.	Temporary Construction & Access Easement Agreement
	D.	Consideration of Construction Funding Agreement
	VII.	Public Hearing to Adopt the Revised Rules of Procedure, Resolution 2020-05
	VIII. A.	Proposal from Riverside Management Services for Fiscal Year 2021
	B.	Yellowstone Landscaping
	C.	Lake Maintenance Proposals
	IX.	Public Hearing Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2021
	A.	Consideration of Resolution 2020-06, Relating to the Annual Appropriations and Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2021
	B.	Consideration of Resolution 2020-07, Imposing Special Assessments and Certifying an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2021
	X.	Consideration of License Agreement with Clay High School Swim Team
	XIII. C.	Manager – Discussion of Proposed Meeting Schedule for Fiscal Year 2021 and Consideration of Resolution 2020-09
	D.	Operations / Amenity Manager - Report
	XVI. A.	Balance Sheet & Income Statement
	B.	Assessment Receipt Schedule
	C.	Check Register



